STATE OF CALIFORNIA — BUSINESS, CONSUMER SERVICES, AND HOUSING AGENCY GAVIN NEWSOM, GOVERNOR

CALIFORNIA HORSE RACING BOARD
1010 Hurley Way, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95825
www.chrb.ca.gov

(916) 263-6000 Fax (916) 263-6042

REGULAR MEETING

Of the California Horse Racing Board (CHRB/Board) will be held on Wednesday, June 16,
2021, commencing at 9:30 a.m. via teleconference. The audio portion only of the California
Horse Racing Board regular meeting will be available online through a link at the CHRB website
(www.chrb.ca.gov) under “Webcasts.”

Please be advised, in accordance with Executive Order N-29-20, the CHRB will provide a
teleconference option for its upcoming public meeting, to be held on June 16, 2021 at 9:30 a.m.
Board members and members of the public are strongly encouraged to participate using the
teleconference phone number provided below so as to minimize the spread of COVID-19 and
reduce the risk of infection during this current state of emergency. No physical location will be

provided.

To participate in the teleconference, dial 888-392-4564 and enter 6896291# when prompted. To
comment on an agenda item, press *1 during the call to be added to the queue. If you are a
member of the public and wish to listen to the meeting and not participate, we request that you
please listen to the meeting via the webcast link on our website to avoid congestion and potential
technical difficulties.

The agenda for the regular meeting will consist of the following matters:

AGENDA

Action Items:

1.  Approval of the minutes of May 19, 2021.

2. Report from the Pari-Mutuel and Wagering Committee.
Pursuant to Gov. Code § 11125.7(a), public comment will not be permitted on an agenda item
when an opportunity has been given at a committee hearing for testimony on the item.

3. Discussion and presentation by the Arabian Racing Association of California (ARAC)
regarding opportunities and the impact of 2021 dates and location proposals on
Arabian racing in California.

4. Discussion and Action by the Board regarding reallocation of 2020 Race Dates to
reallocate July 21, 2021 — August 3, 2021 from California Exposition and State Fair,
at Cal Expo, to the Pacific Racing Association Il (PRA II).



http://www.chrb.ca.gov/
http://www.chrb.ca.gov/

Back to Top

2-

Discussion and action by the Board regarding approval of an agreement, pursuant to
CHRB Rule 1581, Racing Secretary to Establish Conditions, between the California
Authority of Racing Fairs (CARF) and the Thoroughbred Owners of California (TOC),
Pacific Coast Quarter Horse Racing Association (PCQHRA), and The Arabian Racing
Association or America (ARAM) regarding entry conditions and specified drug
substances or medications to be implemented by the Alameda County Fair during its 2021
race meeting.

Discussion and action by the Board regarding the request for an extension to obtain a
fire clearance approval for the San Luis Rey Downs auxiliary training facility, pursuant
to CHRB Rule 1927, Fire Prevention.

Discussion and action by the Board regarding approval of an agreement, pursuant to
CHRB Rule 1581, Racing Secretary to Establish Conditions, between the Del Mar
Thoroughbred Club (DMTC) and the Thoroughbred Owners of California (TOC),
regarding entry conditions and specified drug substances or medications to be
implemented by the DMTC at the Del Mar Racetrack.

Discussion and action by the Board on the Application for License to Conduct a Horse
Racing Meeting of the Del Mar Thoroughbred Club (T) at Del Mar, commencing July 7,
2020 through September 7, 2021, inclusive.

Discussion and action by the Board on the Application for License to Conduct a Horse
Racing Meeting of the California Exposition and State Fair (F) at Pleasanton,
commencing July 14, 2021 through July 20, 2021, inclusive.

10.

Discussion and action by the Board regarding approval of an agreement, pursuant to
CHRB Rule 1581, Racing Secretary to Establish Conditions, between the Pacific
Racing Association Il (PRA Il) and the Thoroughbred Owners of California (TOC),
regarding entry conditions and specified drug substances or medications to be
implemented by the PRA |l at the Golden Gate Fields Racetrack.

11.

Discussion and action by the Board on the Application for License to Conduct a Horse
Racing Meeting of the Pacific Racing Association Il (T) at Golden Gate Fields,
commencing July 21, 2021 through August 3, 2021, inclusive.

12.

Reports
A. Executive Director’s Report.

B. Equine Medical Director’s Report. |

13.

Public Comment: Communications, reports, requests for future actions of the Board.
Note: During the public comment period, a total of thirty minutes will be allowed for public
comments via the teleconference line. After thirty minutes, no further comments will be
accepted. Each person will be limited to two minutes.




Back to Top
-3-

14. Closed Session: For the purpose of receiving advice from counsel, considering pending
litigation, reaching decisions on administrative licensing and disciplinary hearings, and
personnel matters, as authorized by section 11126 of the Government Code.

A. The Board may convene a Closed Session to confer with and receive advice from its
legal counsel regarding the pending litigation described in the attachment to this agenda
captioned "Pending Litigation," and as authorized by Government Code section
11126(e).

B. The Board may convene a Closed Session to confer with and receive advice from its
legal counsel regarding pending administrative licensing or disciplinary matters as
authorized by Government Code section 11126(e).

C. The Board may convene a Closed Session for the purposes of considering personnel
matters as authorized by Government Code section 11126(a).

Additional information regarding this meeting may be obtained from the CHRB Administrative
Office, 1010 Hurley Way, Suite 300, Sacramento, CA 95825; telephone (916) 263-6000; fax
(916) 263-6042. This notice is located on the CHRB website at www.chrb.ca.gov. *Information
for requesting disability related accommodation for persons with a disability who require aid or
services in order to participate in this public meeting, should contact Amanda Drummond.
Requests will be swiftly resolved by CHRB staff.

CALIFORNIA HORSE RACING BOARD
Gregory L. Ferraro, DVM, Chairman
Oscar Gonzales, Vice Chair
Dennis Alfieri, Member
Damascus Castellanos, Member
Brenda Davis, Member
Wendy Mitchell, Member
Alex Solis, Member
Scott Chaney, Executive Director
Cynthia Alameda, Assistant Executive Director



http://www.chrb.ca.gov/

Back to Top

STATE OF CALIFORNIA — BUSINESS, CONSUMER SERVICES, AND HOUSING AGENCY GAVIN NEWSOM, Gu v onivun

CALIFORNIA HORSE RACING BOARD
1010 HURLEY WAY, SUITE 300
SACRAMENTO, CA 95825

(916) 263-6000

FAX (916) 263-6042

PENDING ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUDICATIONS
JUNE 2021

The Board may convene a Closed Session to confer with and receive advice from its
legal counsel regarding the pending administrative licensing or disciplinary matters as
authorized by Government Code section 11126(e). This shall include any matters
mentioned below and/or permitted by law.

CASE



STATE OF CALIFORNIA — BUSINESS, CONSUMER SERVICES, AND HOUSING AGENCY

Back to Top

GAVIN NEWSOM, Gu v onivun

CALIFORNIA HORSE RACING BOARD
1010 HURLEY WAY, SUITE 300
SACRAMENTO, CA 95825

(916) 263-6000

FAX (916) 263-6042

PENDING LITIGATION
JUNE 2021

COURT LITIGATION

A. Ruis Racing, LLC v. California Horse Racing Board
Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles

B. Hollendorfer v. California Horse Racing Board
Superior Court of California, County of San Diego

C. Zvi Kriple v. California Horse Racing Board
Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles




Agenda Item 1

STATE OF CALIFORNIA — BUSINESS, CONSUMER SERVICES, AND HOUSING AGENCY

Back to Top
GAVIN NEWSOM, Guvenivon

CALIFORNIA HORSE RACING BOARD
1010 Hurley Way, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95825
www.chrb.ca.gov

(916) 263-6000 Fax (916) 263-6042

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES

Date and Time: May 19, 2021 at 9:30 a.m.
Location: Teleconference
Board Members Present: Gregory Ferraro, Chairman

Oscar Gonzales, Vice-Chairman
Alex Solis, Member

Dennis Alfieri, Member

Wendy Mitchell, Member
Demascus Castellanos, Member
Brenda Washington Davis, Member

Staff Members Present: Scott Chaney, Executive Director

Cynthia Alameda, Assistant Executive Director

Robert Brodnik, General Counsel
1. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF APRIL 21, 2021.

Motion: Approve.
Motioned/Seconded: Davis/Ferraro

Roll call vote: Aye: Gonzales, Alfieri, Castellanos, Washington Davis, Mitchell, Ferraro.

Nay: None. Abstain: Solis. Passed 5-0 with one abstention.
Pages 3—4 in the Board transcript.

2. DISCUSSION AND ACTION BY THE BOARD REGARDING FASIG-TIPTON’S REQUEST
FOR AUTHORIZATION OF ITS UPCOMING HORSE SALE, PURSUANT TO CHRB RULE

1807, AUTHORIZED HORSE SALES.

Motion: Approve.
Motioned/Seconded: Castellanos/Alfieri

Roll call vote: Aye: Gonzales, Alfieri, Castellanos, Washington Davis, Mitchell, Solis,

Ferraro. Nay: None. Motion carried.
Pages 4-11 in the Board transcript.

3. DISCUSSION AND ACTION BY THE BOARD ON THE RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR
LICENSE TO OPERATE A MINISATELLITE WAGERING FACILITY FOR SANTA CLARITA

LANES.

Motion: Approve renewal application for term of five years conditioned upon receipt of
amended contract between SCOTWINC and Santa Clarita Lanes within 60 days.

Motioned/Seconded: Alfieri/Castellanos


http://www.chrb.ca.gov/

Back to Top
Proceedings of the Regular Meeting of May 19, 2021

Roll call vote: Aye: Gonzales, Alfieri, Castellanos, Washington Davis, Mitchell, Solis,
Ferraro. Nay: None. Motion carried.
Pages 11-15 in the Board transcript.

4. DISCUSSION AND ACTION BY THE BOARD REGARDING APPROVAL OF AN
AGREEMENT, PURSUANT TO BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE SECTION
19604(f)(5)(E), FOR DISTRIBUTION OF ADVANCE DEPOSIT WAGERING (ADW) MARKET
ACCESS FEES FOR WAGERS PLACED ON ALL LIVE AND IMPORTED RACES HOSTED
BY THE SIGNATORY RACING FAIRS FOR THE PERIOD OF JUNE 1, 2021, THROUGH
DECEMBER 31, 2021, TO BE UTILIZED TO FUND A CALIFORNIA CO-OP MARKETING
PROGRAM.

Motion: Approve.

Motioned/Seconded: Solis/Castellanos

Roll call vote: Aye: Gonzales, Alfieri, Castellanos, Washington Davis, Mitchell, Solis,
Ferraro. Nay: None. Motion carried.

Pages 16—20 in the Board transcript.

5. DISCUSSION AND ACTION BY THE BOARD REGARDING APPROVAL OF AN
AGREEMENT, PURSUANT TO CHRB RULE 1581, RACING SECRETARY TO ESTABLISH
CONDITIONS, BETWEEN THE CALIFORNIA AUTHORITY OF RACING FAIRS (CARF)
AND THE THOROUGHBRED OWNERS OF CALIFORNIA (TOC), REGARDING ENTRY
CONDITIONS AND SPECIFIED DRUG SUBSTANCES OR MEDICATIONS TO BE
IMPLEMENTED BY CARF AT THE ALAMEDA COUNTY FAIR.

Motion: Approve.

Motioned/Seconded: Solis/Davis

Roll call vote: Aye: Gonzales, Alfieri, Castellanos, Washington Davis, Mitchell, Solis,
Ferraro. Nay: None. Motion carried.

Pages 20-25 in the Board transcript.

6. DISCUSSION AND ACTION BY THE BOARD ON THE APPLICATION TO CONDUCT A
HORSE RACING MEETING OF THE ALAMEDA COUNTY FAIR (F), AT PLEASANTON,
COMMENCING JUNE 16, 2021, AND CONTINUING THROUGH JULY 13, 2021.

Motion: Approve application with following modifications: auxiliary stabling at Golden Gate
Fields; adding July 5 an extra day; removing mule racing from application; approving
exemption request for Alameda County Fire request to be valid for one year; and approving
September 22, 2020 fire clearance with 45-day exemption request of Golden Gate Fields for
period of one year. Approval is based on condition that CARF adopt CHRB inclement weather
policy and that all outstanding items, including auxiliary stabling agreement between Golden
Gate Fields and Pleasanton, be received prior to commencement of racing.
Motioned/Seconded: Ferraro/Solis

Roll call vote: Aye: Gonzales, Alfieri, Castellanos, Washington Davis, Mitchell, Solis,
Ferraro. Nay: None. Motion carried.

Pages 25-39 in the Board transcript.



Back to Top
Proceedings of the Regular Meeting of May 19, 2021

7. DISCUSSION AND ACTION BY THE BOARD REGARDING APPROVAL OF AN
AGREEMENT, PURSUANT TO CHRB RULE 1581, RACING SECRETARY TO ESTABLISH
CONDITIONS, BETWEEN THE LOS ALAMITOS RACING ASSOCIATION AND THE
THOROUGHBRED OWNERS OF CALIFORNIA (TOC), REGARDING ENTRY
CONDITIONS AND SPECIFIED DRUG SUBSTANCES OR MEDICATIONS TO BE
IMPLEMENTED BY LARA AT THE LOS ALAMITOS RACETRACK.

Motion: Approve.

Motioned/Seconded: Castellano/Washington Davis

Roll call vote: Aye: Gonzales, Alfieri, Castellanos, Washington Davis, Mitchell, Solis,
Ferraro. Nay: None. Motion carried.

Pages 39-44 in the Board transcript.

8. DISCUSSION AND ACTION BY THE BOARD ON THE APPLICATION FOR LICENSE TO
CONDUCT A HORSE RACING MEETING OF THE LOS ALAMITOS RACING
ASSOCIATION (T) AT LOS ALAMITOS RACE COURSE, COMMENCING JUNE 23, 2021,
AND CONTINUING THROUGH JULY 6, 2021.

Motion: Approve with the following modifications: approving Santa Anita fire clearance and
exemption request to be valid for one year; approving November 12, 2020 fire clearance with
45-day exemption request for Los Alamitos Race Course for one year. Approval is based on
condition that the Los Alamitos Racing Association adopt the CHRB Inclement Weather Policy
prior to commencement of racing.

Motioned/Seconded: Ferraro/Castellanos

Roll call vote: Aye: Gonzales, Alfieri, Castellanos, Washington Davis, Mitchell, Solis,
Ferraro. Nay: None. Motion carried.

Pages 44-52 in the Board transcript.

9. DISCUSSION AND ACTION BY THE BOARD REGARDING THE PROPOSED
AMENDMENTS TO CHRB RULE 1581.1, ENTRIES, AND CHRB RULE 1878, WORKOUTS,
TO PROHIBIT A HORSE FROM WORKOUTS OR ENTRY TO RACE UNLESS A
VETERINARIAN HAS DETERMINED THE HORSE IS SOUND.

Motion: Approve.

Motioned/Seconded: Alfieri/\WWashington Davis

Roll call vote: Aye: Gonzales, Alfieri, Castellanos, Washington Davis, Mitchell, Solis,
Ferraro. Nay: None. Motion carried.

Pages 52-55 in the Board transcript.

10. REPORTS.

A. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
Pages 55-72 in the Board transcript.

B. EQUINE MEDICAL DIRECTOR’S REPORT.
Pages 56-72 in the Board transcript.



Back to Top

Proceedings of the Regular Meeting of May 19, 2021

11. PUBLIC COMMENT.
Pages 72-91 in the Board transcript.

MEETING ADJOURNED AT 11:37 A.M.



Back to Top

Proceedings of the Regular Meeting of May 19, 2021

A full and complete transcript of the aforesaid proceedings are on file at the office of the California
Horse Racing Board, 1010 Hurley Way, Suite 300, Sacramento, California, and therefore made a
part hereof.

Chairman Executive Director



Agenda Item 2
genda ftem Back to Top

Parimutuel fantasy sports contests for the CARF Network

Challenges involving Horse racing and Fantasy Sports Leagues are significantly alike. Participants evaluate
contests using comprehensive statistical databases of past performances. Utilizing intellectual forecasting skill,
the contestants make selections with the goal of outwitting and/or profiting over other players.

Golden State Fantasy Sports (GSF) is the working title of a fantasy sports contest constructed to compliment
California's pari-mutuel racing industry. Like all such fantasy contests, contestants pay an entry fee to
participate in a GSF contest. Entries are submitted in traditional pari-mutuel formats such as Win, Place,
Show, Daily Double, Exacta, Trifecta, Pick 6, etc., where contestants can receive a pro-rata share of the entry
fees paid by all contestants in the game. The content for GSF contests comes from individual performance
statistics of athletes in a sporting event or combination of sporting events common to fantasy sports, such as
football, baseball, and basketball.

How GSF Works

Consider the following hypothetical NFL-based GSF contest where the proposition is "Most Yards Gained"
for a quarterback during one week of NFL games. Such a contest would involve a field of well-known athletes
with a depth similar to or greater than most horse races (30 or more quarterbacks play in a week during the
regular season), and it would position athletes against one another who are most likely playing in different
events. Each quarterback would be awarded points based on his individual performance during that week's
contest. Quarterbacks could be assigned a point for each positive passing yard gained, and point totals could
be adjusted according to other factors, such as touchdown passes or interceptions. All quarterbacks would
then be ranked according to the points they accumulated. The quarterback scoring the most points would
be the Win while the second highest scoring would be Place and the third, Show, and so on.

When selecting athletes, GSF contestants would rely on available performance statistics-'past performances' -
and their ability to assess the relative value of the multitude of statistics, facts, and other variables, such as an
athlete's abilities and health, opposing team defenses, weather forecasts, home field advantages, player
surfaces, etc. GSF, as with fantasy sports contests in general, is designed with the specific objective that the
contestant's skill, and not chance, is the determining factor of success.

Each athlete's value would ulimately be set by GSF contestants through, by analogy, a pari-mutuel process,
and not by GSF or its operators. Entry fees would be set as a base price and displayed as relative odds against
winning as determined by the contestants' distribution of selections in the contest. Athletes selected by players
would have the value of their relative selection (i.e. their odds) changed according to the popularity of their
selection by contestants.

This contest, and similar contests GSF would offer, is intended to serve as a feeder program introducing a
much younger fan/player base than typically exists for pari-mutuel horse racing. The appeal of these contests
will stimulate the California horse racing industry by:

1. Attracting new patrons to participating venues;

2. Using a legal contest format to create a new and additional revenue source for
racing's stakeholders;

3. Protecting existing pari-mutuel employee's jobs, and creating new jobs associated
with GSF and its planned in-state hub; and,

4. Expanding customer entertainment options for existing California racing/wagering
venues and attracting new off-track venues.

GSF compliments California's existing pari-mutuel horse racing industry and can be integrated into
operators' existing infrastructure and tote systems. User interfaces on computer terminals and mobile
devices can be updated to offer GSF games.



Back to Top

HUB Administrative center

The HUB is contest control central, operating approximately 16
hours a day, up to 365 days a year. Over 10,000 contests can
be developed annually, many more if demanded, especially
through the potential of “in run” or “in game” contests. Contests
are tote agnostic, so operate on any system using standard

PRO FOOTBALL

SELECT s tote protocol. AmTote, perhaps others, have developed a
SPORT TYPE sports user interface.
socceR The fantasy hub, under the direction of CARF, operates as
PRO BASKETBALL central control for all satellites including the following minimum

duties:
1. Dalily contest content creation, data management
2. Tote data entry, opening odds, scratches and results
3. Dalily analysis of contest play and consumer demand
4. Minimum daily prize determinations.
5. Pool seeding calculations, if necessary
6. Manage website for content, design and contest calendar
7. Manage Broadcast content and design
8. Development of all collateral materials, including printable

daily entries, results and statistical data
9. Create and communicate content for marketing and promotions

10. Facility design assistance

11. Customer service for both facility and mobile applications

12. Manage the work and payment to the platform provider, contests are tote agnostic
13. Manage daily accounting and reconciliations with satellites

14. Satellite employee training

Most existing gaming facilities and ADW’s can adapt contests into their existing menu of activities with
relatively simple upgrades, operational planning and marketing.

The proposed facility model projects a 15% blended administrative fee (takeout) from contest entry fees
(handle). The majority of the contest revenue will be shared with each satellite facility, a much greater share
than the current satellite wagering facility horse racing model. The contest HUB, under the direction of CARF,
will be responsible for management of operations, facility upgrades, customer service, employee training,
marketing content creation, product development and delivery, tote administration, tote fees, and licensing.

The GSF pilot program is scheduled to begin with the start of the 2021 Football season.

10-YEAR INTRA-STATE HANDLE TRENDS

(IN THOUSANDS)

0,684

2010 w2019

$2,626,732

$2,171,110

$381,180

I $241,217

NV SPORTS NV RACE CA RACE

Conceptual Golden State Fantasy Sports Lounge




Agenda Item 3
genda ftem Back to Top

CALIFORNIA HORSE RACING BOARD

June 16, 2021

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

There is no board package material for Item 3



Agenda Item 4
genda fem Back to Top

STAFF ANALYSIS
DISCUSSION AND ACTION BY THE BOARD REGARDING REALLOCATION OF 2020
RACE DATES TO REALLOCATE JULY 21, 2021 — AUGUST 3, 2021 FROM
CALIFORNIA EXPOSITION AND STATE FAIR, AT CAL EXPO, TO THE PACIFIC
RACING ASSOCIATION Il (PRA1T)

Regular Board Meeting
June 16, 2021

ISSUE:

Every year, the California Horse Racing Board (Board) hears from industry stakeholders
regarding the allocation of race dates for the following year. This discussion is initially
held at the Race Dates Committee (Committee) meeting, prior to being presented to the
Board at their regular meeting for final approval of the allocated race dates. In the past,
there has been discussion of adopting a multi-year allocated race dates calendar, but to
date one has not been obtained.

In 2020, the Committee approved a tentative Race Dates Calendar and then at the
October and November 2020 regular Board meeting, the final race date calendar was
approved. A copy of that calendar is attached for reference.

However, due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, a re-allocation of dates is being
proposed and submitted to the Board for consideration. Specifically, the Board is being
asked to consider the following:

e The State Fair to be changed from 07/14/21 - 08/03/21 at Cal Expo to 07/14/21 —
07/20/21 at Pleasanton.

e The Pacific Racing Association (PRA 1l) to be allocated two additional weeks from
07/21/21 — 08/03/21.

RECOMMENDATION:
This item is presented for discussion and action.




CALIFORNIA HORSE RACING BOARD
2021 ALLOCATED RACE DATES
CALENDAR

Back to Top

Note: The allocation begins on the Wednesday prior to opening day

and concludes on the Tuesday following closing day.

THOROUGHBRED MEETINGS - CENTRAL & SOUTHERN ZONES

Location

Santa Anita
Los Alamitos
Del Mar
Santa Anita
Del Mar

Los Alamitos
Santa Anita

Allocated Dates *

12/23/20 — 06/22/21
06/23/21 - 07/06/21
07/07/21 - 09/07/21
09/29/21 - 11/02/21
11/03/21 - 11/30/21
12/01/21 - 12/14/21
12/15/21 - 12/21/21

Golden Gate Fields
Golden Gate Fields
Golden Gate Fields

THOROUGHBRED MEETINGS - NORTHERN ZONE

12/23/20- 06/15/21
08/25/21 — 10/05/21
10/20/21 —12/21/21

Los Alamitos

QUARTER HORSE MEETINGS - STATEWIDE

12/23/20 - 12/21/21

Cal Expo
Cal Expo

HARNESS MEETINGS — STATEWIDE

12/23/20 - 05/11/21
10/27/21 - 12/21/21

FAIR MEETINGS - STATEWIDE

Alameda Fair at Pleasanton

State Fair at Cal Expo

Sonoma Fair at Santa Rosa
Humboldt Fair at Ferndale
L.A. County Fair at Los Alamitos

Big Fresno Fair at Fresno

06/16/21 — 07/13/21
07/14/21 — 08/03/21
08/04/21 — 08/17/21
08/18/21 — 08/31/21
09/08/21 — 09/28/21
10/06/21 — 10/19/21

* Date Block Allocation. Actual days of live racing are determined at the time applications are approved by the Board.

The Southern California Thoroughbred, Statewide Harness Meeting Dates, Statewide Quarter Horse Meeting Dates, and
first Thoroughbred Meetings of the Northern Zone were allocated at the 10/22/2020 regular meeting of the Board. The
remaining 2021 dates were allocated at the 11/19/2020 regular meeting of the Board.



Agenda Item 5

STAFF ANALYSIS
DISCUSSION AND ACTION BY THE BOARD REGARDING APPROVAL OF AN
AGREEMENT, PURSUANT TO CHRB RULE 1581, RACING SECRETARY TO
ESTABLISH CONDITIONS, BETWEEN THE CALIFORNIA AUTHORITY OF RACING
FAIRS (CARF) AND THE THOROUGHBRED OWNERS OF CALIFORNIA (TOC),
PACIFIC COAST QUARTER HORSE RACING ASSOCIATION (PCQHRA), AND THE
ARABIAN RACING ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA (ARAM) REGARDING ENTRY
CONDITIONS AND SPECIFIED DRUG SUBSTANCES OR MEDICATIONS TO BE
IMPLEMENTED BY THE ALAMEDA COUNTY FAIR DURING ITS 2021
RACE MEETING.

Regular Board Meeting
June 16, 2021

ISSUE:

California Horse Racing Board (Board) Rule 1581, Racing Secretary to Establish
Conditions, allows the racing secretary to establish the conditions for any race run during
the race meeting. In instances where the racing secretary wishes to set a condition
based on a participating horse’s use or non-use of a drug substance or medication, or
the presence or lack of presence of a drug substance or medication, the association
must first obtain approval from the horseman’s organization and the Board. Beginning
in March 2019, all racing associations in California have come to the Board seeking
approval of agreements with the respective horseman’s organizations involving the
mandatory stand down for intra articular injections.

At the May 19, 2021 meeting, the Board approved a prior agreement between the
California Authority of Racing Fairs (CARF) and the Thoroughbred Owners of California
(TOC), however this agreement was missing a few critical components. As such, a new
agreement is being submitted to the Board for approval. This agreement includes that
all intra-articular injections are 14 days, not just with corticosteroids, as well as includes
metacarpophalangeal joints. Additionally, the agreement also now has the signatures
and approvals from the Pacific Coast Quarter Horse Racing Association (PCQHRA) and
the Arabian Racing Association of America (ARAM) as the fair meets have Quarter
Horse and Arabian Racing, as well.

BACKGROUND:

Business and Professions Code (BPC) section 19440 provides that the Board shall have
all powers necessary and proper to enable it to carry out fully and effectually the
purposes of the Horse Racing Law. Responsibilities of the Board shall include, but not
be limited to, adopting rules and regulations for the protection of the public and the
control of horse racing and pari-mutuel wagering. BPC section 19590 states the Board
shall adopt rules governing, permitting, and regulating wagering on horse races under
the system known as the pari-mutuel method of wagering. BPC section 19562 provides
that the Board may prescribe rules, regulations and conditions, consistent with the

Back to Top


http://www.chrb.ca.gov/query_rules_and_regulations_database.asp?form_query_action=display_rule&form_query_rule_number=1581&form_query_rule_title=Racing+Secretary+to+Establish+Conditions%2E&form_query_article=Racing+Secretary+to+Establish+Conditions%2E&form_query_article_index=7&form_query_argument=1581
http://www.chrb.ca.gov/query_rules_and_regulations_database.asp?form_query_action=display_rule&form_query_rule_number=1581&form_query_rule_title=Racing+Secretary+to+Establish+Conditions%2E&form_query_article=Racing+Secretary+to+Establish+Conditions%2E&form_query_article_index=7&form_query_argument=1581
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&sectionNum=19440.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&sectionNum=19590.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&sectionNum=19562.

provisions of this chapter, under which all horse races with wagering on their results
shall be conducted in California.

ANALYSIS:

The ability to set conditions on a race is governed by Board Rule 1581. Rule 1581
states:

The racing secretary may establish the conditions for any race, the allowances
or handicaps to be established or specific races, the procedures for the
acceptance of entries and declarations, and such other conditions as are
necessary to provide and conduct the association’s race meeting. Any conditions
that are based on a participating horse’s use or non-use of a drug substance or
medication, or the presence or lack of presence of a drug substance or
medication in a biological test sample taken from a participating horse, shall be
agreed to in advance in writing by the acknowledged horsemen’s organization,
which, in the case of Thoroughbreds, shall be the owner’s organization, and
approved by the Board before entries are taken for the race. If such conditions
are based on the results of a biological test sample other than an official test
sample collected by the CHRB, a description of the testing methods and
procedures the racing association or fair will use to collect and analyze the
biological test samples shall be submitted to the Board for approval. For
purposes of this section “biological test sample” refers to any biological sample,
including but not limited to, blood, urine, hair, tissue, or saliva, that is taken from
a horse.

Pursuant to Board Rule 1581, any condition involving medication must be agreed to by
the horsemen’s organizations. Additionally, any agreement must be approved by the
Board before entries are taken. Here, CARF has entered into an agreement with the
TOC, PCQHRA, and ARAM to prohibit a horse from entering a stakes race conducted
with any race-day medication, including furosemide, prohibits a horse from racing for 14
days if it has received a joint injection, prohibits a horse from performing a timed workout
within 10 days of a joint injection, and prohibits a horse from racing for 30 days if it has
received an injection in a metacarpophalangeal or metacarpophalangeal joint.

RECOMMENDATION:

This item is presented for Board discussion and action.

Back to Top



a @:ffmm‘a J’airif posiero agency

1776 Tribute Road, Suite 150
Sacramento, CA 95815
Office: 916.263.3346 Fax: 916.263.3341
www.calfairs.com

CHRB Rule 1581 Agreement
Effective Date: May 28, 2021
PARTIES:
Arabian Racing Association of California (“ARAC™)
240 Joseph Lane
Pleasanton, CA 94588
AND
Pacific Quarter Horse Racing Association (“PCQHRA”)
PO Box 919
Los Alamitos, CA 90720
AND
Thoroughbred Owners of California (“TOC”)
285 W. Huntington Drive
Arcadia, CA 91007
AND
California Authority of Racing Fairs (“CARF”)
1776 Tribute Road, Suite 150
Sacramento, CA 95815

RECITALS:

A. CARF is a racing association licensed to operate Arabian, Thoroughbred, and
Quarter horse racing at the following locations: Alameda County Fair

(Pleasanton, CA), California State Fair (Sacramento, CA), Humboldt County Fair
(Ferndale, CA), The Big Fresno Fair (Fresno, CA). ARAC, TOC, and PCQHRA
represent the collective interests of all California Arabian, Thoroughbred, and

Quarter horse owners.

B. CARF, ARAC, TOC, and PCQHRA desire to enter into an agreement in which
new rules and regulations are approved in order for CARF to be consistent with

International Federation of Horse Racing Authorities (“IFHA™), and this

CALIFORNIA AUTHORITY O F R A G TN G

FAIRS

Back to Top



agreement is intended to satisfy the requirements set forth in Rule 1581 of the
California Horse Racing Board Rules.

The purpose of this agreement is to protect the safety and welfare of horses and
riders and to enhance public confidence in the integrity of the sport of Arabian,
Thoroughbred. and Quarter horse racing.

AGREEMENT:

1.

No horse, of any age, shall be permitted to race in a “Stakes Race” conducted by
any of the Racing Associations from January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021
with any race-day medication, which includes, without limitation, the use of
furosemide (e.g. Lasix). A “Stakes Race” shall include all graded stakes races,
listed stakes races, overnight stakes races, state-bred stakes races, and restricted
stakes races.

Every horse within the enclosure and every horse at a CARF auxiliary training
facility is subject to out-of-competition testing (“OOCT”) by CARF veterinary
professionals and no owner, trainer or other person having the care of a horse
shall refuse to submit such for testing.

All parties agree to strict limitations on the use of any analgesic and anti-
inflammatory medications during racing and training.

Joint Injections. No horse, of any age, shall be permitted to race at a CARF
facility if it has received an intra-articular joint injection as follows:

a. Within fourteen (14) days of race day if such injection is for any joint
other than any of the metacarpophalangeal or metacarpophalangeal joints.

b. Within thirty (30) days of race day if such injection is performed on any
metacarpophalangeal or metacarpophalangeal joint. Additionally, no
horse shall be permitted to have a timed work for ten (10) days after
receiving a corticosteroid intra-articular joint injection in any of the
metacarpophalangeal or metacarpophalangeal joints.

No horse which has been administered a non-steroidal anti-inflammatory
medication within the previous 48 hours shall participate in a race at a CARF
facility or a recorded work at a CARF facility or any of its auxiliary training
facilities. All parties agree OOCT may be conducted to verify compliance.

A commitment to continuing collaboration for improving the safety and welfare
of horses and riders.

The parties will file this agreement with the California Horse Racing Board
(*CHRB”) and support approval.

This Agreement covers CARF’s 2021 summer race meet (the “Meet”) and shall
expire on the last day that a Thoroughbred racehorse is permitted to be in a CARF
facility enclosure or at a CARF auxiliary training facility as part of the Meet.

Back to Top



California Authority of Racing Fairs
By%g g %Z/AQJ’QL

Larry Swartzlander
Executive Director

Dated: 6/1/21

Arabian Racing Association of
Califarnia

By:'%

P
Cory Soltau
President

Dated: 6/1/21

Thoroughbred Owners of California

By: /. /5//)?4‘,‘"

Pz

Mary Forney
Executive Director

Dated: 5/29/2021

Pacific Quarter Horse Racing
Association

B)/:/)%z_

Dino Perez
President

Dated:

C

Back to Top


Juliana
Stamp

Juliana
Stamp


Agenda Item 6
genda ftem Back to Top

STAFF ANALYSIS
DISCUSSION AND ACTION BY THE BOARD REGARDING THE REQUEST FOR AN
EXTENSION TO OBTAIN A FIRE CLEARANCE APPROVAL FOR THE SAN LUIS REY
DOWNS AUXILIARY TRAINING FACILITY, PURSUANT TO CHRB RULE 1927, FIRE
PREVENTION.

Regular Board Meeting
June 16, 2021

ISSUE:

The San Luis Rey Downs (SLRD) auxiliary training facility is an auxiliary site where horses
are stabled for various horse racing associations that conduct race meetings in California.
As such, pursuant to California Horse Racing Board (Board) Rule 1927, Fire Prevention,
a written clearance from the fire authority having jurisdiction, stating that an inspection
has been made of the site and that the facilities conform with a reasonable standard of
fire safety, must be filed with the Board prior to the start of each said race meeting,
whereby the inspection shall have been made within 45 days prior to the commencement
of the meet. The Stronach Group (TSG), which owns the SLRD, has submitted a request
to the Board for an extension to meet certain requirements prescribed in Board Rule 1927
regarding the reasonable standard of fire safety. TSG also requests an exemption from
the 45-day provision in Board Rule 1927.

ANALYSIS:

Pursuant to Board Rule 1927, before a license to conduct a horse racing meeting is
granted to an association, the association must provide a written clearance from the fire
authority having jurisdiction, stating that an inspection has been made of the inclosure
and any additional location where any excess number of horses will be stalled. Various
racing associations use SLRD as an additional location for an excess number of horses
to be stalled. Therefore, in addition to providing a written fire clearance to the Board for
the inclosure where the association will be conducting its race meet, these associations
must also provide one for SLRD. However, because SLRD is owned by TSG, TSG is
responsible for obtaining the required fire clearance.

Board Rule 1927 sets forth certain requirements that constitute a “reasonable standard
of fire safety.” These requirements include, but are not limited to, facilities used for
stabling of horses or human habitation being equipped with an automatic sprinkler system
and an automatic fire alarm system, as well patrol of said facilities by a watchman during
hours or darkness. Board Rule 1927 also states that any association whose stable area,
including any additional location where any excess number of horses will be stables, does
not meet the reasonable standard of fire safety may petition the Board for an extension
of time within which to comply with the rule. At the August 2020 meeting, the Board
approved an extension for TSG through the end of July 2021 to complete the installation
of a sprinkler system and fire alarm system for its “historic” barns, which are distinct from
its new barns, in order for SLRD to be in compliance with Board Rule 1927. Due to


http://www.chrb.ca.gov/query_rules_and_regulations_database.asp?form_query_action=display_rule&form_query_rule_number=1927&form_query_rule_title=Fire+Prevention%2E&form_query_article=Fire+Prevention%2E&form_query_article_index=19&form_query_argument=1927

Back to Top

COVID-19, the update of the barns has been significantly delayed and TSG is requesting
an additional extension to complete the project in order to come into compliance. In the
attached letter, TSG requests an extension until the end of April 2022. Board Rule 1927
provides that, in reviewing such a request or petition, the Board shall take into
consideration any written recommendation from the fire authority having jurisdiction, as
well as other pertinent matters, recognizing that the physical structure of each racing
inclosure is unique and has its own particular problems.

Board Rule 1927 also requires that the inspection be completed within 45 days prior to
the beginning of the race meet. TSG states that the fire authority having jurisdiction over
SLRD performed an inspection on July 31, 2020, and is attached for reference. TSG
requests an exemption from the 45-day requirement. Without an exemption, any race
meets commencing more than 45 days after the inspection date would require that
another fire inspection be completed. Certain fire authorities have expressed that multiple
inspections at a single site in a one-year period are difficult or not possible due to limited
time and resources, especially during the current health crisis.

BACKGROUND:

Business and Professions Code (BPC) section 19420 provides that jurisdiction and
supervision over meetings in California where horse races with wagering on their results
are held or conducted, and over all persons or things having to do with the operation of
such meetings, is vested in the Board. BPC section 19440 states that the Board shall
have all powers necessary and proper to enable it to carry out fully and effectually the
purposes of this chapter. Responsibilities of the Board shall include adopting rules and
regulations for the protection of the public and the control of horse racing and pari-mutuel
wagering. BPC section 19460 provides that all licenses granted under this chapter shall
contain such conditions as are deemed necessary or desirable by the Board for the best
interests of horse racing and the purposes of this chapter. Board Rule 1927 provides that
applicants for license to conduct a horse racing meeting in California shall first make
provisions for fire prevention and protection and submit to the Board a written clearance
from a fire authority having jurisdiction, stating that an inspection has been made of both
the inclosure and any additional locations where any excess number of horses will be
stalled, that the inspection ensures that the fire safety provisions meet the Board’s
standards described in Board Rule 1927, and that the inspection was conducted within
45 days of the commencement of the race meeting.

RECOMMENDATION:

This item is presented for Board discussion and action.


http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&sectionNum=19420.
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&sectionNum=19440.
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&sectionNum=19460.

Back to Top

Z gu o)

SAN LUIS REY

TRAINING CENTER

June 3, 2021

Mr. Scott Chaney

Executive Director

California Horse Racing Board
1010 Hurley Way, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95825

Re: San Luis Rey Training Center — Rule 1927 Exemption Request

Dear Mr. Chaney,

San Luis Rey Training Center (“SLR”) is unique in that its barn area has two different
types and ages of barns—the “historic” barns and the new barns.

As discussed with the California Horse Racing Board (“CHRB™) last year, the new barns
constructed in the last few years can house approximately 200 horses. These barns have an
automatic sprinkler system and a fire bell. Due to the proximity of the barns to the guard house
(and the on-duty guard being able to call 911 in event of a fire), both the local building inspector
and fire department approved these barns having a fire bell rather than an automatic fire alarm
system. There is 24/7 coverage in the guard house. The sprinkler system and alarm are tested
annually.

We have previously noted that the historic barns at SLR do not have a sprinkler system or
fire alarm/bell. The process to add a sprinkler system and fire alarm system to already existing
structures is a lengthy process. In the July 31, 2020 letter to the CHRB we noted that we were
hopeful that we would be able complete the work by the end of July 2021, but would periodically
update CHRB staff on the progress of the project and notify CHRB staff if we encountered any
issues that would cause the project to not be finished by the target date. The CHRB granted SLR
an extension, through July 31, 2021, to complete the installation of the sprinkler system and fire
alarm system to our historic barns.

We have been in periodic contact with CHRB staff to give them updates on the progress.
Unfortunately, while work has now commenced on the installation of the sprinkler system and
fire alarm, it will not be completed by July 31, 2021. The completion of the work has been
significantly delayed due to Covid-19. The contractors involved in this project were either
completely shut down or short staffed to a point that didn’t allow them to complete an
installation of this scope. Additionally, the sprinkler materials needed for this project were in
short supply during the pandemic as suppliers were also shut down.

1



Back to Top

The revised target date for completion of the work as it relates to the barns and living
quarters is January 31, 2022. The revised target completion date of the entire project (which
includes the dining hall, bathrooms, mechanic shop, and storage) is April 30, 2022. We will
continue to periodically update CHRB staff on the progress of the project and notify CHRB staff
if we encounter any issues that would cause the project to be further delayed.

Under CHRB Rule 1927, we request an extension, through January 31, 2022, to complete
the installation of the sprinkler system and fire alarm system to our historic barns.

The local fire department having jurisdiction over SLR performed an inspection on
July 31, 2020 with no violations and the clearance letter was provided to the CHRB staff. We
have requested a reinspection, which will be completed as soon as possible, but the county has
yet to schedule an appointment. In the interim, we request an exemption from the requirement in
Rule 1927 that the fire inspection be completed within 45 days of the start of the meet. County
fire officials have stated they wouldn’t typically reinspect our facility multiple times per year
given their current resources.

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Nate Newby



Back to Top
North County Fire Protection District

330 S. Main Ave.
Fallbrook, CA 92028
(760) 723-2010

Friday, 31 July, 2020

Attn: Kevin Habell Property Address:
San Luis Rey Training Center
5772 CAMINO DEL REY 5772 CAMINO DEL REY

BONSALL, CA 92003
BONSALL, CA 92003

Re: Initial - Fire & Life Safety on July 31 2020

NOTICE OF INSPECTION -
COMPLETED

CONGRATULATIONS, your Fire and Life Safety Inspection has satisfactorily been completed and
no violations were noted at this time. The North County Fire Protection District would like to thank you
for making fire and life safety a priority.

If you have any questions regarding our Fire and Life Safety Inspection program, please contact the
Fire Prevention Bureau at: (760) 723-2010.

Inspector: Property Representative:
e ;} N Etla ——— Moy K =4 |
FFP David Moore, Jr. Kevin Habell

bmoore@ncfire.org

CA-37075/ 1028739 / 380140


mailto:bmoore@ncfire.org

Agenda Item 7

STAFF ANALYSIS
DISCUSSION AND ACTION BY THE BOARD REGARDING APPROVAL OF AN
AGREEMENT, PURSUANT TO CHRB RULE 1581, RACING SECRETARY TO
ESTABLISH CONDITIONS, BETWEEN THE DEL MAR THOROUGHBRED CLUB
(DMTC) AND THE THOROUGHBRED OWNERS OF CALIFORNIA (TOC),
REGARDING ENTRY CONDITIONS AND SPECIFIED DRUG SUBSTANCES OR
MEDICATIONS TO BE IMPLEMENTED BY THE DMTC AT THE DEL MAR
RACETRACK.

Regular Board Meeting
June 16, 2021

ISSUE:

California Horse Racing Board (Board) Rule 1581, Racing Secretary to Establish
Conditions, allows the racing secretary to establish the conditions for any race run during
the race meeting. In instances where the racing secretary wishes to set a condition
based on a participating horse’s use or non-use of a drug substance or medication, or
the presence or lack of presence of a drug substance or medication, the association
must first obtain approval from the horseman’s organization and the Board. Beginning
in March 2019, all racing associations in California have come to the Board seeking
approval of agreements with the respective horseman’s organizations involving the
mandatory stand down for intra articular injections.

BACKGROUND:

Business and Professions Code (BPC) section 19440 provides that the Board shall have
all powers necessary and proper to enable it to carry out fully and effectually the
purposes of the Horse Racing Law. Responsibilities of the Board shall include, but not
be limited to, adopting rules and regulations for the protection of the public and the
control of horse racing and pari-mutuel wagering. BPC section 19590 states the Board
shall adopt rules governing, permitting, and regulating wagering on horse races under
the system known as the pari-mutuel method of wagering. BPC section 19562 provides
that the Board may prescribe rules, regulations and conditions, consistent with the
provisions of this chapter, under which all horse races with wagering on their results
shall be conducted in California.

ANALYSIS:

The ability to set conditions on a race is governed by Board Rule 1581. Rule 1581
states:

Back to Top


http://www.chrb.ca.gov/query_rules_and_regulations_database.asp?form_query_action=display_rule&form_query_rule_number=1581&form_query_rule_title=Racing+Secretary+to+Establish+Conditions%2E&form_query_article=Racing+Secretary+to+Establish+Conditions%2E&form_query_article_index=7&form_query_argument=1581
http://www.chrb.ca.gov/query_rules_and_regulations_database.asp?form_query_action=display_rule&form_query_rule_number=1581&form_query_rule_title=Racing+Secretary+to+Establish+Conditions%2E&form_query_article=Racing+Secretary+to+Establish+Conditions%2E&form_query_article_index=7&form_query_argument=1581
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&sectionNum=19440.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&sectionNum=19590.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&sectionNum=19562.

The racing secretary may establish the conditions for any race, the allowances
or handicaps to be established or specific races, the procedures for the
acceptance of entries and declarations, and such other conditions as are
necessary to provide and conduct the association’s race meeting. Any conditions
that are based on a participating horse’s use or non-use of a drug substance or
medication, or the presence or lack of presence of a drug substance or
medication in a biological test sample taken from a participating horse, shall be
agreed to in advance in writing by the acknowledged horsemen’s organization,
which, in the case of Thoroughbreds, shall be the owner’s organization, and
approved by the Board before entries are taken for the race. If such conditions
are based on the results of a biological test sample other than an official test
sample collected by the CHRB, a description of the testing methods and
procedures the racing association or fair will use to collect and analyze the
biological test samples shall be submitted to the Board for approval. For
purposes of this section “biological test sample” refers to any biological sample,
including but not limited to, blood, urine, hair, tissue, or saliva, that is taken from
a horse.

Pursuant to Board Rule 1581, any condition involving medication must be agreed to by
the horsemen’s organization, which in the case of thoroughbred racing, is the TOC.
Additionally, any agreement must be approved by the Board before entries are taken.
Here, the Del Mar Thoroughbred Club (DMTC) has entered into an agreement with the
Thoroughbred Owners of California (TOC) to prohibit a horse from entering a stakes
race conducted with any race-day medication, including furosemide, prohibits a horse
from racing for 14 days if it has received a joint injection, prohibits a horse from
performing a timed workout within 10 days of a joint injection, and prohibits a horse from
racing for 30 days if it has received an injection in a metacarpophalangeal or
metacarpophalangeal joint.

RECOMMENDATION:

This item is presented for Board discussion and action.

Back to Top



Back to Top
AGREEMENT

EFFECTIVE DATE: April 6, 2021

PARTIES:

Thoroughbred Owners of California (“TOC”)
285 Huntington Drive
Arcadia, CA 91007

and

Del Mar Thoroughhred Club (“DMTC”)
2260 Jimmy Durante Blvd.
Del Mar, CA 92014

RECITALS:

A. DMTCis aracing association licensed to operate Thoroughbred horse racing at the Del
Mar Race Track located in Del Mar, California. TOC represents the collective interests
of all California Thoroughbred owners.

B. DMTC and TOC desire to enter into an agreement in which new rules and regulations
are approved in order for DMTC to be consistent with International Federation of
Horse Racing Authorities (“IFHA”), and this agreement is intended to satisfy the
requirements set forth in Rule 1581 of the California Horse Racing Board Rules.

C. The purpose of this agreement is to protect the safety and welfare of horses and riders
and to enhance public confidence in the integrity of the sport of Thoroughbred racing.

AGREEMENT:

1. No horse, of any age, shall be permitted to race in a “Stakes Race” conducted by any
of the Racing Associations from January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021 with any
race-day medication, which includes, without limitation, the use of furosemide (e.g.
Lasix). A “Stakes Race” shall include all graded stakes races, listed stakes races,
overnight stakes races, state-bred stakes races, and restricted stakes races.

2. Every horse within the enclosure and every horse ata DMTC auxiliary training facility

is subject to out-of-competition testing (OOCT) by DMTC veterinary professionals and
1




Back to Top

no owner, trainer or other person having the care of a horse shall refuse to submit
such for testing.

3. All parties agree to strict limitations on the use of any analgesic and anti-inflammatory
medications during racing and training.

4. Any horse that has received an Intra-articular treatment within fourteen (14) days of
the race is ineligible to start at Del Mar. In addition, any horse that has received an
Intra-articular treatment of cortisone into fetlock joints with thirty (30) days is
ineligible to start. In the aforementioned Race Day Medication Agreement there is
also a 10-day work stand down for cortisone into the fetlock joint.

5. No horse which has been administered a non-steroidal or steroidal (corticosteroid)
anti-inflammatory medication within the previous 48 hours shall participate in a
recorded work at Del Mar or any of its auxiliary training facilities. All parties agree
OOCT may be conducted to verify compliance.

6. A commitment to continuing collaboration for improving the safety and welfare of
horses and riders.

7. The parties will file this agreement with the California Horse Racing Board (“CHRB")
and support approval.

8. This Agreement covers DMTC’s 2021 summer and fall race meets (the “Meets”) and
shall expire on the last day that a horse is permitted to be in the Del Mar enclosure or
at a DMTC auxiliary training facility as part of the Meets.

Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Thoroughbred Owners of California
By: _ By:

Josh Rubinstein Greg Avioli

President and COO President and CEO
Dated: 4/6/21 Dated: 4/6/21




Agenda Item 8

STAFF ANALYSIS

June 16, 2021

Back to Top

DISCUSSION AND ACTION BY THE BOARD ON THE APPLICATION FOR LICENSE
TO CONDUCT A HORSE RACING MEETING OF THE DEL MAR THOROUGHBRED
CLUB AT THE DEL MAR RACETRACK, COMMENCING JULY 7, 2021, AND

CONTINUING THROUGH SEPTEMBER 7, 2021

The Del Mar Thoroughbred Club (DMTC) has filed its application to conduct a
Thoroughbred horse racing meeting at the Del Mar Racetrack as follows:

e July 7 through September 7, 2021, racing 31 days, three more than proposed for its
summer 2020 meet. DMTC proposes to race a total of 283 races, or 9.13 races per
day. In 2020, DMTC ran 10.44 races per day with an average of 8.35 runners per race.
The average daily purse for the 2020 meet was $631,663. The estimated average
daily purse for this proposed meet is $626,398.

e The race dates proposed are within the dates allocated by the Board.

July 2021 August 2021

Sun |Mon| Tue |Wed| Thu | Fri | Sat Sun |Mon | Tue |Wed| Thu | Fri | Sat

1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 |11 (12 (13 |14
1 |12 |13 (14 |15 |16 |17 15 |16 |17 |18 (19 |20 |21
18 |19 |20 |21 |22 |23 |24 22 23 (24 |25 |26 |27 |28
25 (26 (27 (28 |29 |30 |31 29 30 (31

September 2021
Sun |Mon | Tue |Wed| Thu | Fri | Sat
1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 |11

12 (13 (14 |15 |16 |17 |18

19 20 |21 |22 |23 |24 |25

26 |27 (28 |29 |30

e Racing four days per week, Thursday through Sunday; exceptions: weeks 1 and 2,
Friday through Sunday, and week 8, Thursday through Monday. Seven races per day
Thursday, eight races on Fridays (except Opening Day, 10 races), 11 races on
Saturdays, nine to 11 races on Sundays, and 10 races on Closing Day/Labor Day
(Monday).



Back to Top

Racing concurrently with the dates allocated to Pacific Racing Association Il, Los
Alamitos Quarter Horse Racing Association, Alameda County Fair, California
Exposition and State Fair, Sonoma County Fair, and Humboldt County Fair.

First post 2:00 p.m. Thursday, Saturday, Sunday, Opening Day (Friday, July 16), and
Closing Day (Monday, September 6); 4:00 p.m. Fridays, except for 3:30 p.m. on
August 27 and September 3.

Wagering program will use CHRB and ARCI rules.

DMTC requests approval to use a modified version of ARCI rule for its Pick 6 contest.
DMTC also requests approval to allow patrons to select an alternate wagering interest
in any of the Pick (n) contests in the event that their selected wagering interest is
scratched.

Alternate Wagering Interest

DMTC requests approval to allow patrons to select an alternate wagering interest
in any of the Pick (n) contests in the event that their selected wagering interest is
scratched. Pursuant to ARCI 004-105(G)(4), the Association must receive
authorization from the Board to allow patrons to select an alternate wagering
interest.

Pick 6

DMTC requests approval to use an alternative definition of “unique” to govern the
Pick 6 payout. Pursuant to ARCI 004-105(G)(2)(g), DMTC is required to identify
which definition of “unique” under ARCI 004-105(G)(16)(b) it will use to govern the
Pick 6. Under the ARCI Model Rules, there are two possible definitions for
“‘unique.” DMTC is requesting approval to use an alternative definition that is not
referenced in the ARCI Model Rules or in the CHRB’s rules. Under ARCI 004-
105(G)(1), the Board has the authority to approve the proposed DMTC definition.

DMTC also requests approval of a change to the ARCI Model Rules during
instances of late surface changes. DMTC requests that on any day in which there
is a surface change after the Pick 6 pool has closed, the races are declared a “Win
All,” not a “no contest.” Also, DMTC requests that on any day in which there is a
surface change after the Pick 6 pool has closed, the payout distribution in ARCI
004-105(G)(2)(g) be used. If there is no unique ticket, the entire day’s net pool is
to be paid to ticketholders who correctly selected the most first-place finishers in
the Pick 6 contests. Under ARCI-005-105(G)(1), the Board has the authority to
approve these requested changes.

e Additional wagering information:
e Early bird wagering July 16—September 6, 2021, 9:00 a.m. every day except
Mondays, Tuesdays, and Wednesdays.



Back to Top

e $2 Win, Place, Show parlay available on every eligible race. Wager must

combine at least two but not more than six races.

$2 Quinella on all eligible races.

$1 Exacta on all eligible races.

$0.50 Trifecta on all eligible races.

$.10 Superfecta on all eligible races.

$2 Rolling Daily Double; requests 20% takeout rate.

$0.50 Rolling Pick 3 on all eligible races.

$1 Place Pick All.

$0.50 Pick 4 on races 2-5; no consolation; 100% payout; alternate runner

provision.

e $0.50 Pick 4 on last four races; no consolation; 100% payout; alternate runner
provision.

e $0.50 Pick 5 on first five races; 100% payout to all tickets selecting five winners;
no consolation; 100% carryover to next day’s Early Pick 5 if no ticket has five
winners; alternate runner provision; requests 14% takeout rate.

e $0.50 Pick 5 on last five races; 100% payout to all tickets selecting five winners;
no consolation; 100% carryover to next day’s Late Pick 5 if no ticket has five
winners; alternate runner provision.

e $0.20 Pick 6 on last six live races each day. If no unique ticket, 70% will be paid
to minor pool, and 30% will be added to major pool carryover.

e $0.50 Super High 5 on last race of day; 100% payout of all tickets selecting five
winners; no consolation; 100% carryover to next race day Super High 5, if
applicable.

e Mandatory Pick 6 Jackpot Payout on August 21, 2021 (Pacific Classic Day) and
on September 6, 2021 (Closing Day).

Advance Deposit Wagering (ADW) providers are Churchill Downs Technology
Initiatives Company dba BetAmerica, dba TwinSpires; NYRABets, LLC (NYRA Bets);
ODS Technologies, L.P. dba TVG Network; Watchandwager.com, LLC (Watch and
Wager); and XpressBet, LLC (Xpressbet).

Pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section 19604, specific provisions must
be met before an ADW provider can accept wagers.

Summary of Business and Professions Code Section 19604

To accept wagers on races conducted in California from a resident of California:

e The ADW provider must be licensed by the Board.

e A written agreement allowing those wagers exists with the racing association or
fair conducting the races on which the wagers are made.

e The agreement shall have been approved in writing by the horsemen’s
organization responsible for negotiating purse agreements for the breed on which
the wagers are made.



https://Watchandwager.com

Back to Top

To accept wagers on races conducted outside of California from a resident of

California:

e The ADW provider must be licensed by the Board.

e There is a hub agreement between the ADW provider and one or both of (i) one or
more racing associations or fairs that together conduct no fewer than five weeks
of live racing on the breed on which wagering is conducted during the calendar
year during which the wager is placed, and (ii) the horsemen’s organization
responsible for negotiating purse agreements for the breed on which wagering is
conducted.

e Documents received in compliance with Business and Professions Code Section
19604:
e ADW agreements with BetAmerica/TwinSpires, TVG Network, Watch and Wager,
and Xpressbet valid through end of proposed race meet.
e Thoroughbred Owners of California approval of the ADW agreements.

e Simulcasting conducted with out-of-state racing jurisdictions pursuant to Business and
Professions Code Section 19602 and with authorized locations throughout California.

e Requests that Jennifer Paige be appointed horse identifier, pursuant to CHRB Rule
1525, Racing Officials Appointed by the Board.

e A track safety inspection has been requested and will be completed before the
beginning of the race meet.

¢ Inspection of backstretch worker housing has been requested and will be completed
before the beginning of the race meet.

e Los Alamitos is listed as an auxiliary stabling site. As such, a fire clearance in
compliance with Board Rule 1927 is required. The fire clearance for Los Alamitos was
approved at the May 2021 regular Board meeting.

e DMTC has agreed to adopt the Board’s Inclement Weather Policy, as posted on the
Racing Safety page of the Board’s website [letter submitted].

Specific information still needed to complete this application includes:

1. Updated COVID-19 protocols. [Will be submitted prior to July 7, 2021.]

2. Signed 2021 ADW agreement with NYRA Bets. (11B)

3. DMTC fire clearance in compliance with Board Rule 1927. (16H) [Inspection
scheduled for July 12, 2021].

4. Letter of request for exemption from 45-day provision in Board Rule 1927 for Santa
Anita fire clearance dated May 11, 2021. (16H)

5. Race meet agreement with California Thoroughbred Trainers. (23B)



Back to Top

Specific information that will need to be updated during the proposed meet includes:

1. San Luis Rey Downs (auxiliary stabling site) fire clearance in compliance with
Board Rule 1927 [valid through July 31, 2021]. (16H) [This matter will be
addressed as an agenda item prior to the hearing of the DMTC race meet
application.]

RECOMMENDATION:

If the application is considered for approval, staff recommends that it be approved
contingent upon receipt of all outstanding items prior to the start of the proposed race
meet.



STATE OF CALIFORNIA

CALIFORNIA HORSE RACING BOARD

APPLICATION FOR LICENSE TO CONDUCT A HORSE RACING MEETING

CHRB-17 (Rev 1/16)

Back to Top

Application is hereby made to the California Horse Racing Board (CHRB) for a license to conduct a horse
racing meeting in accordance with the California Business and Professions Code, Chapter 4, Division 8, Horse
Racing Law, and the California Code of Regulations, Title 4, Division 4, CHRB Rules and Regulations.

1. APPLICANT ASSOCIATION

A. Name, mailing address, telephone, fax numbers, and the email address for associations contact

person:

Del Mar Thoroughbred Club

P.O. Box 700, Del Mar, CA 92014

Phone: 858-755-1141

Fax: 858-792-1477
Josh Rubinstein: josh@dmtc.com

B. Breed of horse:

C. Racetrack name: Del Mar Thoroughbred Club (DMTC)

B

X

QH

H

D. Attach a certified check payable to the Treasurer of the State of California in the amount of $10,000
as deposit for license fees pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19490. ON FILE

E. Was the association licensed to operate a race meeting prior to January 1, 2001?

Yes

X

No

If no, attach a surety bond in the amount of one hundred thousand dollars.

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: No application for a license to conduct a race meeting shall be granted unless the applicant has deposited
with the Board a surety bond in the amount of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000), or a greater amount, as determined by the
Board, which is sufficient to ensure payment of employee wages and benefits including, but not limited to, health, welfare, and
pension plans. The surety bond shall be maintained during the period of the meeting and for an additional period, as determined by
the Board, sufficient to assure that all payments are made. This subdivision does not apply to any person or association licensed to
operate a horse race meeting prior to January 1, 2001, which has conducted a race meeting in each of the immediate three previous
consecutive calendar years. The $100,000 surety bond amount may be increased to an amount determined by the Board at the time
the application is scheduled for hearing pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19464(b).

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Application must be filed not later than 90 days before the scheduled start date for the proposed meeting

pursuant to CHRB Rule 1433.

2.  DATES OF RACE MEETING

A. Inclusive dates allocated for the entire meeting: July 07 through September 07, 2021

B. Actual dates racing will be held: July 16 through September 06, 2021, racing every Thursday
through Sunday, as well as Monday (Labor Day, 9/6), with the exceptions of Week 1, 2 and 8.
Exceptions Week 1, racing three days (Friday 7/16, Saturday 7/17 and Sunday 7/18), Week 2

racing three days (Friday 7/23, Saturday 7/24 and Sunday 7/25). Exception Week 8, racing five
days (Thursday 9/2, Friday 9/3, Saturday 9/4, Sunday 9/5 and Monday 9/6). Dark 7/19-22,7/26-

28, 8/2-4, 8/9-11, 8/16-18, 8/23-25, 8/30-9/1.

Deposit received: Yes
Reviewed: RP

Application received: 4/7/2021

CHRB CERTIFICATION

Hearing date: 6/16/2021
Approved date:
License number:



mailto:josh@dmtc.com

Back to Top

CHRB-17 (Rev. 1/16)

C. Total number of days or nights of racing: 31 days

D. Days or nights of the week races will be held:

m]

Thurs, Fri, Sat, Sun X X | Other (specify) Monday (Labor Day) 9/6

E. Number of days or nights of racing per week: 4 days per week (exceptions Week 1 and Week 2,
3 days and Week 8, 5 days)

3.  RACING PROGRAM

A. Total number of races: 283

B. Number of races for each day or night: *

NUMBER OF
DAY DATES RACES
7/29, 8/5, 8/12, 8/19, 8/26,
THU -7 Races 9/2 42
7/23,7/30, 8/6, 8/13, 8/20,
FRI - 8 Races 8/27,9/3 56
7/17,17/24,7/31, 8/7, 8/14,
SAT - 11 Races 8/28,9/4 77
SAT - 11 Races 8/21 (Pacific Classic) 11
SUN - 9 Races 8/8, 8/15, 8/22, 8/29 36
SUN - 10 Races 7/25, 8/1,9/5 30
SUN - 11 Races 7/18 11
OPENING DAY 7/16 (FRIDAY) 10
CLOSING DAY/
LABOR DAY 9/6 (MONDAY) 10
TOTAL | 283 |

*DMTC reserves the right to change number of races based on horse availability
C. Total number of stakes races: 39 (34 stakes and 5 overnight stakes)

D. Attach alisting of all stakes races and indicate the date to be run and the added money or guaranteed
purse for each. Note the races that are designated for California-bred horses. EXHIBIT 1

1. Attach a listing of all stakes races for the past two race meetings. The information provided must
be for the same timeframe in which the association is applying. Include the date the stakes races
were run, and the added money or guaranteed purse for each. Note the races that were designated
for California-bred horses. EXHIBIT 1 (A)

2. Identify the stakes races listed under item D. that have been altered, added, or are new for the
current race meeting. Provide details regarding any alterations to the identified stakes races. (e.g.,
changes in the age, sex, eligibility, purse or substantial calendar changes). Two stakes have been
returned to the 2021 schedule - COUGAR 1II and DEL. MAR JUVENILE FILLIES TURF
(which was run in 2020 as an overnight stakes). Most stakes were raised from 2020 levels (see
listings). The SHARED BELIEF was shortened to One Mile from 1 1/16 Miles.




Back to Top

pasjuelens|000'00E$ sbuopng usnag Sp|0-1E8A-0M | 1°19) ALRINLNL ¥VIN 73a[vE 120z ‘90 dag “uopy
Pa’juelens|000°004$ [IETTENe) Sp|o-1eak-om J8N.L ITINIANF BVIN T3alee 120z '90 des "uopy
paajuEIEND|000°001$ (I ETENe) Sp|o-1eak-om} ‘sal||l4 J8N.1 S3ITTId FTNIANC AVIN T3d|z2E 120z ‘g0 deg "ung
pasjuelen[000°00£$ sbuoung usnag pio sieak om] ‘salliig (1"19) 31INVLINE3a ¥VIN 13A[LE 120Z ‘G0 des "ung
pesiueien[000°001$ sbuopng xis O Ui paiq ‘sp|o-Jesk-om] SIMVLS NIMOWS W.I|0E 1202 0 des 1es
pasjueiens[000°002$ (HUn1) seiN g/ L piemdn pue pjo sJeak 8aiy ‘saiew pue sa|ji] (Il "19) SaMVLS IIGVIN "D NHOr |62 1202 70 des jes
pasjuesens[000°002$ (Hnl) seIN /L L spjo-Jeak-sai1y | (1"19) Agy3a yvwW 13dlsz 120Z ¥0 des 1es
pasjueiens[000°001L$ sbuopng xiS VO ul paiq ‘plo sieah om ‘sal|iig SaMVLS NOILYOd SNO¥ANTD| /2 1202 €0 dos "4
pasjueIen|000°00L$ 3N BUQ Splo-leak-ea1y | SIMVLS 431739 AIUvHS |92 1202 ‘6¢ bny "ung
pasjuelens|000°002$ sbuojing uaneg pJemdn pue spjo-1eak-saiy | (Il 19) SaMVLS NING.0 Lvd|sz 1202 ‘gz bny ‘jes
PapPPY[000°08% 3lIN ®UQ| | 984 8duIs 0/0 |\ | 18 000°0S$ S/S WN ‘PIemdn pue pjo SIeak 8alu} ‘Salell pue sel|li] sayejg aye Ajiinbuel] | sayels wbiuiang 120z 'Lz bny "ug
Pasjueien9|000°001$ [N 1) sbuoung aal4 pJemdn pue spjo-lesk-aa1y | (Il "19) dvOIANVH HSV1d N33uD[vZ 1202 ‘¢z bny "ung
Pasjuesens|000°001$ ETENe) Plo sieak aaiy} 'sa|ji4 (Il 19) SIMVLS SaNId ATHUOL|EZ 1202 ‘Iz bny 1es
pasjuelen|000°00€$ [N ETTETe) piemdn pue spjo-Jeak-aa1y | (I 49) ITIW JvIN T13a|zz 120z ‘L2 bny jes
pasjueienS[000°00€$ (n1) san g/E L piemdn pue spjo-1esk-aa1y | (Il 19) dVOIANVH dVIN 73d|l2 120z ‘1z bny 1es
pasjuelens|000°00€$ (unl) sen g/1L 1 plo sieak a1y} ‘salii4 (1"19) sv0o ¥vIW 73aloz 1202 ‘12 Bny 1es
pasjuelens|000°05.$ SolIN ¥/1 L piemdn pue spjo-1esk-saiy | (1"19) 2ISSV1D 21410Vd DAL|6) 120z ‘Iz bny "1es
pasjuelenS|000°00+$ sbuopng z/1 9 psemdn pue pjo sieak saiy} 'sa;ew pue salfiid[ (il 19) dVOIGNVH OQuVNY3d OHONVY |8l 1202 ‘0z Bny "u4
pasjuesens|000°051$ (Hn1) sp 8uo V9 ui paiq ‘plemdn pue pjo siesk saiy} ‘'Selew pue saljjid SINMV.LS HOVId VNV10S|/ZL 120z ‘Gl bny "ung
Pappy ooo.owmw QL:.C S9N 8/E L U._N>>Q: pue p|jo siealk {aiyl ‘salew pue sal||i4 seyels D01 pue 1192]| saels ucm_c._w>o L2coc ..vF m:< ‘jeg
pasjueiens5[000°001$ sbuopnd g/} g V9 Ul paiq 'sp|o-Jesh-om] SINMV.LS NOLLYNAvyo|9l 120z "80 Bny “ung
pasjuelens|000°05+$ (Hn1) seIN 9L/LL Spjo-Jeak-sa1y | (11 19) SaMVLS VTI0r V1|51 120z 80 bny "ung
pasjuelens[000°002$ sbuoung xis spjo-1eak-om | (Il "19) SINVLS Tvd 1s3d|v} 120z 20 bny “1es
pasjuesens|000°002$ (UnL) seN 9/L | pJemdn pue pjo sieak @aiy} ‘'Seiew pue sajjig (I "19) dvOIANVH NOggId MOT13A[EL 120z 20 Bny “1es
paajueiens|000°002$ sbuopng xis Sp|o-Jeak-om} ‘sal||14 (11 "¥49) SaMV.LS OLNINHOS|Z1 120z 90 Bny "4
pasjueien 000001 $ sbuopngz/i g 9 ul paiq ‘sp|o-JesA-om ‘saljjid SINVIS va1D[LL 120z ‘S0 bny "nyL
pasjuelen[000°00€$ SaIN 9/ L pJemdn pue pjo sieak @aiy} ‘Seiew pue sal|jij (1"49) Sa)V.LS HOSYIH 1 INIWI1D[0} 1202 ‘10 bny "ung
pasueien[000°00€$ sBuoung xis piemdn pue spjo-ieak-aa1y | (I "19) sapv.LS A9SOND ONId|6 1202 “LE I "1BS
pasjuelens|000°S.1L$ sBuopng uanes WO Ul paiq ‘sp|o-leak-saiy SIMVLS vVIA A0O0D TvI|8 1202 ‘0€ N "4
pPeppy ooo.om% ,t_:_.C wmco_.:qn_ Al U._m>>n_: pue pjo sieak 2aly} ‘salew pue sal||i4 n—mu_—u:mI ..wﬁ:u>w_mﬁ sa)els ucm_:._m>0 [Aerd .mN np ‘ung
paajuelenS[000°05L$ (L) selN 9L/L L V9 Ul paiq ‘plemdn pue spjo-1eak-saiy | SINMV.LS .NINVI¥A VINJOLITVI [ 120Z ‘G2 Inf "ung
pas)uelens[000°00z$ (Hn1) 8l suo plo sieak saiy} 'saljjid (I "19) SIMV.LS ILNIWTTD NVS|9 1202 ¥ Inr 1eS
pasjuelen9|000°052$ (1UnL) seN 8/L | piemdn pue spjo-Jesh-saiy | (I 19) saMVLS avad 3iaa3|s 1202 e Inr 1es
pasjuelens|000°sLL$ sbuopn usnag V0 Ul paiq ‘pio seak sauy} ‘saljiid SIANMVLS LvIYL 1337d[v 1202 ‘€Z In "u4
PapPY[000°08$ (Hn1) 8 euo | Jaqwisidag ouis 0/0 |\ | ¥8 000°06$ S/S M/N ‘PiEmdn pue spjo-1eak-aa1y ] Sa)yels LXIIM| saxels WybluieAQ 1202 ‘8l Inr "ung
pasjueIen9[000°001$ S9N Z/L | piemdn pue spjo-1esk-aa.y | (Il 19) SaMVLS 11 ¥vON0I[E 1202 "8l Inf "ung
PepPPY[000°08% (Hn1) 8NN BUQ| 1 7des 30UIS 0/0 N 1 38 000°05$ S/S M/N ‘PJEMAN PUE P|O SIE0A 001U 'SIeW pue Saljid So)elg sejunsQ| sexels WbiusAg 1202 ‘Ll Inr .S
pasjuelens[000°052$ SS|IN 9L/L | piemdn pue spjo-ieaA-aa1y (I "19) dvDIANVH 0931d NVS|Z 1202 ‘L1 Inr “1es
pasjueiens[000°001$ (Hn1) 8N BuQ L20Z Ul 0/0 Nl | 18 000°05$ 0 S/S M/N ‘Splo-iesk-aa1yL SIMVLS FAISNVII0|L 1202 ‘9L Inf "4
anjeA 1LzozZ aouejsiq JuaAg # ajeq buiuuny

I 1I8IHX3 - 31NAIHIS SIAMV.LS ¥VIN T13a 1202




EXHIBIT 1 (A)

Back to Top

2021 2020 2019
Date 2021 Value Event Distance 2020 Value  |VALUE
16-Jul-21 $100,000{ Guar 1- OCEANSIDE STAKES Three-year-olds, N/W S/S of $50,000 at 1 M o/o in 2021 One Mile (Turf) $100,000|$100,000
17-Jul-21 $250,000| Guar 2. - SAN DIEGO HANDICAP (Gr. II) Three year-olds and upward 11/6 Miles $150,000($200,000
Fillies and mares, three-years-old and upward, N/W S/S $50,000 at 1M
17-Jul-21 $80,000/|Added |O: Stakes olo since Sept 1 One Mile (Turf) $75,000/$85,000
18-Jul-21 $100,000|Guar 3 - COUGAR Il STAKES (Gr. Ill) Three year-olds and upward 1 1/2 Miles $100,000
18-Jul-21 $80,000|/Added _[Wickerr Stakes Three-year-olds and upward, N/W S/S $50,000 at 1 M o/o since Sept 1 |One Mile (Turf) $75,000/$85,000
23-Jul-21 $175,000| Guar 4 - FLEET TREAT STAKES Fillies, three-years-olds, brad in CA Seven Furlongs $125,000/$150,000
24-Jul-21 $250,000|Guar 5 - EDDIE READ STAKES (Gr.ll) Three-years-old and upward 1 1/8 Miles (Turf) $200,000|$250,000
24-Jul-21 $200,000|Guar 6 - SAN CLEMENTE STAKES (Gr. Il) Fillies, three years old One Mile (Turf) $150,000($200,000
25-Jul-21 $150,000| Guar 7 - CALIFORNIA DREAMIN' STAKES Three-year-olds and upward, brad in CA 11/16 Miles (Turf) $125,000/$150,000
25-Jul-21 $80,000{Added | Daisycutter Handicap Fillies and mares, three-7/23/21 Five Furlongs (Turf) $75,000|$85,000
30-Jul-21 $175,000| Guar 8 - REAL GOOD DEAL STAKES Three;year-alds, bred in CA Seven Furlongs $125,000/$150,000
31-Jul-21 $300,000|Guar 9 - BING CROSBY STAKES (Gr. ) Three-year-olds and upward Six Furlongs $250,000/$300,000
1-Aug-21 $300,000|Guar 10 - CLEMENT L HIRSCH STAKES (Gr. |) Fillies and mares, three years old and upward 11/6 Miles $250,000/$300,000
5-Aug-21 $100,000|Guar 11- CTBA STAKES Fillies, two-year-olds, bred in CA 51/2 Furlongs $100,000{$100,000
6-Aug-21 $200,000{Guar 12 - SORRENTO STAKES (Gr. Il) Fillies, two-year-olds Six Furlongs $150,000{$200,000
7-Aug-21 $200,000|Guar 13 - YELLOW RIBBON HANDICAP (Gr. Il) Fillies and mares, three years old and upward 1 1/6 Miles (Turf) $150,000($200,000
7-Aug-21 $200,000{Guar 14 - BEST PAL STAKES (Gr. ll) Two-year-olds Six Furlongs $150,000/$200,000
8-Aug-21 $150,000|Guar 15 - LA JOLLA STAKES (Gr. lll) Three-year-olds 1 1/6 Miles (Turf) $125,000/$150,000
8-Aug-21 $100,000{Guar 16 - GRADUATION STAKES Two-year-olds, brad in CA 51/2 Furlongs $100,000{$100,000
14-Aug-21 $80,000/Added |CTT and TOC Stakes Fillies and mares, three years old and upward 1 3/8 Miles (Turf) $75,000|$85,000
15-Aug-21 $150,000{Guar 17 - SOLANA BEACH STAKES Fillies and mares, three years old and upward, brad in CA One Mile (Turf) $125,000{$150,000
20-Aug-21 $100,000| Guar 18 - RANCHO BERNARDO HANDICAP (Gr.lIl) Fillies and mares, three years old and upward 6 1/2 Furlongs $100,000/$100,000
21-Aug-21 $750,000|Guar 19 - TVG PACIFIC CLASSIC (Gr. 1) Three-year-olds and upward 1 1/4 Miles $500,000{$1,000,000
21-Aug-21 $300,000| Guar 20 - DEL MAR OAKS (Gr. 1) Fillies, three years old 1 1/8 Miles (Turf) $250,000|$300,000
21-Aug-21 $300,000(Guar 21 - DEL MAR HANDICAP (Gr. Il) Three-year-olds and upward 1 3/8 Miles (Turf) $200,000($250,000
21-Aug-21 $300,000|Guar 22 - DEL MAR MILE (Gr. Il) Three-year-olds and upward One Mile (Turf) $150,000{$200,000
21-Aug-21 $100,000|Guar 23 - TORREY PINES STAKES (Gr. lll) Fillies, three years old One Mile $100,000|$100,000
22-Aug-21 $100,000) Guar 24 - GREEN FLASH HANDICAP (Gr. 1ll) Three-year-olds and upward Five Furlongs (Turf) $100,000{$100,000
Fillies and mares, three years old and upward N/W S/S $50,000 at 1 M
27-Aug-21 $80,000/Added | Tranquility Lake Stakes olo since Feb 1 One Mile $75,000/$85,000
28-Aug-21 $200,000{Guar 25 - PAT O'BRIEN STAKES (Gr. Il) Three-year-olds and upward Seven Furlongs $150,000/$200,000
29-Aug-21 $100,000|Guar 26 - SHARED BELIEF STAKES Three-year-olds One Mile $100,000/$100,000
3-Sep-21 $100,000| Guar 27 - GENEROUS PORTION STAKES Fillies, two years old, bred in CA Six Furlongs $100,000{$100,000
4-Sep-21 $200,000|Guar 28 - DEL MAR DERBY (Gr. Il) Three-year-olds 1 1/8 Miles (Turf) $200,000/$250,000
4-Sep-21 $200,000|{Guar 29 - JOHN C. MABEE STAKES (Gr. Il) Fillies and mares, three-years-old and upward 1 1/8 Miles (Turf) $150,000)$200,000
4-Sep-21 $100,000{Guar 30 - I'M SMOKIN STAKES Two-year-olds, bred in CA Six Furlongs $100,000/$100,000
5-Sep-21 $300,000| Guar 31 - DEL MAR DEBUTANTE (Gr. 1) Fillies, two years old Seven Furlongs $250,000($300,000
5-Sep-21 $100,000) Guar 32 - DEL MAR JUVENILE FILLIES TURF Fillies, two-year-olds One Mile (Turf) $75,000/$100,000
6-Sep-21 $100,000|Guar 33 - DEL MAR JUVENILE TURF Two-year-olds One Mile (Turf) $100,000{$100,000
6-Sep-21 $300,000|Guar 34 - DEL MAR FUTURITY (Gr. 1) Two-year=olds Seven Furlongs $250,000)$300,000




EXHIBIT 2

POST TIMES FOR PROPOSED DAILY RACING PROGRAM

2021
RACE REGULAR FRIDAYS FRIDAYS
(Thurs, Sat & Sun (7/23, 7/30, 8/6, 8/13 8/20) . (8/27, 9/3)
Opening Day 7/16 and
Closing Day 9/6)
1st 2:00 p.m. 4:00 p.m. 3:30 p.m.
2nd 2:30 p.m. 4:30 p.m. 4:00 p.m.
3rd 3:00 p.m. 5:00 p.m. 4:30 p.m.
4 3:30 p.m. 5:30 p.m. 5:00 p.m.
5th 4:00 p.m. 6:00 p.m. 5:30 p.m.
6t 4:30 p.m. 6:30 p.m. '6:00 p.m.
7t 5:00 p.m. 7:00 p.m. 6:30 p.m.
gth 5:30 p.m. 7:30 p.m. '7:00 p.m.
gth * 6:00 p.m.
10t * 6:30 p.m.
12th * 7:00 p.m.

*On certain days to be determined

Back to Top




Back to Top
CHRB-17 (Rev. 1/16) 5

3. Identify the stakes races listed under item D.1. that have been dropped or deleted, and the reasons
the stakes were dropped or deleted. NONE

E.  Will provisions be made for owners and trainers to use their own registered colors?

x | Yes No If no, what racing colors are to be used:

F.  List all post times for the daily racing program: EXHIBIT 2

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Every licensee conducting a horse racing meeting shall each racing day provide for the running of at least
one race limited to California-bred horses, to be known as the "California-bred race," pursuant to CHRB Rule 1813. For
thoroughbred and quarter horse meetings, the total amount distributed for California-bred stakes races from the purse account,
including overnight stakes, shall not be less than 10% of the total amount distributed for all stakes races pursuant to Business and
Professions Code section 19568(b).

4. RACING ASSOCIATION

A. Associationis a: | x | Corporation (complete subsection C)

LLC (complete subsection D)

Other (specify, and complete subsection E)

B. Complete the applicable subsection and attached Addendum, Background Information and
Ownership. Full Disclosure Statement On-File with CHRB

C. CORPORATION

1. Registered name of the corporation: Del Mar Thoroughbred Club

2. State where incorporated: California

3. Registry or file number for the corporation: 559096

4.  Names of all officers and directors, titles, and the number of shares of the corporation held

by each:

David H. Batchelder Chairman of the Board 1 Share
Joseph W. Harper Director, & CEO 1"
Rollin W. Baugh Director 1"
James R. Buell Director 1"
Bo Derek Director 1"
Kosta Hronis Director 1"
Warner Lusardi Director 1"
Marie G. Moretti Director 1"
Jim Rome Director 1"
Martin J. Wygod Director 1"
Josh Rubinstein President & Chief Operating Officer 0
Michael R. Ernst Executive VP, Finance CFO 0
Thomas S. Robbins Executive VP, Racing 0
Craig A. Dado Executive VP, Chief Marketing Officer 0
Lynn Wright Senior VP and Controller 0
Ann Hall Senior VP, Operations & Administration 0
Sue Walls VP, Facilities 0

5. Names (true names) of all persons, other than the officers and directors listed above, that hold
5% or more of the outstanding shares in the corporation and the number of shares held by
each: None

6.  Number of outstanding shares in the corporation: 10



Back to Top
CHRB-17 (Rev. 1/16) o

7. Are the shares listed for public trading? Yes x | No
If yes, on what exchange and how is the stock listed:
8.  Name of the custodian of the list of shareholders and/or the transfer agent for the share
holdings of the corporation: Michael R. Ernst
9.  If more than 50% of the shares are held by a parent corporation or are paired with any other
corporation or entity, give the name of the parent and/or paired corporation or entity: None
A. Is parent and/or paired corporation or entity a publically traded or privately held
company that guarantees the obligation of the applicant? H no, proceed to section F.
If yes, answer questions 10-17. N/A  Yes No
10.  Registered name of the corporation: I:I I:I
11.  State where incorporated: N/A
12.  Registry or file number for the corporation: N/A
13. Names of all officers and directors, titles, and the number of shares of the corporation held
by each: N/A
14. Names (true names) of all persons, other than the officers and directors listed above, that hold
5% or more of the outstanding shares in the corporation and the number of shares held by

each: N/A
15.  Number of outstanding shares in the corporation: N/A
16.  Are the shares listed for public trading? N/A Yes No

If yes, on what exchange and how is the stock listed:
17. Name of the custodian of the list of shareholders and/or the transfer agent for the share
holdings of the corporation: N/A

D. LLC N/A
1.  Registered name of the LLC:
2. State where articles of organization are filed:
3. Registry or file number for the LLC:
4.  Attach a list of the names of all members (including individuals (true names), corporations,

other LLCs and or foreign entities), titles, and the number of shares of the LLC held by each:

5. Are the shares listed for public trading? Yes [ | No [ |
If yes, on what exchange and how the stock is listed:

6. If more than 50% of the shares are held by a parent corporation or are paired with any other

corporation or entity, give the name of the parent and/or paired corporation or entity:

A. Is parent and/or paired entity either a publically traded or privately held company that
guarantees the obligation of the applicant? If no, proceed to section F. If yes, answer
questions 7-12.  Yes [ | No [ ]

Registered name of the LLC/Corporation:

State where articles of organization are filed:

Registry or file number for the LLC:

Attach a list of the names (true names) of all members (members may include individuals,

corporations other LLCs and foreign entities), titles, and the number of shares of the LLC

held by each:

11.  Are the shares listed for public trading? Yes No I:I

12.  Ifyes, on what exchange and how the stock is listed:

,_
S o >

E. OTHER N/A

1. Name(s) of partners/sole proprietor:
2. Ifa partnership, attach partnership agreement.



Back to Top
CHRB-17 (Rev. 1/16) 5

F.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION *

1. Attach the most recent audited annual financial statement or financial report for the applicant.
The financial statement or financial report shall include all relevant financial information
specific to the applicant including: ON FILE

e Statement of Financial Position: also referred to as a balance sheet. Statement should
report on applicant’s assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities and ownership equity as of
the date of the prepared statement.

e Statement of Comprehensive Income: also referred to as Profit and Loss (“P&L”)
Statement. Statement should include report on applicant’s income, expenses, and profits.

e Profit and Loss statement for prior two years race meeting and Profit and Loss statement
for projected year race meeting.

e Statement of Changes in Equity: to include the changes of the applicants’ equity through
the reporting period.

e Statement of Cash Flows: to include a report of the applicant’s cash flow activity,
particularly its operating investing and financing activities during the reporting period.

e Copy of a report made during the preceding 12 months to shareholders in the corporation
and/or the Securities and Exchange Commission and/or the California Corporations
Commission.

*NOTICE TO APPLICANT: The financial information provided pursuant to subsection (F) above is exempt from
disclosure pursuant to Government Code section 6254(k) and non-disclosable to the public.

G. MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

1. Name and title of the managing officer and/or general manager of the association and the
name and title of all department managers and staff, other than those listed in 13B, who will
be listed in the official program:

Josh Rubinstein President, COO
Michael R. Ernst Executive VP, Finance and Administration/CFO
Thomas S. Robbins Executive VP, Racing & Industry Relations

Craig A. Dado Executive VP, Chief Marketing Officer

Ann Hall Sr. Vice President, Operations & Administration
Lynn Wright Sr. Vice President and Controller

Sue Walls Vice President, Facilities

David Jerkens Racing Secretary

Mac McBride Director of Media

Cathy Arneel Director of Group Sales

Paul Porter Director of Simulcasting

Walker McBride Director of Sponsorship and Digital Media
William D. Navarro Director of Mutuels
Nancy Bonforte Director of Turf Club

Kim Jacobson Director of Risk Management

Trevor Denman Public Address Announcer

Dennis Moore Director of Track Maintenance

Leif Dickinson Turf Course / Grounds Superintendent
Chris Bahr Director of Events and Promotions
Ken West Director of Plant and Purchasing

2. Name and title of the person(s) authorized to receive notices on behalf of the association and
the mailing and email address of such person(s).



Back to Top
CHRB-17 (Rev. 1/16) v

Josh Rubinstein — President
PO Box 700, Del Mar, CA 92014
josh@dmtc.com

5. TAKE OUT PERCENTAGE

1. If this is a thoroughbred race meeting, will the percentage deducted for any type of wager be
adjusted pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19601.01? If no, proceed to
subsection 6. If yes, identify the wager and the proposed takeout percentage.

Yes X No

Wager(s) to be adjusted: S0¢PNP / Players Pick Five Wager — 14%
Proposed percentage: $2 Rolling Daily Double — 20%

A. Attach copy of written notice requesting the proposed takeout adjustment, the proposed
percentage and the wager(s) affected. The notice must include the written agreement of the
thoroughbred association and the horsemen’s organization for the meeting of the thoroughbred
association accepting the wager. EXHIBIT 3

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19601.01, notwithstanding any other provision of
law, a thoroughbred association or fair, upon the filing of a written notice with, and approval by, the Board specifying the percentage
to be deducted, may deduct from the total amount handled in the pari-mutuel pool for any type of wager an amount of not less than
10 percent nor more than 25 percent. The written notice shall include the written agreement of the thoroughbred association or fair
and the horsemen's organization for the meeting of the thoroughbred association or fair accepting the wager. The established
percentage to be deducted shall remain in effect until the filing of a subsequent notice with, and approval by, the Board, unless
otherwise specified in the notice.

6. HANDLE HISTORY

1. Complete the table below providing the last five years of handle and attendance for your racing
association. If your association has been operating for fewer than five years, provide information for
the period of time it has been in operation. If the racing association has changed ownership include the
handle information for the previous racing association.

Year and
# Race Off-Track

Days On-Track Handle | Off-Track Handle On-Track Attendance | Attendance
2020 - 27 3,786,965 463,814,562 N/A 42,796
2019 - 36 51,524,399 380,451,585 405,504 200,731
2018 - 36 59,439,657 425,727,650 470,529 208,125
2017 - 36 58,899,859 394,123,379 476,628 218,927
2016 - 39 63,927,411 401,528,464 524,439 236,584
2015 -40 74,259,863 408,753,153 578,770 256,219

7. PURSE PROGRAM (excluding supplements, nominations, sponsorships and starter fees):
A.  Purse distribution:
1. All races other than stakes:

Current meet estimate: 31 Race Days 11,678,510
Prior meet actual: 27 Race Days 10,929,592


https://19601.01
https://19601.01
mailto:josh@dmtc.com

Back to Top

THOROUGHBRED CLUB

Josh Rubinstein
President & COO

April 1, 2021

Mr. Scott Chaney

Executive Director

California Horse Racing Board
1010 Hurley Way, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95825

Scott,

Pursuant to California Business and Professions Code Section 19601.01, Del Mar
Thoroughbred Club (“DMTC”), after consultation with the Thoroughbred Owners of
California (TOC), is hereby requesting takeout as set forth below to be offered during DMTC’s
2021 Summer Season, July 16th - September 6th,

e Players Pick 5 and Rolling Doubles

1. Players Pick 5 - .50¢ minimum wager on the first five (5) races on each
day’s card subject to a takeout rate of 14%
2. $2 Rolling Daily Double - subject to a takeout rate of 20%

e Proposed Percentage: 14% takeout (Pick Five)
20% takeout (Rolling Doubles)

For reference, the Players Pick Five Wager and Rolling Doubles are noted on DMTC’s license
application in Section 5(1).

Please contact me directly if you have any questions.

.

cc: Joe Harper, DMTC
Mike Ernst, DMTC
Greg Avioli, TOC
Amanda Drummond, CHRB

] Rubinstein;
President and COO

P.O. Box 700 - Del Mar, CA 92014-0700 - 858-755-1141
http://www.delmarracing.com



Back to Top

fi TOC EXHIBIT 3 (A)

‘Thoraughbred Owners of California

A Serving the Californla
& & Ihoroughbred Raceborse Ouner

April 1, 2021

Mr. Scott Chaney

California Horse Racing Board
1010 Hurley Way, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95825

RE: Del Mar Thoroughbred Club 2021 Summer Race Meet ~ Players Pick 5 Wager

Dear Scott,

Del Mar Thoroughbred Club (DMTC) has contacted the Thoroughbred Owners of California
(“TOC") regarding the conducting of the “Players Pick-5" wager on the first five (5) races of
the day, subject to a 14% takeout, on each racing day of its 2021 Summer meet, July 16 -
September 6, 2021. The TOC agrees to such a wager based upon the same terms and

conditions as it was offered at Del Mar’s previous meet.

Please feel free to contact me with any questions.

Sincerely,

vy

Greg Avioli
President & CEO

cc:  Josh Rubenstein
Lucy Myers

285 W. HUNTINGTON DR., ARCADIA, CA 91007 (626) 574-6620
CHAIRMAN: GARY FENTON
PRESIDENT & CEQ: GREG AVIOLI
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: MARY FORNEY
NORTHERN CA LIAISON: WAYNE ATWELL
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: ELSA PERON




, .{ TOC EXHIBIT 3 (A)

Thoroughbred Owners of California

A J Serving the California
#  Thoreughbred Racehorse Ouner

April 1, 2021

Mr. Scott Chaney

California Horse Racing Board
1010 Hurley Way, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95825

RE: Del Mar Thoroughbred Club 2021 Summer Race Meet - Rolling Doubles Wager

Dear Scott,

Del Mar Thoroughbred Club (DMTC) has contacted the Thoroughbred Owners of California
(“TOC”) regarding the conducting of “Rolling Doubles” wagers, subject to a 20% takeout, on
each racing day of its 2021 Summer meet, July 16 - September 6, 2021. The TOC agrees to
such a wager based upon the same terms and conditions as it was offered at Del Mar’s
previous meet.

Please feel free to contact me with any questions.

Sincerely,
Greg Avioli
President & CEO

cc: Josh Rubenstein
Lucy Myers

Back to Top

285 W, HUNTINGTON DR., ARCADIA, CA 91007 (626) 574-6620
CHAIRMAN: GARY FENTON
PRESIDENT & CEQ: GREG AVIOLI
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: MARY FORNEY
NORTHERN CA LIAISON: WAYNE ATWELL
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: ELSA PERON




Back to Top
CHRB-17 (Rev. 1/16) ;

Average Daily Purse (7 A1 + number of days):
Current meet estimate: 376,726
Prior meet actual: 404,800

2. Overnight stakes:
Current meet estimate: 400,000
Prior meet actual: 390,000

Average Daily Purse (7 A2 + number of days):
Current meet estimate: 12,903
Prior meet actual: 14,444

3. Non-overnight stakes:
Current meet estimate: 5,470,000
Prior meet actual: 3,990,950

Average Daily Purse (7 A3 + number of days):
Current meet estimate: 176,452
Prior meet actual: 147,813

4.  Total Purses: (TA1+7A2+ 7A3)
Current meet estimate: 17,548,510
Prior meet actual: 15,310,542

B. California-bred Stakes Races:

1.  Percentage of the purse distribution for all stakes races that will be distributed for California-
bred stakes races:
Current meet estimate: 17.89%
Prior meet actual: 19.40%

Average Daily Purse (7 B1 + number of days):
Current meet estimate: 0.58%
Prior meet actual: 0.72%

C. Funds to be generated for all California-bred incentive awards (including breeder awards and
owners premiums):
Current meet estimate: 1,457,319
Prior meet actual: 1,355,525

D. Payment to each recognized horsemen’s organization contracting with the association and the
name(s) of the organization(s):

Current meet estimate: Prior meet actual:
TOC Administration 153,637 146,311
CTT Administration 76,819 73,156
CTT Backstretch Pension 153,637 146,311
NTRA Dues 28.410 23,058

Total 412,503 388,836



Back to Top
CHRB-17 (Rev. 1/16) o

E.  Amount from all sources to be distributed in the form of purses or other benefits to horsemen

(7 A+7 C+7 D):
Current meet estimate: 19,418,333
Prior meet actual: 17,054,903

Average Daily Purse (7 E + number of days):
Current meet estimate: 626,398
Prior meet actual: 631,663

F.  Purse funds to be generated from on-track handle and intrastate off-track handle (excluding carry-
overs from prior race meet(s):
Current meet estimate: 8,424,178
Prior meet actual: 6,376,434

Average Daily Purse (7 F + number of days):
Current meet estimate: 271,748
Prior meet actual: 236,164

G. Purse funds to be generated from interstate handle:
Current meet estimate: 8,518,530
Prior meet actual: 8,666,479

Average Daily Purse (7 G + number of days):
Current meet estimate: 274,791
Prior meet actual: 320,981

H. Bank and account number for the Paymaster of Purses' purse account:
On file

I.  Name, address, email and telephone number of the pari-mutuel audit firm engaged for the meeting:
Bowen, McBeth, Inc., 10722 Arrow Route, Suite 110, Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 (909) 944-6465

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: All funds generated and retained from on-track pari-mutuel handle which are obligated by law for
distribution in the form of purses, breeders' awards or other benefits to horsemen, shall not be deemed as income to the association;
shall not be transferred to a parent corporation outside the State of California; and shall, within 3 calendar days following receipt,
be deposited in a segregated and separate liability account in a depository approved by the CHRB and shall be at the disposition of
the Paymaster of Purses, who shall pay or distribute such funds to the persons entitled thereto. All funds generated from off-track
simulcast wagering, interstate wagering, and out-of-state wagering which are obligated by law for distribution in the form of purses
and breeders' awards, shall also be deposited within 3 calendar days following receipt, into such liability account. In the event the
association is obligated to the payment of purses prior to those obligated amounts being retained from pari-mutuel wagering for such
purpose, or as a result of overpayment of earned purses at the conclusion of the meeting, the association shall transfer from its own
funds such amounts as are necessary for the Paymaster of Purses to distribute to the horse owners statutorily or contractually entitled
thereto. The association is entitled to recover such transferred funds from the Paymaster of Purses' account; and if insufficient funds
remain in the account at the conclusion of the meeting, the association is entitled to carry forward the deficit to its next succeeding
meeting as provided by Business and Professions Code section 19615(c) or (d). In the event of underpayment of purses which
results in a balance remaining in the Paymaster of Purses' account at the conclusion of the meeting after distribution of amounts due
to horsemen and breeders and horsemen's organizations, the association may carry forward the surplus amount to its next succeeding
meeting; provided, however, that the amount so retained does not exceed an amount equivalent to the average daily distribution of
purses and breeders’ awards during the meeting. All amounts in excess shall be distributed retroactively and proportionally in the
form of purses and breeders’ awards to the horse owners and breeders having earned purses or awards during the conduct of the
meeting.

8. STABLE ACCOMMODATIONS

A. Number of usable stalls available for racehorses at the track where the meeting is held:
1,850 (Reduced capacity for horse safety)



Back to Top
CHRB-17 (Rev. 1/16) v

B.  Minimum number of stalls believed necessary for the meeting:
1,850
C. Total number of usable stalls to be made available off-site at approved auxiliary stabling areas or
approved training centers:
1,345 Los Alamitos and San Luis Rey Downs
1,900 Santa Anita Open July 7 to 17" and September 5% to September 7t

3,245 Total (when Santa Anita Open)
D. Name and location of each off-site auxiliary stabling area and the number of stalls to be maintained
at each site:

° Los Alamitos 850
o San Luis Rey Downs 495
° Santa Anita 1,900

E.  Attach each contract or agreement between the association and the person(s) furnishing off-site
stabling accommodations for eligible racehorses that cannot be provided stabling on-site. ON FILE

Complete subsections F. through H. if the association will request reimbursement for off-site stabling as
provided by Business and Professions Code sections 19607, 19607.1, 19607.2, and 19607.3; otherwise,
proceed to section 9.

F.  Total number of usable stalls made available on-site for the 1986 meeting, pursuant to Business
and Professions Code section 19535(c): 2,100 (Note: as of 2015 total number 2,000)

G. Estimated cost to provide off-site stalls for this meeting. Show cost per day per stall:
$1,461,775
$ 13.13 cost per day per stall
H. Estimated cost to provide vanning from off-site stalls for this meeting. Show fees to be paid for
vanning per-horse:
Estimated vanning cost: $40,125

Vanning per horse (round trip):
Santa Anita $240
Los Alamitos $215
San Luis Rey Downs $150

9. EQUINE EMERGENCY SERVICES

A. Name and emergency telephone number of the racing veterinarian onsite during training hours,
workouts and during racing for the association and auxiliary sites:

There is a rotation of private veterinarians’ onsite during all training and racing hours.

Names and emergency telephone numbers placed ON FILE with the CHRB. Tom Robbins,

Executive VP Racing, (858) 755-1141 ext. 3804, is responsible for contacting veterinarian.

1. Attach a schedule listing the dates and times that the racing veterinarian will be available
onsite during training hours, workouts and during racing for the association and auxiliary
sites.
7.07.21-9.08.21 Del Mar Race Track (Association) Training and Racing
4:30am — 10:30am
Prior to Opening Day and once the main track opens for training (7/11/21), DMTC will
have a veterinarian present during training hours to respond to any needs. As more
horses arrive after opening day, private practitioners for each trainer will be present.
These veterinarians are present during training hours and available to treat their patients
should the need arise. We have submitted a more detailed Horse/Rider Down On-



https://7.07.21�9.08.21

CHRB-17 (Rev. 1/16)

Back to Top

Track/Emergency Response Protocol, which is to be placed ON FILE as part of Section
16 Emergency Services.

DMTC will provide a list of all on-site trainers, along with their private practitioners and
contact numbers, to the Stable Office, Main Stable Gate, Clockers and Outriders. ON-
FILE is a list of veterinarians at DMTC’s two authorized training facilities, Los Alamitos
and San Luis Rey Downs. In addition, the list of DMTC regulatory veterinarians, along
with their contact information, has been submitted to be placed ON-FILE. The regulatory
veterinarians are present for much of the morning training hours as they perform the
soundness exams in the morning hours, as well as being present to monitor the afternoon
racing programs.

Year Round Los Alamitos Race Course (Auxiliary) Training
5:30 am — 10:30 am

Los Alamitos Race Course has private practitioners present during its training hours. Veterinarians’
contact numbers ON FILE.

Year Round San Luis Rey Downs (Auxiliary) Training
5:30 am — 10:30 am

San Luis Rey Downs has veterinarians from its nearby San Dieguito Equine Group that are present during
training hours. Contact numbers ON FILE.

10. PARI-MUTUEL WAGERING PROGRAM

A.

Example Race:

Pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19599, and with the approval of the CHRB,
associations may elect to offer wagering programs using CHRB Pari-mutuel Rules, the Association
of Racing Commissioners International (RCI) Uniform Rules of Racing, Chapter 9, Pari-mutuel
Wagering, or a combination of both. Please complete the following schedule for the types of
wagering other than WPS and the minimum wager amount for each:

Use DD for daily double, E for exacta (special quinella), PK3 for pick three, PK4 for select four,
PNP for pick (n) pool, PPN for place pick (n), Q for quinella, SF for superfecta, TRI for trifecta,
and US for unlimited sweepstakes (pick 9).

TYPE OF WAGERS APPLICABLE RULES
$1 E; $1 Double CHRB #1959; RCI #VE

Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Wagering Menu and Information

W/P/S | Parlay | Quinella | Exacta | Trifecta | Superfecta | DD | Pick | PPN | Early Late Early Late PNP Pentafecta

3 PNP4 PNP4 PNP 5 PNP 5 6

1 X X X X X X X X X X

2 X X X X X X X X X X

3 X X X X X X X X X *

4 X X X X X X X X X * *

5 X X X X X X X X X * * *

6 X X X X X X X X X * * *

7 X X X X X X * * X * *

8 X X X X X X * * X * X

9 X * X X X X * * * *

10 X * X X X X * * *

11 X X X X X * *

* When applicable




Back to Top

M A A

D E L

THOROUGHBRED CLUB

Josh Rubinstein
President & COO

April 6, 2021

Mr. Scott Chaney

Executive Director

California Horse Racing Board
1010 Hurley Way, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95825

Executive Director Chaney,
This letter is in regards to Del Mar Thoroughbred Club’s (“DMTC”) “Application for
License to Conduct a Horse Racing Meeting” for the time period of July 7, 2021 through

September 7, 2021 (the “Race Meet Application”).

As specified in the Race Meet Application, DMTC wishes to use ARCI 004-105(G)(2)(g) to
govern the payout of our Pick 6. ‘

Definition of Unique

Additionally, pursuant to ARCI 004-105(G)(2)(g), DMTC is required to identify which
definition under ARCI 004-105(G)(16)(b) DMTC will use to identify a unique ticket. DMTC
requests that a combination of the two definitions to define unique be used. Specifically, DMTC
wishes “unique” to be defined as:

“1) The total amount wagered on one and only one winning combination selecting the first-
place finisher in each of the Pick (n) contests, based up on the official order of finish, is equal to
the minimum allowable wager, 2) there is more than one combination selecting the first-place
finisher in each of the Pick (n) contests equal to the minimum allowable wager and all such
winning combinations are on one ticket that has a unique serial number assigned by the tote
company that issued the ticket and the multiple winning combinations is solely a result of a
wagering interest being scratched and replaced with the post time favorite; 3) there is more
than one combination selecting the first-place finisher in each of the Pick (n) contests equal to
the minimum allowable wager and all such winning combinations are on one ticket that has a
unique serial number assigned by the tote company that issued the ticket and the multiple
winning combinations is solely a result of a dead heat; 4) there is more than one combination

P.O. Box 700 - Del Mar, CA 92014-0700 - 858-75-1141
http://www.delmarracing.com



Mr. Scott Chaney Page Two

selecting the first-place finisher in each of the Pick (n) contests equal to the minimum allowable
wager and all such winning combinations are on one ticket that has a unique serial number
assigned by the tote company that issued the ticket and the multiple winning combinations is
solely a result of there is a surface change after the Pick 6 pool has closed and as a result the
race is a “Win All”; or 5) there is more than one combination selecting the first-place finisher in
each of the Pick (n) contests equal to the minimum allowable wager and all such winning
combinations are on one ticket that has a unique serial number assigned by the tote company
that issued the ticket and the multiple winning combinations is solely a result of some
combination of (2), (3), and (4) above.

If our proposed definition of unique is not approved, we will use ARCI 004-
105(G)(16)(b)(i) to define “unique.”

Each day that there is no unique ticket, 70% will be paid out as the minor share to
ticketholders which correctly selected the most first place finishers in the Pick(n) contests and

30% will be carried over to the major share (i.e. unique share).

Late Surface Change

Pursuant to ARCI 004-105(G)(6)-(7), on any day in which there is a surface change after
the Pick 6 pool closes, “the net pool shall be distributed as a single price pool to those whose
selection finished first in the greatest number of Pick (n) contests for that performance. Such
distribution shall include the portion ordinarily retained for the Pick (n) carryover but not the
carryover from previous performances.”

DMTC requests that on any day in which there is a surface change after the Pick 6 pool
has closed, with respect to the race(s) with a changed surface, the changed leg(s), i.e. the
race(s) that had the surface change, are declared a “Win All,” not a “no contest.”

DMTC also requests that on any day in which there is a surface change after the Pick 6
pool has closed, the following payout distribution method be used: The payout distribution
method as provided for in ARCI 004-105(G)(2)(g) If there is a unique ticket and if there is not a
unique ticket, the entire day’s net pool be paid to ticketholders which correctly selected the
most first place finishers in the Pick(n) contests. In other words, DMTC is requesting that on
any day in which there is a surface change after the Pick 6 pool has closed, the payout will be
treated the same way it is on all other days during the license period if there is a unique
winning ticket. If there is no unique winning ticket, the day’s major share (unique share) will be
added to day’s minor share. On days in which there is a surface change after the Pick 6 has
closed, the unique jackpot carryover can be paid out, however, it cannot grow.

P.O. Box 700 « Del Mar, CA 92014-0700 « 858-755-1141
http://www.delmarracing.com

Back to Top




Back to Top

Mr. Scott Chaney Page Three

If there is a surface change after the Pick 6 pool closes on a mandatory payout date, the
day’s net pool and any carryover will be divided among the ticket holders that correctly
selected the greatest number of first-place finishers.

DMTC requests these modifications be approved as part of its license application.

Sincerely,

ZAN—

Josh Rubinstein
President & COO
Del Mar Thoroughbred Club

P.O. Box 700 * Del Mar, CA 92014-0700 » 858-755-1141
http://www.delmarracing.com




CHRB-17 (Rev. 1/16)

Back to Top

Wager Rule Takeout | Minimum Wager Amount and Other Information

Parlay CHRB 1954.1 15.43% | $2 Win, Place, Show parlay is available on every
eligible race. The wager must combine at least two but
not more than six races.

Quinella CHRB 1958 22.68% | $2 Quinella on all eligible races.

Exacta CHRB 1959 22.68% | $1 Exacta on all eligible races.

Trifecta CHRB 1979 23.68% | $.50 Trifecta on all eligible races.

Superfecta CHRB 1979.1 23.68% | $.10 Superfecta on all eligible races.

Daily Double (DD) CHRB 1957 20.00% | $2 Rolling Daily Double.

Pick 3 CHRB 1977 23.68% | $.50 Rolling Pick 3 on all eligible races.

PPN (Place Pick All) | CHRB 1976.8 23.68% | $1 Place Pick All.

PNP4 (Early Pick 4) | CHRB 1976.9 23.68% | $.50 Pick 4 on races 2-5; No consolation; 100%
payout; Alternate runner provision.

PNP4 (Late Pick 4) CHRB 1976.9 23.68% | $.50 Pick 4 on last four races; No consolation; 100%
payout; Alternate runner provision.

Early PNP5 CHRB 1976.9 14.00% | $.50 Pick 5 on first five races; 100% payout to all

(Early Pick 5) tickets selecting five winners; No consolation; 100%
carryover to next day’s Early Pick 5 if no ticket has
five winners; Alternate runner provision.

Late PNP5 CHRB 1976.9 23.68% | $.50 Pick 5 on last five races; 100% payout to all

(Late Pick 5) tickets selecting five winners; No consolation; 100%
carryover to next day’s Late Pick 5 if no ticket has five
winners; Alternate runner provision.

PNP6 (Pick 6) ARCI 004-105(G)(2)(g)"; 23.68% | $.20 Pick 6 on the last six live races each day: If no

ARCI 004-105(G)(16)(b)(1)? unique ticket, 70% will be paid to the minor pool and

the 30% will be added to the major pool carryover.

Pentafecta ARCI 004-105(X)(4) 23.68% | $.50 Super High 5 on last race of the day; 100%

(Super High 5) payout on all tickets selecting five winners; No
consolation; 100% carryover to next race day Super
High 5, if applicable.

! We request that Commission allow patrons to select an alternate wagering interest in any of the Pick (n) contests in the event
their selected wagering interest is scratched.
2 Only if the request made in the letter dated April 6, 2021 is denied.

B.  Identify any wagers noted in 10.A. (the current pari-mutuel wagering program) that were not in the
prior year’s pari-mutuel program, or that are not being carried forward from the previous year’s

pari-mutuel wagering program. None

C.  Maximum carryover pool to be allowed to accumulate before its distribution OR the date(s)
designated for distribution of the carryover pool: Mandatory Pick 6 Jackpot Payout on August
21, 2021-Pacific Classic Day, and on Closing Day-September 6, 2021.

D. List any options requested with regard to exotic wagering: None

E.  Will "advance" or "early bird" wagering be offered? Yes | X | No

If yes, when will such wagering begin? Specify days and time for “early bird” wagering:
7/16/21 — 9/6/21 (if current conditions permit)
9:00 am everyday except Mondays, Tuesdays and Wednesdays

F.  Type(s) of pari-mutuel or totalizator equipment to be used by the association and the simulcast
organization, name of the person(s) supplying equipment, and expiration date of the service contract:



Back to Top
CHRB-17 (Rev. 1/16) 12

Totalisator Central System

American Totalisator, Inc. (AmTote)

Primary system at ViaWest Data Center located in Portland Oregon

AmTote Representative:

Bob Sloan (1-443-798-0878) bob.sloan@amtote.com

Contract Expiration Date: Automatic Contract Extension to 6/30/25, as stipulated in
original contract.

Terminals

F3000e — Convertible teller and self-service unit; IP based, touch screen and keyboard

operated.

V3000e — Self Service terminals, touch screen, bill accepting, ticket in/out.

AWSST — Account wagering self-service unit. Touch screen account based terminal.
G. List below the takeout percentage for each type of wager identified in 10.A.:

TAKEOUT PERCENTAGE
(Example) PNP5-14%

TAKE OUT PERCENTAGE

14.00 % Early PNP5

15.43 % W/P/S; Parlay

20.00 % DD

22.68 % E; Q

23.68 % TRI; SF; PK3; PNP6; SuperHS; PPN; PNP4,
Late PNP5

11. ADVANCE DEPOSIT WAGERING (ADW)

A. Identify the ADW provider(s) to be used by the association for this race meeting:
DMTC, in cooperation with Thoroughbred Owners of California and via Monarch Content
Management, LLC, has signed agreements in place with the following Advance Deposit
Wagering (ADW) companies to conduct Internet and telephone wagering from California
residents: TVG, Xpress-Bet, Watch & Wager, Twin Spires, Bet America, NYRA Bets CA.
In addition, several other ADW companies (complete list on file) have access to Del Mar’s
content for Internet wagering in states for which ADW is approved by law.

B. Attach a copy of the agreement/contracts with each ADW provider to be used for this race meeting.
ON FILE
C. Have the contract/agreements been approved by the respective horsemen’s groups?

Yes X No

If yes, attach a copy of the approval. EXHIBIT 4
If no, explain the status of the approval.

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19604, ADW providers may accept wagers on races conducted
in California from a resident of California if : 1) the ADW provider is licensed by the Board; 2) a written agreement allowing those wagers exists
with the racing association or fair conducting the races on which the wagers are made; 3) the agreement shall have been approved in writing by the
horsemen’s organization responsible for negotiating purse agreements for the breed on which the wagers are made. ADW providers may accept
wagers on races conducted outside of California from a resident of California if: 1) the ADW provider is licensed by the Board; 2) there is a hub
agreement between the ADW provider and one or both of (i) one or more racing associations or fairs that together conduct no fewer than five weeks
of live racing on the breed on which wagering is conducted during the calendar year during which the wagers are placed and (ii) the horsemen’s
organization responsible for negotiating purse agreements for the breed on which wagering is conducted.


mailto:bob.sloan@amtote.com

Back to Top

2 TOC EXHIBIT 4

Thoroughbied Qwners of California

2 Serving the California
Thoroughbred Racebarse Qumer

April 1, 2021

Mr. Josh Rubinstein

Del Mar Thoroughbred Club
2260 Jimmy Durante Blvd.
Del Mar, CA 92014

RE: 2021 DMTC Summer Race Meeting ADW Approvals

Pursuant to the Interstate Horseracing Act and applicable California law, the Thoroughbred
Owners of California (TOC) agrees to the use of Del Mar Thoroughbred Club (DMTC) race signals
under the terms and conditions set forth below.

Pursuant to Section XXIX, Intrastate Advance Deposit Wagering (“ADW”) of the Race Meet
Agreement between TOC and DMTC, and the Geo-Location Agreement (Exhibit A) between TOC
and each ADW provider, DMTC shall be permitted to transmit race signal to California-licensed
ADW providers TVG, XpressBet, TwinSpires, NYRA, BetAmerica, Watch and Wager, and Game

"Play Network to accept wagers on DMTC and other Thoroughbred races during the 2021 Summer
race meeting, July 16 through September 6, 2021, as follows:

1. California wagering on DMTC races:

a. TVG, XpressBet, TwinSpires, and NYRA may deduct a Hub Fee of 5.0% of gross handle for
ADW wagers accepted by California residents at all locations other than within the
enclosures of Thoroughbred racetracks and fairs on days when they are running live race
meets.

b. BetAmerica may deduct a Hub Fee of 4.2% of gross handle for ADW wagers accepted by
California residents at all locations other than within the enclosures of Thoroughbred
racetracks and fairs on days when they are running live race meets.

c. Watch and Wager and Game Play Network may deduct a Hub Fee of 4.1% of gross handle
for ADW wagers accepted by California residents at all locations other than within the
enclosures of Thoroughbred racetracks and fairs on days when they are running live race
meets.

d. TVG, XpressBet, TwinSpires, NYRA, BetAmerica, Watch and Wager, and Game Play
Network may deduct a Hub Fee of 1.5% of gross handle for ADW wagers accepted by
California residents located within the enclosure of a Thoroughbred racetrack or fair on
days when they are running live race meets, as more fully set forth in Exhibit A.

e. Forall wagers identified in sections 1.a.-c. above, the remainder of the takeout shall be
distributed in conformity with the Market Access Fee provisions of California law (Section
19604 et seq).

2. California wagering on out-of-state Thoroughbred races:
a. TVG, XpressBet, TwinSpires, and NYRA may deduct a Hub Fee of 5.0% of gross handle for
ADW wagers accepted by California residents at all locations other than within the

285 W. HUNTINGTON DR., ARCADIA, CA 91007 (626) 574-6620
CHAIRMAN: NICK ALEXANDER
PRESIDENT & CEQ: GREG AVIOL!
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: MARY FORNEY
NORTHERN CA LIAISON: WAYNE ATWELL
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: ELSA PERON




Back to Top
Mpr. Josh Rubinsiewn

April 1, 2021
Page 2 of 2

enclosures of Thoroughbred racetracks and fairs on days when they are running live race
meets.

b. BetAmerica may deduct a Hub Fee of 4.2% of gross handle for ADW wagers accepted by
California residents at all locations other than within the enclosures of Thoroughbred
racetracks and fairs on days when they are running live race meets.

c. Watch and Wager and Game Play Network may deduct a Hub Fee of 4.1% of gross handle
for ADW wagers accepted by California residents at all locations other than within the
enclosures of Thoroughbred racetracks and fairs on days when they are running live race
meets. .

d. TVG, XpressBet, TwinSpires, NYRA, BetAmerica, Watch and Wager, and Game Play
Network may deduct a Hub Fee of 1.5% of gross handle for ADW wagers accepted by
California residents located within the enclosure of a Thoroughbred racetrack or fair on
days when they are running live race meets, as more fully set forth in Exhibit A.

e. For all wagers identified in sections 2.a.-c. above, the remainder of the takeout shall be
distributed in conformity with the Market Access Fee provisions of California law (Section
19604 et seq).

3. Out-of-state wagering on DMTC races:
a. TVG, XpressBet, TwinSpires and NYRA shall pay a Host Fee of no less than 8.5% of gross
out-of-state handle wagered by out-of-state account holders, plus a 1.25% California Purse
Fee per SB 1072.
b. BetAmerica, Watch and Wager, and Game Play Network shall pay a Host Fee of no less
than 60% of takeout (which includes a 1.25% California purse fee per SB 1072) of gross
out-of-state handle wagered by out-of-state account holders.

This agreement in no way binds TOC to the same terms and conditions with respect to future race
meetings. TOC’s authorization shall not serve, nor should it be construed as, a precedent to future
requests for permission to transmit race signals, and facilitate wagering on those signals, to the
ADW providers specified herein or to any other ADW provider. TOC reserves the right to cancel
or withdraw its authorization for any ADW provider, at any time, upon 48 hours written notice.
These terms and conditions are subject to receipt by TOC of written confirmation of these terms,
signed by authorized representatives of TVG, Xpressbet, TwinSpires, NYRA, BetAmerica, Game
Play Network, and Watch and Wager.

Very truly yours,
Mary W. Forney, Executive Director

cc: Lucy Myers




Back to Top
CHRB-17 (Rev. 1/16) 15

12. SIMULCAST WAGERING PROGRAM

A. Simulcast organization engaged by the association to conduct simulcast wagering:
Southern California Off Track Wagering, Inc. “SCOTWINC”

B. Attach the agreement between the association and simulcast organization permitting the
organization to use the association's live audiovisual signal for wagering purposes and providing
access to its totalizator for the purpose of combining on-track and off-track pari-mutuel pools.
SCOTWINC Agreement is ON FILE with CHRB

C. California simulcast facilities the association proposes to offer its live audiovisual signal:
EXHIBIT 5

D. Out-of-state wagering systems the association proposes to offer its live audiovisual signal:
EXHIBIT 6

E.  Out-of-state wagering systems that will combine their pari-mutuel pools with those of
the association:

EXHIBIT 7

F.  California mini-simulcast facilities the association proposes to offer its live audiovisual signal:
EXHIBIT 8

G. For THOROUGHBRED racing associations, list the host track from which the association proposes to
import out-of-state and/or out-of-country thoroughbred races. Include the dates imported races will
be held, and whether or not a full card will be accepted. If the full card will not be imported, state
“selected feature and/or stakes races”: EXHIBIT 9

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Business and Professions Code section 19596.2(a) stipulates that on days when live thoroughbred or fair
racing is being conducted in the state, the number of thoroughbred races which may be imported by an association or fair during
the calendar period the association or fair is conducting its racing meeting cannot exceed a combined daily total of 50 imported
thoroughbred races statewide. The limitation of 50 imported thoroughbred races per day statewide does not apply to those races
specified in Business and Professions Code section 19596.2(a)(1), (2), (3) and (4).

THOROUGHBRED SIMULCAST RACES TO BE IMPORTED
Name of Host Track Race Dates Full Card or Selected Feature and/or Stakes Races

H. For QUARTER HORSE racing associations, list the host track from which the association proposes to
import out-of-state and/or out-of-country quarter horse races. Include the dates imported races will
be held, and whether or not a full card will be accepted. If the full card will not be imported, state
“selected feature and/or stakes races”: N/A

QUARTER HORSE SIMULCAST RACES TO BE IMPORTED
Name of Host Track Race Dates Full Card or Selected Feature and/or Stakes Races

I.  For STANDARDBRED racing associations, list the host tracks from which the association proposes
to import out-of-state and/or out-of-country harness races. Include the dates imported races will be
held, and whether or not a full card will be accepted. If the full card will not be imported, state
“selected feature and/or stakes races”: N/A

HARNESS SIMULCAST RACES TO BE IMPORTED
Name of Host Track Race Dates Full Card or Selected Feature and/or Stakes Races

J. For ALL racing associations, list imported simulcast races the association plans to receive which
use breeds other than the breed of the majority of horses racing at its live horse racing meeting.
Include the name of the host track, the dates imported races will be held, and how many races will
be imported:



EXHIBIT 5
(If applicable)

Satellites

Alameda County Fair, Pleasanton
Antelope Valley Fair, Lancaster

Big Fresno Fair, Fresno

Cabazon Fantasy Springs Casino, Indio
California State Fair & Expo, Sacramento
Fairplex Park @ Barretts, Pomona
Fresno Club One, Fresno

Golden Gate Fields, Albany

Hollywood Park Casino, Inglewood
Humboldt County Fair, Ferndale

Los Alamitos Racecourse, Los Alamitos
Monterey County Fair, Monterey
National Orange Show, San Bernardino
Pechanga Resort Casino, Temecula

San Bernardino County Fair, Victorville
San Joaquin County Fair, Stockton

San Mateo Event Center, San Mateo
Santa Anita Park, Arcadia

Santa Clara County Fair, San Jose
Solano County Fair, Vallejo

Sonoma County Fair, Santa Rosa

Sports Pavilion, the Farmers Fair, Lake Perris
Ventura County Fair, Ventura

Viejas Casino & Turf Club, Alpine

Back to Top




EXHIBIT 6
(If applicable)

AmWest Entertainment, KY
Arapahoe Park, Colorado

Arima Race Course, Trinidad
Arizona Downs, Arizona

Arlington International Race Course, Illinois
Assiniboia Downs, Canada

Atlantis Resort and Casino, Bahamas
Bangor Raceway, Maine

Barrie Raceway, Ontario

Batavia Downs, New York

Belterra Race Course, OH

Bet America, LLC, North Dakota
Bet Fair Games Limited, UK

Bettor Racing OTB, South Dakota
Birmingham Race Course, Alabama
Bordertown OTB, Oklahoma
Borgata Casino, New Jersey
Buffalo Trotting Association, New York
Bwin International, Ltd.

Caliente (MIR), Mexico

Camarero, Puerto Rico

Canterbury Park, Minnesota

Capital District OTB, New York
Catskill Regional OTB, New York
Caymanas Race Track, Jamaica
Century Downs, Alberta, Canada
Century Miles, Alberta, Canada
Charles Town Races, West Virginia
Chester Downs - Pennsylvania
Churchill Downs, Kentucky

Clinton Teletheatre, Canada
Codere, Mexico

Codere, Spain

Columbus Raceway, Nebraska
Connecticut OTB, Connecticut
Corpus Christi Greyhound, Texas
Coushatta Casino Resort, Louisiana
Dayton Raceway, OH

Divi Carina Bay Casino, Louisiana
Delaware Park, Delaware

Delta Downs, Louisiana

Dover Downs, Delaware

Downs at Albuquerque, New Mexico
Ebet Online, Oregon

Egg Harbor Turf Club, New Jersey
Elite Turf Club, Curacao

Ellis Park, Kentucky

Elmira Raceway, Ontario .
Equilottery, Kentucky

Equus St. Thomas, St. Thomas
Emerald Downs, Washington

Euro Offtrack, Isle of Man
Evangeline Downs, Louisiana
Evansville/Clarksville OTB, Indiana
Fairgrounds ADW, Louisiana
Fairgrounds Racecourse, Louisiana
Fair Meadows, Texas

Favorites at Gloucester, New Jersey
Favorites at Vineland, New Jersey
Finger Lakes Bets, NY

Finger Lakes Race Track, New York
Flamboro Downs, Ontario |
Fonner Park, Nebraska B

Fort Erie Racetrack, Canada.
Foxwoods Casino, Connecticut
Fraser Downs, British Columbia
Freehold Raceway, New Jersey
Gillespie County Downs, Texas
Global Wagering Group, Germany
Global Wagering Solutions, Germany
Grand River, Canada

Grants Pass Downs, Oregon
Greentrack, Alabama

Greyhounds at Post Falls, Idaho
Gulf Greyhound, Texas
Gulfstream Park, Florida
Harrington Bets, Delaware
Harrington Raceway, Delaware
Hastings Park, Canada

Hawthorne ADW, Illinois
Hawthorne Race Course, Illinois
Hiawatha Downs, Ontario

Hipica de Panama, Panama
Hipodromo Camarero, Puerto Rico
Hipodromo Montericco, Peru
Ho-Chuck Casino, Connecticut
Hodge OTB, Connecticut

Hoosier Park, Indiana

Horsemen’s Park, Nebraska
Horseshoe Council Bluffs, Iowa
Idaho Fall OTB, Idaho

Idabet, Iowa

Back to Top

EXHIBIT 6
(If applicable)




Indiana Downs, Indiana

Inverness Raceway, Canada

Iowa Greyhounds, Iowa
Intermountain Racing, Idaho

John Martins Manor, Maine
Kawartha Downs, Ontario
Keeneland, Kentucky

Keeneland Select ADW. Kentucky
Kentucky Downs, Kentucky
Kentucky OTB, Kentucky

Las Vegas Dissemination Company, Nevada
Lewiston OTB, Maine

Lien Games, North Dakota

Lincoln Greyhound Park, Rhode Island
Lone Star Race Park, Texas
Louisiana Downs, Louisiana
Magna Bet, Austria

Mahoning Valley Race Course, OH
Maronas Race Track, Uruguay
Marquis Downs, Saskatchewan
Maryland Jockey Club, Maryland
Maywood Park, Illinois
Meadowlands, New Jersey
Meskwaki Casino, Oklahoma
Miami Valley Gaming, Ohio
Millennium Racing, Trinidad
Mobile Greyhound Park, Alabama
Mohegan Sun, Pennsylvania
Mohawk Harness, Ontario
Monmouth Park, New Jersey
Montana OTB, Montana
Montericco Simulcasting, Peru
Monticello Raceway, NY
Mountaineer Park, West Virginia
Nassau Regional OTB, New York
Nebraska State Fair Park, Nebraska
Nevada Dissemination Services, Nevada
Nevada Pari-Mutuel Association, Nevada
New Jersey Mobile, New Jersey
New Palace Casino, Mississippi
New Zealand Racing Board, NZ
NYRA, New York

NYRA Bets, New York

Newport Jai-Alai, Rhode Island
Northfield Park, Ohio

Northlands Park, Canada

Back to Top

Northville Downs, Michigan
Nugget Casino, Mississippi
Oaklawn Park, Arkansas

Oaklawn Park ADW, Arkansas
Ocean Downs, Maryland
Offtrackbetting.com, Oregon
Oregon Off-Tracks, Oregon

Oneida Bingo and Casino, Oklahoma
Ontario Teletheatre, Ontario
Panama OTB Network, Panama
PariBet ADW, North Dakota
PariBet OTB, North Dakota
Paragon Casino, Louisiana

Penn National, Pennsylvania

Penn National ADW, Pennsylvania
PARX, Pennsylvania

Peru Jockey Club, Peru

Peru OTB Network, Peru
Phumelela, South Aftrica

PARX ADW, Pennsylvania

Picov Downs, Canada

Pimlico Race Course, Maryland
Plainridge Race Course, Massachusetts
Plainridge ADW, Massachusetts
Player Management Group, CA
PMU Brazil, Brazil

Pocono Downs, Pennsylvania
Pocono Downs ADW, Pennsylvania
Pojoaque Casino, Oklahoma
Portland Meadows, Oregon
Potawatomi Casino, Wisconsin
Prairie Meadows, Iowa

Premier Gateway International, S.A.
Premier Turf Club, North Dakota
Presque Isle Downs, Pennsylvania
Racing and Gaming Services, St Kitts
Remington Park, Oklahoma
Retama Park, Texas

Rideau Carleton Raceway, Canada
Riders Up OTB, Oklahoma

Rillito Park, Arizona

Rockingham Park, New Hampshire
Rocky Mountain Turf Club, Canada
Rosecroft Raceway, Maryland
Royal Beach Casino, St Kitts
Ruidoso Downs, New Mexico

EXHIBIT 6
(If applicable)




Running Aces Harness Park, Minnesota
Sam Houston Park, Texas

Saratoga Harness, New York
Scarborough Downs, Maine

Scarlet Pearl, Mississippi

Scioto Downs, Ohio

Seabrook Greyhound Park, NH
Seabrook Greyhound Park ADW, NH
Shoreline Star Greyhounds, Connecticut
Skydancer Casino, Oklahoma

Sol Mutuel, St Kitts

Sol Mutuel Otrobanda, St Kitts
Southland Greyhound Park, Arkansas
Sports Center, Kentucky

State Fair, Nebraska

Suaposta ADW, Brazil

Suffolk District OTB, New York
Suffolk Downs, Massachusetts
Sunland Park Racetrack, New Mexico
Sun Ray Park, New Mexico

TabCorp, Australia

Tampa Bay Downs, Florida

TattsBet, Australia

Taunton Dog Track, New Hampshire
Taunton Dog Track ADW, New Hampshire
TBC Teletheatre, British Columbia
The Greenbrier Resort, West Virginia
The Meadows, Pennsylvania

The Meadows ADW, Pennsylvania
Thistledown, Ohio

Tioga Downs, New York

Tote Investment Services, Trinidad
Tri-State Greyhound, West Virginia
Truro Raceway, Canada

TVG, Arizona

TVG Chester, Pennsylvania

TVG High Volume, Los Angeles
TVG, Los Angeles

TVG, Massachusetts

TVG Prairie Meadows, lowa

Turf del Norte, Mexico

Turf del Norte, Tribecta D.R.

Turf Paradise, Arizona

Turfway Park, Kentucky

Twin River Greyhounds, RI
TwinSpires, Kentucky

TwinSpires High Volume, Kentucky
US Offtrack, Florida :

Valley Greyhound Park, Texas
Velocity Wagering Ltd., KY
Venezuela OTB, Venezuela

Vernon Downs, New York
Victoryland Greyhounds, Alabama
Virginia Equine Alliance, Virginia
Watch and Wager, LLC, San Francisco
Western Fair, Ontario

Western Regional OTB, New York
Wheeling Downs, Canada

Will Rogers Downs, Oklahoma
Woodbine Entertainment Corp, Ontario
Wyoming Downs, Wyoming
Wyoming Horse Racing LL.C, Wyoming
XpressBet, Arizona

XpressBet, Illinois

XpressBet, (GWS)

XpressBet, Pennsylvania

Xpressbet, Southern Alberta

Yonkers Raceway, New York

Yonkers Empire City Bets, New York
Zia Park, New Mexico

123Gaming, Oregon

Back to Top




EXHIBIT 7
(If applicable)

AmWest Entertainment, KY
Arapahoe Park, Colorado

Arima Race Course, Trinidad
Arizona Downs, Arizona

Arlington International Race Course, Illinois
Assiniboia Downs, Canada

Atlantis Resort and Casino, Bahamas
Bangor Raceway, Maine

Barrie Raceway, Ontario

Batavia Downs, New York

Belterra Race Course, OH

Bet America, LLC, North Dakota
Bet Fair Games Limited, UK

Bettor Racing OTB, South Dakota
Birmingham Race Course, Alabama
Bordertown OTB, Oklahoma
Borgata Casino, New Jersey
Buffalo Trotting Association, New York
Bwin International, Ltd.

Canterbury Park, Minnesota

Capital District OTB, New York
Catskill Regional OTB, New York
Century Downs, Alberta, Canada
Century Miles, Alberta, Canada
Charles Town Races, West Virginia
Chester Downs - Pennsylvania
Churchill Downs, Kentucky

Clinton Teletheatre, Canada
Columbus Raceway, Nebraska
Connecticut OTB, Connecticut
Corpus Christi Greyhound, Texas
Coushatta Casino Resort, Louisiana
Dayton Raceway, OH

Divi Carina Bay Casino, Louisiana
Delaware Park, Delaware

Delta Downs, Louisiana

Dover Downs, Delaware

Downs at Albuquerque, New Mexico
Ebet Online, Oregon

Egg Harbor Turf Club, New Jersey
Elite Turf Club, Curacao

Ellis Park, Kentucky

Elmira Raceway, Ontario

Equus St. Thomas, St. Thomas
Emerald Downs, Washington

Euro Offtrack, Isle of Man

Evangeline Downs, Louisiana
Evansville/Clarksville OTB, Indiana
Fairgrounds ADW, Louisiana
Fairgrounds Racecourse, Louisiana
Fair Meadows, Texas

Favorites at Gloucester, New Jersey
Favorites at Vineland, New Jersey
Finger Lakes Bets, NY

Finger Lakes Race Track, New York
Flamboro Downs, Ontario

Fonner Park, Nebraska

Fort Erie Racetrack, Canada
Foxwoods Casino, Connecticut
Fraser Downs, British Columbia
Freehold Raceway, New Jersey
Gillespie County Downs, Texas
Global Wagering Group, Germany
Global Wagering Solutions, Germany
Grand River, Canada

Grants Pass Downs, Oregon
Greentrack, Alabama
Greyhounds at Post Falls, Idaho
Gulf Greyhound, Texas
Gulfstream Park, Florida
Harrington Bets, Delaware
Harrington Raceway, Delaware
Hastings Park, Canada

Hawthorne ADW, Illinois
Hawthorne Race Course, Illinois
Hiawatha Downs, Ontario

Hipica de Panama, Panama
Hipodromo Camarero, Puerto Rico
Hipodromo Montericco, Peru
Ho-Chuck Casino, Connecticut
Hodge OTB, Connecticut.

Hoosier Park, Indiana

Horsemen’s Park, Nebraska
Horseshoe Council Bluffs, lowa
Idaho Fall OTB, Idaho

Idabet, Iowa

Indiana Downs, Indiana

Inverness Raceway, Canada

Iowa Greyhounds, Iowa
Intermountain Racing, Idaho

John Martins Manor, Maine
Kawartha Downs, Ontario

Back to Top

EXHIBIT 7
(If applicable)




Keeneland, Kentucky

Keeneland Select ADW. Kentucky
Kentucky Downs, Kentucky
Kentucky OTB, Kentucky

Las Vegas Dissemination Company, Nevada
Lewiston OTB, Maine

Lien Games, North Dakota

Lincoln Greyhound Park, Rhode Island
Lone Star Race Park, Texas
Louisiana Downs, Louisiana
Magna Bet, Austria

Mahoning Valley Race Course, OH
Maronas Race Track, Uruguay
Marquis Downs, Saskatchewan
Maryland Jockey Club, Maryland
Maywood Park, Illinois
Meadowlands, New Jersey
Meskwaki Casino, Oklahoma
Miami Valley Gaming, Ohio
Millennium Racing, Trinidad
Mobile Greyhound Park, Alabama
Mohegan Sun, Pennsylvania
Mohawk Harness, Ontario
Monmouth Park, New Jersey
Montana OTB, Montana
Montericco Simulcasting, Peru
Monticello Raceway, NY
Mountaineer Park, West Virginia
Nassau Regional OTB, New York
Nebraska State Fair Park, Nebraska
Nevada Dissemination Services, Nevada
Nevada Pari-Mutuel Association, Nevada
New Jersey Mobile, New Jersey
New Palace Casino, Mississippi
NYRA, New York

NYRA Bets, New York

Newport Jai-Alai, Rhode Island
Northfield Park, Ohio

Northlands Park, Canada
Northville Downs, Michigan
Nugget Casino, Mississippi
Oaklawn Park, Arkansas

Oaklawn Park ADW, Arkansas
Ocean Downs, Maryland
Offtrackbetting.com, Oregon
Oregon Off-Tracks, Oregon

Oneida Bingo and Casino, Oklahoma
Ontario Teletheatre, Ontario
Panama OTB Network, Panama
PariBet ADW, North Dakota
PariBet OTB, North Dakota
Paragon Casino, Louisiana

Penn National, Pennsylvania

Penn National ADW, Pennsylvania
PARX, Pennsylvania

Peru Jockey Club, Peru

Peru OTB Network, Peru
Phumelela, South Africa

PARX ADW, Pennsylvania

Picov Downs, Canada

Pimlico Race Course, Maryland
Plainridge Race Course, Massachusetts
Plainridge ADW, Massachusetts
Player Management Group, CA
PMU Brazil, Brazil

Pocono Downs, Pennsylvania
Pocono Downs ADW, Pennsylvania
Pojoaque Casino, Oklahoma
Portland Meadows, Oregon
Potawatomi Casino, Wisconsin
Prairie Meadows, [owa

Premier Gateway International, S.A.
Premier Turf Club, North Dakota
Presque Isle Downs, Pennsylvania
Racing and Gaming Services, St Kitts
Remington Park, Oklahoma

Retama Park, Texas

Rideau Carleton Raceway, Canada
Riders Up OTB, Oklahoma

Rillito Park, Arizona

Rockingham Park, New Hampshire
Rocky Mountain Turf Club, Canada
Rosecroft Raceway, Maryland
Royal Beach Casino, St Kitts
Ruidoso Downs, New Mexico
Running Aces Harness Park, Minnesota
Sam Houston Park, Texas

Saratoga Harness, New York
Scarborough Downs, Maine

Scarlet Pearl, Mississippi

Scioto Downs, Ohio

Seabrook Greyhound Park, NH

Back to Top

EXHIBIT 7
(If applicable)




Seabrook Greyhound Park ADW, NH
Shoreline Star Greyhounds, Connecticut
Skydancer Casino, Oklahoma

Sol Mutuel, St Kitts

Sol Mutuel Otrobanda, St Kitts
Southland Greyhound Park, Arkansas
Sports Center, Kentucky

State Fair, Nebraska

Suaposta ADW, Brazil

Suffolk District OTB, New York
Suffolk Downs, Massachusetts
Sunland Park Racetrack, New Mexico
Sun Ray Park, New Mexico

Tampa Bay Downs, Florida

Taunton Dog Track, New Hampshire
Taunton Dog Track ADW, New Hampshire
TBC Teletheatre, British Columbia
The Greenbrier Resort, West Virginia
The Meadows, Pennsylvania

The Meadows ADW, Pennsylvania
Thistledown, Ohio

Tioga Downs, New York

Tote Investment Services, Trinidad
Tri-State Greyhound, West Virginia
Truro Raceway, Canada

TVG, Arizona

TVG Chester, Pennsylvania

TVG High Volume, Los Angeles
TVG, Los Angeles

TVG, Massachusetts

TVG Prairie Meadows, lowa

Turf del Norte, Mexico

Tutf del Norte, Tribecta D.R.

Turf Paradise, Arizona

Turfway Park, Kentucky

Twin River Greyhounds, RI
TwinSpires, Kentucky

TwinSpires High Volume, Kentucky
US Offtrack, Florida

Valley Greyhound Park, Texas
Velocity Wagering Ltd., KY
Venezuela OTB, Venezuela

Vernon Downs, New York
Victoryland Greyhounds, Alabama
Virginia Equine Alliance, Virginia
Watch and Wager, LLC, San Francisco

Back to Top

Western Fair, Ontario

Western Regional OTB, New York
Wheeling Downs, Canada

Will Rogers Downs, Oklahoma
Woodbine Entertainment Corp, Ontario
Wyoming Downs, Wyoming

Wyoming Horse Racing LLC, Wyoming
XpressBet, Arizona

XpressBet, Illinois

XpressBet, Pennsylvania

Xpressbet, Southern Alberta

Yonkers Raceway, New York

Yonkers Empire City Bets, New York
Zia Park, New Mexico

123Gaming, Oregon




EXHIBIT 8
(If applicable)

Mini-Satellites

M1. Commerce Casino
6131 East Telegraph Road
Commerce, CA 90040
Phone: (323) 803-3693
Contact: Edgar Wong

M2. OC Tavern

2369 South El Camino Real
San Clemente, CA 92672
Phone (949) 542-8877
Contact: Micheal Merrigan

M3, Santa Clarita Lanes
21615 W. Soledad Canyon Rd.
Saugus, CA 93454

Phone: (661) 254-0540
Contact: Tom Cristi

M4. Sammy’s Original
23221 Lake Center Drive
Lake Forest, CA 92630
Phone: (949) 716-2367
Contact: Pete Genovese

MS3. Tiled Kilt

1345 E. Thousand Oaks Blvd.
Thousand Oaks CA. 91362
Phone: (805) 777-7418
Contact: Robert Haupt

MG6. Firehouse Restaurant
7701 White Avenue
Bakersfield, CA 93313
PH: 661-831-4688
Contact: Russ Johnson

Back to Top




EXHIBIT 8
(If applicable)

M?7. Lake Elsinore Casino
20930 Malaga Road

Lake Elsinore, CA 92530
PH: 951-674-5160
Contact: Pat Wilmes

M8, The Derby Room
3230 Hamner Avenue
Norco, CA 92860
PH: 951-692-3572
Contact: Jim Baerwald

Back to Top




EXHIBIT 9
(if applicable)

Full & Partial Cards

Arlington Park: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021
Belmont Park: July 7, 2021 — July 14, 2021

Belterra Park: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021
Delaware Park: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021
Ellis Park: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021

Emerald Downs: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021
Evangeline Downs: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021
Fairmount Park: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021
Finger Lakes: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021
Gulfstream Park: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021
Indiana Grand: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021
Kentucky Downs: September 5 — September 6, 2021
Laurel Park: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021
Louisiana Downs: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021
Monmouth Park: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021
Mountaineer Park: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021
PARX Racing: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021
Penn National: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021
Presque Isle Downs; July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021
Saratoga Race Course; July 15, 2021 - September 7, 2021
Thistledown: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021

Woodbine: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021

Assiniboia Downs: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021

Fort Erie: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021

Hastings Park: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021

LARC (South America) via Maryland Hub: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021
LARC (South America) via Gulfstream Hub: July 7, 2021 - September 7, 2021

Back to Top




CHRB-17 (Rev. 1/16)

OTHER BREED SIMULCAST RACES TO BE IMPORTED

Back to Top

Name of Host Track Breed of Horse Race Dates Number of Races to be Imported
9/5/21 Ruidoso All American Derby I $ 700,000 440 Yards
9/6/21 Ruidoso All American Futurity I $3,000,000 440 Yards

K. For ALL racing associations, if any out-of-state or out-of-country races will commence outside of
the time constraints set forth in Business and Professions Code sections 19596.2 and 19596.3,
attach a copy showing the agreement by the appropriate racing association(s). N/A

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: All interstate wagering to be conducted by an association is subject to the provisions of Title 15, United
States Codes, which require specific written approval of the CHRB and of the racing commission having jurisdiction in the out-
of-state venue. All international wagering to be conducted by an association is subject to the provision of Business and Professions
Code sections 19596, 19596.1, 19596.2, 19596.3, 19601, 19602, and 19616.1, and will require specific written approval of the
CHRB.

Every association shall pay over to the simulcast organization within 3 calendar days following the closing of wagering for any
day or night racing program, or upon receipt of the proceeds, such amounts that are retained from off-track simulcast wagering,
interstate and out-of-state wagering, and which are obligated by statute for guest commissions, simulcast operator's expenses and
promotions, equine research, local government in-lieu taxes, and stabling and vanning deductions. Every association shall pay to
its Paymaster of Purses' account within 3 calendar days following the closing of wagering for each day or night racing program,
or upon receipt of the proceeds, such amounts that are retained or obligated from off-track simulcast wagering, interstate and out-
of-state wagering for purses, breeders’ awards or other benefits to horsemen. (See Notice to Applicant, Section 7.)

13. CHARITY RACING DAYS
A. Name and address of the distributing agent (charity foundation) for the net proceeds from charity
racing days held by the association:

Del Mar Thoroughbred Club, P.O. Box 700, Del Mar, CA 92014

B. Names and addresses of the trustees or directors of the distributing agent:

David H. Batchelder

Rollin Baugh

PO Box 700 P.O. Box 2461

Del Mar, CA 92014 Rancho Santa Fe, CA 92067
Dr. James R. Buell Bo Derek

4790 Caughlin Pkwy # 518 PO Box 700

Reno, NV 89509 Del Mar, CA 92014

Joseph W. Harper
P.O. Box 700
Del Mar, CA 92014

Kosta Hronis
PO Box 700
Del Mar, CA 92014

Warner C. Lusardi
Lusardi Construction Company

Marie G. Moretti
6705 De Chardin Lane

1570 Linda Vista Drive Reno, NV 89511
San Marcos, CA 92078

Jim Rome Martin J. Wygod
PO Box 700 The Wygod Group
Del Mar, CA 92014 P.O. Box 676306

Rancho Santa Fe, CA 92067




Back to Top
CHRB-17 (Rev. 1/16) 10

C. Dates the association will conduct races as charity racing days OR:

D. Will the association pay the distributing agent an amount equal to the maximum required under
B&P Code Section 19550(b)?  Yes X

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Net proceeds from charity racing days shall be paid to the designated and approved distributing agent
within 180 days following the conclusion of the association's race meeting in accordance with the provisions of Business and
Professions Code section 19555. Thereafter, the distributing agent shall distribute not less than 90% of the aggregate proceeds
from such charity racing days within 12 calendar months after the last day of the meeting during which the charity racing days
were conducted and shall distribute the remaining funds as soon thereafter as is practicable. At least 50% of the distribution shall
be made to charities associated with the horse racing industry in accordance with the provisions of Business and Professions Code
section 19556(b) and (c).

14. RACING OFFICIALS, OFFICIALS, AND OFFICIATING EQUIPMENT

A. Racing officials nominated:

Association Veterinarian(s) Dana Stead, DVM
Clerk of Scales Matt Nichols
Assistant Clerk of Scales Charles McCaul
Clerk of the Course Dawn Schmid
Film Specialist Heather Correa
Horse Identifier Jennifer Paige
Horseshoe Inspector Victor Tovar
Paddock Judge Karen Denovel
Patrol Judges Karen Denovel

Heather Correa
Placing Judges Robert Moreno

Ed Reese

Sue Brent
Starter Jay Slender
Timer John Lies

B. Management officials in the racing department:

Executive Vice President, Racing Thomas S. Robbins
Racing Secretary David Jerkens
Assistant Racing Secretary Zach Soto
Paymaster of Purses Bridget Crawford
Others (identify by name and title) N/A

C. Name, address, email and telephone number of the reporter employed to record and prepare
transcripts of hearings conducted by the stewards:
Michelle Derieg
Weinstein Court Reporters, LLLC
PO Box 26634
Santa Ana, CA 92799
(949) 637-6071
mderieg@weinsteincourtreporters.com
D. Photographic device to be used for photographing the finish of all races, name of the person
supplying the service, and expiration date of the service contract:
Plusmic Corporation, William O’Brien, Digital Photo Finish Only
Contract Expires: 12/31/2021



mailto:mderieg@weinsteincourtreporters.com

Back to Top
CHRB-17 (Rev. 1/16) 10

E. Photo patrol video equipment to be used to record all races, name of the person supplying the
service, and expiration date of the service contract. Specify the number and location of cameras
for dirt and turf tracks.

TVG
Expiration: 12/31/2024
Equipment list on file with CHRB

For each race TVG will provide:

e Two manned pan cameras located near the judge’s room in the press box providing
a wide and a tight view of each race, turf and dirt, plus coverage for in-house video
board presentation.

e Four manned tower cameras:

-Backstretch head-on (Training Track Camera Tower)

-Far turn and Stretch run back view (Quarter Chute Camera Tower)
-Stretch-run head-on (Livestock Barn Camera Tower) - turf
-Stretch-run head-on (Livestock Barn Camera Tower) - dirt

e 2 cameras in the paddock area provided coverage of horses, jockeys, trainers and
owners

e A hand-held camera in winner circle

e A pan camera located on the 7th floor providing race coverage for the in-house video
board presentation

e All races will be recorded and archived

e TVG will provide talent for this event

F.  Type of electronic timing device to be used for the timing of all races, name of the person supplying
the service, and expiration date of the service contract:
AXCIS INFORMATION NETWORK, INC.
TrackMaster c¢/o Equibase
821 Corporate Drive, Lexington, KY 40503
GPS System: Global Positioning Systems Technology

Name of person: David Siegel (Axcis Information Network, Inc.)
(TrackMaster/Equibase)
Expiration date: December 31, 2022

15. SECURITY CONTROLS

A. Name and title of the person responsible for security controls on the premises. Include an
organizational chart of the security department and a list of the names of security personnel and
contact telephone numbers. EXHIBIT 10 (A) /2021 GATE SCHEDULE EXHIBIT 10 (B)

B. Estimated number of security guards, gatemen, patrolmen or others to be engaged in security tasks
on a regular full-time basis: Based on “limited spectators” summer 2021 estimated security
personnel - 45

1. Attach a written plan for enhanced security for graded stakes races, and races of $100,000 or
more, to include the number of security guards in the restricted areas during a 24-hour period
and a plan for detention stalls.

The security for stakes races will be deployed in accordance with our agreement with
TOC, with a security guard positioned outside each stall for the entire 6-hour period for
each race of $100,000 or more. Details of the detention stalls are described in 15.B - 2 (C).



Back to Top

EXHIBIT 10A
Security Personnel

Person responsible for security controls on the premises:

Kim Jacobson Bill Donahue
Director of Risk Management Director of Security

Patrick O’Neil
Risk Management Supervisor

Investigators Lieutenants
Backside Backside
Jim Hamilton Jim Wallis
Michael Gibbons

Patrol/Traffic
J. Williamson Jeff Hamm
J. Rutledge

Admin

Jay Eppel

Contact Information:

Director of Risk Management Work 858-792-4233
Risk Management Supervisor Work 619-840-7881
Director of Security Work 858-755-1141 ext. 3652
Backside Investigator/Hamilton =~ Work 818-307-4483
Backside Investigator/Gibbons ~ Work 848-888-2754

All others Work 858-755-1141 ext. 3650

*List of Security Personnel subject to change. Individuals will be hired by the union
on a seniority basis.




Back to Top

o1e9) . Z.: Upe

HBIYS | J we geigl-wege:y

Rl A e

ayen)

ueadQ/eue|og Jyg

wdpl

wdoy

wdg

wdg

wdy

wdg

wdg

wdg

wd) | wdzy|wepp|wegL| weg Emw_ Em&_ Em@_ Wweg| wey| weg| Emwv Em_._EmN_‘ EIN5)

Sjeg) Ulely Jyye

SRIYS

IINAIHOS TLVO 1202
g0l 1igIHX3

F1NAIHOS 3LV leoT



Back to Top

CHRB-17 (Rev. 1/16)

2. Detention Stalls:

A. Attach a plan for use of graded stakes or overnight races.
Detention barn is used as required by the CHRB.

B. Number of security guards in the detention stall area during a 24-hour period.
As needed at the direction of the CHRB.

C. Describe number and location of surveillance cameras in detention stall area.

For the meet we will be utilizing five or more Detention stalls, as needed, located
east of the receiving / test barn as our detention area. We will install fixed cameras
in each of the five detention stalls as well as fixed cameras viewing the shed-row
from both directions. As with the barn area, surveillance control and viewing will
be from the CHRB Investigators’ Office on the Frontside.

3. TCO?2 Testing:

A. Number of races to be tested, and number of horses entered in each race to be tested.
All

B. Plan for enhanced surveillance for trainers with high-test results.
Will follow CHRB directives

C. Plan for detention stalls for repeat offenders.
Will follow CHRB directives

D. Number of security personnel assigned to the TCO2 program.

Assigned as needed

C. Describe the electronic security system:
Del Mar Thoroughbred Club uses a door alarm management system for its Executive and
Operations offices utilizing Proximity Cards and Proximity Access Keyfobs via door
controllers located at entrances. The system comes with related door alarm management
software.
1. Location and number of video surveillance cameras for the detention stall and stable gate.
Del Mar Thoroughbred Club utilizes pan/tilt/zoom cameras located at various places in the
barn area. The images from these cameras are recorded on disk drives and stored for up to
one week before being rerecorded. Control of these cameras is located in DMTC’s security
office.

D. For night racing associations. Describe emergency lighting system: N/A
16.  EMERGENCY SERVICES

A. Name, address and emergency telephone number of the ambulance service to be used during
workouts and during racing:
Mercy Ambulance
2537 Old San Pasqual Road
Escondido, CA 92027
(760) 525-9676
1. Attach a certification from the ambulance service(s) listed in 16.A., certifying that the
paramedic staff are licensed with the California Emergency Medical Services Authority.
EXHIBIT 11
On-track staff: Advanced Life Support Ambulances (ALS) — Paramedics and certified
Emergency Medical Technicians are on-site at all time that either training or live racing is
taking place.



Back to Top

| —
B
B —
s
m
i

0£1-0 1OqUINN UL

SIDIAIIS [BIPIIN AduaBaowuy “I9d1 (O LI

,00,80- #0:22:80 £0°} 1°020Z :0)eq :Aq pazioyny

ybneueaeg eupy Aq paubis Ajjebiq —1_ m: m C m>mo m_-_ U<

LoD

S19
STV  :se paAoiddy

1202 ‘0€ JoquianoN :9)eq uonesidxy
020z ‘T Jequiaoag :31eQ DAY
"ONI ‘NOILYLJOdSNVY| 1VOIQIW ADMIW :JWVN ADNIOV

LINY¥3d LYOdSNVYL 1VDIA3IW ADNIDYIWI

SHOIAYAS TVIIAAIAN ADNADATINT

OIJHId NVS 40 ALNNOD



Back to Top
CHRB 16.(B)1 SYMONS AMBULANCE

3/22/2021

To: Lucy Myers

This letter shall serve as a statement of affirmation that all Emergency Medical
Technicians and Paramedics employed by Symons Ambulance are trained,
background checked and state certified in order to fulfill their job duties as
authorized by the state of California Emergency Medical Services Authority.

Respectfully,

Ryan Merchant

Director of Operations

(951) 880-6263
rmerchant@symonsambulance.com

18592 Cajon Blvd., San Bernardino, CA 92407 * Office; (909) 880-2979
www.symonsambulance.com




CHRB 16.(B)1 HUNTINGTON AMBULANCE

CHRB
1010 Hurley Way #300 March 18, 2021
Sacramento, CA 95825

Dear CHRB Board,

l, Stacey O'Bryan, President of Huntington Ambulance, LLC certify that all E.M,T's
( Emergency Medical Technicians ) and Paramedics working for Huntiln ton
Ambulance, LLC are licensed with the State of Californ Emergency N
Serwfes, Orange County Emergency Medical Services and the Cali ornia Highway
Patro

All of our E.M.T’s and Paramedics are licensed with the CHRB.

Sincerely,

Stacey O"érya'n - President
Huntington Ambulance, LLC

Back to Top




Back to Top

CHRB-17 (Rev. 1/16)

B. Name, address and emergency telephone number of the ambulance service to be used during
workouts at auxiliary sites:

Auxiliary Site: Los Alamitos Auxiliary Site: San Luis Rey Downs
Huntington Ambulance Mercy Ambulance

Contact: Stacy O’Bryan Contact: Jesse Torres

PO Box 145 2537 Old San Pasqual Road

Sunset Beach, CA 90742 Escondido, CA 92027

(562) 904-1550 (760) 525-9676

Auxiliary Site: Santa Anita
Symons Ambulance
Contact: Ryan Merchant
18592 Cajon Blvd.

San Bernardino, CA 92407
(951) 880-6263

1. Attach a certification from the ambulance service (s) listed in 16.B., certifying that the
paramedic staff are licensed with the California Emergency Medical Services Authority.

e Mercy Ambulance Certificate: ON FILE

e Huntington Ambulance Certificate: ON FILE

e Symons Ambulance Certificate: ON FILE

C. Describe the on-track first aid facility, including equipment and medical staffing:
The on-site first aid clinic at Del Mar Thoroughbred Club is located at the east end of the
grandstand facility, with easy access from the track. The facility includes 4 patient beds (1
private room, 3 curtain areas). There are 2 Paramedics, 2 EMTs, 1 Medical Assistant and 1
doctor on site every racing day. Thursday, Friday, Saturday, Sunday, Opening Day, Pacific
Classic Day and Closing Day we have a Medical Coordinator (Medic 25) who works as liaison
with Municipal EMS. There are two ALS equipped ambulances on site as well.

The equipment contained in the first aid clinic includes:

e Oxygen at each station e B/P Cuff

e (Cardiac monitor e Thermometer

e AED e Bag Valve Mask

e Otoscope e Surgery Light

e Opthalmascope e Stethoscope

e Pulse and 02 Oximeter ® Glucose Monitor and Supplies

e Surgical equipment (used for laceration repair and suture removal)

D. Name and emergency telephone number of the licensed physician on duty during the race meeting:

If quarter horse racing association sees D.1.:
All medical doctors can be reached by contacting the first clinic directly at (858) 755-1141
ext. 2814 or through our Security Office by calling ext. 3650. The first aid clinic, Paramedics
and EMTs have radios to monitor the security channel and/or Official Channel. Medical
calls are dispatched by way of radio. Our doctors are contracted through Del Mar Doxx’s
- and rotate on site for the racing days. The doctors include:

Athanasios J. Foster, MD

Hessam Tabrizi, MD

Melinda E. Nevins, DO



Back to Top
CHRB-17 (Rev. 1/16) 1y

1. Name address and emergency telephone number of hospital located within 1.5 miles of the
racetrack, which whom an agreement is in place to provide emergency medical services,
pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19481.3(a): N/A

E. Name, address and emergency telephone number of the hospital to be used for admittance and
treatment of emergency injuries in the event of an on-track injury to a jockey:
Refer to the Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Jockey, On-Track Accident Response Program
for specifics regarding hospital selection.
e Scripps La Jolla
988 Genesee Ave., La Jolla, CA 92037 / 858-626-4123
e Scripps Encinitas
354 Santa Fe Drive, Encinitas, CA 92024 / 760-753-4123

F.  Attach, in English and Spanish, the emergency medical plan procedures that will be posted in each
jockey’s room to be used in the event of an on-track injury to a jockey: EXHIBIT 12

G. Name of health and safety manager and assistant manager responsible for compliance of health
and safety provisions pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19481.3(d):
e Health and Safety Manager (Risk Manager): Kimberly Jacobson
e Assistant Manager (Risk Management Assistant): Patrick O’Neal
e On-Site Medical Coordinator — Rotates between different Fire Fighter Paramedics

H. Attach a fire clearance from the fire authority having jurisdiction over the premises.
TO BE PROVIDED AFTER JULY 4, 2021 (Inspection scheduled after San Diego Fair
closure)
I.  Name of the workers’ compensation insurance carrier for the association and the number of the
insurance policy (if self-insured, provide details):
State Compensation Insurance Fund of CA
IOA Insurance Services
3875 Hopyard Road, Suite 200
Pleasanton, CA 94588
Policy #927286820

J.  Attach a Certificate of Insurance for workers’ compensation coverage. The CHRB is to be named
as a certificate holder and given not less than 10 days’ notice of any cancellation or termination of
insurance that secures the liability of the association for payment of workers’ compensation.
EXHIBIT 13

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Every licensee conducting a horse racing meeting shall, pursuant to Business and Professions
Code section 19481.3, maintain, staff, and supply an on-track first aid facility, that may be either permanent or mobile, and
which shall be staffed and equipped as directed by the Board. A qualified and licensed physician shall be on duty at all times
during live racing, except that this provision shall not apply to any quarter horse racing at the racetrack if there is a hospital
situated no more than 1.5 miles from the racetrack and the racetrack has an agreement with the hospital to provide emergency
medical services to jockeys and riders. An ambulance licensed to operate on public highways provided by the track shall be
available at all times during live racing and shall be staffed by two emergency medical technicians licensed in accordance
with Division 2.5 (commencing with Section 1797) of the Health and Safety Code, one of whom may be an Emergency
Medical Technician Paramedic, as defined in section 1797.84 of the Health and Safety Code. (b) Each racing association and
racing fair shall adopt and maintain an emergency medical plan detailing the procedures that shall be used in the event of an
on-track injury. The plan shall be posted in each jockey room in English and Spanish. (c) Prior to every race meeting, the
racing association or racing fair shall contact area hospitals to coordinate procedures for the rapid admittance and treatment
of emergency injuries. (d) Each racing association or racing fair shall designate a health and safety manager and assistant
manager, who shall be responsible for compliance with the provisions of this section and one of whom shall be on duty at all
times when live racing is conducted. The health and safety manager may, at the discretion of the racing association, be the
person designated to perform risk management duties on behalf of the association.



Del Mar Thoroughbred Club EXHIBIT

Jockey On-Track Accident Response Prograrﬁ

Overview: The Del Mar Thoroughbred Club (DMTC) is committed to the overall
health and safety of the riding professionals that are valued members of the
racing community and DMTC. A large part of this commitment is the provision of
professional medical and first aid services, should a jockey need to avail
themselves of such services or be involved in an accident that requires first aid or
emergency medical aid. DMTC takes their role in providing first aid and
emergency medical care and transportation, when required, seriously. This
program defines the plan elements and procedures DMTC will follow, should
such events occur where medical aid becomes necessary.

Program Elements:
I. Medical Professionals On-Site During Racing - Summary

DMTC maintains licensed medical and first aid professionals that comply
with the levels established by the horse racing industry. DMTC contracts
with Del Mar Doxx’s to provide a licensed physician and medical
assistants, who are on duty during live racing. DMTC maintains two
Advanced Life Support Ambulances. At minimum each ambulance is
staffed by a Paramedic and a certified Emergency Medical Technician
(EMT). In addition, municipal fire department, with paramedic and EMT
services are readily available as these services are co-located with the
track.

ii. Jockey Information Health System

DMTC participates in the Jockey Information Health System through
Incompass. All Medical Doctors and the Risk Management Department
have access to this program.

The medical doctors staffing the on-site clinic can access medical
information for those jockeys who participate in the program.

When a jockey, who participates in the program, is injured on track, the

DMTC Risk Management Supervisor will access and print the Jockey's

information. This information, along with Work Comp information is then
sent with the Jockey to the hospital and/or faxed directly to the hospital

emergency room.

il. Area Hospitals and Rapid Admittance
a. DMTC maintains a working relationship with two area hospitals,
both members of the Scripps Hospital and Healthcare family of
operations. The hospitals are found in either La Jolla, just south

Reviewed 3.1.2021
Property of the Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Page 1

Back to Top

L £s




Del Mar Thoroughbred Club
Jockey On-Track Accident Response Program

of the DMTC track, or Encinitas, just north of the track. Both are
Level 1 trauma hospitals.

b. The Scripps triage and base station is located at the La Jolla
hospital — when determined transport is necessary, hospital will
be contacted immediately by the Medical Clinic Staff,
Paramedics or Risk Management.

c. Riders will be transported to Scripps La Jolla unless base
station determines alternate site is necessary. All decisions on
where a rider will be seen are made by Scripps La Jolla at the
time of a reported incident. DMTC will not know where a rider is
being taken until such time that transport has been initiated and
we are advised as to which facility they are directed to.

d. The addresses of the hospitals are: (Both are located less than
10 miles from DMTC)
a. Scripps La Jolla
9888 Genesee Avenue
La Jolla, CA 92037
Tel: 858.626.4123

b. Scripps Encinitas
354 Santa Fe Drive
Encinitas, CA 92024
Tel: 760.753.4123

lli. The DMTC Safety and Health and Program Manager
a. The DMTC Risk Manager serves as the Safety Manager and
coordinator of the Jockey medical treatment and on-track
accident program.

b. DMTC also maintains an Assistant Safety and Health Manager
(the Risk Management Supervisor) during the live meet period
in the event the Safety Manager is unavailable.

Both the Risk Manager and the Risk Manager Supervisor can be reached
at the following extensions, Ext. 4233 or Ext. 3225 respectively or via radio on
the Security Channel as Risk 1 and Risk 2. As needed, the DMTC Operator or
security Dispatch can assist with obtaining alternate contact numbers as well.

V. On-site First Aid Facilities and Staffing
a. Physician - Services for the on-site medical clinic are contracted

through Scripps Coastal Medical Center. During all live racing periods there will a |

licensed physician and medical assistant on duty.

Reviewed 3.1.2021
Property of the Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Page 2

Back to Top




Back to Top

Del Mar Thoroughbred Club
Jockey On-Track Accident Response Program

b. Advanced Life Support Ambulances (ALS) — A Paramedic and
Certified Emergency Medical Technicians are on site at all times that either
training or live racing is taking place. During Training hours there will be one ALS
ambulance and one team which includes one, at a minimum (1) Paramedic and
one (1) Certified Emergency Medical Technician on site at all times. During live
racing there will be two ALS ambulances, which will include two (2) Paramedics
and two (2) Certified Emergency Medical Technicians on site. Team 1 will follow
the field during live racing, Team 2 will cover the paddock during pre-race
activities and serve as a back up to Team 1. Both teams will maintain radio
contact with the officials and security dispatch at all times. (Depending on staffing
for the day there may be times when two paramedics are on a rig).

c¢. Municipal Response Capabilities- DMTC is located on a State of
California Fairgrounds. As such, we enjoy the benefits of the Del Mar Fire
Department municipal fire service and Paramedic and Emergency Medical
Technicians that are stationed on the grounds. If the on-site station has
responded to an off-site emergency, the North Com dispatch will send the closest
responding unit available. On track Paramedics have the capability of calling
North Com directly should back up be necessary.

V. Ambulance and Medical Transport Protocols
a. Contracted ambulance service — DMTC contracts with a
licensed Emergency Medical Services provider who provides
ALS on-track emergency medical response and may provide
transport services. Depending on the time and nature of an
incident as well as the number of riders involved, transport may
be referred to or in conjunction with the local municipal services.

b. Local municipal services — The Del Mar Fire Department or
others within the Rancho Fire Service area may respond as
needed or called upon. The Rancho Fire Service will respond
with Paramedics and EMT's on the fire trucks as well as
Paramedics assigned to the municipal ambulances.

VI. The Emergency Medical Plan
These steps will be followed in the event of an on-track accident:

General Conditions

e On-site Paramedics and EMT’s will respond to any observed rider on-track
accident or as otherwise summoned for assistance. Such response will
occur during training and/or live racing periods,

e [f an incident requires transport, the hospital will be contacted and notified
of the patient transport. (The La Jolla location of Scripps Hospital serves
as the triage and base station for all incidents requiring hospital

Reviewed 3.1.2021
Property of the Del Mar Thoroughbred Ciub Page 3




Back to Top

Del Mar Thoroughbred Club
Jockey On-Track Accident Response Program

emergency care; they will direct the medical transport team as to which
hospital to respond to.)

Communications

¢ Paramedic and EMT's (Team 1 and 2) will be assigned two radios per
team allowing for constant communication with both security dispatch and
officials. Both Official Channel and Dispatch Channel will be monitored at
all times.

o Medical Clinic will be assigned one radlo and will maintain contact with
security dispatch at all times.

e DMTC security dispatch will monitor the official channel at all times.

e Safety and Health Program Manager and Assistant will monitor the
security channel at all times and the official channel during a live race.
Both individuals will be available either on site or via cell phone 24 hours a
day during the live meet.

Response During Training Periods

¢ During training periods, Advanced Life Support Unit will determine the
nature and extent of any injuries and whether transport to a medical facility
is necessary,

o The DMTC Security Dispatch will be notified immediately of any rider
incident on-track or otherwise during training periods and will assist EMS
provider with securing additional medical help for transport to area hospital
when necessary.

e Municipal units will meet on-track unit at the clock tower to secure injured
rider and transport to one of designated hospital.

e Incidents with injuries not requiring transport to one of the local hospitals
identified within this program will be treated on-track or at the DMTC fist
aid clinic based upon Paramedic judgment.

e Any on-track accidents during training periods will be immediately reported
to the Safety Manager, for analysis review and additional reporting as
might be required.

Response During Pre-Race (Paddock)
e Team 2 will be situated in the paddock area during pre race activities to
respond to an emergency occurring in the paddock area.

e Should an emergency occur Security Dispatch will be notified immediately.

Reviewed 3.1.2021 :
Property of the Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Page 4




Back to Top

Del Mar Thoroughbred Club
Jockey On-Track Accident Response Program

o DMTC Safety and Héalth Program Manager and/or Assistant will respond
to incident.

e Security dispatch will notify on site medical clinic that an incident has
occurred.

¢ As needed, additional medical assistance will be summoned from local
municipal resources,

e DMTC Security will respond to incident and assist with crowd control. If
necessary security will provide escort to the medical clinic.

Accidents During Live Racing

e ALS unit -Team 1 following the racing field will immediately respond to on-
track accidents; simultaneously, the on-track physician and medical
assistant will be made aware of the incident via radio contact, observation
of the race via closed —circuit television or as advised by the DMTC Safety
or Security Staff,

e ALS unit - Team 2 will be on stand by at medical clinic to assist and/or
replace the on track unit should it be necessary for Team 1 to leave the
track for any reason.

e In the event of a multiple rider down situation Team 1 will call for
immediate backup from Team 2 at which time Team 2 will enter the track
to assist. If the situation is going to require additional response from
outside Team 1 will request outside units through Security Dispatch.

¢ Should incident require ambulance to leave the track prior to the start of
the race, Team 2 will immediately move in to position at the starting gates.
When this occurs Team 2 will notify stewards via radio that they are in
place.

e |[f for any reason Team 2 is unavailable CHRB stewards must be notified
immediately via the official channel.

o As needed, additional medical assistance will be summoned from local
municipal resources,

o Riders will be transported to the on-site medical facility for initial review,
observation and triage. Should the Paramedic feel that immediate
transport is necessary to hospital he will alert Security that rider will be
transported directly to hospital (Paramedics have radio contact with
Scripps La Jolla and will notify them directly of the transport). Risk
Management will notify Officials.

Reviewed 3.1.2021 :
Property of the Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Page 5




Back to Top

Del Mar Thoroughbred Club
Jockey On-Track Accident Response Program

¢ To the extent possible, all care will be provided by the professionals within
the DMTC medical clinic,

e DMTC Safety and Security staff will immediately respond to the medical
clinic to assist with event management and access control to the medical
clinic,

¢ Depending on the nature and severity of injuries, the rider(s) may be
transported to one of the local hospitals noted within this plan for further
medical care and treatment as is needed,

e Any on-track accidents during live racing will be immediately reported to
the Safety Manager, for analysis review and additional reporting as might
be required.

e When one of the ALS units are required to leave the grounds DMTC
Security will be notified immediately and instructed to call North Com for
any patron medical aids until unit returns to grounds.

e Risk Management Department will provide Jockey Information Health
System paperwork and Workers Compensation to the hospital.

Please note: Under no circumstances will information regarding the medical
condition of a rider be provided to members of the media or others. Any such
request should immediately be referred to the Director of Media and or
President/General Manager.

VIl. Posting This Plan

The DMTC, Jockey, On-Track Accident Response Plan will be posted in English
and Spanish in the following locations:
a. The Jockey’s Room located on the first floor of the Clubhouse
Grandstands
b. The DMTC on-site medical facilities, and
¢. DMTC Security Dispatch

Additional copies of the plan will be maintained in the DMTC Risk Manager’s
office, located in the Operations Building.

iIX. Updates

The plan will be reviewed annually prior to the DMTC live racing meet and
appropriate changes and updates will be made. Regulatory and/or legislative
changes that may modify this plan will be included as will any changes in medical
providers and/or ambulance transport services.

Reviewed 3.1.2021
Property of the Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Page 6




Back to Top

Del Mar Thoroughbred Club
Jockey On-Track Accident Response Program

Reviewed 3.1.2021
Property of the Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Page 7




EXHIB]Back to Top

Club de Caballos Purasangre Hipédromo Del Mar
Programa de Respuesta ante un Accidente de los Jinetes en las Pistas

Vision General: El Club de Caballos Purasangre del Hipédromo Del Mar
(DMTC) se compromete a la salud y seguridad de todos los profesionales de
equitacion que son miembros valorados de la comunidad de equitacion y DMTC.
Una gran parte de este compromiso es proporcionar atencion médica
profesional y servicios de primeros auxilios, en caso de que un jinete necesite
utilizar tales servicios o se vea implicado en un accidente que requiera atencion
de primeros auxilios o asistencia médica de emergencia. DMTC hace su funcién
al ofrecer asistencia médica de emergencia, de primeros auxilios y transporte
cuando se requiera en caso necesario. Este programa define los elementos del
plan y procedimientos. DMTC realizara un seguimiento, cuando ocurran estos
hechos donde se necesite asistencia médica.

Elementos del Programa:
. Profesionales Médicos en el Sitio Durante la Carrera-Resumen

DMTC mantiene a profesionales médicos licenciados y de primeros
auxilios que cumplen con los niveles establecidos por la industria hipica.
DMTC contrata a “Del Mar Doxx’s” para ofrecer un médico licenciado y
ayudantes médicos que estan en servicio durante la carrera de caballos.
DMTC mantiene dos Ambulancias Avanzadas de Apoyo Vital. Como
minimo, cada ambulancia cuenta con un personal Paramédico y un
Técnico Médico de Emergencia certificado (EMT). Ademas del
departamento de bomberos municipal con paramédicos y servicios de
EMT que estan preparados, disponibles y estan situados al lado de la
pista.

ll. Sistema de Salud para la Informacidn del Jinete

DMTC participa en el Sistema de Salud para la Informacion del Jinete por
medio de Incompass. Todos los Médicos y Departamento de Gerencia de
Riesgo tienen acceso a este programa.

Todo el personal médico en el sitio puede acceder a la informacion
médica de aquellos jinetes que participen en el programa.

Cuando un jinete, que patrticipa en el programa, se accidenta en la pista,
el Supervisor de Gerencia de Riesgo de DMTC accedera e imprimira la
informacion del Jinete. Esta informacion, junto con la informacion de
Compensacion de los Trabajadores se manda junto con el Jinete al
hospital 0 se envia por fax directamente a la sala de emergencia del
hospital.

Reviewed 3.1.2021
Property of the Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Page 1




Club de Caballos Purasangre Hipédromo Del Mar

Programa de Respuesta ante un Accidente de los Jinetes en las Pistas

ll. Hospitales de la Zona y Admision Rapida

a. DMTC mantiene una relacion profesional con dos hospitales de

la zona, tanto los miembros del Hospital Scripps y la familia de
asistencia médica de operaciones. L.os hospitales se
encuentran o en La Jolla, justo al sur de la pista de DMTC, o en
Encinitas, justo al norte de la pista. Los dos son hospitales de
traumatismos Nivel 1. :

. La seleccion de Scripps y estacion base se sittia en el hospital

de La Jolla, cuando se necesite un transporte determinado se
les pondra en contacto inmediato con el Personal Médico,
Paramédicos o Gerencia de Riesgo.

. Se transportara a los jinetes a Scripps en La Jolla a menos que

la estacion base determine un lugar alternativo en caso
necesario. Todas las decisiones con respecto a donde se
atendera a un jinete se realizaran en Scripps La Jolla en el
momento en que se reporte el incidente. DMTC no sabra a
donde se lleva al jinete hasta el momento en que se haya
iniciado el traslado y se nos avise sobre la instalacidn a la que
se dirige.

. Las direcciones de los hospitales son: (Ambas se localizan a

menos de 10 millas de DMTC)
a. Scripps La Jolla
9888 Genesee Avenue
La Jolla, CA 92037
Tel: 858.626.4123

b. Scripps Encinitas
354 Santa Fe Drive
Encinitas, CA 92024
Tel: 760.753.4123

lli. Salud y Seguridad y Gerente del Programa de DMTC

Reviewed 3.1.2021

a. El Gerente de Riesgo de DMTC atiende como Gerente de

Seguridad y coordinador del tratamiento médico del jinete y el
programa de accidentes en la pista.

. DMTC también mantiene un Subgerente de Seguridad y Salud

(el Supervisor de Gerencia de Riesgo) durante el periodo del
encuentro de carreras en directo en caso de que el Gerente de
Seguridad no esté disponible.

Property of the Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Page 2

Back to Top




Club de Caballos Purasangre Hipédromo Del Mar
Programa de Respuesta ante un Accidente de los Jinetes en las Pistas

Tanto el Gerente de Riesgo y el Supervisor de Gerencia de Riesgo pueden
localizarse en las siguientes extensiones, Ext. 4233 o Ext. 3225 respectivamente
o por medio de la radio mediante el canal de Seguridad como Riesgo 1 y Riesgo
2. Cuando se necesite, el Operador o Despacho de Seguridad de DMTC podran
ayudarle a conseguir nimeros de teléfono de contacto alternativos.

IV. Instalaciones de Primeros Auxilios en el sitio y Personal

a. Médico- Los servicios para el centro médico en el sitio se contratan por
medio de “Scripps Coastal Medical Center”. Durante los periodos de
carreras en directo habra un médico licenciado y ayudante médico en
servicio.

b. Las Ambulancias Avanzadas de Apoyo Vital (ALS)- Un Paramédico y
Técnicos Médicos de Emergencia certificados estan en el sitio en todo
momento ya sea si estan entrenando o se esta llevando a cabo una
carrera hipica. Durante las horas de entrenamiento habra una ambulancia
ALS y un equipo que incluird uno, como minimo (1) Paramédico y un (1)
Técnico Médico de Emergencia Certificado en el sitio en todo momento.
El Equipo 1 seguira el campo durante la carrera en directo, el Equipo 2
cubrird las caballerizas durante las actividades antes de las carreras y
atendera como un refuerzo del Equipo 1. Ambos equipos mantendran el
contacto por radio con los oficiales y despacho de seguridad en todo
momento. (Dependiendo del personal para el dia puede haber ocasiones
cuando dos paramédicos se encuentren en un camion).

c. Las Capacidades de Respuesta Municipal-DMTC esta situado en un
recinto ferial del Estado de California. Como tal, disfrutamos de los
beneficios del servicio de bomberos municipal Del Mar, Paramédicos y
Técnicos de Emergencia Médica que se localizan en el terreno. Si la
estacion en el sitio ha respondido a una emergencia fuera del sitio, el
despacho North Com mandara a la unidad de respuesta mas cercana
disponible. Los Paramédicos en la pista cuentan con la capacidad de
llamar directamente a North Com en caso de que se necesite un refuerzo.

V. Protocolos de Transporte Médico y Ambulancia
a. El servicio de ambulancia contratada-DMTC contrata al
proveedor de Servicios Médicos de Emergencia licenciados que
proporciona ALS para responder ante las emergencias médicas
y puede proporcionar servicios de transporte. Dependiendo del
tiempo y la naturaleza de un incidente asi como el nimero de

Reviewed 3.1.2021
Property of the Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Page 3

Back to Top




Club de Caballos Purasangre Hipddromo Del Mar
Programa de Respuesta ante un Accidente de los Jinetes en las Pistas

jinetes implicados, transporte al que podra referirse o
conjuntamente con los servicios municipales locales.

b. Los servicios municipales locales- El departamento de
bomberos Del Mar u otros dentro del area de servicio de
incendios de Rancho podra responder seglin se necesite o
solicite. El Servicio de Bomberos de Rancho respondera con
Paramédicos y EMTs en los camiones de bomberos asi como
los Paramédicos asignados a las ambulancias municipales.

VI. Pian Médico de Emergencia
Estos pasos se seguiran en caso de que ocurra un accidente en las

pistas:

Condiciones Generales

e lLos Paramédicos y EMT en el sitio responderan a cualquier accidente que
se observe de un jinete en la pista o de otro modo pediran ayuda. Tal
respuesta ocurrira durante el entrenamiento o periodos de carreras en
directo,

e Siun incidente requiere transporte, se contactara y avisara al hospital del
transporte del paciente. (La localizacion de La Jolla del Hospital Scripp
atiende como sala de urgencias y estacion base para todos los incidentes
que requieran asistencia de emergencia hospitalaria y dirigiran al equipo
de transporte médico a qué hospital deberan acudir).

Comunicaciones

e Los Paramédicos y EMTs (Equipo 1y 2) se les asigharan dos radios por
equipo para permitir una comunicacion constante con el despacho de
seguridad y los oficiales. Tanto el Canal Oficial y el Canal de Despacho se
controlaran en todo momento.

e Se le asignara al centro médico una radio y mantendra contacto con el
despacho de seguridad en todo momento.

e El despacho de seguridad de DMTC controlara el canal oficial en todo
momento.

e El Gerente del Programa de Seguridad y de Salud controlara el canal de
seguridad en todo momento y el Ayudante controlara el canal de
seguridad en todo momento y el canal oficial durante una carrera en
directo. Ambas personas estaran disponibles tanto en el sitio como por
teléfono celular las 24 horas al dia durante el encuentro de las carreras en
directo.

Reviewed 3.1.2021
Property of the Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Page 4

Back to Top




Back to Top

Club de Caballos Purasangre Hipédromo Del Mar
Programa de Respuesta ante un Accidente de los Jinetes en las Pistas

Respuesta Durante los Periodos de Entrenamiento

e Durante los periodos de entrenamiento, la Unidad de Apoyo Vital
Avanzado determinara la naturaleza y extensién de cualquier lesion y si el
transporte a una instalacion médica es necesario,

e Se avisara de inmediato al Despacho de Seguridad de DMTC de
cualquier incidente de los jinetes en la pista o de otro modo durante los
periodos de entrenamiento y ayudara a EMS a conseguir ayuda médica
adicional para facilitar transporte al hospital del area cuando se necesite.

e Las unidades municipales se reuniran en la unidad en la pista en la torre
del reloj para asegurar al jinete lesionado y el transporte a un hospital
designado.

e Los incidentes con lesiones que no requieran transporte a uno de los
hospitales locales identificados dentro de este programa, se trataran en la
pista o en el centro de primeros auxilios de DMTC segun el criterio del
Paramédico.

e Cualquier accidente en la pista durante los periodos de entrenamiento se
reportara de inmediato al Gerente de Seguridad, para una revision del
analisis y reporte adicional segln se requiera.

Respuesta Durante la Pre-carrera (Caballeriza)

o El Equipo 2 estara situado en el area de caballerizas durante las
actividades de pre-carrera para responder a una emergencia que ocurra
en el area de las caballerizas.

e Siocurre una emergencia se avisara al Despacho de Seguridad de
inmediato.

e El Gerente del Programa de Salud y Seguridad de DMTC o Ayudante
respondera al incidente.

e El despacho de seguridad avisara al centro médico del sitio de que ha
ocurrido un accidente.

e Se solicitara ayuda médica adicional de los recursos municipales locales,
segln se necesite,

Reviewed 3.1.2021
Property of the Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Page 5




Back to Top

Club de Caballos Purasangre Hipédromo Del Mar
Programa de Respuesta ante un Accidente de los Jinetes en las Pistas

o La Seguridad de DMTC respondera al incidente y ayudara con el control
de la multitud. Si se necesita seguridad se proporcionara escolta hasta el
centro médico.

Accidentes Durante la Carrera en Directo

e Launidad ALS-Equipo 1 que sigue el campo de carreras respondera de
inmediato a los accidentes en la pista; simultdneamente, el ayudante
médico y médico en la pista se les pondra en conocimiento del incidente
contactandoles por medio de radio, la observacion de la carrera se hara
por medio de un circuito cerrado de television o segiin lo aconsejado por
el Personal de Seguridad de DMTC,

o Launidad ALS-Equipo 2 estara preparada por el centro médico para |
ayudar o remplazar a la unidad de la pista si fuera necesario por el Equipo
1 para abandonar la pista por cualquier razén.

e En caso de que jinetes miltiples se encuentren en situacion de lesion, el
Equipo 1 llamara para apoyo inmediato del Equipo 2 en el que el Equipo 2
entrara en la pista para ayudar. Si la situacion va a requerir una respuesta
adicional desde fuera el Equipo 1 solicitara fuera unidades a través del
Despacho de Seguridad.

o Si un incidente requiere ambulancia debera abandonar la pista antes de
que empiece la carrera, el Equipo 2 se desplazara de inmediato a una
posicion al cajon de salida. Cuando esto ocurre el Equipo 2 avisara a los
comisarios por medio de radio de que estan en su lugar.

e Si por cualquier razén el Equipo 2 no estda disponible se avisara de
inmediato a los comisarios CHRB por medio del canal oficial.

e Se pedira asistencia médica adicional desde los recursos municipales
locales, segun se necesite,

e Se transportara a los jinetes a una instalacion médica en el sitio para una
revision inicial, observacion y emergencia. Si el Paramédico considera
que se necesita transporte de inmediato al hospital se alertara a
Seguridad de que se llevara al jinete directamente al hospital (los
Paramédicos tienen contacto por radio con Scripps La Jolla y se les
avisara directamente del transporte). La Gerencia de Riesgo avisara a los
Oficiales.

Reviewed 3.1.2021
Property of the Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Page 6




Club de Caballos Purasangre Hipddromo Del Mar
Programa de Respuesta ante un Accidente de los Jinetes en las Pistas

e Enla medida de lo posible, los profesionales ofreceran toda la atencion
médica dentro del centro médico de DMTC,

e El personal de Seguridad de DMTC respondera de inmediato al centro
médico para ayudar con la gerencia del evento y control de acceso al
centro médico,

e Dependiendo de la naturaleza y gravedad de las lesiones, se podra
trasladar al jinete a uno de los hospitales locales sefialado dentro de este
plan para otra atencién médica y tratamiento segln se necesite,

e Cualquier accidente en la pista durante la carrera en directo se reportara
de inmediato al Gerente de Seguridad, para una revisién del analisis y
reporte adicional segUn se requiera.

e Cuando una de las unidades de ALS requiere que abandone los terrenos,
la Seguridad de DMTC avisara de inmediato y se le instruira llamar a
North Com para cualquier atencién médica de clientes hasta que regrese
la unidad al terreno.

e El Departamento de Gerencia de Riesgo proporcionara la documentacion
del Sistema de Salud de Informacién al jinete y Compensacion de los
Trabajadores al hospital.

Por favor tenga presente: Bajo ninguna circunstancia informaremos con
respecto al estado médico del jinete a los miembros de los medios u otros.
Cualquier peticion se referira de inmediato al Director de Medios o
Presidente/Gerente General.

Vil. Exposicion de Este Plan

El Plan de Respuesta de Accidente del Jinete en la pista de DMTC se expondra
en Inglés y Espafiol en las siguientes localizaciones:
a. La Sala del Jinete situada en la primera planta de las Gradas

del Clubhouse
b. Las instalaciones médicas en el sitio de DMTC, y
c. Despacho de Seguridad de DMTC

Las copias adicionales del plan se mantendran en la oficina del Gerente de
Riesgo de DMTC, localizada en el Edificio de Operaciones.

Reviewed 3.1.2021
Property of the Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Page 7

Back to Top




Back to Top

Club de Caballos Purasangre Hipddromo Del Mar
Programa de Respuesta ante un Accidente de los Jinetes en las Pistas

IX. Actualizaciones

Se revisara el plan anualmente antes del encuentro de las carreras en directo de
DMTC vy los cambios apropiados y actualizaciones que se hagan. Los cambios
regulatorios o legislativos que puedan modificar este plan se incluiran al igual
que los cambios en los proveedores médicos o servicios de transporte de
ambulancia.

Reviewed 3.1.2021
Property of the Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Page 8




Back to Top

Ciayin Menarrs Gowrey

STATE OF CALINORHIA - FIRTUR L FESOURCES pegvicy —
DEPARTNIENT OF FORESTRY AND MRE FROTECTION
OFPICE OF THE STATE FIRE ARRSHE]

Flre sl Lite Sisfety Divivion

YAON0 Jaffrcnnn Byantig Soite B

Murriets CR H2OGY

{804) 904 Foen

Wedssite:  vAsAy fire i (i

June 25, 2020

Sue Walls, Vice President - Facilities
Del Mar Thoroughbred Club

P.0. Box 700

Del Mar, California 92014-070

Re:  Del Mar Thoroughbred Racing Facility
CSFM File #04-37-041-0001

Dear Ms. Walls:

An inspection of the referenced facility was conducted on May 05, 2020, in accordance
with Section 13108(c) of the California Health and Safety Code. The purpose was to
determine compliance with minimum fire and life safety standards required by Titles 19
and 24 of the California Code of Regulations for horse boarding and racing, including
simulcast from July 1, 2020 thru December 31, 2020.

The deficiencies noted at the time of inspection have been corrected and reinspected for
compliance.

In accordance with regulations as adopted by the Califomia Horse Racing Board, this letter
may be accepted as a fire clearance from this office for the aforementioned time periods at
the Del Mar Thoroughbred Club located at the San Diego County Fairgrounds.

if we can be of further assistance, or you desire additional information or clarification,
please feel free to contact me at 951-304-7865.

Sincerely,

o

Jeffrey Bailey
Deputy State Fire Marshal (Il

“The Department of Forestry anid Fire Protection serves end sefeguerds the people and peaiects the property arad resources of Californae



Back to Top

ORANGE COUNTY FIRE AUTHORITY
P.O. Box 57115, Irvine, CA 92619-7115 e 1 Fire Authority Road, Irvine, CA 92602
Lori Smith, Assistant Chief/Fire Marshal (714) 573-6000 www.ocfa.org

FIRE AND LIFE SAFETY INSPECTION
CLEARANCE LETTER

April 27, 2021

Frank Sherren

Los Alamitos Race Course
4691 Katella Avenue
Cypress, CA 90630

Subject: Fire and Life Safety Inspection

An inspection was conducted by the Orange County Fire Authority (OCFA) for the Los Alamitos
Race Course at 4691 Katella Avenue, Los Alamitos, CA 90630. This inspection was performed
on April 27, 2021, by the OCFA Fire Inspector, Kenneth Wiggins and Assistant Fire Marshal,
Antonio Solares. We have accepted a plan of action to correct existing violations at this time.
The inspection report will be turned in for data entry to OCFA records. This letter will serve as
your Fire Clearance from the OCFA.

Please contact me directly if you have any questions or concerns.

Respectfully,

Kenneth Wiggins

Fire Inspector

Prevention Field Services Section
(714) 229-8801
kennethwiggins@ocfa.org

Serving the Cities of: Aliso Viejo * Buena Park * Cypress * Dana Point * Garden Grove * Irvine « Laguna Hills « Laguna Niguel « Laguna Woods « Lake Forest
La Palma « Los Alamitos « Mission Viejo * Rancho Santa Margarita San Clemente * San Juan Capistrano * Santa Ana * Seal Beach ¢+ Stanton * Tustin Villa Park «
Westminster * Yorba Linda ¢ and Unincorporated Areas of Orange County

RESIDENTIAL SPRINKLERS AND SMOKE ALARMS SAVE LIVES


mailto:kennethwiggins@ocfa.org
www.ocfa.org

Back to Top

North County Fire Protection District

330 S. Main Ave,
Fallbrook, CA 92028
(760) 723-2010

Friday, 31 July, 2020

Attn: Kevin Habell Property Address:
San Luis Rey Training Center
5772 CAMINO DEL REY 5772 CAMING DEL REY

BONSALL, CA 92003
BONSALL, CA 92003

Re: Initial - Fire & Life Safety on July 31 2020

NOTICE OF INSPECTION -
COMPLETED

CONGRATULATIONS, your Fire and Life Safety Inspection has satisfactorily been completed and
no violations were noted at this time. The North County Fire Protection District would like to thank you
for making fire and life safety a priority.

If you have any questions regarding our Fire and Life Safety Inspection program, please contact the
Fire Prevention Bureau at: (760) 723-2010.

Inspector: Property Representative:
P o T o MoK ML g
FFP David Moore, Jr. Kevin Habell

bmoore@ncfire.org

CA-37075 7/ 1028738 / 380140



Back to Top

May 11, 2021

California Horse Racing Board
1010 Hurley Way, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95825

Fire RE: Los Angeles Turf Club Fire Clearance

Department
To Whom It May Concern:

The Arcadia Fire Department, Fire Prevention Bureau, conducted a Fire and
Life Safety Inspection of the facilities at Los Angeles Turf Club to be used for
the dates of June 10, 2021 through September 30, 2021.

Michael Lang
Fire Chief

It is requested that this letter be accepted as the report of that inspection. During
the inspection no serious fire or life safety code violations were noted, and all
permitted uses may continue.

In accordance with regulations as adopted by the California Horse Racing
Board, this letter may be accepted as a fire clearance from this office for the
aforementioned racing dates at Los Angeles Turf Club, Arcadia, California.

Sincerely,
Ml Hit

Mark Krikorian
Fire Marshal

cc: Nate Newby, Senior Vice President & General Manager, L A.T.C
Jason Spetnagel, Director of Facilities & Grounds, L.A.T.C.
Ed Martinez, Asst. Facility Manager, L. A.T.C.
Joshua Funk, Fire Marshal, L.A.T.C.

710 S. Santa Anita Avenue
Arcadia, CA 91006

(626) 574-5100

(626) 446-7410



Back to To
| EXHIBIT 13 DELMART.01 oanzn
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 2021

THIS CERTIFICATE 1S ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

prODUCER Hicense # OEG7768 GONTACT
i PHONE FAX
I?,%?sl %53.532?5 Road o (AIG, No, Exty (925) 416-7862 | [4%, no):(925) 416-7869
Suite 200 ADDRESS:
Pleasanton, CA 94588 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
NSURER A : Arch Insurance Company 11150
INSURED iINSURER B ; State Compensation Insurance Fund of CA {35076
Del Mar Thoroughbred Ciub INSURER C :
PO Box 700 INSURER D :
Del Mar, CA 92014
INSURER E :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

kY TYPE OF INSURANCE oty | POLICY NUMBER RO | O, LIMITS
A | X | COMMERGIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
| cLAMs-MADE OCCUR SNCGL.1800901 31152021 | 3/15/2022 | BRMGREIGRENTED o) |8 100,000
] MED EXP (Any one person) $
- PERSONAL & ADV INJURY __ | § 1,000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 5,000,000
| X | poLicy SEG Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 5,000,000
OTHER: SEXUAL ABUSE MO | 1,000,000
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY FOMENER S NCLELMIT | 4 1,000,000
X | ANy auTO SNAUTO83101 3/15/2021 | 3/15/2022 | BoDILY INJURY (Per person) | $
™1 OWNED SCHEDULED
| AUTOS'ONLY AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accldent)| $
. OPERTY DAMAGE
L R{JRI%DS ONLY NS‘INO%V&%E& et accldent? $
3$
A | X|umereLatas | X | occur EACH OCCURRENCE $ 5,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE SNFEX0087701 3/15/2021 | 3/15/2022 AGGREGATE 3 5,000,000
peo | | Reventions $
B |WORKERS COMPENSATION X | PER | OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY STATUTE ER
YIN
AN;ISE%N“EAE%NPEé\(%[HEE/g;(ECUTNE NIA 927286821 3/31/2021 | 3/31/2022 EL. EACH ACGIDENT s 1,000,000
(Mandtory n NF) E.L. DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE § 1,000,000
If yes, describe under 1:000.000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $ S

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space Is required)
RE: Evidence of Coverage

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

California Horse Racing Board (CHRB) . / 2 7

1010 Hurley Way, Suite 300 o’ m@f y

| ISacramento, CA 95825 4 .

ACORD 25 (2016/03) - © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




Back to Top
CHRB-17 (Rev. 1/16) Zu

17. CONCESSIONAIRES AND SERVICE CONTRACTORS

Names and addresses of all persons to whom a concession or service contract has been given, other
than those already identified, and the goods and/or services to be provided by each: EXHIBIT 14

Does the association provide its own concessions?  Yes No X

18. ON-TRACK ATTENDANCE/FAN DEVELOPMENT

A. Attach a copy of the promotional and marketing plans for the race meeting:
EXHIBIT 15

B. Promotional/ Marketing budget for this race meeting and prior race meeting:

Category 2020 2021
Advertising $ 132,000 $ 272,250
Promotions $ 68,000 $ 83,300
Communications $ 115,120 $ 191,500
Corporate Sponsorship Fulfillment $ 20,000 $ 57,500
Other $ 10,000 $ 18.000
Total $ 345,120 $ 622,550

C. Number of hosts and hostesses employed for meeting: DMTC is requesting to operate with
“limited” spectators in accordance with public health and government guidelines. We will
employ approximately 20 customer service representatives on weekday racing (Thursdays) and
30 on weekends (Friday, Saturday and Sunday.)

D. Describe facilities set aside for new fans:

At Del Mar, virtually the entire facility is considered a new fan area, with customer service
locations on every floor and in every betting area that our “limited” fan base will enter, with a
complete staff of customer service representatives available for guidance, support and
assistance. In addition, a large portion of new fans are introduced to racing through our Group
Sales department which provides customized introductions to racing or the day’s card tailored
to individual groups. Del Mar also offers a variety of free seminars and handicapping
education for the more serious newcomers.

E. Describe any improvements to the physical facility in advance of the meeting that directly
benefit:

1. Horsemen

e Installation of washing and sanitation stations throughout the facility — on going.

e Replacement of stairways, balconies and shed row posts in stable area living quarters
(restricted area) — on-going.

e Replacement of flooring, doors, locks, and window screens in living quarters (restricted
area) — on-going.

e Upgrade of morning workout lighting (restricted area) — on-going.

e Repair of all stable area smoke detectors (restricted area) — on-going.

e Replacement of water service to miscellaneous barns in stable area (restricted area) — on-
going.

e Backfill of all stable area stalls with decomposed granite (restricted area) — on-going.



EXHIBIT 14

Back to Top

DMTC is requesting to operate with “limited” spectators in accordance with public health and
government guidelines. Concessions and Services listed below are subject to additions based on capacity

guidelines and customer service requirements.

CONCESSIONS:
Wes Westley, CEO
Premier Food Service, Inc./SMG
300 Conshohocken State Road
Conshohocken, PA 19428

SADDLERY SERVICES:
Frank Wipfli
Western Saddlery, Inc.

7038 Commerce Circle
Pleasanton, CA 94588

MISCELLANEOUS CONCESSIONS/SERVICES:

Tony Vasquez
‘Garda Cash Logistics
8807 Complex Drive
San Diego, CA 92123

Michael Costello
United/Puett Electrical
Starting Gates

224 Tater Hill Rd.

East Haddam, CT 06423

Gary S. Bell
Citrus Feed
PO Box 249
La Verne, CA 91750

Rayetta Burr

Benoit & Associates, Inc.
Track Photographers

PO Box 60014

Arcadia, CA 91066-6014

Brent Gulley

Gulley’s Livestrock Disposal
10272 Juniper Rd.

Oak Hills, CA 92344-0304

Angel P. Unamuno
Angel’s Feed

4518 Rowland Ave.
El Monte, CA 91731

Del Mar Doxx-A.J. Foster
Track Physicians

380 Stevens Ave., Ste 100
Solana Beach, CA 92075

Deven Owen

West Coast Feed
PO Box 893007
Temecula, CA 92589




Back to Top

EXHIBIT 15

Marketing Overview

DMTC is anticipating that we will be welcoming fans at some level back to the
races during the 2021 summer race. However, the number of fans that will be
allowed at the race track is not clear at this time. We will follow the guidance of
the governor’s office as well as the San Diego county health officials. The facility
will be operated under strict COVID safety protocols with a steadfast commitment
to ensure the safety and welfare of our fans, our workforce and our equine

athletes.

Clearly, the typical Del Mar marketing strategies for attracting large crowds via
racing promotions, concerts and events are not relevant for our 2021 summer
season. Instead, marketing efforts will be focused primarily on promoting
wagering — not only locally in San Diego, but throughout our simulcast markets —
and engaging customers through our digital and social media platforms. In
addition, we will communicate with our horsemen and women as well as local
racing fans about the availability of tickets and the safety protocols for those

attending the live races.



Back to Top

The key marketing tactics this year will include:

e Database marketing
e Social media
e Del Mar Website

e Advertising

Database Marketing

Database marketing, which has always been a mainstay in the Del Mar marketing
mix, will be even more important this season as it allows us to communicate
effectively with our current fan base of regular attendees and bettors. Over the
years Del Mar has devoted significant resources to identify our regular players by
building a data warehouse from various lists of information contained at the
racetrack (marketing, racing, group sales, turf club, ticketing, etc.) and then
tracking the behavior of those individuals through our loyalty club, The Diamond
Club. The Diamond Club has enjoyed phenomenal growth since its inception in
2006 with membership numbers now topping over 310,000. These members will
receive emails alerting them to race dates, post times, carryovers, big races and
general interest stories about jockeys, trainers and owners. Over 6 million
targeted emails will be sent to members of our database this year with a typical

open rate of 15% (900,000 emails opened!).




Back to Top

Social Media

Much like our marketing in general, the content of our social media
communications will now stress racing and wagering. Over the years our social
media community has grown as we continue to emphasis the big three: Facebook
(89,000 followers), Twitter (36,800) and Instagram (35,000).

Given the importance of social media this year, we have once again hired an
outside firm, Grand Slam Social (Breeders’ Cup is also a client), to assist with our
efforts. Videos, photos and news related to races as well as wagering
opportunities, horsemen proffles and COVID safety information will be sent to our

loyal followers on a regular basis.
Del Mar Website

From entries, results and handicapping information to real-time odds, pools and
videos, the website will once again provide racetrack regulars with the valuable
information and tools they need. The Beginner’s Corner and the Online
Handicapping Challenge are popular landing spots on the site as well. Last year

the site generated over 16,000,000 page views from 3,100,000 users.
Advertising

An aggressive advertising campaign throughout San Diego is generally a staple of
the marketing budget. However, with limited fans in the stands this year, we will
target racing fans and bettors with a scaled-down budget. Spending will be
increased for publications such as the Daily Racing Form and the Paulick Report as
we promote big races and wagering. In addition, we will continue to support

racing radio shows throughout the country.




Back to Top

The Del Mar Handicapping Challenge has traditionally been one of the biggest on-

site tournaments in the country. However, given that fans were not allowed on

track last summer, the contest was shifted to an on-line contest hosted by TVG.

The “live money” required a $3,000 bankroll as players compete for over

$150,000 in prizes. The tournament was capped at 150 players and handled over

$689,000. This year we intend to host a hybrid tournament with players wagering

both at the racetrack and online via TVG.

Budget

Advertising
Promotions
Communications
Sponsorship fulfillment
Other

Total

2020
$ 132,000
S 68,000

$ 115,120

$ 20,000
S 10,000
$ 345,120

2021
$ 272,250
$ 83,300
$ 191,500
$ 57,500
$ 18,000
$ 622,550




Back to Top

CHRB-17 (Rev. 1/16) i

e Renovation of miscellaneous restrooms, tack rooms and living quarters in stable area
(restricted area) — on-going.

e Replacement of exterior electrical outlets and wall lights in stable area (restricted area) —
on-going.

e Clean and screen all stable area shed-drains and roadways due to rocks and debris
(restricted area) — on-going.

e C(Clean and dig-out all stable area wash racks and storm drain boxes (restricted area) — on-

going.
e Re-grading of main dirt track (restricted area) — on-going.

e Repair camera towers and replace worn track rail and mirror padding (restricted area)
— on-going.

2. Fans

e Installation of washing and sanitation stations throughout the facility — on-going.

e Addition of reserved trackside tables on tarmac for 2021 limited spectator attendance.

e Upgrade tables/seating in Paddock view restaurants.

e Painting grandstand seating, railings and restroom doors — on-going.

e Replacement of television monitors with flat screen monitors throughout facility — on-
going.

e Installation of wireless technology throughout the facility to enhance the mobile app
experience - on-going.

3. Facilities in the restricted areas SEE 18-E-1
19. SCHEDULE OF CHARGES

DMTC is requesting to operate with “limited” spectators in accordance with public health and
government guidelines. Schedule of Charges is Pending and will be based on capacity guidelines.

A. Proposed charges, note any changes from the previous year: Pending
Admission (general)
Admission (clubhouse)
Reserved seating (general)
Reserved seating (clubhouse)
Parking (general)
Parking (preferred)
Parking (valet)
Programs (on-track)
(off-track)
No tickets sold in 2020 Summer race meet
B. Describe any "Season Boxes" and "Turf Club Membership" fees: Pending

C. Describe any "package" plans such as combined parking, admission and program: N/A
20. JOCKEYS/DRIVERS’ QUARTERS

A. Check the applicable amenities available in the jockeys/drivers’ quarters:
Jockeys quarters modified to adhere to social distancing and COVID-19 protocols. See Del
Mar Thoroughbred Club COVID-19 Operational Plan Section (4) — On-File.



Back to Top

CHRB-17 (Rev. 1/16) 2
x | Corners (lockers and cubicles) How many 73
x| Showers Steam room, sauna or steam cabinets x| Lounge area
Masseur x| Food/beverage service x| Certified platform scale

B. Describe the quarters to be used for female jockeys/drivers:
Modifications made to adhere to social distancing and COVID-19 protocols (see above).

21. BACKSTRETCH EMPLOYEE HOUSING

A. Inspection of backstretch housing has been requested and will be completed prior to the beginning
of the race meet.

B.  Number of rooms used for housing on the backstretch of the racetrack: 665 permanent

C.  Number of restrooms available on the backstretch of the racetrack: 253

D. Estimated ratio of restroom facilities to the number of backstretch personnel: Restroom facilities
available on the backstretch 253. Estimated ratio to the number of personnel — 1 restroom
facility per 4 backstretch employees.

22. TRACK SAFETY

A. Total distance of the racecourse - measured from the finish line counterclockwise (3' from the inner
railing) back to the finish line: 5.280 feet.

B. Describe the type of track surface at the facility, including the specific track surface composition:
The main track surface is a Dirt Running Surface. The surface consists of a 10” sandy loam
on top of a layer of decomposed granite and 6” round perforated drain pipe on top of the
existing dirt sub-base.

The turf course consists of GN-1 Bermuda grass sod with a growing medium consisting of 9”
of silica sand mixed with peat and turf grids blended into the top 6.

C. The percent of cross slope in the straight-aways is: 2.5%
The percent of cross slope in the center of the turns is: 5%

D. Describe the type(s) of materials used for the inner and outer railings of the race course, the type
of inner railing supports (i.e., metal gooseneck, wood 4" x 4" uprights, offset wood 4" x 4" supports,
etc.), the coverings, if any, on the top of the inner railing, and the approximate height of the top of
the inner railing from the level of the race course.

Main Track:

Fontana Inner rail: Aluminum. QOuter rail: Galvanized Steel Tubing. Inner rail supports:
Aluminum with 33” offset. Coverings: Fontana Safety panels. Approximate height of the top
inner rail: 40”.

Turf Track:

Inside running rail: Mawsafe pvc injection molded

Inside rail supports: Mawsafe pve with 16” offset

Approx. height: 47”

Outside running rail of the turf course is the same as the inside rail.

Outside rail supports are the same as the inside rail supports.

Approximate height 47”



Back to Top
CHRB-17 (Rev. 1/16) 5

E. Name of the person responsible for supervision of the maintenance of the racetrack safety standards
pursuant to CHRB Rule 1474: TOM ROBBINS, EXECUTIVE VP RACING

F.  Attach a Track Safety Maintenance Program pursuant to CHRB Rule 1474. ON FILE

G. Ifthe association is requesting approval to implement alternate methodologies to the provisions of
Article 3.5, Track Safety Standards, pursuant to CHRB Rule 1471, attach a Certificate of Insurance for
liability insurance which will be in force for the duration of the meeting specified in Section 2. The
CHRB is to be named as a certificate holder and given not less than 10 days’ notice of any cancellation
or termination of liability insurance. Additionally, the CHRB must be listed as additionally insured on
the liability policy at a minimum amount of $3 million per incident. The liability insurance certificate
must be on file in the CHRB headquarters office prior to the conduct of any racing. NO ALTERNATE
METHODOLOGIES REQUESTED - SEE EXHIBIT 13 CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE - ON
FILE

23. DECLARATIONS

A. All labor and lease agreements and concession and service contracts necessary to conduct the entire
meeting have been finalized except as follows (if no exceptions, so state): EXHIBIT 16

B. Attach each horsemen's agreement pursuant to CHRB Rule 2044.
Summer Meet Agreements with: CTT - PENDING
TOC - PENDING

C. Attach an agreement to provide for race-day furosemide administration pursuant to CHRB Rule
1845. ON FILE

D. Attach a lease agreement permitting the association to occupy the racing facility during the entire
term of the meeting. (In the absence of either a lease agreement or a horsemen’s agreement, a
request for an extension pursuant to CHRB Rule 1407 shall be made). ON FILE

E. All service contractors and concessionaires have valid state, county or city licenses authorizing
each to engage in the type of service to be provided and have valid labor agreements, when
applicable, which remain in effect for the entire term of the meeting except as follows (if no
exceptions, so state): NO EXCEPTIONS

F.  Absent natural disasters or causes beyond the control of the association, its service contractors,
concessionaires or horsemen participating at the meeting, no reasons are believed to exist that
may result in a stoppage to racing at the meeting or the withholding of any vital service to the
association except as follows (if no exceptions, so state): NO EXCEPTIONS

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Pursuant to CHRB Rules 1870 and 1871, the CHRB shall be given 15 days’ notice in writing of any
intention to terminate a horse racing meeting or the engagements or services of any licensee, approved concessionaire, or approved
service contractor.



Back to Top
EXHIBIT 16

DEL MAR THOROUGHBRED CLUB - UNION CONTRACTS CURRENTLY IN NEGOTIATION

UNION SIGNATORY ASSOCIATIONS JOB CLASSIFICATION CONTRACT DATES

Teamsters Local 495 Auto Park | Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Auto Park July 2020 through June 30, 2021*
Los Alamitos Race Course
Los Angeles Turf Club, Incorporated

Fairplex
Teamsters Local 495 Clockers/ |Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Clockers / Qutriders v July 2020 through June 2021*
Outriders Los Alamitos Race Course
Los Angeles Turf Club, Incorporated
Falrplex
Teamsters Local 495 Starters |Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Starters July 2020 through June 30, 2021*

Los Alamitos Race Course
Los Angeles Turf Club, Incorporated
Fairplex

Teamsters 495 Racing Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Racing Officials July 2020 through June 30, 2021*
Los Alamitos Race Course

Los Angeles Turf Club, Incorporated
Fairplex

SEIU Local #280 Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Mutuels Jan 1, 2020 through Dec 31, 2022
Los Alamitos Race Course

Los Angeles Turf Club, Incorporated
Fairplex

SCOTWINC

SEIU #1877 Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Racing
Los Alamitos Race Course In Negotiations
Los Angeles Turf Club, Incorporated
Fairplex

Local #89 Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Laborers December 31, 2021

Local #542 Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Tractor/Truck Drivers In Negotiations

SEIU #1877 Del Mar Thoroughbred Club Admissions / Public Events /
Security / Janitorial In Negotiations

* CONTRACT EXTENDS FOR AN ADDITIONAL YEAR




24.

Back to Top

CERTIFICATION BY APPLICANT

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury that I have examined this application, that all of the foregoing
statements in this application are true and correct, and that I am authorized by the association to attest
to this application on its behalf.

Z %A_ s lan
THOMAS S. ROBBINS -

Print Name Signature

EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT, RACING APRIL 8, 2021
Print Title Date




Agenda Item 9

STAFF ANALYSIS

June 16, 2021

Back to Top

DISCUSSION AND ACTION BY THE BOARD ON THE APPLICATION FOR LICENSE
TO CONDUCT A HORSE RACING MEETING OF THE CALIFORNIA EXPOSITION AND
STATE FAIR AT PLEASANTON, COMMENCING JULY 14, 2021, THROUGH JULY 20,

2021.

The California Exposition and State Fair (Cal Expo) filed its application to conduct a horse
racing meeting at Pleasanton as part of the California Authority of Racing Fairs (CARF)
2021 combined fair horse racing meeting, as follows:

e July 14, 2021, through July 20, 2021, with three days of racing, three less than in
2020. Cal Expo proposes to run a total of 30 races, 19 less than in 2020. Live racing
will commence July 16, 2021 and continue through July 18, 2021. Cal Expo is a

participant in the CARF 2021 combined fair horse racing meeting.

e At its March 2021 regular meeting, the Board heard and approved a request from
CARF to designate the 2021 allocated race dates of the Alameda County Fair
(6/16/21-7/13/21), CalExpo (7/14/21-8/3/21), Humboldt County Fair (8/18/21—
8/31/21), and The Big Fresno Fair (10/6/21-10/19/21) as a combined fair horse racing
meeting. The 2021 combined fair race meeting allows for the extended distribution
time of the carryover pool.

July 2021
Sun |Mon| Tue \Wed | Thu | Fri | Sat
1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 |12 |13 |14 |15 |16 (17
18 (19 |20 |21 |22 |23 |24
25 |26 (27 |28 |29 (30 |31

e Racing Friday through Sunday; 10 races each day on Friday, Saturday, and Sunday.

e Requests approval to adjust number of races scheduled dependent on availability of

horses and mules.

e Racing concurrently with the Los Alamitos Quarter Horse Racing Association and the
Del Mar Thoroughbred Club.

e Average number of runners per race, 2020 race meeting:

e Thoroughbred: 6.62



Back to Top

e Quarter horse: 5.5
e Arabian: 6

e First post 2:45 p.m. Friday, Saturday, and Sunday.

e Requests approval to adjust the post time schedule submitted, except for the first race
post time, to maximize wagering opportunities on its live program and all simulcast
import programs, which include Santa Anita, Los Alamitos, Del Mar, and out-of-state
programs.

e Wagering program will use CHRB and ARCI rules.

e Distribution of carryover pool will be October 17, 2021 (closing day of The Big

Fresno Fair).

Early wagering will not be offered.

$1 PPN when applicable; $1 TRI and $0.10 SF when applicable.

$0.50 PNP4 on first four races and last four thoroughbred races each day.

$0.50 PNP5 on last five thoroughbred races each day, with 100% major pool paid

for 5 of 5. If no 5 of 5, 75% carryover and 25% minor pool to most winners.

e $0.20 PNP6 on last six thoroughbred races each day. 100% pool paid and any
prior carryovers for unique ticket selecting six winners. If no unique ticket selects
six winners, then 40% minor pool that day is paid to the tickets selecting the most
winners, and 60% major pool will be added to carryover.

e $0.20 Pentafecta (Super High 5) selecting first five finishers in same race. 100%
pool paid and any prior carryovers paid for unique ticket selecting first five finishers.
If no unique ticket selects first five finishers, then 40% minor pool paid to tickets
selecting first five finishers, and 60% of major pool will be added to carryover. If no
ticket selects first five finishers, 100% of pool will be added to carryover. Super
High 5 will be carded on last race of the day. Sixth race of each day will be player’'s
exacta with 14% takeout. No guaranteed pic four wager. If pic six does not have
six thoroughbred races, emerging breed races will fill out the wager.

e The advance deposit wagering (ADW) providers are Churchill Downs Technology
Initiatives Company dba BetAmerica; Churchill Downs Technology Initiatives
Company dba TwinSpires; ODS Technologies, L.P. dba TVG Network;
Watchandwager.com, LLC (Watch and Wager); and XpressBet, LLC (Xpressbet).

Pursuant to Business and Professions Code (BPC) section 19604, specific provisions
must be met before an ADW provider can accept wagers.

Summary of BPC Section 19604

To accept wagers on races conducted in California from a resident of California:
e The ADW provider must be licensed by the Board.
e A written agreement allowing those wagers exists with the racing association
or fair conducting the races on which the wagers are made.



https://Watchandwager.com

Back to Top

e The agreement shall have been approved in writing by the horsemen’s
organization responsible for negotiating purse agreements for the breed on
which the wagers are made.

To accept wagers on races conducted outside of California from a resident of
California:

e The ADW provider must be licensed by the Board.

e There is a hub agreement between the ADW provider and one or both of (i)
one or more racing associations or fairs that together conduct no fewer than
five weeks of live racing on the breed on which wagering is conducted during
the calendar year during which the wager is placed, and (ii) the horsemen’s
organization responsible for negotiating purse agreements for the breed on
which wagering is conducted.

e All documents have been received in compliance with BPC section 19604.

e Simulcasting conducted with other out-of-state racing jurisdictions, pursuant to BPC
section 19602, and with authorized locations throughout California.

e Requests that Darrell Sparks be appointed horse identifier pursuant to Board Rule
1525, Racing Officials Appointed by the Board.

e Inspection of backstretch worker housing has been requested and will be completed
before the race meet begins.

e Track safety inspection has been requested and will be completed before the race
meet begins.

e The fire clearance for Alameda County Fair at Pleasanton was approved at the May
2021 regular Board meeting.

e CARF has agreed to adopt the Board’s Inclement Weather Policy, as posted on the
Racing Safety page of the Board’s website [letter submitted].

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval of the application.



Back to Top

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
CALIFORNIA HORSE RACING BOARD

APPLICATION FOR LICENSE TO CONDUCT A HORSE RACING MEETING OF A CALIFORNIA FAIR
CHRB-18 (Rev.1/16)

Application is hereby made to the California Horse Racing Board (CHRB) for a license to conduct a horse racing meeting
of a California fair as authorized by Article 6.5 of the California Business and Professions Code, Chapter 4, Division 8,
Horse Racing Law, and in accordance with applicable provisions and the California Code of Regulations, Title 4, Division
4, CHRB Rules and Regulations.

1. APPLICANT FAIR ASSOCIATION

A. Name, mailing address, telephone, and fax numbers of fair:
California Exposition & State Fair at Pleasanton
1600 Exposition Blvd., Sacramento, CA 95825
916-263-3000/Fax- 916-263-3230

B.  Fair association is a: District Fair County Fair Citrus Fruit Fair

X | California Exposition and State Fair Dther qualified fair

C. Provide the name, telephone, and email address for the fair contact person:
Rick Pickering, 916-263-3000, rpickering@calexpo.com
Larry Swartzlander, 916-263-3347, larry@calfairs.net

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Application must be filed not later than 90 days before the scheduled start date for the proposed meeting
pursuant to CHRB Rule 1433.

2. DATES OF RACE MEETING

A. Inclusive dates allocated for race meeting: July 14 — July 20, 2021

B. Actual dates (live) racing will be held: July 16, 17, 18
C. Dates (live) racing will NOT be held: July 19, 20
D. Total number of (live) racing days: 3

E. Days of the week races will be held:
Wed - Sun Tues - Sat | x | Other (specify) Friday — Sunday

3.  RACING PROGRAM
A. Total number of races: 30
Respectfully request approval to adjust the number of races scheduled dependent upon
availability of horses and mules.
B. Number of races by breed:

26 | Thoroughbreds ! | Quarter Horses
3 | Arabians 0 Mules
CHRB CERTIFICATION
Application received: 5/21/21 Hearing date: 6/16/21
Reviewed: NLG Approved date:
License number:



mailto:larry@calfairs.net
mailto:rpickering@calexpo.com
mailto:larry@calfairs.net
mailto:rpickering@calexpo.com

CHRB-18 (Rev.1/16)

D. Number of races daily:

Back to Top

2

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
Thoroughbred 9 9 9
Other Breeds 1 1 1
Total 10 10 10
D. Total number of stakes races by breed:
Thoroughbreds Quarter Horses Appaloosas
Arabians Paints Mules
E. List of all stakes races and indicate the date to be run and the added money or guaranteed purse for
each.
F.  Attach a listing of all stakes races and indicate the date to be run and the added money or
guaranteed purse for each.
1. Attach a listing of all stakes races for the past two race meetings. The information provided must
be for the same timeframe in which the association is applying. Include the date the stakes races were
run, and the added money or guaranteed purse for each. Note the races that were designated for
California-bred horses.
2. Identify the stakes races listed under item E that have been altered, added, or are new for the
current race meeting. Provide details regarding any alterations to the identified stakes races. (e.g.,
changes in the age, sex, eligibility, purse or substantial calendar changes). N/A
3. Identify the stakes races listed under item E1 that have been dropped or deleted, and the reasons
the stakes were dropped or deleted. N/A
2021 2020 2019
No Stakes Governor’s Handicap Governor’s Handicap
$50,000 Added Overnight Handicap $50,000 Added Overnight Handicap
(Plus up to $15,000 to Cal-Breds) (Plus up to $15,000 to Cal-Breds)
Three-year-olds & Upward — Six Furlongs Three-year-olds & Upward — Six Furlongs
Sat, Jul 25 Sat, Jul 20
F.  Will provisions be made for owners and trainers to use their own registered colors?

x | Yes No If no, what racing colors are to be used:




Back to Top

CHRB-18 (Rev.1/16) 3

G. List all post times for the daily racing program:

Sat & Sun Fri
Race 1 2:45 PM Race 1 2:45 PM
Race 2 3:15PM Race 2 3:15PM
Race 3 3:45 PM Race 3 3:45PM
Race 4 4:15 PM Race 4 4:15 PM
Race 5 4:45 PM Race 5 4:45 PM
Race 6 5:15 PM Race 6 5:15PM
Race 7 5:45 PM Race 7 5:45 PM
Race 8 6:15 PM Race 8 6:15 PM
Race 9 6:45 PM Race 9 6:45 PM

Race 10 7:15 PM

Race 11 7:45 PM

We respectfully request approval to adjust submitted post time schedule, excepting first race
post time, to maximize all wagering opportunities for our live program and all simulcast
import programs including Santa Anita, Los Alamitos, Del Mar, and out of state programs.

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Every licensee conducting a horse racing meeting shall each racing day provide for the running of at least one
race limited to California-bred horses, to be known as the "California-bred race" pursuant to CHRB Rule 1813.

4. FAIR ASSOCIATION

A.

Names of the fair directors:
Jess Durfee — Chair

Rex Hime — Vice Chair
Rima Barkett — Director
Erin M. Choi - Director
Sonney Chong — Director
Rina DiMare— Director
David Mallel — Director
Brian May - Director

Names of the directors serving on the Racing Committee or otherwise responsible for the conduct of
the racing program:

David Mallel - Director

Rina DiMare — Director

Brian May - Director

Name and title of the fair manager or executive officer and the names and titles of all department
managers and fair staff, other than those listed in 12B, who will be listed in the official program:
Rick Pickering- Chief Executive Officer

Tom Martinez — Chief Deputy General Manager

Craig Braddick - Public Address Announcer

Kevin Ingram - Stable Superintendent

Steve Wood- Track Foreman



Back to Top
CHRB-18 (Rev.1/16) 4
D. Name and title of the person(s) authorized to receive notices on behalf of the fair association and the

mailing and email address of such person(s).

Rick Pickering- Chief Executive Officer- rpickering@calexpo.com
Larry A. Swartzlander- Director of Racing- larry@calfairs.net
1600 Exposition Blvd., Sacramento, CA 95825

5. TAKE OUT PERCENTAGE
1. Will the percentage deducted for any type of wager be adjusted pursuant to Business and

Professions Code section 19601.01? If no, proceed to subsection 6. If Yes, identify the wager and
the proposed takeout percentage.

Yes No | x

Wager(s) to be adjusted: Proposed percentage: %

A. Attach copy of written notice requesting the proposed takeout adjustment, the proposed
percentage and the wager(s) affected. The notice must include the written agreement of the fair
association and the horsemen’s organization for the meeting of the fair association accepting the
wager. N/A

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19601.01 notwithstanding any other provision of law,
a thoroughbred association or fair, upon the filing of a written notice with, and approval by, the board specifying the percentage to be
deducted, may deduct from the total amount handled in the pari-mutuel pool for any type of wager an amount of not less than 10
percent nor more than 25 percent. The written notice shall include the written agreement of the thoroughbred association or fair and the
horsemen's organization for the meeting of the thoroughbred association or fair accepting the wager. The established percentage to be
deducted shall remain in effect until the filing of a subsequent notice with, and approval by, the board, unless otherwise specified in the
notice.

6. HANDLE HISTORY

1. Complete the table below providing the last five years of handle and attendance for the fair association.
If your association has been operating for fewer than five years, provide information for the period of
time it has been in operation.

Year Handle Attendance
2020 (6 days) 18,895,379 1704
2019 (11 days) 23,275,504 50,762
2018 (11 days) 24,553,318 57,539
2017 (11 days) 23,464,949 58,274
2016 (10 days) 22,312,284 58,532

*Ran one less day, Ran with Los Alamitos vs Hollywood Park and had one less day with Del Mar

7. PURSE PROGRAM (Excluding supplements, nominations, sponsorships, and starter fees):
A. Purse distribution:

1.  All races other than stakes:
Current meet estimate: $421,175


mailto:rpickering@calexpo.com
https://19601.01
https://19601.01
mailto:Racing-larry@calfairs.net
mailto:Officer-rpickering@calexpo.com

CHRB-18 (Rev.1/16)

Prior meet actual: $798,773

Average Daily Purse (7A1 + number of days):

Current meet estimate: $140,391
Prior meet actual: $133,128

Overnight stakes:
Current meet estimate: $0
Prior meet actual: $50,000

Average Daily Purse (7A2 + number of days):

Current meet estimate: $0
Prior meet actual: $8,333

Non-overnight stakes:
Current meet estimate: $0
Prior meet actual: $0

Average Daily Purse (7A3 + number of days):

Current meet estimate; $0
Prior meet actual: $0

Total Purses: (7TA1+-7A2+ 7A3)
Current meet estimate: $421,175
Prior meet actual: $848,773

Back to Top

5

B. Funds to be generated for all California-bred incentive awards (including breeder awards and
owners premiums):
Current meet estimate: $36,821

Prior

C. Payment to each recognized horsemen's organization contracting with the fair:

meet actual: $73,643

Current meet estimate:

CTT 1,032
TOC 2,063
NTRA 400
PCQHRA 463
ARAC 824
AMRA 0
CHBPAPEN 2,723
CTHF 2,723
Total- $10,228

Prior meet actual:

2,064
4,126
800
925
1,648
0
5,446
3.446
Total- $20,455

D. Amount from all sources to be distributed at the meeting in the form of purses or other benefits to
horsemen (7A+7B+7C):



Back to Top

CHRB-18 (Rev.1/16) 6

Current meet estimate: $468,224
Prior meet actual: $942,871

Average Daily Purse (7D + number of days):
Current meet estimate: $156,074
Prior meet actual: $157,145

E.  Purse funds to be generated from on-track handle and intrastate off-track handle (excluding carry-
overs from prior race meet(s):
Current meet estimate: $344,877
Prior meet actual: $689,754

Average Daily Purse (7E + number of days):
Current meet estimate: $114,959
Prior meet actual: $114,959

F.  Purse funds to be generated from interstate handle:
Current meet estimate: $49,135
Prior meet actual: $98,270

Average Daily Purse (7F + number of days):
Current meet estimate: $16,378
Prior meet actual: $16,378

G. Bank and account number for the Paymaster of Purses' purse account:
On file

H. Name, address, email and telephone number of the pari-mutuel audit firm engaged for the meeting:
Rossman, MacDonald & Benetti, 3838 Watt Ave. Suite E5S00, Sacramento, CA. 95821, (916) 488-
8360.

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: All funds generated and retained from on-track pari-mutuel handle which are obligated by law for distribution in
the form of purses, breeders’ awards or other benefits to horsemen, shall not be deemed as income to the fair and shall, within 3 calendar
days following receipt, be deposited in a segregated and separate liability account in a depository approved by the CHRB and shall be at the
disposition of the Paymaster of Purses, who shall pay or distribute such funds to the persons entitled thereto. All funds generated from off-
track simulcast wagering, interstate wagering, and out-of-state wagering which are obligated by law for distribution in the form of purses and
breeders’ awards, shall also be deposited within 3 calendar days following receipt into such liability account. In the event the fair is obligated
to the payment of purses prior to those obligated amounts being retained from pari-mutuel wagering for such purpose, or as a result of
overpayment of earned purses at the conclusion of the meeting, the fair shall transfer from its own funds such amounts as are necessary for
the Paymaster of Purses to distribute to the horse owners statutorily or contractually entitled thereto. The fair is entitled thereafter to recover
such transferred funds from the Paymaster of Purses' account; and if insufficient funds remain in the account at the conclusion of the meeting,
the fair is entitled to carry forward the deficit to its next succeeding meeting as provided by Business and Professions Code section 19615(c)
or (d). Inthe event of underpayment of purses which results in a balance remaining in the Paymaster of Purses' account at the conclusion of
the meeting after distribution of amounts due to horsemen and breeders and horsemen's organizations, the fair may carry forward the surplus
amount to its next succeeding meeting; provided, however, that the amount so retained does not exceed an amount equivalent to the average
daily distribution of purses and breeders’ awards during the meeting. All amounts in excess shall be distributed retroactively and
proportionally in the form of purses and breeders’ awards to the horse owners and breeders having earned purses or awards during the
conduct of the meeting.

8. STABLE ACCOMMODATIONS

A. Number of usable stalls available for racehorses at the track where the meeting is held: 800



Back to Top

CHRB-18 (Rev.1/16) 7

B.  Minimum number of stalls believed necessary for the meeting: 1200

C. Total number of usable stalls to be made available oft-site at approved auxiliary stabling areas or
approved training centers: 684

D. Name and location of each off-site auxiliary stabling area and the number of stalls to be maintained
at each site:
Alameda County Fair.

E.  Attach each contract or agreement between the fair and the person(s) furnishing off-site stabling
accommodations for eligible racehorses that cannot be provided stabling on-site.
No stabling agreement is required. Pleasanton is a consolidate Fair member.
Complete subsections F through H if the fair will request reimbursement for off-site stabling as provided by
Business and Professions Code sections 19607, 19607.1, 19607.2, and 19607.3; otherwise, proceed to section 9.

F.  Total number of usable stalls made available on-site for the 1986 meeting, pursuant to Business
and Professions Code section 19535(c).
960
G. Estimated cost to provide off-site stalls for this meeting. Show cost per-day per stall:
$9.45

H. Estimated cost to provide vanning from off-site stalls for this meeting. Show fees to be paid for
vanning per-horse: N/A

9. EQUINE EMERGENCY SERVICES

A. Name and emergency telephone number of the racing veterinarian onsite during training hours,

workouts and during racing for the association and auxiliary sites:
o Dr. Sarah Sporer 510-220-4860
o Dr. Frosty Franklin 916-585-2050

1. Attach a schedule listing the dates and times that the racing veterinarian will be available
onsite during training hours, workouts and during racing for the association and auxiliary
sites.
Dr. Frosty Franklin — 0500 — 1700 on racing days. Jul 10 — July 31 — On site
Dr. Sarah Sporer — 0500 — 10:00 training and workout hours at auxiliary Jul 10 — Jul 31.

10. PARI-MUTUEL WAGERING PROGRAM

A. Isthe fair applicant a member of the California Authority of Racing Fairs (CARF)? If yes, attach a

copy of the CARF recommended wagering format. Yes [ ] No

B.  Pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19599, and with the approval of the CHRB, fairs
may elect to offer wagering programs using CHRB Pari-mutuel Rules, the Association of Racing
Commissioners International (RCI) Uniform Rules of Racing, Chapter 9, Pari-mutuel Wagering, or a
combination of both. Please complete the following schedule for the types of wagering other than
WPS and the minimum wager amount for each. If applicant is a member of CARF, also indicate if
wager is a part of the CARF recommended wagering formant:

Use DD for daily double, E for exacta (special quinella), PK3 for pick three, PK4 for select four, PNP



March 25, 2021
California Horse Racing Board

Attn: Cynthia Alameda
Assistant Executive Director

To Whom It May Concern:

Back to Top

The following information is provided for you in response to the 2021 Race Meet Applications for the Alameda County Fair,

California State Fair, Humboldt County Fair and The Big Fresno Fair:

The following is the CARF wagering format:

TYPE OF WAGERS
Example Race $1 E; $1 Double

Race #1 $1E, $1PK3, $1TRI,
$2DD, $.10SF
$.50PNP4

Race #2 S$1E, $1PK3, SITRI,
$2DD, $.10SF

Race #3 $1E, $1PK3, SITRI,
$2DD, $.10SF
$.20PNP6

Race #4 $1E, $1PK3, SITRI,
$2DD, $.10SF, $.50PNP5
$.20PNP6

Race #5 $1E, $1PK3, SITRI,
$2DD, $.10SF, $.50PNP4,
$.50PNP5, $.20PNP6

Race #6 $1E, $1PK3, $1TRI,
$2DD, $.10SF, $.50PNP4,
$.50PNP5, $.20PNP6

Race #7 $1E, $1PK3, $1TRI,
$2DD, $.10SF, $.50PNP4,
$.50PNP5, $.20PNP6

Race #8 $1E, $1PK3, $1TRI,
$2DD, $.10SF, $.50PNP4,

$.50PNPS5, $.20 SUPER HIGH 5

Race #9 $1E, $1PK3, $1TRI,
$2DD, $.10SF, $.50PNP4,
$.20 SUPER HIGH 5

APPLICABLE RULES
CHRB #1959; RCI #VE

CHRB #1959, CHRB #1977, CHRB #1979,
CHRB #1957, CHRB #1979.1
CHRB #1976.9

CHRB #1959, CHRB #1977, CHRB #1979,
CHRB #1957, CHRB #1979.1

CHRB #1959, CHRB #1977, CHRB #1979,
CHRB #1957, CHRB #1979.1
ARCI 004-105 G. (g) Method 7 (16)(b)(i)

CHRB #1959, CHRB #1977, CHRB #1979,
CHRB #1957, CHRB #1979.1, CHRB 1976.9
ARCI 004-105 G. (g) Method 7 (16)(b)(i)

CHRB #1959, CHRB #1977, CHRB #1979,
CHRB #1957, CHRB #1979.1, CHRB #1976.9
CHRB 1976.9, ARCI 004-105 G. (g) Method 7 (16)(b)(i)

CHRB #1959, CHRB #1977, CHRB #1979,
CHRB #1957, CHRB #1979.1, CHRB #1976.9
CHRB 1976.9, ARCI 004-105 G. (g) Method 7 (16)(b)(i)

CHRB #1959, CHRB #1977, CHRB #1979,
CHRB #1957, CHRB #1979.1, CHRB 1976.9
CHRB 1976.9, ARCI 004-105 G. (g) Method 7 (16)(b)(i)

CHRB #1959, CHRB #1977, CHRB #1979,
CHRB #1957, CHRB #1979.1, CHRB #1976.9
CHRB #1976.9,

ARCI 004-105 X-Pentafecta (5) Option 4

CHRB #1959, CHRB #1977, CHRB #1979,
CHRB #1957, CHRB #1979.1

CHRB #1976.9,

ARCI 004-105 X-Pentafecta (5) Option 4



Back to Top

Race #10 $1E, $1PK3, $1TRI, CHRB #1959, CHRB #1977, CHRB #1979,
$2DD, $.10SF, CHRB #1957, CHRB #1979.1
$.20 SUPER HIGH 5 ARCI 004-105 X-Pentafecta (5) Option 4
Race #11 $1E, $1TRI, $2DD, $.10SF, CHRB #1959, CHRB #1979, CHRB #1957,
$.20 SUPER HIGH 5 CHRB #1979.1
ARCI 004-105 X-Pentafecta (5) Option 4
Race #12 $1E, $1TRI, $.10SF, CHRB #1959, CHRB #1979,
$.20 SUPER HIGH 5 CHRB #1979.1

ARCI 004-105 X-Pentafecta (5) Option 4

This format will be use at the following fairs: Alameda County Fair, The California State Fair, Humboldt County Fair and the Big Fresno Fair. The 2005
NCOTWINC Agreement maintained on file at CRRB is still valid. The NCOTWINC audio visual agreement on file dated January 2005 is still valid.

Respectfully Yours,

&%P Q. z%w}@uv

Larry A. Swartzlander
Executive Director

$.20 PNP6 on the last six races each day. 100% major pool paid and any prior
carryovers for unique serial number wager selecting all six winners. If no unique
ticket selects six winners then the 40% minor pool that day is paid to the tickets
selecting the most winners and the 60% major pool will be added to the carryover.
$0.50 PNPS on the last five races each day, with 100% major pool paid for 5 of 5. If
no 5 of 5, 75% carryover and 25% minor pool to most winners.

$0.20 Pentafecta (Super High 5) selecting the first five finishers in the same race.
100% pool paid and any prior carryovers paid for a unique serial number wager
selecting the first five finishers in exact order. If no unique serial number wager
selects the first five finishers then 40% minor pool paid to tickets selecting the first
five finishers in exact order and 60% of major pool will be added to the carryover. If
no wager selects the first five finishers in exact order, then 100% of the pool will be
added to the carryover. Super High-5 will be carded on the last race of the day.

The aforementioned Pari-Mutuel Carryover Pools can be carried over from CARF
Meet to CARF Meet and run as 1 (one) continuous meet. There will be a Mandatory
Payout Date of Sunday, October 17, 2021, which is the Closing Day of The Big
Fresno Fair.



CHRB-18 (Rev.1/16)

Back to Top

8

for pick (n) pool, PPN for place pick (n), Q for quinella, SF for superfecta, TRI for trifecta, and US

for unlimited sweepstakes (pick 9).

TYPE OF WAGERS
Example Race $1 E; $1 Double

Race #1 $1E, $1PK3, $1TRI,
$2DD, $.10SF
$.50PNP4

Race #2 $1E, $1PK3, $1TRI,
$2DD, $.10SF

Race #3 $1E, $1PK3, $1TRI,
$2DD, $.10SF
$.20PNP6

Race #4 $1E, $1PK3, $1TRI,
$2DD, $.10SF,
$.50PNP5, $.20PNP6

Race #5 $1E, $1PK3, $1TRI,
$2DD, $.10SF, $.50PNP4,
$.50PNPS5, $.20PNP6

Race #6 $1E, $1PK3, $ITRI,
$2DD, $.10SF, $.50PNP4
$.50PNP5, $.20PNP6

Race #7 $1E, $1PK3, $1TRI,
$2DD, $.10SF, $.50 PNP4
$.50PNP5, $.20PN6

Race #8 $1E, $1PK3, $1TRI,
$2DD, $.10SF,
$.50PNP4, $.50PNP5,

$.20 SUPER HIGH 5
Race #9 $1E, $1PK3, $1TRI

$2DD, $.10SF, $.50PNP4

$.20 SUPER HIGH 5
Race #10 $1E, $1PK3, $1TRI,

$2DD, $.10SF,
$.20 SUPER HIGH 5

Race #11 $1E, $1TRI, $2DD
$.10SF,
$.20 SUPER HIGH 5

APPLICABLE RULES CARFWAGERINGFORMAT
CHRB #1959; RCI #VE Yes X

CHRB #1959, CHRB #1977, CHRB #1979,
CHRB #1957, CHRB #1979.1
CHRB #1976.9

CHRB #1959, CHRB #1977, CHRB #1979,
CHRB #1957, CHRB #1979.1

CHRB #1959, CHRB #1977, CHRB #1979,
CHRB #1957, CHRB #1979.1
ARCI 004-105 G. (g) Method 7 (16)(b)(i)

CHRB #1959, CHRB #1977, CHRB #1979,
CHRSB #1957, CHRB #1979.1
CHRB# 1976.9 ARCI 004-105 G. (g) Method 7

(16)(b)(i)

CHRSB #1959, CHRB #1977, CHRB #1979,
CHRB #1957, CHRB #1979.1, CHRB #1976.9
CHRB #1976.9, ARCI 004-105 G. (g) Method 7

(16)(b)()

CHRB #1959, CHRB #1977, CHRB #1979,
CHRB #1957, CHRB #1979.1, CHRB #1976.9
CHRB #1976.9, ARCI 004-105 G. (g) Method 7

(16)(b)(i)

CHRB #1959, CHRB #1977, CHRB #1979,
CHRB #1957, CHRB #1979.1, CHRB #1976.9
CHRB 1976.9, ARCI 004-105 G. (g) Method 7

(16)(b)()

CHRB #1959, CHRB #1977, CHRB #1979,
CHRB #1957, CHRB #1979.1, CHRB #1976.9
CHRB 1976.9, ARCI 004-105 X-Pentafecta (5) Option 4

CHRB #1959, CHRB #1977, CHRB #1979,
CHRB #1957, CHRB #1979.1, CHRB #1976.9
ARCI 004-105 X-Pentafecta (5) Option 4

CHRB #1959, CHRB #1977, CHRB #1979,
CHRB #1957, CHRB #1979.1
ARCI 004-105 X-Pentafecta (5) Option 4

CHRB #1959, CHRB #1979, CHRB #1957,
CHRB #1979.1
ARCI 004-105 X-Pentafecta (5) Option 4

C. Identify any wagers noted in 10A (the current pari-mutuel wagering program) that were not in the
prior year’s pari-mutuel program, or that are not being carried forward from the previous year’s

pari-mutuel wagering program. None.



Back to Top

CHRB-18 (Rev.1/16) 9

D. Maximum carryover pool to be allowed to accumulate before its distribution OR the date(s)
designated for distribution of the carryover pool: 17 October, the last day of the Fresno Fair.
Carryovers would include the Gold Rush Pic six, the Gold Strike Pentafecta and the pic five or
four.

E. List any options requested with regard to exotic wagering:

$1 PPN when applicable; $1 TRI and $0.10 SF when applicable

$0.50 PNP4 on the first four races and the last four thoroughbred races each day.

$0.50 PNPS on the last five thoroughbred races each day, with 100% major pool paid for 5 of 5. If
no 5 of 5, 75% carryover and 25% minor pool to most winners.

$.20 PNP6 on the last six thoroughbred races each day. 100% pool paid and any prior carryovers
for unique ticket selecting six winners. If no unique ticket selects six winners then the 40% minor
pool that day is paid to the tickets selecting the most winners and the 60% major pool will be
added to the carryover.

$0.20 Pentafecta (Super High 5) selecting the first five finishers in the same race. 100% pool paid
and any prior carryovers paid for a unique ticket selecting the first five finishers. If no unique
ticket selects the first five finishers then 40% minor pool paid to tickets selecting the first five
finishers and 60% of major pool will be added to the carryover. If no ticket selects the first five
finishers 100% of the pool will be added to the carryover. Super High-5 will be carded on the last
race of the day. There will be no guaranteed pic four wager. If the pic six does not have six
thoroughbred races emerging breed races will fill out the wager.

F.  Will "advance" or "early bird" wagering be offered? Yes x| No

If yes, when will such wagering begin? Specify days and time for “early bird” wagering:

G. Type(s) of pari-mutuel or totalizator equipment to be used by the fair and the simulcast
organization, the name of the person(s) supplying equipment, and expiration date of the service
contract: Amtote (Dave Calendine) Expiration October 30, 2025
Equipment description on file with CHRB.

H. List below the takeout percentage for each type of wager identified in 10B.

TAKEOUT PERCENTAGE

Win, Place, Show — 16.77%; Exacta & Daily Double — 24.02%

Pick 3, 4, 5, 6 & all Trifectas, Superfectas & Super High Five — 25.02%
Players exacta 14% takeout.

11. ADVANCE DEPOSIT WAGERING (ADW)

A. Identify the ADW provider(s) to be used by the fair for this race meeting:
BetFair, (TVG), Express Bet and Bet America, Watch and Wager & Twin Spires.

B. Attach a copy of the agreement/contracts with each ADW provider to be used for this race
meeting: CARF agreement on file with the CHRB.

C. Have the contract/agreements been approved by the respective horsemen’s groups?
Yes | x No

If yes, attach a copy of the approval.



Back to Top

TOC

Thoroughbred Owners of California

Serving the California
nomughbred Rﬂl‘t’harff Owner

March 27, 2021

Mr. Larry Swartzlander
Chief Operating Officer

CARF

1776 Tribute Road, Suite 205
Sacramento, CA 95815

RE: 2021 California Authority of Racing Fairs (CARF) ADW Approvals
Dear Larry,

Pursuant to the Interstate Horseracing Act and applicable California law, the Thoroughbred
Owners of California (TOC) agrees to the use of CARF race signals under the terms and conditions
set forth below.

Pursuant to Section 29, Intrastate Advance Deposit Wagering (“ADW”) of the Race Meet
Agreement between TOC and CARF, and the Geo-Location Agreement (Exhibit A) between TOC
and each ADW provider, CARF shall be permitted to transmit race signal to California-licensed
ADW providers TVG, XpressBet, TwinSpires, NYRA, BetAmerica, Watch and Wager, and Game
Play Network to accept wagers on CARF and other Thoroughbred races during the 2021 race
meetings, as follows:

1. California wagering on CARF races:

a. TVG, XpressBet, TwinSpires, and NYRA may deduct a Hub Fee of 5.0% of gross handle for
ADW wagers accepted by California residents at all locations other than within the
enclosures of Thoroughbred racetracks and fairs on days when they are running live race
meets.

b. BetAmerica may deduct a Hub Fee of 4.2% of gross handle for ADW wagers accepted by
California residents at all locations other than within the enclosures of Thoroughbred
racetracks and fairs on days when they are running live race meets.

c. Watch and Wager and Game Play Network may deduct a Hub Fee of 4.1% of gross handle
for ADW wagers accepted by California residents at all locations other than within the
enclosures of Thoroughbred racetracks and fairs on days when they are running live race
meets.

d. TVG, XpressBet, TwinSpires, NYRA, BetAmerica, Watch and Wager, and Game Play
Network may deduct a Hub Fee of 1.5% of gross handle for ADW wagers accepted by
California residents located within the enclosure of a Thoroughbred racetrack or fair on
days when they are running live race meets, as more fully set forth in Exhibit A.

e. For all wagers identified in sections 1.a.-c. above, the remainder of the takeout shall be
distributed in conformity with the Market Access Fee provisions of California law (Section
19604 et seq).

285 W. HUNTINGTON DR., ARCADIA, CA 91007 (626) 574-6620
CHAIRMAN: GARY FENTON
PRESIDENT & CEO: GREG AVIOLI
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: MARY FORNEY
NORTHERN CA LIAISON: WAYNE ATWELL
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: ELSA PERON



Mpr. Larry Swar: Back to Top

March 27, 2021
Page 2 of 2

2. California wagering on out-of-state Thoroughbred races:

a. TVG, XpressBet, TwinSpires, and NYRA may deduct a Hub Fee of 5.0% of gross handle for
ADW wagers accepted by California residents at all locations other than within the
enclosures of Thoroughbred racetracks and fairs on days when they are running live race
meets.

b. BetAmerica may deduct a Hub Fee of 4.2% of gross handle for ADW wagers accepted by
California residents at all locations other than within the enclosures of Thoroughbred
racetracks and fairs on days when they are running live race meets.

c. Watch and Wager and Game Play Network may deduct a Hub Fee of 4.1% of gross handle
for ADW wagers accepted by California residents at all locations other than within the
enclosures of Thoroughbred racetracks and fairs on days when they are running live race
meets.

d. TVG, XpressBet, TwinSpires, NYRA, BetAmerica, Watch and Wager, and Game Play
Network may deduct a Hub Fee of 1.5% of gross handle for ADW wagers accepted by
California residents located within the enclosure of a Thoroughbred racetrack or fair on
days when they are running live race meets, as more fully set forth in Exhibit A.

e. For all wagers identified in sections 2.a.-c. above, the remainder of the takeout shall be
distributed in conformity with the Market Access Fee provisions of California law (Section
19604 et seq).

3. Out-of-state wagering on PRA races:
a. TVG, XpressBet, TwinSpires and NYRA shall pay a Host Fee of no less than 7.5% of gross
out-of-state handle wagered by out-of-state account holders, plus a 1.25% California Purse
Fee per SB 1072.
b. BetAmerica, Watch and Wager, and Game Play Network shall pay a Host Fee of no less
than 45% of takeout (which includes a 1.25% California purse fee per SB 1072) of gross
out-of-state handle wagered by out-of-state account holders.

This agreement in no way binds TOC to the same terms and conditions with respect to future race
meetings. TOC’s authorization shall not serve, nor should it be construed as, a precedent to future
requests for permission to transmit race signals, and facilitate wagering on those signals, to the
ADW providers specified herein or to any other ADW provider. TOC reserves the right to cancel
or withdraw its authorization for any ADW provider, at any time, upon 48 hours written notice.
These terms and conditions are subject to receipt by TOC of written confirmation of these terms,
signed by authorized representatives of TVG, Xpressbet, TwinSpires, NYRA, BetAmerica, Game
Play Network, and Watch and Wager.

Very truly yours,

Greg Avioli, President & CEO

cc: Tom Varela, Heather Haviland



Back to Top

Pacific Coast Quarter Horse Racing Association

April 1,2021

Executive Director

CARF ’

1776 Tribute Road, Suite 205
Sacramento, Ca 95815

RE: 2021 California Authority of Racing Fairs ADW Approvals

Dear Larry,

This is to confirm that the Pacific Coast Quarter Horse Racing Association (PCQHRA) authorizes and agrees -
that during the California Authority of Racing Fairs (CARF) 2021 racing season, commencing June 18, 2021
and continuing. through October 17, 2021, California-licensed ADW providers Watch and Wager, Bet
America, TVG, Xpressbet,

TwinSpires and NYRA may accept wagers fiom California residents on races conducted at CARF and races

H

conducted at tracks located outside of California, :

Itis PCQHRA’s understanding that the compensation rates and fees for this wagering activity are those

specified in the TOC Letter Agreement dated March 27, 2021.
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerely, i
ino Perez
“General Manager

PO[ Basp19e4d Alamitos, CA 90720 » phone (714) 236~1755 * fax (714) 236-1761 » e-mail: office@PCQHRA.com * wulk pReh &%




RECEIVED 09/20/20719 11: 48rM do] 0} yoe

Aprit 21, 2025

Executive Director

CARF

1776 Tribute Road, Suite 205
Sacramento, Ca 95815

RE: 2021 California Authority of Racing Fairs ADW Appravals

Dear Larry,

This is to confirm that the Arabian Racing Assoclation of California (ARAC) authorizes and agrees that during the California
Authority of Racing Fairs (CARF) 2020 racing season, commencing June 18, 2021 and continuing through October 17,
2021, California-licensed ADW providers Bet America, TVG, Xpressbet, TwinSpires, Watch & Wager and NYRA may accept
wagers fiom California residents on races conducted at CARF and races conducted at tracks located outside of California.

It Is ARAC's understanding that the compensation tates and fees for this wagering activity are those specified In the TOC
Letter Agreement dated March 27, 2021.

Please feel free to contact me ¥ you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Cory Soitau /7

Chalrperson

[Type text}- ‘ ‘ [Type text]




Back to Top
CHRB-18 (Rev.1/16) 10

If no, explain the status of the approval.

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19604, ADW providers may accept wagers on races conducted in
California from a resident of California if : 1) the ADW provider is licensed by the Board; 2) a written agreement allowing those wagers exists with the
racing association or fair conducting the races on which the wagers are made;3) the agreement shall have been approved in writing by the horsemen’s
organization responsible for negotiating purse agreements for the breed on which the wager are made. ADW provides may accept wagers on races
conducted outside of California from a resident of California if: 1) the ADW provider is licensed by the Board; 2) there is a hub agreement between
the ADW provider and one or both of (i) one or more racing associations or fairs that together conduct no fewer than five weeks of live racing on the
breed on which wagering is conducted during the calendar year during which the wagers are placed and (ii) the horsemen’s organization responsible
for negotiating purse agreements for the breed on which wagering is conduced.

12. SIMULCAST WAGERING PROGRAM
A.  Simulcast organization engaged by the fair to conduct simulcast wagering: NCOTWINC

B. Attach the agreement between the fair and simulcast organization permitting the organization to use
the fair's live audiovisual signal for wagering purposes and providing access to its totalizator for the
purpose of combining on-track and off-track pari-mutuel pools. On File

C. California simulcast facilities the fair proposes to offer its live audiovisual signal:

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA
Alameda County Fair, Pleasanton Barona Valley Ranch Resort & Casino, Lakeside
Bankers Casino, Salinas
Big Fresno Fair, Fresno Cabazon Fantasy Springs Casino, Indio
California State Fair & Exposition, Sacramento = Commerce Casino Racebook, Commerce
Club One, Fresno Derby Club, Seaside Park, Ventura
Firehouse Restaurant, Bakersfield
Golden Gate Fields, Albany Fairplex Park, Pomona
Fantasy Springs Casino, Indio
*Humboldt County Fair, Ferndale Los Alamitos Race Course, Los Alamitos
Mermaid Tavern, Thousand Oaks
Jockey Club at San Mateo, San Mateo OC Tavern & Sports Bar, San Clemente

Roadhouse Grill, Santa Maria

Sammy’s Restaurant & Bar, Lake Forrest
Santa Anita Park, Arcadia

Santa Clarita Lanes, Santa Clarita

Monterey County Fair, Monterey Shalimar Sports Center, Indio
San Joaquin County Fair, Stockton Sports Center, San Bernardino
Santa Clara County Fair, San Jose Sports Pavillion at The Farmers Fair, Lake Perris
Shasta District Fair, Anderson Sports Pavillion, San Bernardino Cty. Fair, Victorville
Solano County Fair, Vallejo Surfside Race Place at Del Mar, Del Mar
Sonoma County Fair, Santa Rosa Sycuan Gaming Center, El Cajon
Tilted Kilt, Thousand Oaks
Stanislaus County Fair, Turlock Viejas Casino & Turf Club, Alpine

Watch & Wager, Antelope Valley Fgds, Lancaster
*Open only during Humboldt/Ferndale Fair Racing

D. Out-of-State & International Imports — Full and/ or Partial Card (Subject to Change)



Back to Top

CHRB-18 (Rev.1/16) 1
2021 IMPORT TRACKS
ARLINGTON
BELMONT
ASSINIBOIA 7/15-8/4
AUSTRAILIAN RACING 7/15-8/4
BEULAH 7/15-8/4
30CALDER RACECOURSE 7/15-8/4
ANTERBURY DOWNS 7/15-8/4
CHARLES TOWN 7/15-8/4
CHURCHILL DOWNS 7/15-8/4
DELAWARE 7/15-8/4
DOWNS AT ALBUQUERQUE 7/15-8/4
ELLIS PARK 7/15-8/4
EMERALD DOWNS 7/15-8/4
EVANGELINE DOWNS 7/15-8/4
FORT ERIE 7/15-8/4
GULFSTREAM 7/15-8/4
HASTINGS PARK 7/15-8/4
HAWTHORNE 7/15-8/4
INDIANA DOWNS 7/15-8/4
KEENLAND 7/15-8/4
KENTUCKY DOWNS 7/15-8/4
LAUREL 7/15-8/4
LONE STAR 7/15-8/4
LOUISIAN DOWNS 7/15-8/4
MONMOTH 7/15-8/4
MOUNTAINEER PARK 7/15-8/4
NYRA-AQUEDUCT 7/15-8/4
NYRA-BELMONT 7/15-8/4
NYRA-SARATOGA 7/15-8/4
PENN NATIONAL 7/15-8/4
PHILADELPHIA PARK (PARX) 7/15-8/4
PIMLICO 7/15-8/4
PRAIRIE MEADOWS 7/15-8/4
PRESQUE ISLE 7/15-8/4
RIVER DOWNS 7/15-8/4
SOUTH AMERICAN RACING 7/15-8/5
SUFFOLK DOWNS 7/15-8/4 E. Out-of-state
SUNLAND PARK 7/15-8/4 wagering systems that
SUNRAY PARK 7115-8/4 will combine their pari-
TI:Irg\'I/!EéDBC,)A\V\\(/N ;; 1 ggﬁ mutuel pools with those
TURFWAY PARK 7115-8/4 of the fair:
TURF PARADISE 7/15-8/4
UNITED KINGDOM 7/15-8/4
WOODBINE 7/15-8/4




CHRB-18 (Rev.1/16)

Back to Top

12

CARF 2021 Meets
Commingled Locations

AmWest Entertainment

Amwest Accounts
Greenbrier (WV)
Riders Up (SD)

Time Out Lounge (SD)
Triple Crown (SD)

Arapahoe-Mile High

Arima Race Club

Arlington |

Atlantic City Racecourse
Atokad

Balmoral

Balmoral ADW (BETZOTIC)

Bangor Raceway

Batavia

Bettor Racing

Beulah Park

Birmingham

Bluffs Run Greyhound
Buffalo Raceway

Calder Racecourse
Canterbury Park

Capital District OTB
Catskills OTB

Charles Town Race Course
Chester Downs & Marina LLC
Churchill Downs

Club Hipica InTurf

Coeur d' Alene Casino
Colonial Downs

Colonial Downs Phone Bet
Columbus Raceway
Connecticut OTB

Bradley Teletheater, Bristol
New Britain, Norwalk, Milford
East Haven, Hartford, Putnam
Shoreline Star, Sports Haven
Torrington, Waterbury
Manchester, New London
Willimantic

John Martin's Manor Restaurant
Connecticut OTB ADW
Coushatta Casino

Paragon Casino

Ho-Chunk Casino and Racebook
Mohegan Sun Casino

Oneida Bingo and Casino

Pony Bar Simulcast Center
Tote Investment Racing
Randall James Racetrack

Delta Downs

Dover Downs

Ebet

Elite Turf Club (1 to 10)
Ellis Park

Emerald Downs

Euro Off Track
Evangeline Downs
Evangeline Downs AWA
Fair Grounds

Fair Grounds ADW
Fair Meadows

Finger Lakes

Fonner

Freehold

Gillespie County Fair

Global Wagering Solutions
Bwin International Ltd.
Intl Betting Assoc. Ltd

Magna Bet
Race bets
Greenetrack
Greyhound @ Post Falls
Gulf Greyhound
Gulfstream

Harrington Raceway
Hawthorne Race Course
Hawthorne ADW
Hazel Park
Hoosier Park
Horseman's Park
Indiana Downs
Evansville OTB
Clarkesville OTB
Intermountain Racing
IP Tote (Venezuela)
Keeneland
Keeneland Select ADW
Kentucky Downs
Kentucky OTB
Lebanon
Les Bois (Treasure Valley)
Lewiston OTB's
Lien Games
Chips Lounge and Casino
Howard Johnsons OTB
Rumors OTB
Skydancer Casino OTB
Lien Games ADW
Bet America

Lone Star
Louisiana Downs
LvVDC
Atlantis Paradise Casino
Avatar Ventures
Buffalo Thunder Resort
Foxwoods Resort Casino
Meskwaki Bingo & Casino
Maronas (South America)
Maryland Jockey Club
Maywood
Meadowlands

Meadows The
Meadows The (ADW) - PA
regional

Mobile Greyhound
Monmouth Park
Montana OTB
Monticello
Mountaineer Park
Mt. Pleasant Meadows
Nassau Regional OTB
New Jersey Casino Assoc.
Nevada Pari-Mutuel Assoc.
Newport Jai Alai
NJ Mobile
Northfield

Cedar Downs OTB
Northville
NYRA
NYRA Account Wagering
Oaklawn
Ocean Downs
Panama
Penn National
Penn National Telebet
Peru
Philadelphia Park
Philly Park Phone Bet
Plainridge Race Course
Plainridge Telephone Wagering
Player Management Group
Pocono Account Wagering
Pocono Downs and OTB
Portland Meadows
Potawatomi Casino/ OTB
Prairie Meadows
Premier Gateway (Phumelela)
Premier Turf Club
Presque Isle Downs
Raceway Park

Running Aces Harness Park
Saddle Brook Park
Sam Houston
Valley Greyhound Park
Saratoga Harness Raceway
Saratoga Bets (ADW)
Scarborough
Scioto Downs
Seabrook Greyhound
Social Gaming
Sol Mutuel
Southland Greyhound
Sports Creek Raceway

State Fair (Lincoln, NE)
Suffolk District OTB
Suffolk Downs

Pat's Pizza
Sunland Park
Sun Ray Park & Casino
Tampa Bay Downs
Taunton Acct Wagering
Taunton Dog Track Inc.
The Downs at Albuquerque
Thistledown
Tioga Downs
Tri-State GH (Mardi Gras)
Turf Paradise
Turfway Park
TVG Chester
TVG Network
TVG Prairie
Twin River Greyhound
TwinSpires
TwinSpires High Volume
Velocity Wagering Ltd.
Venezuela OTB
Vernon Downs
Watch and Wager
Western OTB
Wheeling Downs
Will Rogers Downs
Wyoming
Xpress Bet
Yonkers Raceway
Youbet Group 1
Zia Park



Back to Top

CHRB-18 (Rev.1/16) 13
Millenium Racing Best Fast Now Racing2Day LLC
Royal Beach Casino OnlineRacing.TV Racing2Day Intl. (Stan James)
Divi Carina Bay Casino BetTheRacesOnline.com Remington Park
Fair Chance BigJackpotBetting.com Remington OTB Network
Winner's Circle Hometownbets.com Retama Separate Pool Locations
Corpus Christi Greyhound RaceplayWin.com Racing & Gaming Services Camarero (Puerto Rico)
Delaware VIPHorsePlayer.com River Downs Caymanas (Jamaica)
Trackinfo.com Rockingham Park MIR Books (Caliente)
Offtrackbetting.com Rockingham Account Wagering NDS Books (Nevada)

Ruidoso Downs

Canadian Locations
Assiniboia, Barrie, Charlottetown, Clinton Teletheatre, Dresden, Elmira Raceway, Evergreen Park, Exhibition Park, Flamboro Downs,
Fraser Downs, Fort Erie, Frederiction Raceway, Georgian Downs, Grand River, Hanover Raceway, Hastings Park, Hiawatha, Hipodrome de Quebec, Inverness Raceway
Kawartha Downs, Marquis Downs, Mohawk, New Brunswick, Northlands, Northside Downs, Picov Downs, Quinte Raceway, Rideau Carlton,
Rocky Mountain Turf Club, Royal Britiana Hub, St. Johns, Sudbury Downs, Summerside, TBC Sandown, TBC Teletheaters
Truro Raceway, Western Fair, Windsor, Woodbine, Woodstock/Ontario

Out-of-state wagering systems the fair proposes to offer its live audiovisual signal:

F. California mini-simulcast facilities the fair proposes to offer its live audiovisual signal:
OC Tavern & Sports Bar, San Clemente; Commerce Club, City of Commerce, Firehouse Restaurant, Bakersfield, Mermaid
Tavern,, Santa Clarita Lanes, Tilted Kilt, Striders Thousand Oaks, Sammy’s Restaurant & Bar, Lake Forest & Nor Co, Santa
Barbara.

G. List the host tracks from which the fair proposes to import out-of-state and/or out-of-country
thoroughbred races. Include the dates imported races will be held and whether or not a full card
will  beaccepted. If the full card will not be imported, state “selected feature and/or stakes races”:

Name of Host Track Race Dates Full Card or Selected Feature and/or Stakes Races
See 11D above. TBD

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Business and Professions Code section 19596.2(a) stipulates that on days when live thoroughbred or fair
racing is being conducted in the state, the number of thoroughbred races which may be imported by an association or fair during the
calendar period the association or fair is conducting its racing meeting cannot exceed a combined daily total of 50 imported
thoroughbred races statewide. The limitation of 50 imported thoroughbred races per day statewide does not apply to those races
specified in Business and Professions Code section 19596.2(a)(1), (2), (3) and (4).

H. List imported simulcast races the fair plans to receive during the racing meeting which use breeds
other than the breed of the majority of horses racing at its live horse racing meeting. Include the
name of the host track, the dates imported races will be held, and how many races will be imported:

Los Alamitos Quarter Horses Per CHRB Calendar Full Card
Cal Expo Harness Horses Per CHRB Calendar Full Card

OTHER BREED SIMULCAST RACES TO BE IMPORTED
Name of Host Track Breed of Horse Race Dates Number of Races to be Imported

I.  Ifany out-of-state or out-of-country races will commence outside of the time constraints set forth in
Business and Professions Code sections 19596.2 and 19596.3, attach a copy showing agreement by
the appropriate racing association(s). N/A

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: All interstate wagering to be conducted by a fair is subject to the provisions of Title 15, United States Codes,
which require specific written approval of the CHRB and of the racing commission having jurisdiction in the out-of-state venue. All



Back to Top
CHRB-18 (Rev.1/16) 14

international wagering to be conducted by a fair is subject to the provisions of Business and Professions Code sections 19596, 19596.1,
19596.2, 19596.3, 19601, 19602, and 19616.1, and will require specific written approval of the CHRB.

Every fair shall pay to the simulcast organization within 3 calendar days following the closing of wagering for each racing program, or
upon receipt of the proceeds, such amounts that are retained from off-track simulcast wagering, interstate and out-of-state wagering and
which are obligated by statute for guest commissions, simulcast operator's expenses and promotions, equine research, local government
in-lieu taxes, and stabling and vanning deductions. Every fair shall pay to its Paymaster of Purses' account within 3 calendar days
following the closing of wagering for each racing program, or upon receipt of the proceeds, such amounts that are retained or obligated
from off-track simulcast wagering, interstate and out-of-state wagering for purses, breeders’ awards or other benefits to horsemen. (See
Notice to Applicant, Section 7.)

13. RACING OFFICIALS, OFFICIALS, AND OFFICIATING EQUIPMENT

A. Racing officials nominated:

Association Veterinarian(s)- Audrey Clifton, DVM
Clerk of Scales- Kenneth Sjordal
Clerk of the Course- Tina Walker
Film Specialist- Danny Winnick
Horse Identifier- Darrel Sparks
Horseshoe Inspector- Larry Goshman
Paddock Judge- Danny Winick
Patrol Judges- Morgan Schlesser/Danny Winick
Placing Judges- Steve Martinelli/Myra Troske
Starter- Todd Stephens
Timer- Melody Truitt
B. Management officials in the racing department:
Director of Racing- Larry A. Swartzlander
Racing Supervisor- Juliana Gomes
Concierge- Lisa Wilkerson
Racing Secretary- Tom Doutrich
Assistant Racing Secretary- Linda Anderson
Paymaster of Purses- Victoria Layne
Track Announcer Vic Stauffer

Others (identify by name and title)

C. Name, address, email and telephone number of the reporter employed to record and prepare
transcripts of hearings conducted by the stewards:
Wendy Frazier, 13136 Ivey Rd., Herald, CA 95638 916-956-3914

D. Photographic device to be used for photographing the finish of all races, name of the person
supplying the service, and expiration date of the service contract:
Plusmic Corporation, USA- Bill O’Brien, Contract Expires December 31, 2021

E. Photo patrol video equipment to be used to record all races, name of the person supplying the
service, and expiration date of the service contract. Specify the number and location of cameras for
dirt and turf tracks.

Pegasus Communications, Inc (Jim Porep) Contract Expires: December 31, 2023
Equipment listed in attachment.

F. Type of electronic timing device to be used for the timing of all races, name of the person supplying
the service, and expiration date of the service contract:



Back to Top

CHRB-18 (Rev.1/16) 15

Dedicated PC with connectivity to a hard wired electronic system surrounding the racetrack with
infrared sensors at each 1/16"™ pole and both chutes. Pegasus Communications, Inc. (Jim Porep)
Contract Expires 4/30/2023.

14. SECURITY CONTROLS

A. Name and title of the person responsible for security controls on the premises. Include an
organizational chart of the security department and a list of the names of security personnel and
contact telephone numbers.
Acting Chief Craig Walton — 916-263-3050; Organizational chart attached

B. Estimated number of security guards, gatemen, patrolmen or others to be engaged in security tasks
on a regular full-time basis. : Gate Persons 9 Police Officers — S supported by roving patrol and
30-110 member Cal Expo Police Department.

1. Attach a written plan for enhanced security for graded stakes races, and races of $100,000 or
more, to include the number of security guards in the restricted areas during a 24-hour period and a plan
for detention stalls. N/A

2. Detention Stalls:
A. Attach a plan for use of graded stakes or overnight races. No Graded Stakes

B. Number of security guards in the detention stall area during a 24-hour period.
N/A
C. Describe number and location of surveillance cameras in detention stall area.
N/A
3. TCO2 Testing:

A. Number of races to be tested, and number of horses entered in each race to be tested.
Will comply with and follow CHRB directives

B. Plan for enhanced surveillance for trainers with high-test results.
Will comply with and follow CHRB directives

C. Plan for detention stalls for repeat offenders.
Will comply with and follow CHRB directives

D. Number of security personnel assigned to the TCO2 program.
As directed by CHRB

C. Describe the electronic security system.

1. Location and number of video surveillance cameras for the detention stall and stable gate.
Mobile surveillance system and gear provided and installed by CARF

15. EMERGENCY SERVICES

A. Name, address and emergency telephone number of the ambulance service to be used during
workouts and the running of the races:
American Medical Response, 1101 Fee Dr., Sacramento, CA 95815 916-563-0838
1. Attach a certification from the Ambulance Company(s) listed in 14A, certifying that the
paramedic staff are licensed with the California Emergency Medical Services Authority.
A1. The State of California uses a web based data base for licensed with in the State. That site is
http://www.centralregistry.ca.gov/Verification/Search.aspx Sacramento County EMS as well as
AMR regular confirm all employees are current with their licenses .



http://www.centralregistry.ca.gov/Verification/Search.aspx

California Exposition and State Fair Police Department

Rick Pickering
General Manager

Back to Top

Full-Time
l Part-Time I

Tom Martine:
Chie! Deputy General Manager

1
—————————————— oA L_oirectsupervision ]
General Mana, e P
L Sanlimesupenion g
Craig Walton
Acting Chief of Police
600-18472
| 1
John "Jack” Smith Vacant
Police Lieutenant Police Lieutenant
H00- 000

B00-xooxxx

]

Vacant
Administrative Police Sergeant
500-3000
1 1 1 1
Caryn King (S-2) Scott Smith (5-3) Vacant John Savage (S-5) Dennis DeAnda (5-6) John Mifsud (S-8) David Hunt (5-9) Matthew Silva (5-10) Joe Wagstaff (S-11) Steven Bird (5-12) Paul Lozada (5-14) LeeAndra Marchese [5-16)
Police Sergeant Police Sergeant Police Sergeant Police Sergeant Police Sergeant Police Sergeant Police Sergeant Police Sergeant Palice Sergeant Police Sergeant Police Sergeant Police Sergeant
600-30000¢ 500-)0000 B00-xxxx 600-30000¢ 600-x0000 600-00000 H00-300000 B00-xxxxxX B00-xxxXxx S00- 20000 S00-0000 BO0- 300X
T S e AL S —— - e
1 i 1 1 | 1 1 1 I 1 1 1
———d e b e e
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Branden Honeycutt Joel Baugh Laura Hom Savage Michelle Baosh Marcia Coffman Judy Long Michael Kaye Sue Paulson Robert Repar Raymond Brown
Lead Security Guard Police Officer (FT) Police Officer (FT) Office Assistant MST [4/5 time) Crime Analyst Lead Dispatcher Hon-Swoen Investigator Non-Sworn Investigator
600-x00xxK B00-x000¢ E00-x0000 BOC- 10000 B600-5000X 000000 600-xx000¢ 600-xxxxXX E00-xx00¢ 600 xxxxK

o S R R S TR o & i f himet el

Security Guards (Part-Time}
Seasonal / Retired Annuitant
600-xxxx

Police Officers (Part-Time)
Permanent Intermittent
00-000¢

Police Officers (Part-Time)
Seasonal / Retired Annuitant
600-1000¢

Police Dispatchers (Part-Time)

Seasonal
L

Printed 4/8/2021 @ 10:13 AM



Back to Top

April 7th, 2021

To Whom It May Concern;

American Medical Response — Sacramento Valley operates emergency and non-emergency
ambulance transportation in and around the greater Sacramento area. All of our paramedic staff
are licensed with the California Emergency Medical Services Authority (EMSA) in addition to
being accredited by the LEMSA (local emergency medical services) in the area(s) in which they
are practicing. The current status of any Paramedic License can be verified by CA EMSA on their
website: http://www.centralregistry.ca.gov/Search.aspx. In addition to annual inspections by
the LEMSA, our vehicles are inspected and permitted annually by the CHP. Specific personnel
licenses or vehicle permits are available for viewing on request at the local AMR Sacramento
office.

Please feel free to contact me if you require further information.

Sincerely,

Daniel Iniguez ﬁ W

Operations Manager
AMR - Sacramento County

1101 Fee Drive, Sacramento, CA 95815
Phone: 916-563-0835 Fax: 916-649-2031


http://www.centralregistry.ca.gov/Search.aspx

Back to Top

CHRB-18 (Rev.1/16) 16

B. Name, address and emergency telephone number of the ambulance service to be used during
workouts at auxiliary sites:
Royal Ambulance Service, Steve Grau, President, 14472 Wicks Blvd, San Leandro, CA 94577. 877-
995-6161.

1. Attach a certification from the Ambulance Company(s) listed in 14B, certifying that the
paramedic staff are licensed with the California Emergency Medical Services Authority.
On file with the CHRB

C. Describe the on-track first aid facility, including equipment and medical staffing:
The on-site First Aid facility and racetrack ambulance contain all equipment and supplies
necessary for advanced life support of any emergency and in compliance with all Sacramento
County and California Highway Patrol requirements. The racetrack ambulance is staffed by 1
paramedics and emergency medical technician and the on-site first aid facility is staffed by
paramedics and emergency medical technicians. The equipment list attached can be found one the
Sacramento County EMS web site and here is that link to the PDF.
http://www.dhhs.saccounty.net/PRI/EMS/Documents/PoliciesProceduresProtocols/2000/PP-
2030%20Advanced%20Life%20Support%20Inventories.pdf

D. Name and emergency telephone number of the licensed physician on duty during the race meeting:
Dr. Streeter 209-608-8009

E. Name, address and emergency telephone number of the hospital to be used for admittance and
treatment of emergency injuries in the event of an on-track injury to a jockey:

UC Davis Medical Trauma Center
Specializing as a Level 1 Trauma Center
2315 Stockton Blvd., Sacramento, CA 95817
916-734-2011; 3 Miles

Sutter Medical Center
2801 L Street
Sacramento, CA 95816
916-887-0000; 3.4 Miles

Kaiser Permanente Hospital

Specializing in orthopedic and cardiac treatment
2025 Morse Ave.

Sacramento, CA 95825

916-817-5660 2 Miles

Mercy General Hospital
Specializing in cardiac treatment
4001 J. St., Sacramento, CA 95819
916-453-4553 1 !> Miles

F.  Attach, in English and Spanish, the emergency medical plan procedures that will be posted in each
jockey’s room to be used in the event of an on-track injury to a jockey:
Attached


http://www.dhhs.saccounty.net/PRI/EMS/Documents/PoliciesProceduresProtocols/2000/PP-2030%20Advanced%20Life%20Support%20Inventories.pdf
http://www.dhhs.saccounty.net/PRI/EMS/Documents/PoliciesProceduresProtocols/2000/PP-2030%20Advanced%20Life%20Support%20Inventories.pdf

Back to Top

@ROVAL

Compassion. Commitment. Caring

February 17, 2021

Jeanne Wasserman
Alameda County Fairground
4501 Pleasanton Ave
Pleasanton, Ca 94566

Royal Ambulance Inc. is compliant with all Federal, State and local requirements to operate as
an Ambulance Company in Alameda County and other jurisdictions where we provide service.
Our EMT's are certified by the California Emergency Medical Services Authority and copies of
the certification will be provided upon request.

Sean Young

Operations Manager

14472 Wicks Blvd, San Leandro, CA, 94577 | 510.568.6161 Phone  510.568.61610 Fax

www.royalambulance.com


www.royalambulance.com

Item #15F English:

California State Fair Racing Accident Procedures
In case of an accident on the racetrack, the following procedures are to be implemented:

Track Ambulance

The track ambulance will travel immediately to the scene of an accident and assume
triage and patient care responsibilities and evacuate.

Security

1. As soon as possible, a member of the track security staff shall report to the scene of
the accident and thereafter take direction from the EMT responsible for the accident
scene management. The track security representative shall be responsible for keeping
bystanders away from the accident scene.

2. A member of the track security staff shall proceed to the Jockey’s Room to secure the
ambulance transfer area and prevent visitation from bystanders away from the accident

arca.

3. A member of the track security staff shall be responsible for escorting emergency
vehicles.

4. The security staff shall be responsible for all “crowd control” activities.

Racing Staff/Track Veterinarian

1. Upon arrival at the scene, the Outrider should hold the injured horse in order to
prevent further harm to people, horses and property.

2. Horses with severe injuries should be transported off the track via the horse
ambulance whenever it is practical to do so.

3. The track veterinarian shall make the decision as to the necessity of euthanasia on the
track.

4. The screen blocking the public’s view of the injured horse shall be set-up prior to the
euthanasia procedure.

5. Outriders are responsible for the removal of any debris from the racetrack following
the removal of the injured person or horse from the track.

Back to Top



Plant Staff

1. The Horse Ambulance shall travel immediately to the scene of an accident whenever it
appears that a horse will require transport.

2. Members of the plant department who are near the accident site shall assist in
screening the accident scene from the public view and shall take direction from the EMT
that is responsible for the management of the accident scene.

Announcer

The announcer shall make riders aware of the details of the situation (such as the location
of a loose horse, the necessity to pull up, etc), enabling them to take the necessary steps

to mitigate additional problems.

Senior Management

1. A senior management representative should quickly proceed to the location on the
racetrack where the accident has occurred. The manager should report to other members
of the management team as to the accident status.

2. An additional member of the management team should report to the video department
in order to monitor the scene and determine the extent of video coverage to be
transmitted to the public.

3. A member of the management team should provide input as to announcements to be
made by the track announcer.

4. A member of the senior management team should be responsible for seeing that
information regarding the accident is communicated to family members of the injured.
Efforts need to be made to escort family members to the hospital, if necessary. In this
regard, a current compilation as to who should be notified in the case of an injured jockey
is kept on file.

5. All public address announcements and responses to press inquiries are within the sole
purview of the senior member of the management team then available.

All Department Heads

All Department heads shall communicate to their employees that, although intentions are
good, the treatment of the injured rider must be left up to trained personnel, and all other
employees must stay away from the scene of an accident.

Back to Top



Item #15 F Spanish:

Procedimiento en caso de Accidente en California State Fair
De ocurir un accidente en el hopodromo, se debe hacer lo siguiente:

El personal de 1a Ambulancia

El personal de la ambulancia trasladarse inmediatamente al lugar del accidente siumpre
que lo necesario para tartar a la(s) victimag(s).

Sequridad

1. Tan pronto como sea possible, unmiembro de seguridad del hipodromo debera
reportarse al lugar del accidente y desde ahi recibir las instrucciones del Paramedico
responsible del lugar del accidente. El miembro de seguridad sera responsible de
mantener a los transeuntes fuera del lugar del accidente..

2. Un miembro del departamento de seguridad del hipodromo se acercara al cuart del
jockey para asguarar el area donde la amulancia estara y prevenir que transeuntes y

personas ajenas S€ acerquen.

3. Un miembro de seguridad del hipodrmomo sera responsible de escoltar a los
vehiclulos de emergencia..

4. Los miembros de sequridad seran responsible de controlar a la multitud.

Personal de Carreras/Vetennano del hipodromo

1. Una vez en el lugar del accidente, el Outrider/escolta debera sujetar al caballo herido
para evitar que lastime a la gente, a otros caballos o a la propiedad.

2. Los caballos muy mal heridoa deberan ser sacados de la pista con la ambulancia para
caballos, siempre que sea possible hacerlo de esa manera.

3. El veterinano del hipodromo debera decider si se sacrifice al caballo en la pista.

4. Sea possible hacerlo, se debe colocar la pantalla/screen para tapa la vista al publico,
antes de iniciar el procedimiento de sacrificio del animal.

5. Los Outriders son responsables de remover cualquier desecho en la pista desputes de
que la persona o caballo accidentado haya sido trasladado del lugar.

Back to Top



Personal de Planta/Plant Staff

1. La Ambulancia de Caballos debera trasladarse inmediatamente al lugar del accidente
siempre que un caballo este severamente lesionado y necesite transporte.

2. Los miembros del departamento de planta que esten cerca del accidente deberan
ayudar a fapar el lugar para que el pulico no pueda ver lo que sucede, ademas deberan
recibir instrucciones del Paramedico responsible del lugar del accidente.

Locutor

El locator debera informar a los jinetes acerca de los detalles de la situcion (como la
ubicacion del caballo suelto, la necesidad de adelantar, etc.) para que puedan hacer lo
necesario y mitigar otros problemas.

Gerencia

1. Un representante de la gerencia se apersonara rapidamente al lugar del accidente en el
hoipodromo. EI genente informara a los otros gerents sobre las lesions sufridas.

2. Otro representante de la gerencia debera informar al departamento de videio para
monitorear la escena y ver la cobertura de video que sera transmitida al publico.

3. Un miembro de la gerencia debera aportar con informacion sobre los anuncios que
debera hacer el locutor.

4. Un miembro de la gerencia sera responsible de ver que la informacion con respecto al
accidente sea dada a los familiars de los heridos. Se debe hacer lo necesario para
acompanar a los familiars a los hospitals, de ser el caso. Al respecto, es necesario tener
un registro de la persona a quien se debe comunicar en caso de que un jockey sufra un
accidente.

5. Todos los anuncios publicos y respuestas a la prensa las realize unicamente el
funcionario de gerencia de alto nivel que se encuentre disponible en ese momento.

Todo los Jefes de Departamento

Todos los Jefes de Departamento deben comunicar a sus empleados que, a pesar de que
las intenciones sean buenas, el tratamiento de un jinete/jockey herido debe ser realizado
por el personal calificado para ello, y todos los demas empleados deben permanecer lejos
del lugar del accidente.

Back to Top



Back to Top

CHRB-18 (Rev.1/16) 17

G. Name of health and safety manager and assistant manager responsible for compliance of health and
safety provisions pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19481.3(d):
Larry A. Swartzlander, Director of Racing

H. Attach a fire clearance from the fire authority having jurisdiction over the premises.
The Fire Marshall inspection has been scheduled for late May

I.  Name of the workers’ compensation insurance carrier for the fair and the number of the insurance
policy (if self-insured, provide details): California Fair Services Authority.

J. Attach a Certificate of Insurance for workers’ compensation coverage. The CHRB is to be named
as a certificate holder and given not less than 10 days’ notice of any cancellation or termination of
insurance that secures the liability of the fair for payment of workers’ compensation.

Attached.

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Every licensee conducting a horse racing meeting shall pursuant to Business and Professions Code
section 19481.3 maintain, staff, and supply an on-track first aid facility, that may be either permanent or mobile, and which shall
be staffed and equipped as directed by the board. A qualified and licensed physician shall be on duty at all times during live
racing, except that this provision shall not apply to any quarter horse racing at the racetrack if there is a hospital situated no more
than 1.5 miles from the racetrack and the racetrack has an agreement with the hospital to provide emergency medical services to
jockeys and riders. An ambulance licensed to operate on public highways provided by the track shall be available at all times
during live racing and shall be staffed by two emergency medical technicians licensed in accordance with Division 2.5
(commencing with Section 1797) of the Health and Safety Code, one of whom may be an Emergency Medical Technician
Paramedic, as defined in Section 1797.84 of the Health and Safety Code. (b) Each racing association and racing fair shall adopt
and maintain an emergency medical plan detailing the procedures that shall be used in the event of an on-track injury. The plan
shall be posted in each jockey room in English and Spanish. (c) Prior to every race meeting, the racing association or racing fair
shall contact area hospitals to coordinate procedures for the rapid admittance and treatment of emergency injuries. (d) Each
racing association or racing fair shall designate a health and safety manager and assistant manager, who shall be responsible for
compliance with the provisions of this section and one of whom shall be on duty at all times when live racing is conducted. The
health and safety manager may, at the discretion of the racing association, be the person designated to perform risk management
duties on behalf of the association.

16. CONCESSIONAIRES AND SERVICE CONTRACTORS

A. Names and addresses of all persons to whom a concession or service contract has been given,
other than those already identified, and the goods and/or services to be provided by each:
Food Service- Ovations Fanfare, LP, 4501 Pleasanton Drive, Pleasanton, CA 94566

B. Does the fair plan to provide its own concessions? Yes No | x

17. ON- TRACK ATTENDANCE/FAN DEVELOPMENT

A. Attach a copy of the promotional and marketing plans for the race meeting. Same as Pleasanton
License.

B. Promotional/Marketing Budget for this race meeting:
Same as Pleasanton License.



1776 Tribute Road, Suite 150
Sacramento, CA 95815
Office: 916.263.3346 Fax: 916.263.3341
www.calfairs.com

April 22, 2021

California Horse Racing Board
Attn: Scott Chaney

1010 Hurley Way, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95825

Mr. Chaney:

The Alameda County Fire Department Fire Inspection Letter stated the Alameda
County Fair Stable area was inspected without violations as of 3/18/21. Your
letter, dated July 3, 2020 stated that the Alameda County Fairgrounds fire
clearance on file did not comply with 4 CCR 1927 for the 2020 racing season. Our
response to your letter is attached dated July 13, 2020. Due to time constraints a
decision was never rendered as to the exemption. Our position remains the
same. The stable area consists of two major structures, shed row stalls and tack
rooms which are in compliance with local code and the intent of 4 CCR
1927Section. Section 903.2.1.3 of the Alameda County Fire Code addresses the
requirement for automatic sprinklers and states that they are not required unless
the living area exceeds 5,000 square feet or houses at least 300 people. In
addition, all structures are made of concrete block, stucco and composition roof
tiles. Based on this structural configuration and County Code our fire marshal
does not require the need for automatic sprinklers.

Previously CARF had requested the rule be revisited and address exceptions to
the requirements listed in 4 CCR 1927. Our position remains the same and
would ask in the interim, the Alameda County Fair be granted the allowable
exemption by the CHRB to this rule for the 2021 Racing Season.

CAREF is currently in negotiations with Golden Gate Fields (GGF) to provide
auxiliary stabling. In the event an agreement cannot be reached CAREF is in
discussion with the Thoroughbred Owners of California to either open

CALIFORNTIA AUTHORITY O F RACING F ATRS

Back to Top


www.calfairs.com

Back to Top

Sacramento as an auxiliary stable or bring in porta-stalls to the Alameda County
Fair backside and stable all horses on site that plan to race at Pleasanton. In
either case fire inspection documents will be provided for either GGF or
Sacramento as an auxiliary stable.

C;Zg. ” 9%5@&4

Larry A. Swartzlander
Executive Director, CARF



Alameda County Fire Department

FIRE PREVENTION
www.acgov.org/fire
WILL!AM L. McDONALD
Fire Chief
March 18, 2021
County
FiRE PREVENTION
6363 Clark Street
Dublin, CA 94568
Te! (510) 632-3473 Jerome Hoban, CEQ
Fax (825) 875-9387 Alameda County Fair
Fine PREJ;:% : 4501 Pleasanton Avenue
100 Civie Plazs Pleasanton, CA 94566
Dublin, CA 94568
Tel [825) B33-6606 .
F;; {[9253 830.0248 RE: Annual Stable Area Inspections
EMERYVILLE
FIRE PREVENTION Dear Mr. Hoban:
1333 Park Avenue
Emeryville, CA 94508
FTel %gig} zggggig ACFD conducted inspections of the stable area on 3/4/2021 and 3/16/20
A ' The facility was found to be empty and without any violations as of the
N . .
EiRE PREVEN N 3/16/2021 inspection.

37107 Newark Bivd.
Newark, CA 94560

Tel [510) 5784218 Sincerely, -
Fax [510) 578-4281 R
SAN LEANDRD i S
FIRE PREVENTION ‘ /\

835 E. 14th Strest _
San Leandre, CA 94577 Bonnie S. Terra

Tel (510} 5773317 - -
Fax (510} 618-3445 Division Chief

Union Ciry

FIRE PREVENTION

34009 Aivarsdo-Niles Road
Unien City, CA 94587

Tel {510] 675-5470

Fax [510} 4872117

Back to Top



Alameda County Fire Department
Fire Prevention Bureau
Inspection and Review Comments

Back to Top

O

el Jign/ .

Ditts]in Buréau Eneryville. Buresn Nowark Busini Sim Lenndre Buremy Unicemiporated Cotnty Boreay Union City Bueenio
160 Civic Plaza 1333 Park Avenve YO Newwrk Bivd, 435 Easl 4% Sireen 358 Blwhurst Street, Room 120 34009 Alvarado-Mikes Roud
Dubdin, CA 94568 Emeryviile, CA 94608 Newark, CA 94560 Sen Legndro, CA 94577 Hayward, CA.94544 Union City, CA 94587
(925) 43)-6606 (510) 59G-3759 {510 578.4218 (510) 577-3317 (510) 670-5653 {5100 675-5470
Fax (925} 8209248 Fax (510) 450.7612 Fax {510 574-4281 Fax {510) 5773419 PPax ($10) 887.5836 Fax {510) 441-2943

i e F . . :
Inspector: _: Date: < /.00 i FD Permit #
Bosiness Name: ;" gt Address: sy £l iy
OK'd -
ITEM # COMMENTS
y/Date
/ " s NI T Viosok
U *
s '
T - ta I C T R L e 7 e -
7!/-&\/ RN S R Wil R Tl RS I
L4 LJ - T B
cg ) -~ 1 E ' }f ;i ,i} _'_ ) i - | !
S N i
i lZ 3 L
TR
[ | |
: - o B, 0 g A Y S :
(7”{012' ’ ! ! et EEna v e
7! ! o I i i f L
i
{; im ![3 2) ’r . ‘ A
Z k = ; _ .
: / ! £y st
S i i 5 o Fa ok
H
NG - .
< ‘ . Ly R ; L L i
< f !b sl "i' RN LY e LRk 3 t i 4 i 4 Ih 3ok i 28,
A [ v : : b o 5 : :
Wio v Ko
¢} .
N ! ! } \
! . T = L P g 3
— | NSO N JoLATIOMNS Froa 1S A7 Zreds

%S

N i VA

 Fhie |eoz]

Fr

You ave hereby notified to address the comments and provide immediate correction of the violation(s) nofed herein.

A re-Inspection will be conducted on or

Bus. Owner-Manager:

after

Phone:

o

Reccived By:

Date: Page of !

GMLLACFDAFAFPFORMS$\83.223-doe



do] 0] xoe

o S
fRacing EA\R

July 13, 2020

California Horse Racing Board
Attn: Scott Chaney

1010 Hurley Way, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95825

Dear Mr. Chaney,

The Alameda County Fire Department Fire Inspection letter stated the Alameda County Fair Stable area was inspected
without violations as of 3/2/20. Your letter, date July 3, 2020 states that the Alameda County Fairgrounds fire clearance
on file does not comply with 4 CCR 1927. In review the stable area consists of two major structures, shed row stalls and
tack rooms which are in compliance with local code and the intent of 4 CCR 1927. The one disparity is the requirement for
automatic sprinkler systems. Section 903.2.1.3 of the Alameda County Fire code addresses the requirement for automatic
sprinklers as states that they are not required unless the living area exceeds 5000 square feet and houses at least 300
people. Our fire marshal has concluded in his inspection that the barn area does not meet this criterion.

The intent here is not to contentious in compliance but point out that 4 CCR 1927 was written at least 30 years ago with
no updates. Each county has different requirements and has fire marshals who can be sensitive to be compliant with third
party fire guidelines.

I would respectively ask for an exemption to the current 4 CCR 1927 rule for the 2020 Alameda County Fair meet.
In addition, I would ask that the rule be reviewed by the CHRB staff in conjunction with stakeholders within the racing
industry and be rewritten be put on a future agenda for the CHRB to review and approve.

In regards to our Auxiliary Stable, GGF Eric Sindler forwarded to me the following information on July 3 in regards to their
non compliance to 4 CCR 1927:

“Due to COVID-19 crisis protocol restrictions, we do not have a current date for the inspection. We
are speaking to the Berkeley Fire Department to schedule the inspection so that they can issue a
revised fire clearance letter. We will update the board when we have a date for the inspection. All of
the barns (and the equine hospital) at Golden Gate Fields are equipped with an automatic sprinkler
system which is inspected and tested both quarterly and annually. Additionally, the barn area has an
automatic fire alarm system that was upgraded in 2018. The barn area has two watchman after dark.
The barn area also contains 20 standalone fire hydrants which are pressure tested annually (with 17 fire
hose cabinets containing 51 hoses). Also, there are over 220 fire extinguishers serviced annually.”

Regards,

Larry A. Swartzlander
Executive Director, CARF

Cc: Jerome Hoban, CEO ACF
Chairman Dr. Gregory Ferraro
Vice-Chairman Oscar Gonzales
Commissioner Alex Solis
Commissioner Dennis Alfieri
Commissioner Wendy Mitchell
Commissioner Damascus Castellanos



Back to Top

[€SN

CALIFORNIA
FAIR SERVIGCES
AUTHORITY

March 31, 2021

To: California Horse Racing Board
1010 Hurley Way, Suite 300
Sacramento, Ca 95825

Re: Alameda County Fair
4501 Pleasanton Ave
Pleasanton, CA 94566

Please be advised that the Alameda County Fair is a member of the California Fair Services Authority (CFSA), and participates
in the following self-insurance and loss pooling programs which are administered by CFSA:

l. GENERAL LIABILITY PROGRAM

A Primary Coverage $100,000 self-insured retention California Fair Services Authority
(includes liquor liability)
Coverage continuous until cancelled

B. Excess Coverage $24,900,000 in excess of $100,000 (includes Liquor Liability)
Coverage provided by CSAC Excess Insurance Authority
Term: 7/1/21 to 7/1/22

1. WORKERS' COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY PROGRAM

A Primary Coverage $250,000 self-insured retention California Fair Services Authority
Coverage continuous until cancelled

B. Excess Coverage (a) Workers' Compensation: Statutory Limit in excess of $250,000
(b) Employers' Liability: $4,750,000 in excess of $250,000
Coverage provided by CSAC Excess Insurance Authority
Term: 7/01/2021 to 7/01/2022

CFSA represents to the California Horse Racing Board that within the above limits, terms and provisions of the coverage
stated, to the extent provided by law, CFSA will provide defense, payment, and indemnification on loss funding in accordance
with the terms of the contractual assumption of the Alameda County Fair as set forth in California Horse Racing Board’s
"Insurance Requirements".

CFSA coverage also includes the Fresno at Pleasanton Race meet in October.

You will be given at least thirty (30) day notice of any change in the foregoing information. We trust that this commitment will
satisfy your insurance requirements.

Please feel free to contact this office on all matters including possible claims.

la

Mario Castagnola
Risk Analyst

1776 TRIBUTE ROAD, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CA 95815
(916) 921-2213 (916) 646-1238



CHRB-18 (Rev.1/16)

18.

19. JOCKEYS’ QUARTERS

A.  Check the applicable amenities available in the jockeys’ quarters:

B.

SCHEDULE OF CHARGES

Proposed charges, note any changes from previous year:

Admission (general) -

Admission (clubhouse) Free

Reserved seating (general)

Reserved seating (clubhouse) Free

Turf Club Buffet $20.00 NO Fair Admission
Parking (general) $15.00
Parking (preferred) $5.00
Parking (valet) N/A
Programs (on-track) $2.50
(Off-track) $2.50

$12.00 - 14.00/w Fair Admission

C. Describe any "Season Boxes" or other special accommodations:
Same as Pleasanton License.

x | Corners (lockers and cubicles) How many
X Showers Steam room, sauna or steam cabinets
« | Masseur Food/beverage service

Back to Top

18

Box Seats $3.00 Seat only NO Fair Admission

43

Lounge area

x| Certified platform scale

Describe the quarters to be used for female jockeys: Same type in segregated area

20. BACKSTRETCH EMPLOYEE HOUSING

A.

B.

C.

D.

Inspection of backstretch housing completed in Pleasanton License.

Number of rooms used for housing on the backstretch of the racetrack: 21

Number of restrooms available on the backstretch of the racetrack: &

Estimated ratio of restrooms to the number of backstretch personnel: 25 to 1

21. TRACK SAFETY

A.

Total distance of the racecourse - measured from the finish line counterclockwise (3' from the inner
railing) back to the finish line: 5.280 feet.

Describe the type of track surface at the facility, including the specific track surface composition:
The racetrack is made up of sand of various types (Very Coarse, Coarse, and Medium to Very
Fine), silt and clay. The Medium to Very Fine sand makes up approximately 75% of the sand
content. Organic material will be added to the racetrack to assist in water retention.

The percent of cross slope in the straight-aways is: 2%
The percent of cross slope in the center of the turns is: 4%



Back to Top

CHRB-18 (Rev.1/16) 19

D. Describe the type(s) of materials used for the inner and outer railings of the race course, the type of
inner railing supports (i.e., metal gooseneck, wood 4" x 4" uprights, offset wood 4" x 4" supports,
etc.), the coverings, if any, on the top of the inner railing, and the approximate height of the top of
the inner railing from the level of the race course.

Inside Rail- Maw Safe Rail Outside Rail- Steriline Aluminum Racing Rail
Both rails will be set at 38” to 42” from the level of the race course

E. Name of the person responsible for supervision of the maintenance of the racetrack safety standards
pursuant to CHRB Rule 1474: Steve Wood, Trackmaster Inc.

F.  Attach a Track Safety Maintenance Program pursuant to CHRB Rule 1474.
Included in Pleasanton application.

G. Ifthe fair is requesting approval to implement alternate methodologies to the provisions of Article
3.5, Track Safety Standards, pursuant to CHRB Rule 1471, attach a Certificate of Insurance for
liability insurance which will be in force for the duration of the meeting specified in Section 2. The
CHRB is to be named as a certificate holder and given not less than 10 days’ notice of any
cancellation or termination of liability insurance. Additionally, the CHRB must be listed as
additionally insured on the liability policy at a minimum amount of $3 million per incident. The
liability insurance certificate must be on file in the CHRB headquarters office prior to the conduct
of any racing. N/A

22. DECLARATIONS

A. Alllabor agreements, concession and service contracts, and other agreements necessary to conduct
the entire meeting have been finalized except as follows (if no exceptions, so state): No exceptions

B.  Attach each horsemen's agreement pursuant to CHRB Rule 2044.
TOC agreement will be received NLT April 18, 2021.

C.  Attach an agreement to provide for race-day furosemide administration pursuant to CHRB Rule 1845.
Attached.

D. Allservice contractors and concessionaires have valid state, county or city licenses authorizing each
to engage in the type of service to be provided and have valid labor agreements, when applicable,
which remain in effect for the entire term of the meeting except as follows (if no exceptions, so
state): No exceptions

E. Absent natural disasters or causes beyond the control of the fair, its service contractors,
concessionaires or horsemen participating at the meeting, no reasons are believed to exist that may
result in a stoppage to racing at the meeting or the withholding of any vital service to the fair except
as follows (if no exceptions, so state): No exceptions

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Pursuant to CHRB Rules 1870 and 1871, the CHRB shall be given 15 days’ notice in writing of any intention
to terminate a horse racing meeting or the engagements or services of any licensee, approved concessionaire, or approved service
contractor.



Back to Top

CHRB-18 (Rev.1/16) 20

23. CERTIFICATION BY APPLICANT
I hereby certify under penalty of perjury that I have examined this application, that all of the foregoing
statements in this application are true and correct, and that I am authorized by the fair to attest to this

application on its behalf.

Larry A. Swartzlander

Print Name Signature
Director of Racing May 20, 2021

Print Title Date



Agenda Item 10
genda ftem Back to Top

STAFF ANALYSIS

DISCUSSION AND ACTION BY THE BOARD REGARDING APPROVAL OF AN
AGREEMENT, PURSUANT TO CHRB RULE 1581, RACING SECRETARY TO
ESTABLISH CONDITIONS, BETWEEN THE PACIFIC RACING ASSOCIATION Il (PRA
1) AND THE THOROUGHBRED OWNERS OF CALIFORNIA (TOC), REGARDING
ENTRY CONDITIONS AND SPECIFIED DRUG SUBSTANCES OR MEDICATIONS TO
BE IMPLEMENTED BY THE PRA Il AT THE GOLDEN GATE FIELDS RACETRACK

Regular Board Meeting
June 16, 2021
ISSUE:

California Horse Racing Board (Board) Rule 1581, Racing Secretary to Establish Conditions,
allows the racing secretary to establish the conditions for any race run during the race
meeting. In instances where the racing secretary wishes to set a condition based on a
participating horse’s use or non-use of a drug substance or medication, or the presence or
lack of presence of a drug substance or medication, the association must first obtain approval
from the horseman’s organization and the Board. Beginning in March 2019, all racing
associations in California have come to the Board seeking approval of agreements with the
respective horseman’s organizations involving the mandatory stand down for intra articular
injections.

BACKGROUND:

Business and Professions Code (BPC) section 19440 provides that the Board shall have all
powers necessary and proper to enable it to carry out fully and effectually the purposes of the
Horse Racing Law. Responsibilities of the Board shall include, but not be limited to, adopting
rules and regulations for the protection of the public and the control of horse racing and pari-
mutuel wagering. BPC section 19590 states the Board shall adopt rules governing, permitting,
and regulating wagering on horse races under the system known as the pari-mutuel method
of wagering. BPC section 19562 provides that the Board may prescribe rules, regulations and
conditions, consistent with the provisions of this chapter, under which all horse races with
wagering on their results shall be conducted in California.

ANALYSIS:
The ability to set conditions on a race is governed by Board Rule 1581. Rule 1581 states:

The racing secretary may establish the conditions for any race, the allowances or handicaps
to be established or specific races, the procedures for the


http://www.chrb.ca.gov/query_rules_and_regulations_database.asp?form_query_action=display_rule&form_query_rule_number=1581&form_query_rule_title=Racing+Secretary+to+Establish+Conditions%2E&form_query_article=Racing+Secretary+to+Establish+Conditions%2E&form_query_article_index=7&form_query_argument=1581
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&sectionNum=19440.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&sectionNum=19590.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&sectionNum=19562.

Back to Top

acceptance of entries and declarations, and such other conditions as are necessary to
provide and conduct the association’s race meeting. Any conditions that are based on a
participating horse’s use or non-use of a drug substance or medication, or the presence or
lack of presence of a drug substance or medication in a biological test sample taken from a
participating horse, shall be agreed to in advance in writing by the acknowledged horsemen’s
organization, which, in the case of Thoroughbreds, shall be the owner’s organization, and
approved by the Board before entries are taken for the race. If such conditions are based on
the results of a biological test sample other than an official test sample collected by the CHRB,
a description of the testing methods and procedures the racing association or fair will use to
collect and analyze the biological test samples shall be submitted to the Board for approval.
For purposes of this section “biological test sample” refers to any biological sample, including
but not limited to, blood, urine, hair, tissue, or saliva, that is taken from a horse.

Pursuant to Board Rule 1581, any condition involving medication must be agreed to by the
horsemen’s organization, which in the case of thoroughbred racing, is the Thoroughbred
Owners of California (TOC). Additionally, any agreement must be approved by the Board
before entries are taken. Here, the Pacific Racing Association Il (PRA 1) has entered into an
agreement with the TOC to prohibit a horse from entering a stakes race conducted with any
race-day medication, including furosemide, prohibits a horse from racing for 14 days if it has
received a joint injection, and prohibits a horse from either performing a timed workout within
10 days of, or from racing for 30 days of receiving a corticosteroid injection in a
metacarpophalangeal or metatarsophalangeal joint.

RECOMMENDATION:

This item is presented for Board discussion and action.



Back to Top

Race Day Medication Agreement

This Race Day Medication Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into effective as of
December 1, 2020 (the “Effective Date”) by and between the Thoroughbred Owners of
California (“TOC”); Los Angeles Turf Club, Incorporated and Los Angeles Turf Club II, Inc.
(jointly “LATC”); Pacific Racing Association and Pacific Racing Association II (jointly “PRA”);
and Del Mar Thoroughbred Club (DMTC).

Recitals
A. LATC operates race meets at Santa Anita Park.
B. PRA operates race meets at Golden Gate Fields.
C. DMTC operates race meets at the Del Mar Fairgrounds.
D. LATC, PRA, and DMTC shall each be a “Racing Association.”
Agreement

With reference to the foregoing Recitals, which are incorporated herein by reference, and
in exchange for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, TOC, LATC, PRA, and DMTC (each a “Party”, and collectively, the “Parties”)
hereby agree as follows:

1. Stakes Races. No horse, of any age, shall be permitted to race in a “Stakes Race”
conducted by any of the Racing Associations from January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021
with any race-day medication, which includes, without limitation, the use of furosemide (e.g.
Lasix). A “Stakes Race” shall include all graded stakes races, listed stakes races, overnight
stakes races, state-bred stakes races, and restricted stakes races. However, notwithstanding the
foregoing, if a Cal-bred stakes race (a) is for four-year olds and up and (b) is agreed to in writing
by the TOC and the Racing Association which conducts the relevant Cal-bred stakes race, then
the horses that compete in those races shall be permitted to race with furosemide (e.g. Lasix).
Attached as Attachment A is a list of such races.

2. Joint Injections. No horse, of any age, shall be permitted to race in a race
conducted by any of the Racing Associations from the Effective Date through December 31,
2021 (“Joint Injection Term”) if it has received a joint injection within 14 days of racing.
Further, corticosteroid intra-articular joint injections are limited during the Joint Injection Term
as follows:

a. Within fourteen (14) days of race day if such injection is for any joint
other than any of the metacarpophalangeal or metatarsophalangeal joints.

b. Within thirty (30) days of race day if such injection is performed on any
metacarpophalangeal or metatarsophalangeal joint. Additionally, no horse shall be permitted to

10-1

Version 9 1



Back to Top

have a timed work for ten (10) days after receiving a corticosteroid intra-articular joint injection
in any of the metacarpophalangeal or metatarsophalangeal joints.

3. CHRB Approval. The Parties shall file this Agreement with the CHRB and shall
publicly support and advocate for the CHRB’s approval of this Agreement.

[Signatures follow]

10-2

Version 9 2



The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first written above.

Thoroughbred Owners of California

By: /)Zé@ vhﬂé

Name: /. Greg Avioli

£
Title: CEO & President

Los Angeles Turf Club, Incorporated

O J -
By: Q/M/c M

Name: Er(C Smc/(fx

Title: /453 [(Stont SQQ’EfO_\r)/)

Pacific Racing Association

v Goe el

Name: [ﬂL Smc

Title: /4337 Stont J\é,(re,(—ai\//)

Version 9

Del Mar Thoroughbred Club

By:

Back to To

Name:

Title:

Los Angeles Turf Club II, Inc.

By: 6L/‘/C Q:’/r\d/%\

Name: Ecc Sinc)/c"r

Title: /hi Y ton— S@Lre't‘&//\q

Pacific Racing Association I

By: @Lw 427\4/%

Name: (/:/mc Sindle~

Title: 4j ¢ i5tent ‘ELLI"&{_ 0\;;7

10-3



Agenda Item 11
genda ftem Back to Top

STAFF ANALYSIS
DISCUSSION AND ACTION BY THE BOARD ON THE APPLICATION FOR LICENSE TO
CONDUCT A HORSE RACING MEETING OF THE PACIFIC RACING ASSOCIATION Il (T) AT
GOLDEN GATE FIELDS, COMMENCING JULY 21, 2021 THROUGH AUGUST 3, 2021

Regular Board Meeting
June 16, 2021

ANALYSIS:

Pacific Racing Association |l (PRA Il) filed its application to conduct a thoroughbred horse
racing meeting at Golden Gate Fields (GGF) July 21, 2021 through August 3, 2021 or 14 days,
with 6 days or nights of live racing. There is no comparative race meet in 2020. PRA Il
proposes to race a total of 50 to 62 races, or 8.34 to 10.34 races per day. Live racing will
commence July 23, 2021 through August 1, 2021. The (estimated) average daily purse for this
meet is $146,624.

July 2021 August 2021
Sun|Mon|Tue (Wed|Thu| Fri | Sat Sun|Mon|Tue (Wed|Thu| Fri | Sat
1 12 |3 1 12 |3 4 |5 |6 |7

4 |5 |6 |7 8 |9 |10 8 |9 |10 11 (12 |13 |14
11 (12 |13 |14 (15 (16 |17 15 |16 |17 |18 [19 |20 |21
18 |19 |20 |21 (22 |23 |24 22 |23 |24 |25 |26 |27 |28
25 |26 |27 |28 |29 |30 |31 29 |30 |31

e Racing Friday through Sunday.
e 7 to 9 races on weekdays, 9 to 11 races on weekends.

e First post 1:45 p.m. daily
o Request the option to change post times to coordinate north/south signals.

e Wagering program will use California Horse Racing Board (Board) and Association of
Racing Commissioners International (ARCI) rules.

PRA 1l requests to use a modified version of ARCI rule for the Pick 6 contest. PRA Il also
requests to allow patrons to select an alternate wagering interest in any of the Pick (n)
contests in the event their selected wagering interest is scratched.

Alternate Wagering Interest

PRA 1l requests that the Board allow patrons to select an alternate wagering interest in
any of the Pick (n) contests in the event their selected wagering interest is scratched.
Pursuant to ARCI 004-105(G)(4), the Association must receive authorization from the
Board to allow patrons to select an alternate wagering interest.

Pick 6


https://drive.google.com/file/d/1O2YuwWTY9EKjDVsUwxZmEyoZCOkv7e6s/view

Back to Top

PRA 1l requests to use an alternative definition of “unique” to govern the Pick 6 payout.
Pursuant to ACRI 004-105(G)(2)(g), PRA I is required to identify which definition of
“‘unique” under ARCI 004-105(G)(16)(b) they will use to govern the Pick 6. Under the
ARCI model rule there are only two possible definitions for “unique”. PRA Il is
requesting an alternative definition which is not referenced in the ARCI model rule or in
the CHRB’s rules. Under ARCI 004-105(G)(1), the Board has the authority to approve
the proposed PRA Il definition.

PRA 1l also requests a change to the ARCI model rules during instances of late surface
changes. PRA Il requests that on any day in which a surface change after the Pick 6
pool has closed, the race(s) are declared a “Win All,” not a “no contest.” Also, PRA Il
requests that on any day in which there is a surface change after the Pick 6 pool has
closed, the payout distribution in ARCI 004-105(G)(2)(g) be used. If there is no unique
ticket, the entire day’s net pool be paid to ticketholders who correctly selected the most
first-place finishers in the Pick 6 contests. Under ARCI 004-105(G)(1), the Board has
the authority to approve these requested changes.

e Additional Wagering Information

e Early wagering will not be offered.

e $2 Win, Place, and Show parlay available on every eligible race. The wager must
combine at least two but not more than six races.

$1 Exacta on all eligible races.

$.50 Trifecta on all eligible races.

$.10 Superfecta on all eligible races.

$2 Daily Double; requests 20% takeout rate.

$.50 Pick 3.

$.50 Pick 4 on races 2-5 and last four races; No consolation; 100% payout; Alternate

runner provision.

e $.50 Pick 5 on first five races; 100% payout to all tickets selecting five winners; No
consolation; 100% carryover to next day’s Early Pick 5 if no ticket has five winners;
Alternate runner provision; requests 14% takeout rate.

e $.50 Pick 5 on last five races; 100% payout to all tickets selecting five winners; No
consolation; 100% carryover to next day’s Late Pick 5 if no ticket has five winners;
Alternate runner provision.

e $1 Super High 5 on all races that have 7 or more declared starters; 100% payout on
all tickets selecting five winners; No consolation; 100% carryover to next race
(including to the next race day, if applicable).

e $.20 Pick 6 on the last six races each day. If no unique ticket, 70% will be paid to the
minor pool and the 30% will be added to the major pool carryover.

Payout distribution will be in accordance with ARCI 004-105(G)(2)(q):

o The net pool and any carryover will be paid to the unique winning ticket holder
who selected all the first-place finishers.

o If there is no unique winning ticket, the minor share of the pool will be distributed
to those who selected the greatest number of first-place finishers, and the major
share will be added to the carryover.

o If there is no correct selection of at least one first-place finisher, the day’s net
pool will be refunded, and any previous carryover pool will be carried over to the
next scheduled corresponding pool.

e The dates designated for distribution of the carryover pool are: Mandatory payout on closing
day, August 1, 2021 for the period of July 23, 2021 through August 1, 2021. Additional
mandatory distributions prior to closing day throughout the meet. PRA Il indicates that they



Back to Top

will notify the Executive Director (7) days before any such mandatory distribution but do not
provide specific dates of the distributions in the application. Board Rule 1976.9, Pick (n)
Pool, allows for carryover. Section 1976.9(h) specifies that permission to distribute the Pick
(n) carryover on a specific date and performance shall be obtained from the Board. The
mandatory payout request must contain the intended date and performance for the
distribution.

e Business and Professions Code (BPC) section 19464(b) specifies no application for license
to conduct a horse racing meeting shall be granted unless the applicant has deposited with
the Board a surety bond in the amount of $100,000, or a greater amount, as determined by
the Board, which is sufficient to ensure payment of employees wages and benefits including,
but not limited to, health, welfare and pension plans. The surety bond shall be maintained
during the period of the meeting that all payments are made. In the event of a dispute over
the amount owed, the dispute shall be resolved through the grievance procedures set forth
in the labor agreement of the union representing the class of employees affected.

This subdivision does not apply to any person or association licensed to operate a horse
race meeting prior to January 1, 2001, which has conducted a race meeting in each of the
immediate three previous consecutive calendar years.

PRA 1l initial race meeting was conducted after 2001. Therefore, it is subject to the
provisions of the BPC section 19464 (b).

Pursuant to BPC section 19464(b) PRA Il is required to submit a $100,000 surety bond
payable to the Treasurer of the State of California to ensure payment of employee wages
and benefits. The PRA Il $100,000 surety bond currently on file is valid through August 17,
2021.

e The Advance Deposit Wagering (ADW) providers are Xpressbet, TVG, TwinSpires, Bet
America, and NYRABets.

Pursuant to BPC section 19604, specific provisions must be met before an ADW provider
can accept wagers.

Summary of BPC section 19604
To accept wagers on races conducted in California from a resident of California.
e The ADW provider must be licensed by the Board.
e A written agreement allowing those wagers exists with the racing association or fair
conducting the races on which the wagers are made.
e The agreement shall have been approved in writing by the horsemen's organization
responsible for negotiating purse agreements for the breed on which the wagers are
made.

To accept wagers on races conducted outside of California from a resident of California.

e The ADW provider must be licensed by the Board.

e There is a hub agreement between the ADW provider and one or both of (i) one or
more racing associations or fairs that together conduct no fewer than five weeks of
live racing on the breed on which wagering is conducted during the calendar year
during which the wager is placed, and (ii) the horsemen's organization responsible
for negotiating purse agreements for the breed on which wagering is conducted.

Documents received in compliance with BPC section 19604:


https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&sectionNum=19464.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&sectionNum=19604.

Back to Top

o XpressBet LLC. dba XpressBet.com has submitted all documents required in
compliance with BPC section 19604.

e ODS Technologies, L.P. dba TVG Network has submitted all documents required in
compliance with BPC section 19604.

o NYRAbets, LLC has submitted all documents required in compliance with BPC
section 19604.

e Churchill Downs Technologies Initiatives Company, dba TwinSpires has submitted
all documents required in compliance with BPC section 19604.

e Churchill Downs Technologies Initiatives Company, dba BetAmerica has submitted
all documents required in compliance with BPC section 19604.

Request Darrell Sparks be appointed horse identifier pursuant to Board Rule 1525, Racing
Officials Appointed by the Board.

Track safety inspection has been requested and will be completed before the race meeting
begins.

Inspection of backstretch worker housing has been requested and will be completed before
the race meeting begins.

PRA Il has submitted fire clearances for Golden Gate Fields, along with an exemption
request letter for approval from the Board.

PRA 1l has agreed to the Board’s Inclement Weather Policy.

The turf course inner and outer railings are PVC by Duralock. The approximate height of the
top of the inner railing is 50 inches high.

Simulcasting in Southern California only.

The PRA Il application indicates that it will be conducting simulcast wagering with southern
California satellites only. The present application, as submitted, envisions the elimination of
satellite wagering opportunities at all northern locations. Each of these locations are in
northern California, meaning that the PRA Il application intends for there to be no satellite
wagering in northern California during their race meet.

Staff views this portion of the application to be impermissible based on applicable laws and
regulations.

Specifically, BPC section 19608 requires an association which makes more than 1.5 million
in daily average handle, to make its audiovisual signal available to authorized satellite
wagering facilities. BPC section 19619.6 requires that every association that provides its
live audiovisual signal also accept wagers from the satellite wagering facilities. Moreover,
Board Rule 2058(e) which addresses the duties of a racing association offering simulcast
wagering, states that all wagers made available by a host association shall be made
available to all simulcast facilities.

As stated, staff views PRA II's application requesting to offer simulcast wagering to southern
California satellites only, to be in conflict with the provisions mentioned above.
Furthermore, the California Superior Court, on February 6, 2020 issued a Notice of Ruling
confirming that the Board’s interpretation of the relevant statutes and regulations is correct.


http://www.chrb.ca.gov/query_rules_and_regulations_database.asp?form_query_action=display_rule&form_query_rule_number=1525&form_query_rule_title=Racing+Officials+Appointed+by+the+Board%2E&form_query_article=Racing+Officials+Appointed+by+the+Board%2E&form_query_article_index=6&form_query_argument=1525
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&sectionNum=19608.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&sectionNum=19619.6.
http://www.chrb.ca.gov/query_rules_and_regulations_database.asp?form_query_action=display_rule&form_query_rule_number=2058&form_query_rule_title=Duties+of+a+Racing+Association+or+Fair+Offering+Simulcast+Wagering%2E&form_query_article=Duties+of+a+Racing+Association+or+Fair+Offering+Simulcast+Wagering%2E&form_query_article_index=26&form_query_argument=2058
https://XpressBet.com

Back to Top

Specific information still needed to complete this application includes:
1. Thoroughbred Owners of California (TOC) race meet agreement. PRA Il has indicated
that it will forward the completed agreement to the Board immediately upon receipt.
2. California Thoroughbred Trainers (CTT) race meet agreement.
3. Agreements with all licensed northern California satellites.

Specific information which will need updating during the proposed race dates:

1. NYRABets ADW agreement is valid through July 7, 2021. PRA Il has indicated
that it will forward the agreement extension upon receipt.

RECOMMENDATION:

If the application is considered for approval, staff recommends that the approval be contingent
upon the submission of the outstanding items.



Back to Top
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

CALIFORNIA HORSE RACING BOARD
APPLICATION FOR LICENSE TO CONDUCT A HORSE RACING MEETING
CHRB-17 (Rev 1/16)

Application is hereby made to the California Horse Racing Board (CHRB) for a license to conduct a horse
racing meeting in accordance with the California Business and Professions Code, Chapter 4, Division 8, Horse
Racing Law, and the California Code of Regulations, Title 4, Division 4, CHRB Rules and Regulations.

1. APPLICANT ASSOCIATION

A. Name, mailing address, telephone, fax numbers, and the email address for associations contact
person:  Pacific Racing Association 11
1100 Eastshore Highway
Berkeley, CA 94710
Phone (510) 559-7300 Fax (510) 527-5622
david.duggan@goldengatefields.com

B. Breedofhorse: TB | X | QH H

C. Racetrack name: Golden Gate Fields

D. Attach a certified check payable to the Treasurer of the State of California in the amount of $10,000
as deposit for license fees pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19490. On File

E. Was the association licensed to operate a race meeting prior to January 1, 2001?

Yes No | X
If no, attach a surety bond in the amount of one hundred thousand dollars. On file; valid August
17, 2020 through August 17, 2021. Will forward to board upon renewal.

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: No application for a license to conduct a race meeting shall be granted unless the applicant has deposited
with the Board a surety bond in the amount of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000), or a greater amount, as determined by the
Board, which is sufficient to ensure payment of employee wages and benefits including, but not limited to, health, welfare, and
pension plans. The surety bond shall be maintained during the period of the meeting and for an additional period, as determined by
the Board, sufficient to assure that all payments are made. This subdivision does not apply to any person or association licensed to
operate a horse race meeting prior to January 1, 2001, which has conducted a race meeting in each of the immediate three previous
consecutive calendar years. The $100,000 surety bond amount may be increased to an amount determined by the Board at the time
the application is scheduled for hearing pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19464(b).

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Application must be filed not later than 90 days before the scheduled start date for the proposed meeting
pursuant to CHRB Rule 1433.

2. DATES OF RACE MEETING
A. Inclusive dates allocated for the entire meeting: July 21, 2021 through August 3, 2021
B.  Actual dates racing will be held: July 23-25 and July 30 - August 1

C. Total number of days or nights of racing: 6 days

CHRB CERTIFICATION
Application received: Hearing date:
Deposit received: Approved date:
Reviewed: License number:



mailto:david.duggan@goldengatefields.com

Back to Top

D. Days or nights of the week races will be held:
Wed - Sun Tues - Sat | x | Other (specity)

E. Number of days or nights of racing per week: 3 days per week
Racing Fridays through Sundays

Exceptions: N/A

RACING PROGRAM

A. Total number of races: 50-62

B.  Number of races for each day or night:
e 7 -9 races on weekdays
e 911 races on weekends/holiday

C. Total number of stakes races: 0

D. Attach a listing of all stakes races and indicate the date to be run and the added money or guaranteed
purse for each. Note the races that are designated for California-bred horses. N/A

1. Attach a listing of all stakes races for the past two race meetings. The information provided must
be for the same timeframe in which the association is applying. Include the date the stakes races
were run, and the added money or guaranteed purse for each. Note the races that were designated
for California-bred horses. N/A

2. Identify the stakes races listed under item D. that have been altered, added, or are new for the
current race meeting. Provide details regarding any alterations to the identified stakes races. (e.g.,
changes in the age, sex, eligibility, purse or substantial calendar changes). N/A

3. Identify the stakes races listed under item D. 1. that have been dropped or deleted, and the reasons

the stakes were dropped or deleted. N/A

E.  Will provisions be made for owners and trainers to use their own registered colors?
x | Yes No If no, what racing colors are to be used:

F. List all post times for the daily racing program:



Back to Top

Post Time
Race Number Daily

Ist 1:45 p.m.

2nd 2:15 p.m.

3rd 2:45 p.m.

4th 3:15 p.m.

Sth 3:45 p.m.

6th 4:15 p.m.

7th 4:45 p.m.

8th 5:15 p.m.

9th 5:45 p.m.

10™ when applicable 6:15 p.m.
11" when applicable 6:45 p.m.

* Post times may change in order to coordinate North/South signals.

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Every licensee conducting a horse racing meeting shall each racing day provide for the running of at least
one race limited to California-bred horses, to be known as the "California-bred race," pursuant to CHRB Rule 1813. For
thoroughbred and quarter horse meetings, the total amount distributed for California-bred stakes races from the purse account,
including overnight stakes, shall not be less than 10% of the total amount distributed for 11 stakes races pursuant to Business and

Professions Code section 19568(b).

4. RACING ASSOCIATION

A. Association is a:

X

Corporation (complete subsection C)
LLC (complete subsection D)
Other (specify, and complete subsection E)

B. Complete the applicable subsection and attached Addendum, Background Information and
Ownership. Addendum on file with the Board

C. CORPORATION

b=

by each:

Registered name of the corporation: Pacific Racing Association I1

State where incorporated: California

Registry or file number for the corporation: 3481225

Names of all officers and directors, titles, and the number of shares of the corporation held

Craig Fravel, President (Officer), 0 Shares

Mike Rogers, Vice President, Operations (Officer/Director), 0 Shares
Rebecca Neimark, CFO (Officer), 0 Shares

David Duggan, Vice President & General Manager (Officer), 0 Shares
Scott Daruty, Senior Vice-President (Officer/Director), 0 Shares

Greg Harnish, Secretary (Officer), 0 Shares

Eric Sindler, Assistant Secretary (Officer), 0 Shares

5. Names (true names) of all persons, other than the officers and directors listed above, that hold



10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.

17.

LLC

b=

_‘
=IN S

12.

Back to Top

5% or more of the outstanding shares in the corporation and the number of shares held by

each: TSG Developments Investments Inc., 100 Shares

Number of outstanding shares in the corporation: 100 Shares

Are the shares listed for public trading? Yes x | No

If yes, on what exchange and how is the stock listed:

Name of the custodian of the list of shareholders and/or the transfer agent for the

shareholdings of the corporation: Share register is with Laura Proniuk in corporate office

(Canada); Email: Laura.Proniuk@stronachgroup.com

If more than 50% of the shares are held by a parent corporation or are paired with any other

corporation or entity, give the name of the parent and/or paired corporation or entity:

TSG Development Investments Inc.

A. Is parent and/or paired corporation or entity a publically traded or privately held
company that guarantees the obligation of the applicant? If no, proceed to section F.
If yes, answer questions 10-17. Yes No X

Registered name of the corporation: Not applicable

State where incorporated: Not applicable

Registry or file number for the corporation: Not applicable

Names of all officers and directors, titles, and the number of shares of the corporation held

by each: Not applicable

Names (true names) of all persons, other than the officers and directors listed above, that hold

5% or more of the outstanding shares in the corporation and the number of shares held by

each: On file with the Board.

Number of outstanding shares in the corporation: Not applicable

Are the shares listed for public trading? Yes No X

If yes, on what exchange and how is the stock listed:

Name of the custodian of the list of shareholders and/or the transfer agent for the

shareholdings of the corporation: Not applicable

Registered name of the LLC: Not applicable

State where articles of organization are filed: Not applicable

Registry or file number for the LLC: Not applicable

Attach a list of the names of all members (including individuals (true names), corporations,

other LLCs and or foreign entities), titles, and the number of shares of the LLC held by each:

Not applicable

Are the shares listed for public trading? Yes No [ X

If yes, on what exchange and how the stock is listed:

If more than 50% of the shares are held by a parent corporation or are paired with any other

corporation or entity, give the name of the parent and/or paired corporation or entity:

Not applicable

A. Is parent and/or paired entity either a publically traded or privately held company that
guarantees the obligation of the applicant? If no, proceed to section F. If yes, answer
questions 7-12. Yes |:| No | x

Registered name of the LLC/Corporation: Not applicable

State where articles of organization are filed: Not applicable

Registry or file number for the LLC: Not applicable

Attach a list of the names (true names) of all members (members may include individuals,

corporations other LLCs and foreign entities), titles, and the number of shares of the LLC

held by each: Not applicable

Are the shares listed for public trading? Yes No| x

If yes, on what exchange and how the stock is listed: Not applicable



mailto:Laura.Proniuk@stronachgroup.com

Back to Top

E. OTHER

1.
2.

Name(s) of partners/sole proprietor: Not applicable
If a partnership, attach partnership agreement. Not applicable

F.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION*

1. Attach the most recent audited annual financial statement or financial report for the applicant.
The financial statement or financial report shall include all relevant financial information
specific to the applicant including: (On file with the board).

e Statement of Financial Position: also referred to as a balance sheet. Statement should
report on applicant’s assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities and ownership equity as of
the date of the prepared statement.

e Statement of Comprehensive Income: also referred to as Profit and Loss (“P&L”)
Statement. Statement should include report on applicant’s income, expenses, and profits.

e Profit and Loss statement for prior two years race meeting and Profit and Loss statement
for projected year race meeting.

e Statement of Changes in Equity: to include the changes of the applicants’ equity through
the reporting period.

e Statement of Cash Flows: to include a report of the applicant’s cash flow activity,
particularly its operating investing and financing activities during the reporting period.

e Copy of a report made during the preceding 12 months to shareholders in the corporation
and/or the Securities and Exchange Commission and/or the California Corporations

Commission.
*NOTICE TO APPLICANT: The financial information provided pursuant to subsection (F) above is exempt from
disclosure pursuant to Government Code section 6254(k) and non-disclosable to the public.

G. MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

1.

Name and title of the managing officer and/or general manager of the association and the
name and title of all department managers and staff, other than those listed in 13B, who will
be listed in the official program:

Craig Fravel, President

Scott Daruty, Senior Vice President

Mike Rogers, Vice President, Operations

Greg Harnish, Assistant Secretary

Rebecca Neimark, Chief Financial Officer

David Duggan, Vice President & General Manager
Eric Sindler, Assistant Secretary & General Counsel, California Racing Operations
William Rizzuto, Assistant General Manager
Cynthia Seidl, Senior Manager of Administration
Cindy Medina, Assistant Controller

Doug Gooby, Mutuel Manager

Nadia Osborn, Director of Marketing

Matt Dinerman, Announcer

Juan Meza, Track Superintendent

Steve Martinelli, Price Maker

William Vassar, Track Photographer

David Seftel, M.D., Track Physician



Back to Top

2. Name and title of the person(s) authorized to receive notices on behalf of the association and
the mailing and email address of such person(s).
David Duggan
Vice President and General Manager
1100 Eastshore Hwy
Berkeley, CA 94710
david.duggan@goldengatefields.com

5. TAKE OUT PERCENTAGE

1. If this is a thoroughbred race meeting, will the percentage deducted for any type of wager be
adjusted pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19601.01? If no, proceed to
subsection 6. If yes, identify the wager and the proposed takeout percentage.

Yes X No
Wager(s) to be adjusted: Pick 5 Proposed percentage: 14%
Daily Double 20%

Attach copy of written notice requesting the proposed takeout adjustment, the proposed percentage and the
wager(s) affected. The notice must include the written agreement of the thoroughbred association and the
horsemen’s organization for the meeting of the thoroughbred association accepting the wager.

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19601.01, notwithstanding any other provision of
law, a thoroughbred association or fair, upon the filing of a written notice with, and approval by, the Board specifying the percentage
to be deducted, may deduct from the total amount handled in the pari-mutuel pool for any type of wager an amount of not less than
10 percent nor more than 25 percent. The written notice shall include the written agreement of the thoroughbred association or fair
and the horsemen's organization for the meeting of the thoroughbred association or fair accepting the wager. The established
percentage to be deducted shall remain in effect until the filing of a subsequent notice with, and approval by, the Board, unless
otherwise specified in the notice.

6. HANDLE HISTORY

1. Complete the table below providing the last five years of handle and attendance for your racing
association. If your association has been operating for fewer than five years, provide information for
the period of time it has been in operation. If the racing association has changed ownership include the
handle information for the previous racing association. N/A

Year Handle Attendance

7. PURSE PROGRAM (excluding supplements, nominations, sponsorships and starter fees):

A. Purse distribution: Prior meet dates not available


mailto:david.duggan@goldengatefields.com
https://19601.01
https://19601.01

May 21, 2021

Scott Chaney

Executive Director

California Horse Racing Board
1010 Hurley Way, Suite 200
Sacramento, CA 95825

Dear Scott:

Pursuant to California Business and Professions Code section 19601.01, Pacific Racing
Association (PRA), in consultation with the Thoroughbred Owners of California
(TOC), is hereby requesting takeout as set forth below to be offered during the PRA 11
summer race meet July 23 through August 1, 2021 all inclusive.

e Pick 5 —a $.50 minimum wager on the first five (5) races on each day’s card
subject to a takeout rate of 14%.

e Rolling Daily Double - $2.00 minimum wager offered every race on each day’s
card subject to a takeout rate of 20%.

For reference, the Pick 5 and Rolling Daily Doubles are noted on PRA’s 1I license
application in Section 5A.

Please feel free to contact me with any questions or concerns.

Sincerely,

David Duggan
Vice President & General Manager

Back to Top



Back to Top

TOC

Serving the Gulifornia
Thorotighbred Kacehare Owner

May 22, 2021

Mr. Scott Chaney

California Horse Racing Board
1010 Hurley Way, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95825

RE: Golden Gate Fields 2021 PRA Il Summer Race Meet

Dear Scott,

Golden Gate Fields has contacted the Thoroughbred Owners of California (TOC) regarding
the conducting of the “Players Pick-5" on the first five (5) races of the day subject to a 14%
takeout during its PRA Il Summer meet from July 21 - August 3, 2021. The TOC agrees to
such a wager based upon the same terms and conditions as it was offered at Golden Gate

Fields’ previous meet.

Please feel free to contact me with any questions.

Sincerely,

J/ .
Greg Avioli
President & CEO

cc: Eric Sindler
Cynthia Seidl

285 W. HUNTINGTON DR., ARCADIA, CA 91007 (626) 574-6620
CHAIRMAN: GARY FENTON
PRESIDENT & CEQ: GREG AVIOLI
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: MARY FORNEY
NORTHERN CA LIAISON: WAYNE ATWELL
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: ELSA PERON



TOC

Serving the California
Thoroughbired Kaceluree Owner

May 22,2021

Mr. Scott Chaney

California Horse Racing Board
1010 Hurley Way, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95825

RE: Golden Gate Fields 2021 PRA II Summer Race Meet

Dear Scott,

Golden Gate Fields has contacted the Thoroughbred Owners of California (“TOC") regarding
the conducting of “Rolling Doubles” wagers, subject to a 20% takeout, on each racing day of
its PRA Il Summer meet from July 21 - August 3, 2021. The TOC agrees to such a wager
based upon the same terms and conditions as it was offered at Golden Gate Fields’ previous

meet.

Please feel free to contact me with any questions.

Sincerely,

Greg Avioli
President & CEO

cc: Eric Sindler
Cynthia Seidl

Back to Top

285 W. HUNTINGTON DR., ARCADIA, CA 91007 (626) 574-6620
CHAIRMAN: GARY FENTON
PRESIDENT & CEO: GREG AVIOLI
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: MARY FORNEY
NORTHERN CA LIAISON: WAYNE ATWELL
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: ELSA PERON



All races other than stakes:
Current meet estimate: $ 879,744
Prior meet actual: $0

Average Daily Purse (7 A1 + number of days):

Current meet estimate: $ 146,624
Prior meet actual: $ 0

Overnight stakes:
Current meet estimate: $ 0
Prior meet actual: $0

Average Daily Purse (7 A2 + number of days):

Current meet estimate: $ 0
Prior meet actual: $ 0

Non-overnight stakes: $ 0
Prior meet actual: $0

Average Daily Purse (7 A3 + number of days):

Current meet estimate: $ 0.00
Prior meet actual: $ 0.00

Total Purses: (7TA1+7A2+ 7A3)

Current meet estimate: $ 879,744
Prior meet actual: $0

California-bred Stakes Races:

1.

Back to Top

Percentage of the purse distribution for all stakes races that will be distributed for California-

bred stakes races:
Current meet estimate: 0%
Prior meet actual: 0%

Average Daily Purse (7 B1 + number of days):
Current meet estimate: 0%
Prior meet actual: 0%

Funds to be generated for all California-bred incentive awards (including breeder awards and
owners premiums):

Current meet estimate: $ 62,181
Prior meet actual: $ 0

Payment to each recognized horsemen’s organization contracting with the association and the
name(s) of the organization(s):

Recognized Horsemen’s Organization



Back to Top

Current meet estimate: Prior meet actual:

TOC (NTRA contribution) $ 1,103 TOC (NTRA contribution) $0
TOC $ 7,925 TOC $0
CTT (Administration) $ 7,925 CTT (Administration) $0
CTT (Pension) $ 3,962 CTT (Pension) $0
Total $ 20,915 Total $0

E. Amount from all sources to be distributed in the form of purses or other benefits to horsemen
(7 A+7 C+7 D):
Current meet estimate: $ 962,840
Prior meet actual: $0

Average Daily Purse (7 E + number of days):
Current meet estimate: $ 150,110
Prior meet actual: $ 0

F.  Purse funds to be generated from on-track handle and intrastate off-track handle (excluding carry-
overs from prior race meet(s):
Current meet estimate: $ 586,958
Prior meet actual: $0

Average Daily Purse (7 F + number of days):
Current meet estimate: $ 97,826
Prior meet actual: $0

G. Purse funds to be generated from interstate handle:
Current meet estimate: $ 263,670
Prior meet actual: $0

Average Daily Purse (7 G + number of days):
Current meet estimate: $ 43,945
Prior meet actual: $ 0

H. Bank and account number for the Paymaster of Purses' purse account:
On File

I.  Name, address, email and telephone number of the pari-mutuel audit firm engaged for the meeting:
Bowen & McBeth, 10722 Arrow Route, Suite 110, Rancho Cucamonga, California 91730,
(909) 944-6465; email: craigbmiller@verizon.net

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: All funds generated and retained from on-track pari-mutuel handle which are obligated by law for
distribution in the form of purses, breeders' awards or other benefits to horsemen, shall not be deemed as income to the association;
shall not be transferred to a parent corporation outside the State of California; and shall, within 3 calendar days following receipt,
be deposited in a segregated and separate liability account in a depository approved by the CHRB and shall be at the disposition of
the Paymaster of Purses, who shall pay or distribute such funds to the persons entitled thereto. All funds generated from off-track
simulcast wagering, interstate wagering, and out-of-state wagering which are obligated by law for distribution in the form of purses
and breeders' awards, shall also be deposited within 3 calendar days following receipt, into such liability account. In the event the
association is obligated to the payment of purses prior to those obligated amounts being retained from pari-mutuel wagering for such
purpose, or as a result of overpayment of earned purses at the conclusion of the meeting, the association shall transfer from its own
funds such amounts as are necessary for the Paymaster of Purses to distribute to the horse owners statutorily or contractually entitled
thereto. The association is entitled to recover such transferred funds from the Paymaster of Purses' account; and if insufficient funds
remain in the account at the conclusion of the meeting, the association is entitled to carry forward the deficit to its next succeeding


mailto:craigbmiller@verizon.net

Back to Top

meeting as provided by Business and Professions Code section 19615(c) or (d). In the event of underpayment of purses which
results in a balance remaining in the Paymaster of Purses' account at the conclusion of the meeting after distribution of amounts due
to horsemen and breeders and horsemen's organizations, the association may carry forward the surplus amount to its next succeeding
meeting; provided, however, that the amount so retained does not exceed an amount equivalent to the average daily distribution of
purses and breeders’ awards during the meeting. All amounts in excess shall be distributed retroactively and proportionally in the
form of purses and breeders’ awards to the horse owners and breeders having earned purses or awards during the conduct of the
meeting.

8. STABLE ACCOMMODATIONS
A. Number of usable stalls available for racehorses at the track where the meeting is held: 1,500
B.  Minimum number of stalls believed necessary for the meeting: 1,500

C. Total number of usable stalls to be made available off-site at approved auxiliary stabling areas or
approved training centers: N/A

D. Name and location of each off-site auxiliary stabling area and the number of stalls to be maintained
at each site: N/A

E.  Attach each contract or agreement between the association and the person(s) furnishing off-site
stabling accommodations for eligible racehorses that cannot be provided stabling on-site. N/A

Complete subsections F. through H. if the association will request reimbursement for off-site stabling as
provided by Business and Professions Code sections 19607, 19607.1, 19607.2, and 19607.3; otherwise,
proceed to section 9.

F.  Total number of usable stalls made available on-site for the 1986 meeting, pursuant to Business
and Professions Code section 19535(c): 1,405

G. Estimated cost to provide off-site stalls for this meeting. Show cost per day per stall: N/A

H. Estimated cost to provide vanning from off-site stalls for this meeting. Show fees to be paid for
vanning per-horse: N/A

9. EQUINE EMERGENCY SERVICES

A. Name and emergency telephone number of the racing veterinarian onsite during training hours,
workouts and during racing for the association and auxiliary sites: Attached

1. Attach a schedule listing the dates and times that the racing veterinarian will be available
onsite during training hours, workouts and during racing for the association and auxiliary
sites. Attached.

10. PARI-MUTUEL WAGERING PROGRAM

A. Pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19599, and with the approval of the CHRB,
associations may elect to offer wagering programs using CHRB Pari-mutuel Rules, the Association
of Racing Commissioners International (RCI) Uniform Rules of Racing, Chapter 9, Pari-mutuel
Wagering, or a combination of both. Please complete the following schedule for the types of



Back to Top

PRA /PRA II/GOLDEN GATE FIELDS
EQUINE EMERGENCY SERVICES

Attachment to PRA/Golden Gate Fields License Application

Section 9A (1)
A. VETERINARIAN EMERGENCY CONTACT #
Dr. Casille Batten 510-559-7300
Dr. Ken Allison 510-559-7300
Dr. William Grantham * 510-559-7300
Dr. Kim Kuhlmann 510-559-7300
Dr. Steve Matuszak 510-559-7300
Dr. Jerry Parker 510-559-7300
Dr. Don Smith 510-559-7300
Dr. Ashton Cloninger * 510-559-7300
Dr. Kandall Cannon 510-559-7300
* Race day Lasix veterinarian
1. GOLDEN GATE FIELDS VETERINARIAN SCHEDULE
Mondays: Closed
Tuesdays: AM Only — TBD
Wednesdays: AM Only - TBD
Thursdays: AM - Dr. Casille Batten
PM - Dr. William Grantham
Fridays AM - Dr. Casille Batten
PM - Dr. William Grantham
Saturdays: AM - Dr. Casille Batten
PM - Dr. Ashton Cloninger
Sunday: AM - Dr. Casille Batten

PM — Dr. Ashton Cloninger

TBD - Rotating schedule amongst list from exhibit A



Back to Top
wagering other than WPS and the minimum wager amount for each:

Use DD for daily double, E for exacta (special quinella), PK3 for pick three, PK4 for select four,
PNP for pick (n) pool, PPN for place pick (n), Q for quinella, SF for superfecta, TRI for trifecta,
and US for unlimited sweepstakes (pick 9).

TYPE OF WAGERS APPLICABLE RULES
Example Race: $1 E; $1 Double CHRB #1959; RCI #VE
See Attached for wagering menu, bet minimum, rules, and additional wagering information

B.  Identify any wagers noted in 10.A. (the current pari-mutuel wagering program) that were not in the
prior year’s pari-mutuel program, or that are not being carried forward from the previous year’s
pari-mutuel wagering program. See attached wagering menu

C. Maximum Carryover pool to be allowed to accumulate before its distribution OR the date(s)
designated for distribution of the carryover pool: Mandatory payout on closing day, August 1, 2021 for
the period of July 23, 2021 through August 1, 2021. Additionally, we request that the board approve
additional mandatory distributions prior to closing day throughout the meet on the condition that the
Executive Director is notified at least seven (7) days before any such mandatory distribution and such
notification includes a justification for the distribution and an explanation of the benefit to be derived.

D. List any options requested with regard to exotic wagering: 2 Tier — 70%30% split

E.  Will "advance" or "early bird" wagering be offered? Yes No | X
If yes, when will such wagering begin? Specify days and time for “early bird” wagering:

F.  Type(s) of pari-mutuel or totalizator equipment to be used by the association and the simulcast

organization, name of the person(s) supplying equipment, and expiration date of the service contract:

AmTote effective October 26, 2015 with expiration date of October 2020 with option to extend
contract to October 2025

G. List below the takeout percentage for each type of wager identified in 10.A.:

TAKEOUT PERCENTAGE
(Example) PNP5-14%

See attached wagering menu
11. ADVANCE DEPOSIT WAGERING (ADW)

A. Identify the ADW provider(s) to be used by the association for this race meeting:
Xpressbet
TwinSpires
TVG
NYRABets
BetAmerica

B. Attach a copy of the agreement/contracts with each ADW provider to be used for this race meeting.
On file with the Board

C. Have the contract/agreements been approved by the respective horsemen’s groups?



Back to Top

"PAIUIP S [Z0T ‘9T ABIA P21BP 1319 a1 ul apew jsanbai ayy J1 A[uQ ,
“PaYOIRIDS ST 152131Ul FuLIDTem PIJO[as JI3Y) JUSAS S UT §IS3IU0D (U) D1 Y} Jo Aue ul 152191ul FunsFem SIRIILIE Ue 193[3S 0] Suoijed MO[[e UOISSIUIOD) 1Byl 1sanbar am

‘(o1qeoridde J1 “*Aep 9.1 1%3U Y1 01
Suipnyour) 9981 XU 01 JDAOALIED 04,(() | ‘UONB[OSUOD ON| {SIQUULM SAY SUIjI9[3S S19Y1)
[[e uo 1noAed 94001 ‘SIoLEIS PIIB[OIP SI0UW IO /, BARY JEY} S30eI [[8 U0 ¢ YSIH 1edng [§ | %89°€T (P)XSO1-+00 10UV | (S ySiH tedng) eyodyeiuad
"19A0KLred [00d 10Tew 3y} 0} PAPPE q [[IM %0€ Y1 pue [00d Jourw AD@OT)D)SO1-700 IDYV
ay 01 pred aq [[1m %0 I93o1 anbrun ou 1 “Aep yoea 901 XIS 1SB] oY) U0 9 YOId 0T'$ |  %89'ET “8)NTND)SOT1-700 1DV (9 Yo1d) 9dNd
‘uoIs1Ao1d Iauunt 9JewId Y
‘SIQUULM 9ALJ SBY 13301} OU JI G Y91 9187] S ABP 1XaU 0} IOAOALIRD 94| UOLR[OSUOD
ON ‘sIouuim dAY Sundd[3s S0 [[e 0} InoAed 94001 “SIBI DAY ISB[ UO $ 31 0S'S |  %89°€T 6'9L61 TIHO (S 1d 97eT) SANJ 28]
‘UOISIAOId JouUNI SJRULId) Y
‘SIQUUIM JALJ SBY 19301 OU JI G Xo1d A[Jed S AP IXoU 0] IOAOALIED 0400 [ UOLR[OSU0D
ON ‘SIOUUIM dAY FuLdR[3S S)OXON [[€ 03 IN0ARd 040( [ “SAIBX AAL ISIY UO § I 0S'S | %00'V1 6'9L61 IHO | (S 3oid Aped) SINd A1ed
‘UOISTA0Id JAUUNL
ajewdl[V noked 9400 ‘UONL[OSUOD ON SI9LI INOJ JSB PUB -7 SIVBIUO ¢ XOId 0S°S | %89 €T 6'9L61 TIHD (¥ Y1) ¥dNd
€M 0SS | %89°ET LL61 EIHO € I0Id
"?[qno A1t 7§ | %00°0T LS61 AHO (aq) aqno Alreq
"S90BI A]QISI[D [ UO BIOJIAANS O1'§ | %89'€T 1'6L61 SIHO ©1031adng
"S90BI J[QISI[2 [ UO BI09JLL 0SS | %89'€T 6L61 IHO ©JOSJLLL
'S99 J[qI3I[D [ UO B)ORXT [§ | %89°CT 6561 SIHO ejoexy
*S9JBI XIS UBY) 210U 10U Ing 0M] ISBI[ JB SUIqUIOD
1snur JoSem ay [, *9oeI 9[qIB1[a KI9A3 UO J[ge[ieAe SI Ae[red moyg pue ‘@oe]d ‘UIM T$ %ET' ST 1'vS61 AHD Kepred
UOHBULIOJU] JOYIO PUB JUNOWY JOSB A WINWIUIA] | INOdYR] Ny 193em
oiqeorjdde usy A\ 4
X X X X X zl
X * X X X * X 11
X * * X X X * X 0l
X % * * X X X * X 6
X * * * * X X X * X 8
X * % * * X X X * X L
X * * * * X X X X X X 9
X * * * X X X X X X X S
X * * * X X X X X X X v
X % * X X X X X X X 3
X * X X X X X X X X (4
X X X X X X X X X [
2300581USd | 9dNd | SANd T | SANd T | vdNd | €ld | ad | ewayiedng | ooy, | ewexy | Aered | S/d/M

UOIIBULIOJU] pPue nuajy Suriofesy Sp[ol 2Jern) uapion




Back to Top

®GOLDEN GATE FIELDS

May 26, 2021

Scott Chaney

California Horse Racing Board
1010 Hurley Way, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95825

Re: Rainbow Pick 6 and Mandatory Payout Day
Scott,

This letter is in regards to Pacific Racing Association II’s (“PRA”) “Application for
License to Conduct a Horse Racing Meeting” for the time period of July 21, 2021 through
August 3, 2021 (the “Race Meet Application”).

As specified in the Race Meet Application, PRA wishes to use ARCI 004-105(G)(2)(g) to
govern the payout of our Pick 6.

Definition of Unique

Additionally, pursuant to ARCI 004-105(G)(2)(g), PRA is required to identify which
definition under ARCI 004-105(G)(16)(b) PRA will use to identify a unique ticket. PRA requests
that a combination of the two definitions to define unique be used. Specifically, PRA wishes
“unique” to be defined as:

“1) The total amount wagered on one and only one winning combination selecting the first-place
finisher in each of the Pick (n) contests, based up on the official order of finish, is equal to the
minimum allowable wager, 2) there is more than one combination selecting the first-place
finisher in each of the Pick (n) Contests equal to the minimum allowable wager and all such
winning combinations are on one ticket that has a unique serial number assigned by the tote
company that issued the ticket and the multiple winning combinations is solely a result of a
wagering interest being scratched and replaced with the post time favorite; 3) there is more than
one combination selecting the first-place finisher in each of the Pick (n) contests equal to the
minimum allowable wager and all such winning combinations are on one ticket that has a unique
serial number assigned by the tote company that issued the ticket and the multiple winning
combinations is solely a result of a dead heat; 4) there is more than one combination selecting the
first-place finisher in each of the Pick (n) contests equal to the minimum allowable wager and all
such winning combinations are on one ticket that has a unique serial number assigned by the tote
company that issued the ticket and the multiple winning combinations is solely a result of there is
a surface change after the Pick 6 pool has closed and as a result the race is a “Win All”; or 5)
there is more than one combination selecting the first-place finisher in each of the Pick (n)
contests equal to the minimum allowable wager and all such winning combinations are on one
ticket that has a unique serial number assigned by the tote company that issued the ticket and the
multiple winning combinations is solely a result of some combination of (2), (3), and (4) above.”



Back to Top

If our proposed definition of unique is not approved, we will use ARCI 004-105(G)(16)(b)(i) to
define “unique.”

Each day that there is no unique ticket, 70% will be paid out as the minor share to
ticketholders which correctly selected the most first place finishers in the Pick(n) contests and

30% will be carried over to the major share (i.e. unique share).

Late Surface Change

Pursuant to ARCI 004-105(G)(6)-(7), on any day in which there is a surface change after
the Pick 6 pool closes, “the net pool shall be distributed as a single price pool to those whose
selection finished first in the greatest number of Pick (n) contests for that performance. Such
distribution shall include the portion ordinarily retained for the Pick (n) carryover but not the
carryover from previous performances.”

PRA requests that on any day in which there is a surface change after the Pick 6 pool has
closed, with respect to the race(s) with a changed surface, the changed leg(s), i.¢. the race(s) that
had the surface change, are declared a “Win All,” not a “no contest.”

PRA also requests that on any day in which there is a surface change after the Pick 6 pool
has closed, the following payout distribution method be used: the payout distribution method as
provided for in ARCI 004-105(G)(2)(g) if there is a unique ticket and if there is not a unique
ticket, the entire day’s net pool be paid to ticketholders which correctly selected the most first
place finishers in the Pick(n) contests. In other words, PRA is requesting that on any day in
which there is a surface change after the Pick 6 pool has closed, the payout will be treated the
same way it is on all other days during the license period if there is a unique winning ticket. If
there is no unique winning ticket, the day’s major share (unique share) will be added to day’s
minor share. On days in which there is a surface change after the Pick 6 pool has closed, the
unique jackpot carryover can be paid out, however, it cannot grow.

If there is a surface change after the Pick 6 pool closes on a mandatory payout date, the
day’s net pool and any carryover will be divided among the ticket holders that correctly selected
the greatest number of first-place finishers.

PRA requests these modifications be approved as part of its license application.

Sincerely,

Eric Sindler



Back to Top

Yes X No

If yes, attach a copy of the approval. On file with the Board.
If no, explain the status of the approval.

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19604, ADW providers may accept wagers on races conducted
in California from a resident of California if : 1) the ADW provider is licensed by the Board; 2) a written agreement allowing those wagers exists
with the racing association or fair conducting the races on which the wagers are made; 3) the agreement shall have been approved in writing by the
horsemen’s organization responsible for negotiating purse agreements for the breed on which the wagers are made. ADW providers may accept
wagers on races conducted outside of California from a resident of California if: 1) the ADW provider is licensed by the Board; 2) there is a hub
agreement between the ADW provider and one or both of (i) one or more racing associations or fairs that together conduct no fewer than five weeks
of live racing on the breed on which wagering is conducted during the calendar year during which the wagers are placed and (ii) the horsemen’s
organization responsible for negotiating purse agreements for the breed on which wagering is conducted.

12. SIMULCAST WAGERING PROGRAM

A. Simulcast organization engaged by the association to conduct simulcast wagering: N/A

B. Attach the agreement between the association and simulcast organization permitting the
organization to use the association's live audiovisual signal for wagering purposes and providing
access to its totalizator for the purpose of combining on-track and off-track pari-mutuel pools.
N/A

C. California simulcast facilities the association proposes to offer its live audiovisual signal: Attached
(Southern California only)

D. Out-of-state wagering systems the association proposes to offer its live audiovisual signal:
Attached

E.  Out-of-state wagering systems that will combine their pari-mutuel pools with those of
the association:
Attached

F.  California mini-simulcast facilities the association proposes to offer its live audiovisual signal:
Attached

G. For THOROUGHBRED racing associations, list the host track from which the association proposes to
import out-of-state and/or out-of-country thoroughbred races. Include the dates imported races will
be held, and whether or not a full card will be accepted. If the full card will not be imported, state
“selected feature and/or stakes races”: Attached.

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Business and Professions Code section 19596.2(a) stipulates that on days when live thoroughbred or fair
racing is being conducted in the state, the number of thoroughbred races which may be imported by an association or fair during
the calendar period the association or fair is conducting its racing meeting cannot exceed a combined daily total of 50 imported
thoroughbred races statewide. The limitation of 50 imported thoroughbred races per day statewide does not apply to those races
specified in Business and Professions Code section 19596.2(a)(1), (2), (3) and (4).

THOROUGHBRED SIMULCAST RACES TO BE IMPORTED
Name of Host Track Race Dates Full Card or Selected Feature and/or Stakes Races

H. For QUARTER HORSE racing associations, list the host track from which the association proposes to
import out-of-state and/or out-of-country quarter horse races. Include the dates imported races will
be held, and whether or not a full card will be accepted. If the full card will not be imported, state



Back to Top

TOC

Thoroughbred Owners of California

Serving the California
Thoroughbred Racehorse Owner

May 28, 2021

Mr. Eric Sindler

Santa Anita Racetrack
285 W. Huntington Dr.
Arcadia, CA 91007

RE:  PRAII 2021 Summer Race Meeting (July 21-August 3) ADW Approvals
Dear Eric,

Pursuant to the Interstate Horseracing Act and applicable California law, the Thoroughbred
Owners of California (TOC) agrees to the use of Golden Gate Fields (PRA II) race signals under the
terms and conditions set forth below.

Pursuant to Section 29, Intrastate Advance Deposit Wagering (“ADW”) of the Race Meet
Agreement between TOC and PRA I, and the Geo-Location Agreement (Exhibit A) between TOC
and each ADW provider, PRA II shall be permitted to transmit race signal to California-licensed
ADW providers TVG, XpressBet, TwinSpires, NYRA, BetAmerica, and Watch and Wager to accept
wagers on PRA Il and other Thoroughbred races during the 2021 summer race meetings, July 21
through August 3, 2021as follows:

1. California wagering on PRA races:

a. TVG, XpressBet, TwinSpires, and NYRA may deduct a Hub Fee of = % of gross handle for
ADW wagers accepted by California residents at all locations other than within the
enclosures of Thoroughbred racetracks and fairs on days when they are running live race
meets.

b. BetAmerica may deducta Hub Fee of % of gross handle for ADW wagers accepted by
California residents at all locations other than within the enclosures of Thoroughbred
racetracks and fairs on days when they are running live race meets.

c. Watch and Wager may deduct a Hub Fee of % of gross handle for ADW wagers accepted
by California residents at all locations other than within the enclosures of Thoroughbred
racetracks and fairs on days when they are running live race meets.

d. TVG, XpressBet, TwinSpires, NYRA, BetAmerica, and Watch and Wager may deduct a Hub
Fee of % of gross handle for ADW wagers accepted by California residents located
within the enclosure of a Thoroughbred racetrack or fair on days when they are running
live race meets, as more fully set forth in Exhibit A.

e. For all wagers identified in sections 1.a.-c. above, the remainder of the takeout shall be
distributed in conformity with the Market Access Fee provisions of California law (Section
19604 et seq).

285 W. HUNTINGTON DR., ARCADIA, CA91007 (626) 574-6620
CHAIRMAN: GARY FENTON
PRESIDENT & CEO: GREG AVIOLI
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: MARY FORNEY
NORTHERN CA LIAISON: WAYNE ATWELL
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT: ELSA PERON



Mr. EricBack to Top

May 28, 2021
Page 2 of 2

2. California wagering on out-of-state Thoroughbred races:

a. TVG, XpressBet, TwinSpires, and NYRA may deduct a Hub Fee of = % of gross handle for
ADW wagers accepted by California residents at all locations other than within the
enclosures of Thoroughbred racetracks and fairs on days when they are running live race
meets.

b. BetAmerica may deducta Hub Fee of % of gross handle for ADW wagers accepted by
California residents at all locations other than within the enclosures of Thoroughbred
racetracks and fairs on days when they are running live race meets.

c. Watch and Wager may deduct a Hub Fee of % of gross handle for ADW wagers accepted
by California residents at all locations other than within the enclosures of Thoroughbred
racetracks and fairs on days when they are running live race meets.

d. TVG, XpressBet, TwinSpires, NYRA, BetAmerica, and Watch and Wager may deduct a Hub
Fee of % of gross handle for ADW wagers accepted by California residents located
within the enclosure of a Thoroughbred racetrack or fair on days when they are running
live race meets, as more fully set forth in Exhibit A.

e. For all wagers identified in sections 2.a.-c. above, the remainder of the takeout shall be
distributed in conformity with the Market Access Fee provisions of California law (Section
19604 et seq).

3. Out-of-state wagering on PRA races:
a. TVG, XpressBet, TwinSpires and NYRA shall pay a Host Fee of no less than % of gross
out-of-state handle wagered by out-of-state account holders, plus a % California Purse
Fee per SB 1072.
b. BetAmerica and Watch and Wager shall pay a Host Fee of no less than % of takeout
(which includes a % California purse fee per SB 1072) of gross out-of-state handle
wagered by out-of-state account holders.

This agreement in no way binds TOC to the same terms and conditions with respect to future race
meetings. TOC’s authorization shall not serve, nor should it be construed as, a precedent to future
requests for permission to transmit race signals, and facilitate wagering on those signals, to the
ADW providers specified herein or to any other ADW provider. TOC reserves the right to cancel
or withdraw its authorization for any ADW provider, at any time, upon 48 hours written notice.
These terms and conditions are subject to receipt by TOC of written confirmation of these terms,
signed by authorized representatives of TVG, Xpressbet, TwinSpires, NYRA, and BetAmerica

Very truly yours,

Greg Avioli, President & CEO

cc: Tom Varela, Cynthia Seidl



Location
Address
City

Location
Address
City

Location
Address
City

Location
Address
City

Location
Address
City

Location
Address
City

Location
Address
City

Location
Address
City

Location
Address
City

Location
Address
City

Location
Address
City

Location
Address
City

Pari-Mutuel Satellite Supervisor Contact List - Day Meets

Southern California Locations:

Bakersfield-Firehouse
7701 White Lane
Bakersfield, CA 93307

Bonita-58 Fiat
4110 Bonita Road
Bonita, CA 91902

Cabazon-Fantasy Springs Casino
84-245 Indio Springs Drive
Indio, CA 92201

Commerce Casino Racebook
6131 East Telegraph Road
Commerce, CA 90040

Fairplex Park
2201 North White Avenue
Pomona, CA 91768

Hollywood Park
3383 W. Century Bivd.
Inglewood, CA 80303

Lake Elsinore Hotel & Casino
20930 Malaga Road
Lake Elsinore, CA 92530

Lake Perris-Sports Pavillion at The Farmer's Fair
18700 Lake Perris Drive
Perris, CA 92571

Lancaster-Watch and Wager, Antelope Valley Fair
2551 West Avenue - H
Lancaster, CA 93536

Los Alamitos
4961 Katella Avenue
Los Alamitos, CA 90720

National Orange Show-Sports Show
930 South Arrowhead Avenue
San Bernardino, CA 92408

Ocean's 11
121 Brooks Street
Oceanside, CA 92054

Location
Address
City

Location
Address
City

Location
Address
City

Location
Address
City

Location
Address
City

Location
Address
City

Location
Address
City

Location
Address
City

Location
Address
City

Location
Address
City

Location
Address
City

Location
Address
City

OC Tavern Sports Bar and Grill
2369 S. El Camino Real
San Clemente, CA 92672

Original Roadhouse Grill / Santa Maria
1423 S. Bradley Road
Santa Maria, CA 93454

Sammy's Original
23221 Lake Center Drive
Lake Forest, CA 92630

Santa Anita
285 W. Huntington Drive
Arcadia, CA 91007

Santa Clarita
21615 W. Soledad Canyon Road
Saugus, CA 91350

Striders
100 Harbor Drive, Suite 100
San Diego, CA 92101

Surfside Race Place at Del Mar
2260 Jimmy Durante Blvd
Del Mar, CA 92014

Thousand Oaks -Tilted Kilt
1345 E. Thousand QOaks Blvd.
Thousand Oaks, CA 91360

Ventura-The Derby Club
10 West Harbor Blvd.
Ventura, CA 93001

Victorville-San Bernardino Fair Sports Pavilion
14800 7th Street
Victorville, CA 92395

Viejas Casino & Turf Club
5000 Willows Road
Alpine, CA 91901

Pechanga Resort and Casino
45000 Pechanga Pkwy
Temecula, CA 92592

Back to Top



A0

Back to Top

Commingled Locations

12020 Golden Gate (PRA & PRA 1)

Amwas!t Enlertainmant Dovar Downs Maoronas (South Amearca) Saraloga Hameass Racewsy
Amwesi Accounts Dubuque Greyhound Maryland Jockey Chub Saraloga Bats (ADW)
Gresnbrier (WV) Elte Tud Club (1 lo 12) Mayweod Scarborough
Riders Up (SD}) Elfis Park Meadowlands Stlato Downs
Time Qul Lounge (SD} Emevatd Downs Meadows The Seabrook Grayhound
Tripte Crown (SD) Evangeline Downs Maadows The (ADWY) - PA regfonal Sodial Gaming
Arapahoe-Mila High Evmngetine Downs AWA Millers OTB Sof Mutusd
Arima Raca Club Falr Grounds Moblle Greyhound Southland Grayhound
Addington [ Fais Grounds ADW Monmoulh Park Sporis Creek Raceway
Attaniic Clty Racecourse Falr Meadows Mantana OTH Stale Falr (Lincaln, NE)
Balmaral Favariles at Gloucesler Monticello Suffolk Disirict OTS
Balmoral ADW (BETZOTIC) Finger Lakes Maurtalneer Park Suffalk Downs
Bangor Raceway Fonner MI. Pleasan! Meadows Sunlend Park
Batavia Freehold Nassau Regianal OT8 SunRay Park & Caslno
Bellor Rating Glllasple Gounty Fair New Jersay Caslno Assoc. Tampa Bay Dovins
Beulah Park Global Wagering Solutions Nevada Parl-Mutuel Assoc. Taurton Accl Wagering
Birmingham Bwin Intemalional Lid. Newporl Jal Alal Taunton Dog Track Inc.
Biuffs Run Greyhound Infl Betting Assoc. Ltd NJ Mobile The Downs at Albugquenque
Butfalo Raceway Magna Bat Norihfield Thistiedown
Canlterbury Recabels Cedar Downs OTB Tiaga Downs
Caplial Dislrct OTB Greenelrack Norlhville Tri-Slale GH (Mardl Gras)
Catsklils OTB Greyhound @ Posl Fafls NYRA Turf Paradise
Charfes Town Race Course Gudf Grayhound NYRA Accaunt Wagering Turfway Park
Chester Downa & Marina LLC Guifsiream Oaklawn FVG Chesler
Churchlll Downs Hamingtan Raceway Ocean Dovns TVG Natwork
Club Hipica InTwrf HamingtonBats (DE feglonal) Panama TVG Pralde
Coeur d* Alene Caslno Hawthome Race Course PARX Twin River Greyhound
Colonlal Downs Hawthorme ADW PARX Phono Bl TwinSpires
Calonlal Downs Phone Bet Hazel Park Penn Natlonal TwinSpires High Vakyme
Columbus Raceway Hoosler Park Pann Natlonal Telebel Velocity Wagering Lid.
Connecticul OTB Horseman's Park Peru Venezueta OTB
Bradley Teletheater, Bristol Idabet Plalnridge Raca Course Vemon Downs
New Brllaln, Norwalk, Milford Indiana Downs. Plalvidge Telaphona Wagering WatchandWagar
Easl Heven, Harford, Putnam ClarkevillefEvansvila OT8 Player Management Graup Westem OTB
Shorallne Star, Sports Haven Intarmountain Racing Pucono Accounl Wagering Wheelng Downs
Torrington, Walerhury Keeneland Pocono Oowns and OTB Will Rogers Downs
Manchesler, New London Kaeneland Select ADW Poriland Meadows Wyoming OTB
Wilimanlic, Sanford OTB Kentuck Downs Palawatomi Gasino/ OTB Wyoming Downs
John Martin's Maior R t Kentucky OTB Pralria Meadows XprossBet
Connecticut OTB ADW Lebanon Premler Turf Club Yonkers Raceway
Coushatla Caslno Les Bols (Treasure Valey) Prasqua [ste Downs Yonkers ADW
Paragon Caslino Lewislon OTB's Raceway Park Youbat Group 1
Ho-Chunk Caslno and Racebook Llen Games Racing2Day LLC 2Zla Park
Mahegan Sun Casine Chips Lounge and Casino Racing2Day Inll. (Stan James) 123Gaming
Onekia Bingo and Casino Howard Johnsons OT8 Remington Park
Pony Bar Simulcast Gerfer Rumors OTB Remington OTB Netwark
Tole Inveatment Radng Skydemcer Casino OTB Relama
Randall James Racetrack Llen Games ADW Racing & Gaming Servicas Separate Paol Locatlons
Millenfum Rading BalAmerica and Offimckbelting Rillito Park Camarero (Puerto Rico)
Royal Beach Casina Lone Star Rlver Downs Caymanas (Jamaica}
Divi Carina Bay Caslno Loulslana Oowns Rackingham Park Codera (Mexico/Spaln) &
Falr Chance, Winner's Gircle tvDC Rockingham Account Wagering MIR Books (Callenle) £
Camouflage Gaming Alanlis Paradise Casino Ruidoso Downs NDS Books (Nevada) )
Corpus Christt Greyhound Avalar Venlures Running Aces Hamess Park Tahcorp (Australla)
Delawane Buffalo Thunder Resort Saddie Brook Park Tallsbet (Austrafa) |
Dalla Downe Foxwoods Resort Casino Sam Houslon New Zealand Racing Board !
Derby Jackpot Meskwaki Bingo & Casino Valloy Greyhound Park

Canadlan Locatlons

Alberta Downs Assinfoala, Bamio, Charloitet

Fraser Downs, Fod Ede, Fredaricllon Raceway, Georglon Downs, Grand River, H

Clnton Telatheatre, Dresden, Elmira Racaway, Evergeasn Park, Exhibition Park, Flamboro Downs,

Kawarlha Downs, Marquls Downs, Mohawk, New ick, Northtands, Noclhside Downs, Picov O

Rocky Mauntaln Turf Club, Roya) Brillana Hub,
Truro Raceway, Westem Falr, Woodtine,

§L. Johns, Sudbury Downs, Summerside, TBC Sandown, TBC Telotheaters

Hastings Park, Hiavalha, Hipodroma do Quebec, invemess Racaway
ovms, Quinta Racaway, Rideau Carllon,



2021 Import Tracks

Arlington Lone Star
Assiniboia Louisiana Downs
Australia Racing Mahoning Valley
Belterra Monmouth Park
Canterbury Mountaineer Park
Century Downs Northlands
Century Mile NYRA - Aqueduct, Belmont, Saratoga
Charles Town Oaklawn Park
Churchill Downs Parx (Philly Park)
Delaware Park Penn National
Delta Downs Pimlico

Downs at Albuquerque

Prairie Meadows

Ellis Park

Presque Isle

Emerald Downs Retama Park
Evangeline Downs South America Racing
Fair Grounds Sunland Park

Fort Erie Sunray Park
Gulfstream Park Tampa Bay Downs
Gulfstream Park West Thistledown
Hastings Park Turf Paradise
Hawthorne Turfway Park
Indiana Grand United Kingdom
Keeneland Woodbine
Kentucky Downs Zia Park

Laurel Park Hong Kong

Back to Top



Back to Top
“selected feature and/or stakes races”:

QUARTER HORSE SIMULCAST RACES TO BE IMPORTED
Name of Host Track Race Dates Full Card or Selected Feature and/or Stakes Races
Los Alamitos Per CHRB calendar Full Card

I.  For STANDARDBRED racing associations, list the host tracks from which the association proposes
to import out-of-state and/or out-of-country harness races. Include the dates imported races will be
held, and whether or not a full card will be accepted. If the full card will not be imported, state
“selected feature and/or stakes races™:

HARNESS SIMULCAST RACES TO BE IMPORTED
Name of Host Track Race Dates Full Card or Selected Feature and/or Stakes Races
Cal Expo Harness Per CHRB calendar Full Card

J. For ALL racing associations, list imported simulcast races the association plans to receive which
use breeds other than the breed of the majority of horses racing at its live horse racing meeting.
Include the name of the host track, the dates imported races will be held, and how many races will
be imported:

OTHER BREED SIMULCAST RACES TO BE IMPORTED
Name of Host Track Breed of Horse Race Dates Number of Races to be Imported
None

K. For ALL racing associations, if any out-of-state or out-of-country races will commence outside of
the time constraints set forth in Business and Professions Code sections 19596.2 and 19596.3,
attach a copy showing the agreement by the appropriate racing association(s). Forwarded to the
Board upon receipt

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: All interstate wagering to be conducted by an association is subject to the provisions of Title 15, United
States Codes, which require specific written approval of the CHRB and of the racing commission having jurisdiction in the out-
of-state venue. All international wagering to be conducted by an association is subject to the provision of Business and Professions
Code sections 19596, 19596.1, 19596.2, 19596.3, 19601, 19602, and 19616.1, and will require specific written approval of the
CHRB.

Every association shall pay over to the simulcast organization within 3 calendar days following the closing of wagering for any
day or night racing program, or upon receipt of the proceeds, such amounts that are retained from off-track simulcast wagering,
interstate and out-of-state wagering, and which are obligated by statute for guest commissions, simulcast operator's expenses and
promotions, equine research, local government in-lieu taxes, and stabling and vanning deductions. Every association shall pay to
its Paymaster of Purses' account within 3 calendar days following the closing of wagering for each day or night racing program,
or upon receipt of the proceeds, such amounts that are retained or obligated from off-track simulcast wagering, interstate and out-
of-state wagering for purses, breeders’ awards or other benefits to horsemen. (See Notice to Applicant, Section 7.)

13. CHARITY RACING DAYS

A. A. Name and address of the distributing agent (charity foundation) for the net proceeds from
charity racing days held by the association: Pacific Racing Association 11, 1100 Eastshore Hwy,
Berkeley, CA 94710 is agent for distribution



Names and addresses of the trustees or directors of the distributing agent:

Back to Top

Pacific Racing

Association I1, 1100 Eastshore Hwy, Berkeley, CA 94710 will act as its own distributing agent

C.

D.

B&P Code Section 19550(b)?  Yes
NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Net proceeds from charity racing

Dates the association will conduct races as charity racing days OR:

Will the association pay the distributing agent an amount equal to the maximum required under

X

all be paid to the designated and approved distributing agent

1 1
ays st

within 180 days following the conclusion of the association's race meeting in accordance with the provisions of Business and
Professions Code section 19555. Thereafter, the distributing agent shall distribute not less than 90% of the aggregate proceeds
from such charity racing days within 12 calendar months after the last day of the meeting during which the charity racing days
were conducted and shall distribute the remaining funds as soon thereafter as is practicable. At least 50% of the distribution shall
be made to charities associated with the horse racing industry in accordance with the provisions of Business and Professions Code

section 19556(b) and (c¢).

14. RACING OFFICIALS, OFFICIALS, AND OFFICIATING EQUIPMENT

A. Racing officials nominated:

Association Veterinarian(s)

Clerk of Scales

Assistant Clerk of Scales
Clerk of the Course

Placing Judge/Stakes Coordinator
Horse Identifier

Horseshoe Inspector
Paddock Judge

Patrol Judge/Steward’s Aide
Placing Judge

Patrol Judge/Placing Judge
Starter

Timer

Cassille Batten, D.V.M.
William Grantham, D.V.M.
Ashton Cloninger, D.M.V.
Mike Parker, D.M.V.

Ken Sjordal

Kenneth Fowler

Tina Walker-Bryant

Lisa Jones

Darrell Sparks

Agustin Rayas

Linda Anderson

Kenneth Fowler

Lisa Wilkerson

Jerry Stone

Todd Stephens

Jelina Pike

B. Management officials in the racing department:

Director of Racing

Racing Secretary
Assistant Racing Secretary
Paymaster of Purses

Others (identify by name and title)
Main Track Superintendent

Turf Track Superintendent

Price Maker

Stable Superintendent

Patrick Mackey

Patrick Mackey

Steve Martinelli & Linda Anderson
Claudia Dominguez

Juan Meza
Hugo Sandoval
Steve Martinelli
Carrie Fawcett

Steward’s Secretary/Horsemen Liaison Devon Dunham

Name, address, email and telephone number of the reporter employed to record and prepare

transcripts of hearings conducted by the stewards: Christine Niccoli
Niccoli Reporting Service, 619 Pilgrim Drive, Foster City, CA 94404-1707, (650) 573-9339

Photographic device to be used for photographing the finish of all races, name of the person



Back to Top

supplying the service, and expiration date of the service contract: Plusmic Corp., USA, Bill
O’Brien, Expires: December 31, 2021.

E. Photo patrol video equipment to be used to record all races, name of the person supplying the
service, and expiration date of the service contract. Specify the number and location of cameras
for dirt and turf tracks. Pegasus Communications, Inc., Jim Porep, Jr., System maintained in
house, broadcasting in High Definition (HD) on March 17, 2016; Contract valid through
October 5, 2021.

F.  Type of electronic timing device to be used for the timing of all races, name of the person supplying
the service, and expiration date of the service contract: GPS timing system; Axcis Information
Network, Inc., dba TrackMaster, an Equibase Company; expires December 31, 2021.

15. SECURITY CONTROLS

A. Name and title of the person responsible for security controls on the premises. Include an
organizational chart of the security department and a list of the names of security personnel and
contact telephone numbers.

William Rizzuto, Assistant General Manager is responsible for security on-site
Security Department organizational attached

Security Department phone number (510) 559-7551

Stable Security phone number (510) 542-4235 or (510) 559-7525

William Rizzuto cell phone number (775) 846-8484

B. Estimated number of security guards, gatemen, patrolmen or others to be engaged in security tasks
on a regular full-time basis: 34
1 — Assistant General Manager 7 — Security Corporals/Guards
2 — Security Lieutenant 8 — Stable Security Officers
3 — Security Sergeants 5 — Stable Gate Personnel
1 — Stable Security Sergeant 5 — Fire Guards
1 — Fire Guard Lieutenant

1. Attach a written plan for enhanced security for graded stakes races, and races of $100,000 or
more, to include the number of security guards in the restricted areas during a 24-hour period
and a plan for detention stalls. N/A

2. Detention Stalls:

A. Attach a plan for use of graded stakes or overnight races.

6 hour surveillance prior to race in Graded Stakes with purses of $100,000 or over

24 hour surveillance in detention barn for Trainers with high-test results and repeat
offenders

B. Number of security guards in the detention stall area during a 24-hour period.
Four Security Guards

C. Describe number and location of surveillance cameras in detention stall area.

Entire surveillance camera system in the barn area has been upgraded by Geovision in
June 2019 to include extended memory of 90 days. The camera equipment is connected
to a digital recording system which is kept in a secured area with a power back-up in
place. There are a total of 25+ cameras strategically placed throughout the barn area.



Back to Top

Attachment to PRA / Golden Gate Fields License Application
14 (E):

Track Camera Equipment:

There are a total of ten (10) high definition (HD) cameras placed at the following
strategic locations around the race track:

7/8 Pole

3/8 Pole

1/4 Pole

Paddock

Paddock (Gliding)

(2) Pan Cameras on Roof
Jib camera in Paddock
Starting Gate (Robo)
Parking Lot (Robo-scenic)



Back to Top

PACIFIC RACING ASSN / GOLDEN GATE FIELDS
SECURITY DEPARTMENT ORGANIZATIONAL CHART
ATTACHMENT 15A

David Duggan
Vice President &
General Manager

S

William Rizzuto
Asst. General
Manager

Cynthia Seidl
Senior Manager Of

Administration

1
|
|
!
|

Lt. of Security
2)

Lt. of Fire Guards
(M

()

oqmzammMmza. Sgt. Of |__|m~mu_m Security Sgt. h Fire Guards
curity )
(3)
| 1
_ Grandstand __ Stable Security
—| Security Officers | — Officers
(10) @
|
|
Stable Gate
Personnel

®)




Back to Top

Receiving Barn includes four (4) fixed cameras placed over designated stalls, one (1) 360°
fish-eye camera in center of walking ring, and (2) fixed cameras outside on east side of
Receiving Barn.

3. TCO2 Testing:

A. Number of races to be tested, and number of horses entered in each race to be tested.
Will follow CHRB staff directives

B. Plan for enhanced surveillance for trainers with high-test results.
Contractual obligations with TOC and CHRB directives will be followed

C. Plan for detention stalls for repeat offenders.
In compliance with our Race Meet Agreement with TOC and at the direction of the CHRB

D. Number of security personnel assigned to the TCO2 program.
As needed per the advice of CHRB staff

C. Describe the electronic security system:

1. Location and number of video surveillance cameras for the detention stall and stable gate.
Entire surveillance camera equipment in the barn area upgraded by Geovision in June 2019.
The camera equipment is connected to a digital recording system which is kept in a secured
area with a power back-up in place. Stable Gate, Stable Security Office & Parking Lot
surveillance include the following: Three (3) cameras are strategically placed to monitor all
activities at the Main Stable Gate (2 cameras facing incoming and 1 camera facing outgoing),
one (1) camera located on roof of Stable Security Office looking out into barn area, two (2)
cameras in O/T parking lot parking lot, three (3) cameras installed at the horsemen walk-in
gate providing 24/7 surveillance, and numerous cameras surveilling roadways, Racing Office,
CHRB office, gap gate/chute, etc.

D. For night racing associations. Describe emergency lighting system: Not applicable
16. EMERGENCY SERVICES

A. Name, address and emergency telephone number of the ambulance service to be used during
workouts and during racing:
Brad Winding Turf Rescue, LL.C, 19615 Barclay Road, Castro Valley, CA 94546,
(510) 581-8470

1. Attach a certification from the ambulance service(s) listed in 16.A., certifying that the
paramedic staff are licensed with the California Emergency Medical Services Authority.
Certification documentation attached — 1 Paramedic and 1 EMT (1A) ambulance staff

B. Name, address and emergency telephone number of the ambulance service to be used during
workouts at auxiliary sites: N/A

1. Attach a certification from the ambulance service (s) listed in 16.B, certifying that the
paramedic staff are licensed with the California Emergency Medical Services Authority.
N/A



Back to Top

TURF RESCUE
AMBULANCE SERVICE, LLC

April 20, 2021

California Horse Racing Board
1010 Hurley Bivd., Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95825

RE: Turf Rescue, LLC, Licensed Personnel in 2021
To Whom It May Concern:

This is to inform you that Turf Rescue, LLC operations and procedures are well
within the standard care Operating Procedures set forth by Alameda County EM.S.

Turf Rescue, LLC employs only licensed Paramedics and Emergency Medical
Technicians that meet and follow the licensing requirements for Alameda County
E.M.S.

If you have any further questions, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely,

Brad Winding, Owner
Turf Rescue, LLC

Brad Winding, Qwner
Turf Rescue Ambulance Service, LLC
1344 Winkle Drive, Chico, CA 95926
Email: turfrescue@att.net
H: (530) 896-1189
C: (510) 813-8470



Back to Top

C. Describe the on-track first aid facility, including equipment and medical staffing: Attached

D. Name and emergency telephone number of the licensed physician on duty during the race meeting:
If quarter horse racing association sees D.1.:
Dr. David Seftel
Office Number: 510-559-7375, Cell Number: 650-520-6204

1. Name address and emergency telephone number of hospital located within 1.5 miles of the
racetrack, which whom an agreement is in place to provide emergency medical services,
pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19481.3(a): N/A

E. Name, address and emergency telephone number of the hospital to be used for admittance and
treatment of emergency injuries in the event of an on-track injury to a jockey:
Alta Bates Summit Medical Center, 2450 Ashby Ave., Berkeley, CA 94705, (510) 204-4444
or Alameda County Medical Center (Highland Hospital Trauma Center), 1411 East 315
Street, Oakland, CA 94602 (510) 437-4865

F. Attach, in English and Spanish, the emergency medical plan procedures that will be posted in each
jockey’s room to be used in the event of an on-track injury to a jockey: Attached

G. Name of health and safety manager and assistant manager responsible for compliance of health
and safety provisions pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19481.3(d):
Roy Roenbeck, Director of Environmental, Health & Safety
Bill Rizzuto, Assistant General Manager serves as Assistant Safety Manager

H.  Attach a fire clearance from the fire authority having jurisdiction over the premises.
- Albany fire clearance letter attached valid through December 31, 2021
- Berkeley Fire clearance letter issued September 22, 2020. Valid until next scheduled
inspection

I.  Name of the workers’ compensation insurance carrier for the association and the number of the
insurance policy (if self-insured, provide details): Liberty Mutual Fire Insurance Co. WA2-
B7D-170912-019 (policy no.)

J. Attach a Certificate of Insurance for workers’ compensation coverage. The CHRB is to be named
as a certificate holder and given not less than 10 days’ notice of any cancellation or termination of
insurance that secures the liability of the association for payment of workers’ compensation.
Workers’ Compensation COI is valid through June 30, 2021; will forward new COI to Board
upon issuance.

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Every licensee conducting a horse racing meeting shall, pursuant to Business and Professions
Code section 19481.3, maintain, staff, and supply an on-track first aid facility, that may be either permanent or mobile, and
which shall be staffed and equipped as directed by the Board. A qualified and licensed physician shall be on duty at all times
during live racing, except that this provision shall not apply to any quarter horse racing at the racetrack if there is a hospital
situated no more than 1.5 miles from the racetrack and the racetrack has an agreement with the hospital to provide emergency
medical services to jockeys and riders. An ambulance licensed to operate on public highways provided by the track shall be
available at all times during live racing and shall be staffed by two emergency medical technicians licensed in accordance
with Division 2.5 (commencing with Section 1797) of the Health and Safety Code, one of whom may be an Emergency
Medical Technician Paramedic, as defined in section 1797.84 of the Health and Safety Code. (b) Each racing association and
racing fair shall adopt and maintain an emergency medical plan detailing the procedures that shall be used in the event of an
on-track injury. The plan shall be posted in each jockey room in English and Spanish. (c) Prior to every race meeting, the
racing association or racing fair shall contact area hospitals to coordinate procedures for the rapid admittance and treatment
of emergency injuries. (d) Each racing association or racing fair shall designate a health and safety manager and assistant
manager, who shall be responsible for compliance with the provisions of this section and one of whom shall be on duty at all



Back to Top

® GOLDEN GATE FIELDS!

DESCRIPTION OF GGF MEDICAL CLINIC
(LIVE RACING)

Services (Mission)
e Pre-race examinations on jockeys;
e Preventive & curative medical services for jockeys;
e Urgent care facility for jockeys;
e Assist CHRB in assessment of any impaired individuals.

Staffing
e Physician Medical Director (“Track Physician”).

Equipment
e Advanced cardiac life support (ACLS) equipment;
e 12-Lead EKG;
e Lung function testing equipment;
e Ultrasound (for internal organ injury assessment);
e Blood work & hematology supplies & equipment;
e Basic surgical care supplies & equipment.

Availability
e One-hour before first posted race until one-to-two hours
Following last posted race;
e Extended hours for necessary follow-up care and/or upon
Request from track management or CHRB.



(GOLDEN (GATE FiEups

EMERGENCY MEDICAL PROCEDURES
-MORNING TRAINING-

FOR ON-TRACK INJURY TO JOCKEYS OR EXERCISE RIDERS

“FIRST RESPONSE”
In the event of an accident, the Outriders shall immediately contact the on-track GGF
Human Ambulance using Radio Channel #1 (“Rider Down");
(or the accident may very well be witnessed directly by the Ambulance Crew);
The on-track GGF Human Ambulance (manned by GGF-contracted medical personnel)
shall respond immediately to the site of the accident;
The attending contracted medical personnel shall arrive equipped with advanced
cardiac life support (ACLS) and other necessary acute medical treatment equipment &
supplies;
An “on-site evaluation” of injuries to the jockey(s) or exercise rider(s) shall be made
by the attending contracted medical personnel.

v

“ON-SITE EVALUATION”

Based on the attending contracted medical personnel “on-site evaluation” of injuries, a
decision shall be made to either treat the injured jockey(s) or exercise rider(s) on-site
or to request emergency medical transport for off-site treatment at a hospital trauma
center;
e If on-site treatment is deemed sufficient, the GGF Human Ambulance shall
provide the injured jockey(s) or exercise rider(s) with appropriate medical
treatment; or,

o If off-site treatment is deemed necessary, "911” shall be used to summon a City
of Albany Fire Dept. ambulance (a Fire Dept. truck shall also respond).

v

“INJURY TREATMENT"”
If an injured jockey(s) is treated on-site:

» the attending contracted medical personnel shall provide medical treatment until
surrendering custody of the patient based on his/her medical judgment;

e the Track Physician of the GGF Medical Clinic shall likewise be notified either via
telephone or when arriving on-site (live race days only).

If an exercise rider(s) is treated on-site:

¢ the attending contracted medical personnel shall provide medical treatment until
surrendering custody of the patient based on his/her medical judgment;

If the City of Albany Fire Dept. ambulance is summoned to respond, the injured
jockey(s) or exercise rider(s) shall be transferred to this ambulance at either of the
two following locations for transport to a local hospital;

o If the injuries are deemed less severe, the jockey(s) or exercise rider(s) will be
transported by the GGF Human Ambulance to an off-track location for pick-up by
the City of Albany Fire Dept. ambulance; or,

o If the injuries are deemed severe and the jockey(s) or exercise rider(s) cannot
be moved, the City of Albany Fire Dept. ambulance will be escorted by GGF
security personnel directly onto the track for patient pickup.

v

“POST INJURY ACTIVITIES”
The incident must be reported immediately to the appropriate CHSA representative;

In consultation with the attending contracted medical personnel, an “Accident/Injury
Investigation Report” must be completed by track management following completion
of the above-noted procedures.

Should the GGF Human Ambulance need to leave the track premises, for whatever reason(s), all morning training must
be delayed until a city-chartered or other substitute ambulance is on-site and available for on-track medical service.

(REV 2.0, OCTOBER 2011)

Back to Top



I

(GOLDEN GATE FiEtDs

PROCEDIMIENTOS MEDICOS DE EMERGENCIA
-ENTRENAMIENTO MATUTINO-

PARA HERIDAS A JINETES O JINETES DE EJERCICIO EN LA PISTA

“"PRIMEROS AUXILIOS”

En caso de accidente, los paradores deberan contactarse de inmediato con la
Ambulancia para pacientes humanos del Golden Gate Fields (GGF) a través del canal de
radio n.° 1 (por “jinete caldo”) (o tal vez el equipo de la ambulancia presencia el
accidente directamente);

La Ambulancia del GGF (con personal médico contratado del GGF) debera actuar de
inmediato en el lugar del accidente,

El personal médico contratado que asista deberd contar con conocimientos en soporte
vital cardiovascular avanzado (SVCA) y demads equipos y suministros necesarios de
tratamiento médico inmediato;

Dicho personal llevara a cabo una “evaluacion en el lugar” de las heridas del jinete o del
jinete de ejercicio.

Js

“EVALUACION EN EL LUGAR”

De acuerdo con la evaluacion de las heridas que realice el personal médico contratado en
el lugar, se tomara una decision acerca de tratar al jinete o jinete de ejercicio herido en
dicho lugar o bien solicitar un transporte médico para emergencias para llevar a cabo un
tratamiento en un centro de traumatologia;

e Sise considera suficiente el tratamiento en el lugar, la Ambulancia del GGF deberd
proporcionar el tratamiento médico correspondiente al jinete o jinete de ejercicio
herido o

¢ Sies necesario un tratamiento fuera del predio, se deberd utilizar el *911” para
llamar una ambulancia del Departamento de Bomberos de la ciudad de Albany
(también podrd actuar un camion del Departamento de Bomberos).

N

“TRATAMIENTO DE HERIDAS"”
Si se trata un jinete herido en el fugar:

o el personal médico contratado que asista deberd proveer tratamiento médico hasta
que derive al paciente de acuerdo con su criterio médico;

e también se debera notificar al médico de la pista de la Clinica Médica del GGF ya
sea por via telefénica o cuando llegue al lugar (Gnicamente los dias de carreras).

Si se trata un jinete de ejercicio en el lugar:

« el personal médico contratado que asista debera proveer tratamiento médico hasta
derivar al paciente de acuerdo con su criterio médico;

Si se llama a la ambulancia del Departamento de Bomberos de la ciudad de Albany para
brindar atencién, se trasladara al jinete o jinete de ejercicio herido en dicha ambulancia
hasta una de las siguientes ubicaciones para trasladarlo a un hospital local;

» Silas heridas se consideran poco graves, se trasladara al jinete o jinete de ejercicio
en la Ambulancia del GGF fuera de la pista para que lo recoja la ambulancia del
Departamento de Bomberos de la cuidad de Albany o

¢ Silas heridas se consideran graves y no se pueden movilizar al jinete o jinete de
ejercicio, el personal de seguridad del GGF escoltara la ambulancia del
Departamento de Bomberos de la ciudad de Albany directamente hacia la pista

para que recoja al paciente.

“ACTIVIDADES POSTERIORES A LAS HERIDAS"”
Se debe informar el incidente de inmediato al representante correspondiente de la
Asociacion de jinetes de California (CSHA, por su sigla en inglés);
Con el asesoramiento del personal médico contratado que asista, la gerencia debe
completar un “Informe de investigacion de accidentes/ heridas” luego de que se
completen los procedimientos que se apuntaron anteriormente.

Si la Ambulancia del GGF debe retirarse del predio, por cualquier motivo, se deben demorar todos los entrenamientos matutinos hasta que una
ambulancia de la ciudad u otra de reemplazo se encuentre en el lugar y disponible para brindar servicio médico en la pista.

(REV 2.0, OCTUBRE 2011)

Back to Top



Department of Fire and Emergency Services
Division of Fire Prevention

Yl T2 S
SrisimiEn >

September 22, 2020

Roy Roenbeck

Environmental Health & Safety Director
Pacific Racing Association/Golden Gate Fields
1100 Eastshore Highway

Berkeley, CA 94710

Phone (510) 559-7300 {main office)

Fax (510) 559-7465

Subject: Fire & Life Safety Inspection of Golden Gate Fields in Berkeley, CA

Dear Mr. Roenbeck:

On Thursday, July 23, 2020, the City of Berkeley Fire Prevention Division Inspectors conducted an annual
inspection of the barns and buildings located on the Berkeley, CA, portion of Golden Gate Fields for
compliance with Berkeley Fire Code requirements (Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 19.48). Some fire
code violations were found. Re-inspections were completed on Thursday, September 3, 2020, and
Monday, September 21, 2020. Photo documentation of the remaining repairs were sent on Tuesday,
September 22, 2020. Upon re-inspection of the facilities, it was found that there were no outstanding
fire code violations. Golden Gate Fields is hereby granted a fire clearance.

This fire clearance establishes a reasonable standard of fire safety as addressed in Title 4, Division 4,
Article 17, Section 1927 Fire Prevention of the Califarnia Code of Regulations.

These facilities are considered to be compliant with the fire code until the next scheduled inspection
unless and until we receive information to the contrary. Should you have any questions or concerns

regarding the annual inspection, then please contact me at 510-981-5582 or dtieu@cityofberkeley.info.

Thank you and the entire Golden Gate Fields team in working diligently to improve the fire & life safety
of the barns and stables.

Sincerely,

Dori Tieu
interim Deputy Fire Marshal, City of Berkeley Fire Department

2100 Martin Luther King Ir Way, Berkeley, CA 94704 Tel: 510-981-3473 TDD: 510-981-6903 Fax: 50-981-5579 Email: fire@cityofberkeley.info

Back to Top



Back to Top

ARLBANY

CITY OF ALBANY m/ I/ FIRE DEPARTMENT
1000 SAN PABLO AVENUE
ALBANY, CA 94706

810 528-5770

Roy Roenbeck December 10, 2020
Environmental Health & Safety Director

Pacific Racing association/Golden Gate Fields

1100 Eastshore Highway

Albany California 94706

Mr. Roenbeck,

Fire inspector Thomas Peters from the City of Albany Fire Prevention Department together
with Golden Gate Fields Prevention Supervisor conducted a Life and Safety inspection on
December 10, 2020. Public areas within the Grandstand and the associated facilities were
evaluated for preparation of the 2021 racing season. Clearance for the facility is granted for
all aspects of your operation.

Please note that operations beyond the scope of normal racetrack activities may require
additional inspections with additional fees.

Please feel free to contact our office with any questions.

Thomas Peters
Fire Prevention Inspector

City of Albany
1000 San Pablo Ave.
Albany, CA 94706



(OLDEN (GATE FIELDS

May 26, 2021

Mr. Scott Chaney

Executive Director

California Horse Racing Board
1010 Hurley Way, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95825

Re: Pacific Racing Association — Rule 1927 Exemption Request

Dear Mr. Chaney,

As has been previously discussed, the City of Berkeley Fire Department is not able to
conduct more than one inspection per year at Golden Gate Fields. Pacific Racing Association has
previously submitted to the board the Berkeley Fire Department’s clearance letter dated

September 22, 2020.

Pacific Racing Association II is requesting an exemption from the requirement of Rule
1927 that the fire authority having jurisdiction over the barn area of Golden Gate Fields perform
an inspection within 45 days prior to the commencement of the race meeting.

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Smcurcly,

I'.,ﬁu“‘ ( /\\

Davxd Duggan

Back to Top



Back to Top

times when live racing is conducted. The health and safety manager may, at the discretion of the racing association, be the
person designated to perform risk management duties on behalf of the association.

17. CONCESSIONAIRES AND SERVICE CONTRACTORS

Names and addresses of all persons to whom a concession or service contract has been given, other
than those already identified, and the goods and/or services to be provided by each:

Armored Car Loomis Armored Car, P.O. Box 44196, San Francisco, CA 94144

Track Physician Dr. David Seftel, Conocen Corp., 20066 Austin Lane, Castro Valley, CA 94546
Official Program Wesco Graphics Inc., 410 East Grant Line Rd, Tracy, CA 95376

Starting Gate Mike Costello, United Puett Starting Gate Co., P.O. Box 18, S. Salem, NY 10590

Track Photographer Bill Vassar, Vassar Photography, 1167 Sapphire Drive, Livermore, CA 94550

Does the association provide its own concessions?  Yes |X No

18. ON-TRACK ATTENDANCE/FAN DEVELOPMENT

A. Attach a copy of the promotional and marketing plans for the race meeting: On file with the
Board

B. Promotional/ Marketing budget for this race meeting: On file with the Board
Promotional/Marketing budget for prior race meeting: On file with the Board
C. Number of hosts and hostesses employed for meeting: Staff TBD
D. Describe facilities set aside for new fans: (Facilities availability dependent on Covid restrictions)
Customer Service — Our customer service center is open year round with a trained customer
service representative to assist fans with general racing information, maintain our frequent

fan club known as the THOROUGHBREDS, and assist with XpressBet sign ups and account
maintenance

Xpressbet Customer Service — An Xpressbet ambassador is trained to assist fans in joining a
new program “XB Rewards Club.” This new program provides fans with admission
discounts and wagering points to be accumulated for designated rewards

Mutuel Newcomer Window - A specific Mutuel teller window has been created which includes
a hand-selected Mutuel clerk trained in customer service

E. Describe any improvements to the physical facility in advance of the meeting that directly
benefit:
1. Horsemen
Replaced turf course rail (inside and outside) with PVC by Duralock
Capital barn roofing improvements in the barn area
Updated all barn area lavatory facilities with touchless sanitizing equipment
Continuation of laundry service for the Jockey’s Room by GGF
Adhered to the yearly Tapeta® maintenance schedule of 5x per year in January,
April, June, September and December

O O O O O



Back to Top

Continual roadway, horse paths, and barn repairs

Replaced clubhouse turn track fence

Installation of added safety light during training hours

Added Owner/Trainer seating area near Winners Circle equipped with heaters

O O O O

2. Fans

o Upgraded entire surveillance system; total of 106 cameras installed throughout
the frontside facility

o Created new family area on A Deck complete with fencing, artificial turf etc.
(Golden Gate Green)

o Hired Roaming Ambassadors to assist fans with questions regarding wagering

and contactless system

Remodeling Paddock Pub with projection screen TV, furniture, and flooring

Providing tours of the front side facility to fans upon request

Continual parking lot and roadway repairs

Added contactless Food & Beverage delivery ordering system “GoTab”

Purchased Daktronics big screen to be installed in the infield for enhanced

viewing of races and local sports games in between races

O O O O O

3. Facilities in the restricted areas Equine Hospital

19. SCHEDULE OF CHARGES
A. Proposed charges, note any changes from the previous year:

Admission (general) $6.00
Admission (club house) $10.00
Admission (turf club) $12.00 Weekdays
Admission (turf club) $15.00 Weekends/Holidays
Reserved seating (general) N/A
Reserved seating (clubhouse) $ 5.00 (Free with TB card)
Parking (general) $6.00
Parking (preferred) $12.00
Parking (valet) $12.00
Programs (on-track) $ 2.75
(off-track) $ 2.75

Thoroughbred Club Members
Bundled Pricing includes free program

General Admission: Club House Admission:

1-10 Visits $5.00 1-10 Visits $8.00
11-20 Visits $4.00 11-20 Visits $7.00
21-30 Visits $3.00 21-30 Visits $6.00
31-40 Visits $2.00 31-40 Visits $5.00
Over 40 Visits $1.00 Over 40 Visits $4.00

Reserved seating  Free

Thoroughbred Club Prepaid Admission/Program Packages
TB Club Members can purchase a minimum of 30 Prepaid G/A admissions @ $2.00 each
TB Club Members can purchase a minimum of 15 Prepaid C/H admissions @ 4.00 each
Horsemen Free

B. Describe any "Season Boxes" and "Turf Club Membership" fees:



20.

21.

22,

Back to Top

Turf Club — Full Season Single Membership $ 1,000.00
Turf Club — Full Season Dual Membership $2,000.00
Top of the Stretch — Full Season Membership $ 500.00
Club House Box (4 seats, no admission) $ 450.00
Club House Season Pass (Admission only) $ 400.00
Grandstand Season Pass (Admission only) $ 200.00

C. Describe any "package" plans such as combined parking, admission and program:
Designated Group Sales packages include parking, admission, program, and buffet

JOCKEYS/DRIVERS’ QUARTERS

A. Check the applicable amenities available in the jockeys/drivers’ quarters:

x | Corners (lockers and cubicles) How many 23
x | Showers X | Steam room, sauna or steam cabinets x| Lounge area
x | Masseur x| Food/beverage service x| Certified platform scale

B. Describe the quarters to be used for female jockeys/drivers: Fifteen by twenty foot room accessed
from a community hallway. The room has a television and bed with attached shower room,
sink, and toilet.

BACKSTRETCH EMPLOYEE HOUSING

A. Inspection of backstretch housing was completed by (name) on
(date) to be completed before the meet.
CHRB to provide name of CHRB inspector and date of last inspection conducted with Stable
Superintendent, Carrie Fawcett

B.  Number of rooms used for housing on the backstretch of the racetrack: 140

C. Number of restrooms available on the backstretch of the racetrack: 18 with showers, 7 in office
areas

D. Estimated ratio of restroom facilities to the number of backstretch personnel:
1 restroom for every 12 people

TRACK SAFETY

A. Total distance of the racecourse - measured from the finish line counterclockwise (3' from the inner
railing) back to the finish line: 5.280 feet.

B. Describe the type of track surface at the facility, including the specific track surface composition:
Tapeta ® Footings Synthetic Track Surface



https://2,000.00
https://1,000.00

Back to Top

!

4"to7"
6" Deep Tapeta™ Mix
Clean, Washed :
Rectangular 2" Layer
Blacktop
6" Perforated Pipes Geotextile Membrane

C. The percent of cross slope in the straight-aways is: 1.5%
The percent of cross slope in the center of the turns is: 4%

D. Describe the type(s) of materials used for the inner and outer railings of the race course, the type
of inner railing supports (i.e., metal gooseneck, wood 4" x 4" uprights, offset wood 4" x 4" supports,
etc.), the coverings, if any, on the top of the inner railing, and the approximate height of the top of
the inner railing from the level of the race course.

Main Track: Inner and outer railings are metal gooseneck. Coverings are Rider Protection
Rail by Horsemen’s Track & Equipment, Inc. Approximate height of the top of the inner
railing is 42 inches.

Turf Course: Inner and outer railings are PVC by Duralock. Approximate height of the top
of the inner railing is 50 inches.

E. Name of the person responsible for supervision of the maintenance of the racetrack safety standards
pursuant to CHRB Rule 1474: Juan Meza

F.  Attach a Track Safety Maintenance Program pursuant to CHRB Rule 1474. On File

G. Ifthe association is requesting approval to implement alternate methodologies to the provisions of
Article 3.5, Track Safety Standards, pursuant to CHRB Rule 1471, attach a Certificate of Insurance
for liability insurance which will be in force for the duration of the meeting specified in Section 2.
The CHRB is to be named as a certificate holder and given not less than 10 days’ notice of any
cancellation or termination of liability insurance. Additionally, the CHRB must be listed as
additionally insured on the liability policy at a minimum amount of $3 million per incident. The
liability insurance certificate must be on file in the CHRB headquarters office prior to the conduct
of any racing. Not applicable

23. DECLARATIONS

A. Alllabor and lease agreements and concession and service contracts necessary to conduct the entire
meeting have been finalized except as follows (if no exceptions, so state): No exceptions

B.  Attach each horsemen's agreement pursuant to CHRB Rule 2044.
TOC — Agreement will be forwarded to Board upon completion.
CTT - If an agreement is reached, it will be forwarded to the board upon receipt.

C. Attach an agreement to provide for race-day furosemide administration pursuant to CHRB Rule
1845. On file with the board



Back to Top
21

D. Attach a lease agreement permitting the association to occupy the racing facility during the entire
term of the meeting. (In the absence of either a lease agreement or a horsemen’s agreement, a
request for an extension pursuant to CHRB Rule 1407 shall be made). On file with the Board.

E. All service contractors and concessionaires have valid state, county or city licenses authorizing
each to engage in the type of service to be provided and have valid labor agreements, when
applicable, which remain in effect for the entire term of the meeting except as follows (if no
exceptions, so state): No exceptions

F.  Absent natural disasters or causes beyond the control of the association, its service contractors,
concessionaires or horsemen participating at the meeting, no reasons are believed to exist that
may result in a stoppage to racing at the mecting or the withholding of any vital service to the
association except as follows (if no exceptions, so state): No exceptions

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Pursuant to CHRB Rules 1870 and 1871, the CHRB shall be given 15 days’ notice in writing of any
intention to terminate a horse racing meeting or the engagements or services of any licensee, approved concessionaire, or approved
service contractor,

24. CERTIFICATION BY APPLICANT

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury that I have examined this application, that all of the foregoing

statements in this application are true and correa\i and that I am authP ized by the association to attest

to this application on its behalf. Vi . / /
] (

N . i' . D¢ LG O ~ s
4 Ay F "_J'-" } i \\‘ ir_n.‘
Print Name Signature

P Y o & ) M)

Print Title _ - i)éte




Back to Top

Certificate of Insurance

No.: 2020-8-PACIF Dated: June 30, 2020
This document supersedes any certificate previously issved under this number

This is to certify that the Policy(ies) of insurance listed below ("Policy" or "Policies™) have been issued to the Named Insured identified below
for the policy period(s) indicated, This certificate is issued as a matter of information only and eonfers no rights npen the Certificate Holder
named below other than those provided by the Policy(ies).

i Notwithstanﬂing any requirement, term, or condition of any contract or any other document with respect to which this certificate may be issued
i or may pertain, the insurance afforded by the Policy(ies) is subjeet to all the terms, conditions, and exclusions of such Policy(ies). This certificate

does not amend, extend, or alter the coverage afforded by the Policy(ics). Limits shown are intended to address contractual obligations of the
Named Insured.

Limits may have been reduced sinee Policy effective date(s) as a result of a elaim or claims.

Certificate Holder: ' Named Insured and Address:

California Horse Racing Board Pacific Racing Association dba Golden Gate Fields
1010 Hurley Way 1100 Eastshore Highway

Sacramento, CA 95825 Albany, CA 94706

Attn.: Insurance Department
Lo K Subsidiary/Divisions:

¢ Pacific Racing Association
1100 Eastshore Highway
Albany, CA 94706

i ’ ) and

Pacific Racing Association 11
dba Golden Gate Ficlds

: : : 1100 Eastshore Highway

| Albany, CA 94706

This certificate is issued regarding:

| Evidence of Insurance
a ‘

- Policy | Effective/

! Type(s) of Insurance Insurer(s) Number(s) |Expiry Dates| Sums Insured Or Limits of Liability
COMMERCIAL GENERAL Zurich American Insurance GLO 9302183-18  |Jun 30,2020 to | Bach Ocourrence . |USD 2,000,000
LIABILITY Company Jun 30, 2021 - e
* Non-Owned Automobile O eted | USD 2,000,000

General Aggregate USD 2,000,000
WORKERS' COMPENSATION & LIBERTY MUTUAL FIRE WA2-B7D-170912- | fun 30, 2020 to Workers' C nsati
EMPLOYERS' LIAR INSURANCE CO 010 Jun 30, 2021 orkers Lompensation | gy tory
Employers' Liability USD 1,000,000
Each Accident Bodily Injury by Accident
Employers' Liability UsD 1,000,000
Each Employee Bodily Injury by Disease
Employers' Liability USD 1,000,000
Policy Limit Bodily Injury by Discase

Additional Information:

The Commercial General Liability Policy, placement was made by Marsh Commercial Business Center, a Service of Marsh USA Ine.

Marsh Canada Limited has only acted in the role of a consultant to the client with respect to this placement, which is indicated here for your
convenience, :

The Workers' Compensation and Employers’ Liability Policy, placement was made by Marsh USA Inc. Marsh Canada Limited has only
acted in the role of a consultant to the client with respect to this placement, which is indicated here for your convenience.

Notice of cancellation:

The insurer(s) affording coverage under the policies described herein will not notify the certificate holder named herein of the cancellation
of such coverage, . ‘

Marsh Canada Limited

j 120 Bremner Boulevard

i _ Suite 800 : : P

; Toronto, ON M35J 0A8 .

Telephone: 1-844-990-2378 // /%é{'{.%/é% :
Fax: -

Cer{s,Stronach@marsh.com By:

Marsh Cénada Limited

Maltthew Warnholtz

i
i
i
T
i
1




Agenda Item 12A
& Back to Top

CALIFORNIA HORSE RACING BOARD

June 16, 2021

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

There is no board package material for Item 12A



Agenda Item 12B
& Back to Top

CALIFORNIA HORSE RACING BOARD

June 16, 2021

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

There is no board package material for Item 12B



Agenda Item 13
genda ftem Back to Top

CALIFORNIA HORSE RACING BOARD

June 16, 2021

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

There is no board package material for Item 13



Agenda Item 14
& Back to Top

CALIFORNIA HORSE RACING BOARD

June 16, 2021

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

There is no board package material for Item 14



	June 2021 Meeting Agenda
	June 2021 Pending Administrative Adjudications
	June 2021 Pending Litigation

	Agenda Item 1 - May 2021 Meeting Minutes
	Agenda Item 2 - Report from the Pari-Mutuel and Wagering Committee
	Agenda Item 3 - Presentation by the Arabian Racing Association of California
	Agenda Item 4 - Reallocation of Race Dates
	Agenda Item 5 - Racing Conditions for CARF
	Agenda Item 6 - San Luis Rey Downs Fire Extension
	Agenda Item 7 - Racing Conditions for Del Mar
	Agenda Item 8 - Del Mar Race Meet Application
	Agenda Item 9 - Cal Expo Race Meet Application
	Agenda Item 10 - Racing Conditions for GGF
	Agenda Item 11 - GGF Race meet Application
	Agenda Item 12 - Reports
	Agenda Item 12A - Executive Director's Report
	Agenda Item 12B - Equine Medical Director's Report

	Agenda Item 13 - Public Comment
	Agenda Item 14 - Closed Session

	Back to Top: 


